
 

 

 

City of Capitola Agenda 
   
  

 

Mayor: Sam Storey 
Vice Mayor: Dennis Norton 
Council Members: Ed Bottorff 
 Stephanie Harlan 
 Michael Termini 
Treasurer: Christine McBroom 
  

 

REVISED 
 

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

THURSDAY, JANUARY 23, 2014  
 

CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
420 CAPITOLA AVENUE, CAPITOLA, CA  95010 

 
CLOSED SESSION – 6:30 PM 

CITY MANAGER’S OFFICE 
An announcement regarding the items to be discussed in Closed Session will be made in the 
City Hall Council Chambers prior to the Closed Session.  Members of the public may, at this 
time, address the City Council on closed session items only.  There will be a report of any final 
decisions in City Council Chambers during the City Council's Open Session Meeting. 

 
 CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION (Govt. Code §54956.9) 
  Schroedel et al. v. the City of Capitola 

[Santa Cruz Superior Court Case No. CV 175684] 
 

1 ,----------1 



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING - Thursday, January 23, 2014 
 

 

 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL – 7:00 PM 
All matters listed on the Regular Meeting of the Capitola City Council Agenda shall be 
considered as Public Hearings. 

 
1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Council Members Stephanie Harlan, Dennis Norton, Ed Bottorff, Michael Termini and Mayor 
Sam Storey 

 
2. PRESENTATIONS 
 A. Introduction of MariaElena De La Garza, the new Community Action Board of Santa 

Cruz County Executive Director. 
 
 B. Capitola Local Government Academy Graduation. 
 

3. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION 
 

4. ADDITIONAL MATERIALS 
Additional information submitted to the City Council after distribution of the agenda packet. 

 
 A. 9.E. 

DETAILS: 
Revised CAFR pages. 

 
 B. 10.B. 

DETAILS: 
Email form Sandra Wallace. 

 
 C. 10.D. 

DETAILS: 
Letter from Raymon Cancino, CEO of Community Bridges. 

 
5. ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS TO AGENDA 
 

6. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
Oral Communications allows time for members of the Public to address the City Council on any 
item not on the Agenda.  Presentations will be limited to three minutes per speaker.   Individuals 
may not speak more than once during Oral Communications.  All speakers must address the 
entire legislative body and will not be permitted to engage in dialogue. All speakers are 
requested to print their name on the sign-in sheet located at the podium so that their name may 
be accurately recorded in the minutes.  A MAXIMUM of 30 MINUTES is set aside for Oral 
Communications at this time. 

 
7. CITY COUNCIL / CITY TREASURER / STAFF COMMENTS 

City Council Members/City Treasurer/Staff may comment on matters of a general nature or 
identify issues for staff response or future council consideration. 

 
8. BOARDS, COMMISSIONS AND COMMITTEES APPOINTMENTS 
 A. City Council appointments to the Oversight Board for the Capitola Successor Agency. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Mayor makes appointments. 

 



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING - Thursday, January 23, 2014 
 

 

9. CONSENT CALENDAR 
All items listed in the “Consent Calendar” will be enacted by one motion in the form listed below.  
There will be no separate discussion on these items prior to the time the Council votes on the 
action unless members of the public or the City Council request specific items to be discussed 
for separate review.  Items pulled for separate discussion will be considered following General 
Government. 
 
Note that all Ordinances which appear on the public agenda shall be determined to have been 
read by title and further reading waived. 

 
 A. Consider approving the City Council Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting held 

on January 9, 2014. 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Approve Minutes. 

 
 B. Receive Planning Commission Action Minutes for the Regular Meeting of January 16, 

2014. 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Receive Minutes. 

 
 C. Consider Ordinances amending Chapters 2.08 and 2.16 of the Capitola Municipal Code 

regarding the City Manager and the Planning Department [2nd Reading]. 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Adopt Ordinances. 

 
 D. Receive the California Public Employees Retirement System Annual Actuarial Valuation 

Reports as of June 30, 2012. 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Receive Reports. 

 
 E. Receive the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 

2013. 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Receive Report. 

 
10. GENERAL GOVERNMENT / PUBLIC HEARINGS 

General Government items are intended to provide an opportunity for public discussion of each 
item listed.  The following procedure is followed for each General Government item:  1) Staff 
explanation; 2) Council questions; 3) Public comment; 4) Council deliberation; 5) Decision. 

 
 A. Consider a closure date and a contract with Open Streets of Santa Cruz County for the 

Esplande closure to vehicle traffic. 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Confirm date and approve contract. 

 
 B. Review of the single use plastic and carryout bag fee. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Discuss and provide direction. 

 



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING - Thursday, January 23, 2014 
 

 

 
 C. Consider amendments to Chapter 10.36.055 of the Capitola Municipal Code amending 

parking meter Zone B [1st Reading]. 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Introduce Ordinance. 

 
 D. Consider new applications for the Community Based Health and Human Services 

Program for Fiscal Year 2014/2015. 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Discuss and provide direction; and designate two Council Members to an ad hoc 
committee. 

 
 E. Consider authorizing an amended engineering contract with Harris & Associates in the 

amount not to exceed $78,000 for the Fiscal Year 2013/2014 Clares Street Traffic 
Calming Project. 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Approve Contract. 

 
11. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 Adjourn to the next Regular Meeting of the City Council on Thursday, February 13, 2014, at   

7:00 PM, in the City Hall Council Chambers, 420 Capitola Avenue, Capitola, California. 

 
Note:  Any person seeking to challenge a City Council decision made as a result of a proceeding in which, by law, 
a hearing is required to be given, evidence is required to be taken, and the discretion in the determination of facts is 
vested in the City Council, shall be required to commence that court action within ninety (90) days following the 
date on which the decision becomes final as provided in Code of Civil Procedure §1094.6.  Please refer to code of 
Civil Procedure §1094.6 to determine how to calculate when a decision becomes “final.”  Please be advised that in 
most instances the decision become “final” upon the City Council’s announcement of its decision at the completion 
of the public hearing.  Failure to comply with this 90-day rule will preclude any person from challenging the City 
Council decision in court. 
 
Notice regarding City Council:  The Capitola City Council meets on the 2nd and 4th Thursday of each month at 
7:00 p.m. (or in no event earlier than 6:00 p.m.), in the City Hall Council Chambers located at 420 Capitola Avenue, 
Capitola. 
 
Agenda and Agenda Packet Materials:  The City Council Agenda and the complete agenda packet are available 
on the Internet at the City’s website:  www.ci.capitola.ca.us.  Agendas are also available at the Capitola Post Office 
located at 826 Bay Avenue, Capitola. 
 
Agenda Document Review:  The complete agenda packet is available at City Hall and at the Capitola Branch 
Library, 2005 Wharf Road, Capitola, on the Monday prior to the Thursday meeting.  Need more information?   
Contact the City Clerk’s office at 831-475-7300. 
 
Agenda Materials Distributed after Distribution of the Agenda Packet:  Pursuant to Government Code 
§54957.5, materials related to an agenda item submitted after distribution of the agenda packet are available for 
public inspection at the Reception Office at City Hall, 420 Capitola Avenue, Capitola, California, during normal 
business hours. 
 
Americans with Disabilities Act:  Disability-related aids or services are available to enable persons with a 
disability to participate in this meeting consistent with the Federal Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.  Assisted 
listening devices are available for individuals with hearing impairments at the meeting in the City Council 
Chambers.  Should you require special accommodations to participate in the meeting due to a disability, please 
contact the City Clerk’s office at least 24-hours in advance of the meeting at 831-475-7300.  In an effort to 



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING - Thursday, January 23, 2014 
 

 

accommodate individuals with environmental sensitivities, attendees are requested to refrain from wearing 
perfumes and other scented products. 
 
Televised Meetings:  City Council meetings are cablecast “Live” on Charter Communications Cable TV Channel 8 
and are recorded to be replayed at 12:00 Noon on the Saturday following the meetings on Community Television of 
Santa Cruz County (Charter Channel 71 and Comcast Channel 25).  Meetings are streamed “Live” on the City’s 
website at www.ci.capitola.ca.us by clicking on the Home Page link “View Capitola Meeting Live On-Line.”  
Archived meetings can be viewed from the website at anytime. 
 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



Item #: 9.E. Attach 1. Pdf REVISED - ITEM 9.E. 1/23/14 City Council Meeting 

Subject: Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) 
CAFR page # 261 SIRE page # 82 CITY OF CAPITOLA 

Fiduciary Funds 
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position 

June 30, 2013 

Private 
Purpose 

Trust Fund Agency Fund 

ASSETS 
Cash and investments 
Accounts receivable 
Capital assets: 

Land 
Building and improvements 

Total Assets 

LIABILITIES 
Deposits 
Long-term liabilities (note 15): 

Due within one year 
Due in more than one year 

Total Liabilities 

NET POSITION (DEFICIT) 
Held in trust for successor agency and 
other purposes 

Total Net Position (Deficit) 

$ 

$ 

3,386 $ 
586,012 

1,038,880 
311 ,814 

36,237 

1,940,092 =$=====36=,=23=7= 

250,243 
2,894,124 

$ 36,237 

3,144,367 ===$===3=6,=23=7= 

(1 ,204,275) 

(1,204,275) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
-26-

-1-

Item #: 4.A. 9.E.pdfItem #: 9.E. Attach 1. Pdf REVISED - ITEM 9.E. 

Subject: Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) 
CAFR page # 26 I SIRE page # 82 CITY OF CAPITOLA 

Fiduciary Funds 
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position 

June 30, 2013 

1/23/14 City C 

Private 
Purpose 

Trust Fund Agency Fund 

ASSETS 
Cash and investments 
Accounts receivable 
Capital assets: 

Land 
Building and improvements 

Total Assets 

LIABILITIES 
Deposits 
Long-term liabilities (note 15): 

Due within one year 
Due in more than one year 

Total Liabilities 

NET POSITION (DEFICIT) 
Held in trust for successor agency and 
other purposes 

Total Net Position (Deficit) 

$ 

$ 

3,386 $ 
586,012 

1,038,880 
311 ,814 

36,237 

1,940,092 :::$l:===,;;;,;36;;,:,,2=3=7= 

250,243 
2,894,124 

$ 36,237 

3,144,367 =$=====36=,=23 ... 7= 

(1 ,204,275) 

(1 ,204,275) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
-26-



Item #: 9.E. Attach 1. Pdf REVISED - ITEM 9.E. 1/23/14 City Council Meeting 

Subject: Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) 
CAFR paQe # 27 I SIRE page # 83 CITY OF CAPITOLA 

Fiduciary Funds 

ADDITIONS 
RPTTF distributions 
Investment earnings 
Other revenue 

Total additions 

DEDUCTIONS 
Administrative allowance 
Other payments 
Pass-through valuation 
Debt service: 

Interest 

Total deductions 

Change in net position 

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position 
Year Ended June 30,2013 

Net position (deficit) , beginning of the period , as restated 

Net position (deficit) , end of the period 

$ 

$ 

Private 
Purpose 

Trust Fund 

1,120,077 
56 

200,415 

1,320,548 

250,000 
339,455 
650,070 

21 ,243 

1,260,768 

59,780 
(1 ,264,055) 

(1 ,204,275) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
-27-

-2-

Item #: 4.A. 9.E.pdf 1. Pdf REVISED - ITEM 9.E. 1/23/14 City Council Meeting 

Subject: Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) 
CAFR paQe # 27 / SIRE page # 83 CITY OF CAPITOLA 

Fiduciary Funds 

ADDITIONS 
RPTIF distributions 
Investment earnings 
Other revenue 

Total additions 

DEDUCTIONS 
Administrative allowance 
Other payments 
Pass-through valuation 
Debt service: 

Interest 

Total deductions 

Change in net position 

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position 
Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Net position (deficit) , beginning of the period, as restated 

Net position (deficit) , end of the period 

$ 

$ 

Private 
Purpose 

Trust Fund 

1,120,077 
56 

200,415 

1,320,548 

250,000 
339,455 
650,070 

21 ,243 

1,260,768 

59,780 
(1 ,264,055) 

(1 ,204,275) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
-27-



Item #: 9.E. Attach 1. Pdf REVISED - ITEM 9.E. 1/23/14 City Council Meeting 

Subject: Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) 
CAFR page # 59 I SIRE paQe # 116 CITY OF CAPITOLA 

Notes to Financial Statements 
Year Ended June 30, 2013 

15) SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE FORMER CAPITOLA REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY, 
(continued) 

Long-Term Debt 

In accordance with the provisions of California AB X 1 26 (Bill), the obligations of the former 
Redevelopment Agency became vested with the funds established for the Successor 
Agency upon the date of dissolution, February 1, 2012. Former tax increment revenues 
pledged to fund the debts of the former Redevelopment Agency are distributed to the 
Successor Agency subject to the reapportionment of such revenues as provided by the Bill. 

The debt of the Successor Agency as of June 30, 2013 is as follows: 

Beginning Ending Due Within 

Balance Additions Reductions balance One Year 

Advances Payable $ 1,968,028 $ $ $ 1,968,028 $ 
Notes Payable 1,000,000 (1,000,000) 

RDA Pass-Throughs 1,477,537 (301 ,198) • 1,176,339 250,243 

Totals $ 4,445,565 $ $ (1 ,301 ,198) $ 3,144,367 $ 250,243 

* Net reductions consist of payments totaling $951 ,268 less a $650,070 adjustment to record full value of 
remaining debt. See subsequent page for details. 

Due to the City 

The obligations due to the City represent a loan in the amount of $618,028 for staff and 
administrative costs associated with the expansion of the redevelopment area and the 
amendment of the redevelopment plan; and a note in the amount of $1,350,000 to 
purchase the City-owned Rispin Mansion property. Complete details on these obligations 
can be found in the Note 5. 

Notes Payable 

On September 29, 2000, the former Capitola Redevelopment Agency borrowed $1 ,000,000 
to provide temporary, short-term financing for various capital projects. The loan allowed for 
the principal to be fully prepaid without premium by the Agency upon a thirty day written 
notice to the lender at any time after September 29, 2001. On March 30, 2006, Chase NYC 
took over the WestAmerica note and established a new expiration date of September 29, 
2014. Interest was 4.75% ($47,500/year) payable semiannually on March 29 and 
September 29. The Successor Agency, Oversight Board to the Successor Agency, and the 
California Department of Finance approved early payment of this debt to assist in winding 
down the affairs of the Successor Agency. This debt was fully paid at June 30, 2013. 

-59-

-3-

Item #: 4.A. 9.E.pdfItem #: 9.E. Attach 1. Pdf REVISED - ITEM 9.E. 1/23/14 City C ______ ___________ _ 

Subject: Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) 
CAFR page # 59 I SIRE page # 116 CITY OF CAPITOLA 

Notes to Financial Statements 
Year Ended June 30, 2013 

15) SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE FORMER CAPITOLA REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY, 
(continued) 

Long-Term Debt 

In accordance with the provisions of California AB X 1 26 (Bill), the obligations of the former 
Redevelopment Agency became vested with the funds established for the Successor 
Agency upon the date of dissolution, February 1, 2012. Former tax increment revenues 
pledged to fund the debts of the former Redevelopment Agency are distributed to the 
Successor Agency subject to the reapportionment of such revenues as provided by the Bill. 

The debt of the Successor Agency as of June 30, 2013 is as follows: 

Beginning Ending Due Within 

Balance Additions Reductions balance One Year 

Advances Payable $ 1,968,028 $ $ $ 1,968,028 $ 
Notes Payable 1,000,000 (1 ,000,000) 

RDA Pass-Throughs 1,477,537 (301 ,198) • 1,176,339 250,243 

Totals $ 4,445,565 $ $ (1 ,301 ,198) $ 3,144,367 $ 250,243 

* Net reductions consist of payments totaling $951 ,268 less a $650,070 adjustment to record full value of 
remain ing debt. See subsequent page for details. 

Due to the City 

The obligations due to the City represent a loan in the amount of $618,028 for staff and 
administrative costs associated with the expansion of the redevelopment area and the 
amendment of the redevelopment plan ; and a note in the amount of $1 ,350,000 to 
purchase the City-owned Rispin Mansion property. Complete details on these obligations 
can be found in the Note 5. 

Notes Payable 

On September 29, 2000, the former Capitola Redevelopment Agency borrowed $1 ,000,000 
to provide temporary, short-term financing for various capital projects. The loan allowed for 
the principal to be fully prepaid without premium by the Agency upon a thirty day written 
notice to the lender at any time after September 29, 2001. On March 30, 2006, Chase NYC 
took over the WestAmerica note and established a new expiration date of September 29, 
2014. Interest was 4.75% ($47,500/year) payable semiannually on March 29 and 
September 29. The Successor Agency, Oversight Board to the Successor Agency, and the 
California Department of Finance approved early payment of this debt to assist in winding 
down the affairs of the Successor Agency. This debt was fully paid at June 30, 2013. 

-59-



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-4-



Sneddon,Su 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

Wallace Sandra [smsw1956@gmail.comj 
Tuesday, January 21,20148:42 AM 
City Council 
Paper bag 25 cent charge 

Dear Mayor Storey and City Council Members: 

ADDITIONAL MATERIAL Item 10.B. 
1-23-14 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

I am among those who has switched to reusable bags for my groceries to avoid the charge for paper bags. I am now well
trained but constantly see tourists purchasing groceries at Nob Hill who are shocked at the bag fee. 

During your review of this charge I would like to see you consider giving the entire 25 cents to Save Our Shores instead of 
the merchant. The purpose of charging for bags is to reduce the impact to our environment and that is the mission of Save 
Our Shores. 

I believe our tourists who don't know to bring reusable bags would be more amenable to donating 25 cents to Save Our 
Shores than paying it to local merchants. 

Thank you for your consideration. 

Respectfully, 

Sandra Wallace 

1 

-5-

Item #: 4.B. 10.B.pdf

Sneddon,Su 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

Wallace Sandra [smsw1956@gmail.comj 
Tuesday, January 21,20148:42 AM 
City Council 
Paper bag 25 cent charge 

Dear Mayor Storey and City Council Members: 

ADDITIONAL MATED' A I I+~~ -1 n D 

1-23-14 CITY COUNI 

I am among those who has switched to reusable bags for my groceries to avoid the charge for paper bags. I am now well
trained but constantly see tourists purchasing groceries at Nob Hill who are shocked at the bag fee. 

During your review of this charge I would like to see you consider giving the entire 25 cents to Save Our Shores instead of 
the merchant. The purpose of charging for bags is to reduce the impact to our environment and that is the mission of Save 
Our Shores. 

I believe our tourists who don't know to bring reusable bags would be more amenable to donating 25 cents to Save Our 
Shores than paying it to local merchants. 

Thank you for your consideration. 

Respectfully, 

Sandra Wallace 

1 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-6-



01/23/2014 THU 14:40 FAX 8316888302 Community Bridges ADDITIONAL MATERIAL Item 10.0. 
1-23-14 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

Council Members: 

Ed Bottorf 

Stephanie Harlan 

Michael Termini 

Treasurer Christine McBroom 

From: Raymon Cancino, M.P.A 

CEO 

Community Bridges 

CC: Introduction tothe Community 

COMMUNITY DnIU\!i~~ 
Fuentes de la Comunidad 

236 Santa Cruz Avenue, Aptos, CA 95003 
P. 831.688.8840 F. 831.688.8302 

www,communitybridges.org 

Greetings Council Members, it is with great excitement that I write to you in hopes of 

introducing myself as the new CEO of Community Bridges. ~uring the last several years the 

City of Capitola has played an important role in supporting the work that we do to provide 

comprehensive Health and Human Services for residents of Capitola. Your support to Lift Line 

that helps seniors access services and helps prolong their independent living, Live Oak Family 

Resource Center providing parent education, afterschool prbgram~ing, OST programming 

and safe haven for youth, Meals on Wheels which helps support the. most indigent and frail 

seniors living in our community with a meal and a daily wellness check and our Child 

Development Division that operates an early childhood education program that begins the 

relationship and importance of education and provides opportunities for social emotional 

programming. It should be noted that this wonderful set of services would not have been 

able to exist without the leadership and knowledge of your current Mayor and our former 

CEO Sam Storey. For this work and the continued commitment of your City Council to 

continue to support those most in need in your community, I thank you. 

In Community, 

Raymon Cancino 

Please consider naming Community Bridges in your estate plan. 

www.communifybridges.org 

Jl< Community Btidges 
Family" Programs 

• Beach Flats 
Community Center 

Child and Adult Care 
Food Program 

Child Development Division 

Familia Center 

. UveOak 
Family Resource Center 

"FlUME 
Consolidated Transportation 

Services Agency 

La Manzana 
Community Resources 

.~ -Meals on Wheels 

Mountain Community 
Resources 

Women, Infants & Children 
Nutrition Program 

-7-

Item #: 4.C. 10.D.pdf
01/23/2014 THU 14:40 FAX 8316888302 Community Bridges ADDITIONAL MATERIAL Item 10.0. 

1-23-14 CITY coUt\ 

Council Members: 

Ed Bottorf 

Stephanie Harlan 

Michael Termini 

Treasurer Christine McBroom 

From: Raymon Cancino, M.P.A 

CEO 

Community Bridges 

CC: Introduction tothe Community 

COMMUNITY DnIU\!i~~ 
Fuentes de la Comunidad 

236 Santa Cruz Avenue, Aptos, CA 95003 
P. 831.688.8840 F. 831.688.8302 

www,communitybridges.org 

Greetings Council Members, it is with great excitement that I write to you in hopes of 

introducing myself as the new CEO of Community Bridges. ~uring the last several years the 

City of Capitola has played an important role in supporting the work that we do to provide 

comprehensive Health and Human Services for residents of Capitola. Your support to Lift Line 

that helps seniors access services and helps prolong their independent living, Live Oak Family 

Resource Center providing parent education, afterschool prbgram~ing, OST programming 

and safe haven for youth, Meals on Wheels which helps support the. most indigent and frail 

seniors living in our community with a meal and a daily wellness check and our Child 

Development Division that operates an early childhood education program that begins the 

relationship and importance of education and provides opportunities for social emotional 

programming. It should be noted that this wonderful set of services would not have been 

able to exist without the leadership and knowledge of your current Mayor and our former 

CEO Sam Storey. For this work and the continued commitment of your City Council to 

continue to support those most in need in your community, I thank you. 

In Community, 

Raymon Cancino 

Please consider naming Community Bridges in your estate plan. 

www.communifybridges.org 

Jl< Community Btidges 
Family" Programs 

• Beach Flats 
Community Center 

Child and Adult Care 
Food Program 

Child Development Division 

Familia Center 

. UveOak 
Family Resource Center 

"FlUME 
Consolidated Transportation 

Services Agency 

La Manzana 
Community Resources 

.~ -Meals on Wheels 

Mountain Community 
Resources 

Women, Infants & Children 
Nutrition Program 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-8-



CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF JANUARY 10, 2013 

FROM: CITY CLERK'S OFFICE 

SUBJECT: APPOINTMENT TO THE OVERSIGHT BOARD FOR THE CAPITOLA 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: That the Mayor appoint Senior Planner Cattan and designate a Mayor's 
appointment to the Oversight Board. 

BACKGROUNDIDISCUSSION: Each year it is customary for the City Council to review 
appointments to the Oversight Board for the Capitola Successor Agency. The Oversight Board was 
formed in 2012. The purpose of the Board is to supervise the activities of the City's Successor 
Agency. The Board has a fiduciary responsibility to holders of the Responsible Obligations and the 
taxing entities that benefit from distributions of property tax and other revenue. The Oversight Board 
consists of the following 7 members pursuant to ABx1 26 - 34179. Two of the following members 
are to be appointed by the Mayor: (1) One member appointed by the Mayor for the City that formed 
the Redevelopment Agency; (2) One member representing the employees of the former 
Redevelopment Agency appointed by the Mayor from the recognized employee organization 
representing the largest number of former Redevelopment Agency employees employed by the 
Successor Agency at that time. 

The Mayor of Capitola has the authority to serve himself or appoint a representative. The Mayor also 
appoints one member representing the employees of the former Redevelopment Agency; this 
member is often referred to as the "union" appointment because the employee appointed is to come 
from the largest recognized employee organization. In Capitola, Danielle Uharriet is the current 
member of a recognized employee group. Senior Planner Cattan fills the requirements and staff 
recommends that she be appointed to serve this position in 2014. Ms. Cattan is available to serve as 
the "union" representative. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Oversight Board Current Member Roster 

Report Prepared By: Susan Sneddon, CMC 
City Clerk 

Reviewed and FO~d 
By City Manager: ~ 

R:\CITY COUNCIL\Agenda StaffReports\2014 Agenda Reports\Ol 23 14\8.B. 2014 Oversight Board Appt SR.doc -9-

Item #: 8.A. Staff Report.pdf

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF JANUARY 10, 2013 

FROM: CITY CLERK'S OFFICE 

SUBJECT: APPOINTMENT TO THE OVERSIGHT BOARD FOR THE CAPITOLA 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: That the Mayor appoint Senior Planner Cattan and designate a Mayor's 
appointment to the Oversight Board. 

BACKGROUNDIDISCUSSION: Each year it is customary for the City Council to review 
appointments to the Oversight Board for the Capitola Successor Agency. The Oversight Board was 
formed in 2012. The purpose of the Board is to supervise the activities of the City's Successor 
Agency. The Board has a fiduciary responsibility to holders of the Responsible Obligations and the 
taxing entities that benefit from distributions of property tax and other revenue. The Oversight Board 
consists of the following 7 members pursuant to ABx1 26 - 34179. Two of the following members 
are to be appointed by the Mayor: (1) One member appointed by the Mayor for the City that formed 
the Redevelopment Agency; (2) One member representing the employees of the former 
Redevelopment Agency appointed by the Mayor from the recognized employee organization 
representing the largest number of former Redevelopment Agency employees employed by the 
Successor Agency at that time. 

The Mayor of Capitola has the authority to serve himself or appoint a representative. The Mayor also 
appoints one member representing the employees of the former Redevelopment Agency; this 
member is often referred to as the "union" appointment because the employee appointed is to come 
from the largest recognized employee organization. In Capitola, Danielle Uharriet is the current 
member of a recognized employee group. Senior Planner Cattan fills the requirements and staff 
recommends that she be appointed to serve this position in 2014. Ms. Cattan is available to serve as 
the "union" representative. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Oversight Board Current Member Roster 

Report Prepared By: Susan Sneddon, CMC 
City Clerk 

Reviewed and FO~d 
By City Manager: ~ 

R:\CITY COUNCIL\Agenda StaffReports\2014 Agenda Reports\Ol 23 14\8.B. 2014 Oversight Board Appt SR.doc 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-10-



OVERSIGHT BOARD FOR 

CITY OF CAPITOLA 
420 Capitola Avenue 
Capitola, CA 95010 

(831)475-7300 
FAX (831) 479-8879 

THE CAPITOLA SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
CURRENT MEMBERS 

Termini, Michael CHAIR 
[Mayor's Appointment] 

Friend, Zach 
[Co Brd of Supervisors] 

Ortiz, Gayle 
[At Large] 

Maxwell, Jeffrey 
[Central Fire Prot District] 

Hart, Mary VICE CHAIR 
[SCC Office of Ed] 

Uharriet, Danielle 
[Employees] 

Reece, Gary 
[Cabrillo College] 

ADDRESS AND 
PHONE NUMBER 

DATE 
APPOINTED 

3/29/12 

TERM 
EXPIRES 

503 Oak Drive 
Capitola, CA 95010 1/10/13 Reappoint 
(W) 462-1085 (H) 476-6206 
Email: michael@triadelectric.com 

701 Ocean Street 1/9/13 
Santa Cruz, CA 95060 
(W) 454-2200 
Email: Zach.friend@co.santa-cruz.ca.us 

517 Riverview Dr 3/29/12 
CC;lpitola, CA 95010 
(W) 476-7016 
Email: gayle@gocapitola.com 

930 1 yth Avenue 3/29/12 
Santa Cruz, CA 95062 
(W) 479-6842 
Email: Jeffm@centralfpd.com 

400 Encinal Street 2/14/12 
Santa Cruz, CA 95060 
(W) 466-5602 
Email: mhart@santacruz.k12.ca.us 

420 Capitol Avenue 2/14/13 
Capitola, CA 95010 
(W) 475-7300 
Email: duharriet@ci.capitola.ca.us 

31 Kite Hill Road 3/29/12 
Santa Cruz, CA 95060 
(H) 332-7800 
Email: gaN@reece.net 

Revised: 05/20113 ss 

P:\City Clerk\Commitlees\Oversight Board\Roster\Oversight Board Current Members.doc 

-11-

Item #: 8.A. Attach 1.pdf

OVERSIGHT BOARD FOR 

CITY OF CAPITOLA 
420 Capitola Avenue 
Capitola, CA 95010 

(831)475-7300 
FAX (831) 479-8879 

THE CAPITOLA SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
CURRENT MEMBERS 

Termini, Michael CHAIR 
[Mayor's Appointment] 

Friend, Zach 
[Co Brd of Supervisors] 

Ortiz, Gayle 
[At Large] 

Maxwell, Jeffrey 
[Central Fire Prot District] 

Hart, Mary VICE CHAIR 
[SCC Office of Ed] 

Uharriet, Danielle 
[Employees] 

Reece, Gary 
[Cabrillo College] 

ADDRESS AND 
PHONE NUMBER 

DATE 
APPOINTED 

3/29/12 

TERM 
EXPIRES 

503 Oak Drive 
Capitola, CA 95010 1/10/13 Reappoint 
(W) 462-1085 (H) 476-6206 
Email: michael@triadelectric.com 

701 Ocean Street 1/9/13 
Santa Cruz, CA 95060 
(W) 454-2200 
Email: Zach.friend@co.santa-cruz.ca.us 

517 Riverview Dr 3/29/12 
CC;lpitola, CA 95010 
(W) 476-7016 
Email: gayle@gocapitola.com 

930 1 yth Avenue 3/29/12 
Santa Cruz, CA 95062 
(W) 479-6842 
Email: Jeffm@centralfpd.com 

400 Encinal Street 2/14/12 
Santa Cruz, CA 95060 
(W) 466-5602 
Email: mhart@santacruz.k12.ca.us 

420 Capitol Avenue 2/14/13 
Capitola, CA 95010 
(W) 475-7300 
Email: duharriet@ci.capitola.ca.us 

31 Kite Hill Road 3/29/12 
Santa Cruz, CA 95060 
(H) 332-7800 
Email: gaN@reece.net 

Revised: 05/20113 ss 

P:\City Clerk\Commitlees\Oversight Board\Roster\Oversight Board Current Members.doc 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-12-



CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF JANUARY 23, 2014 

FROM: OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK 

SUBJECT: MINUTES OF THE JANUARY 9,2014, REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve the subject minutes as submitted. 

DISCUSSION: Attached for City Council review and approval are the minutes of the 
subject meeting. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. January 9, 2014, Regular City Council Meeting. 

Report Prepared By: Susan Sneddon, CMC 
City Clerk 

-13-

Item #: 9.A. Staff Report.pdf

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF JANUARY 23, 2014 

FROM: OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK 

SUBJECT: MINUTES OF THE JANUARY 9,2014, REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve the subject minutes as submitted. 

DISCUSSION: Attached for City Council review and approval are the minutes of the 
subject meeting. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. January 9, 2014, Regular City Council Meeting. 

Report Prepared By: Susan Sneddon, CMC 
City Clerk 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-14-



12470 

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

THURSDAY, JANUARY 9, 2014 - 7:00 PM 

CLOSED SESSION.,... 6:30 PM 
CITY MANAGER'S OFFICE 

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING LITIGATION (Govt. Code 
§54956.9) 

Schroedel et al. v. the City of Capitola 
[Santa Cruz Superior Court Case No. CV 175684]/ 

//. , 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE CAPITOLA CJTY C,(;j),UNCIL - 7:00 PM 
/;,., , 

ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE , 
Council Members Stephanie Harlan, Dennis Norton, Ed Bottorff Michael Termini, and 
Mayor Sam Storey '1::-
REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION [520-25] 

Assistant Attorney Lauren Valk~tatedthat City Council received~'$tatus report 
regarding the following existing Htigation:Schroedel et al. v. the City of 
Capitola; there was no r~portable action. 

ADDITIONAL MATERIALS?':"'} 

A. Mayor Storey listed adaitto~afm~t~rial regarding/tern 9.A. received after the 
posting of the January 9, ~6~4, CityJ~blJnqil agenda packet. 

ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS TOA.GENd)( ... -
,"> .. :,', ' 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Manuel Vieira, Cabrillo MobilElJ-lome Estates Property Manager, stated 
concerns regarding the number of Vl3hicles parked near the brewery located at 
103 Kenneqy Drive, and that alco~6lic beverages are being consumed in the 

, pqrded off ~re:ain the parkinglotin'front of the brewery. 

Thefpl!owing local residents stated concerns regarding the newly installed 
solar radar,speed sign affecting the residents' ocean view: 

Matthew David"J350 Park Ave, 16C 
JessigCl Hansen, 850 Park Avenue 14 C 
Cynthi~jQuist, 850 Park Avenue 14B 

.' ,(Rrovided additional material) 
f ,)iin 'Quist, 850 Park Avenue 14B 
"June Smith, 850 Park Avenue. 

6. CITY COUNCIL I CITY TREASURER I STAFF COMMENTS (none provided) 

7. BOARDS, COMMISSIONS AND COMMITTEES APPOINTMENTS 

A. Mayor and Vice Mayor's appointments to the City's Finance Advisory 
Commission. [110-10/330-40] 

ACTION Motion made by Council Member Harlan, seconded by Council Member 
Bottorff, to approve the appointment of Council Member Termini for the 
Vice Mayor's appointee, and Mayor Storey to serve as the Mayor 
appointee on the City's Finance Advisory Commission. The motion 
carried unanimously. 

-15-

Item #: 9.A. Attach 1.pdf

12470 

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

THURSDAY, JANUARY 9, 2014 - 7:00 PM 

CLOSED SESSION.,... 6:30 PM 
CITY MANAGER'S OFFICE 

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING LITIGATION (Govt. Code 
§54956.9) 

Schroedel et al. v. the City of Capitola 
[Santa Cruz Superior Court Case No. CV 175684]/ 

//. , 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE CAPITOLA CJTY C,(;j),UNCIL - 7:00 PM 
/;,., , 

ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE , 
Council Members Stephanie Harlan, Dennis Norton, Ed Bottorff Michael Termini, and 
Mayor Sam Storey '1::-
REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION [520-25] 

Assistant Attorney Lauren Valk~tatedthat City Council received~'$tatus report 
regarding the following existing Htigation:Schroedel et al. v. the City of 
Capitola; there was no r~portable action. 

ADDITIONAL MATERIALS?':"'} 

A. Mayor Storey listed adaitto~afm~t~rial regarding/tern 9.A. received after the 
posting of the January 9, ~6~4, CityJ~blJnqil agenda packet. 

ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS TOA.GENd)( ... -
,"> .. :,', ' 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Manuel Vieira, Cabrillo MobilElJ-lome Estates Property Manager, stated 
concerns regarding the number of Vl3hicles parked near the brewery located at 
103 Kenneqy Drive, and that alco~6lic beverages are being consumed in the 

, pqrded off ~re:ain the parkinglotin'front of the brewery. 

Thefpl!owing local residents stated concerns regarding the newly installed 
solar radar,speed sign affecting the residents' ocean view: 

Matthew David"J350 Park Ave, 16C 
JessigCl Hansen, 850 Park Avenue 14 C 
Cynthi~jQuist, 850 Park Avenue 14B 

.' ,(Rrovided additional material) 
f ,)iin 'Quist, 850 Park Avenue 14B 
"June Smith, 850 Park Avenue. 

6. CITY COUNCIL I CITY TREASURER I STAFF COMMENTS (none provided) 

7. BOARDS, COMMISSIONS AND COMMITTEES APPOINTMENTS 

A. Mayor and Vice Mayor's appointments to the City's Finance Advisory 
Commission. [110-10/330-40] 

ACTION Motion made by Council Member Harlan, seconded by Council Member 
Bottorff, to approve the appointment of Council Member Termini for the 
Vice Mayor's appointee, and Mayor Storey to serve as the Mayor 
appointee on the City's Finance Advisory Commission. The motion 
carried unanimously. 



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Thursday, January 9, 2014 12471 

8. CONSENT CALENDAR 

Council Member Norton requested that Item B.C. be removed from the 
Consent Calendar and discussed after Item B.F. 

Council Member Termini requested that Item B.F. be removed from the 
Consent Calendar to be discussed prior to Item 9.A. 

Council Member Harlan requested that Item B.H. be removed from the 
Consent Calendar and discussed after Item 9.E. 

Council Member Bottorff requested that Item B.I. be removed from the Consent 
Calendar and discussed after Item B.C. 

ACTION Motion made by Council Member Harlan, sec~)I'id$a by Council Member 
Termini, to approve Items B.A., B.B., B.D., B.E.,and B.G. on the Consent 
Calendar. The motion carried unanimously. 

A. 

B. 

C. 

D. 

E. 

F. 

I. 

H. 

Consider approving the City Council Minutes of the Special Joint Meeting of 
the City Council and the Planning CQmmission held on November 21, 2013; 
the Special Closed Session held onqecember 12, 2013; <ahd the Regular City 
Council Meeting held on DecemQ~t·c~~;'2013. 

Approval of City Check Registe}/~~~orts datedNQyember 22, 2013;December 
6,2013; December 13, 2013; andO~c~,mb~r20,2013. [300-10] 

Consider an Ordinance amendingCN~pt~f'15.04 of the Capitola Municipal 
Code pertaining to Building and Fire Mod~IGpdes to become effective January 
1, 2014 [2nd Reading]5[570,,10/111 0-1 0] . 

Adopt Ordinance No. 9BB ameridin"g Chapter2.~4 of the Capitola Municipal 
Code pertainjng to the Personnel System [2nd Reading]. rf100-25] 

ConsiderEJtign;of~u9get Calendarfor Fiscal Year 2014/2015. [330-05] 

Con$idet'~ contract With Gene Bregman and Associates in an amount not to 
exee~d $10,000 for[g;)public opipion poll. [160-50/500-10 AlC: Gene Bregman 
and A~sQ~iates] ...... . 

90nsider'approvin~lalea$ec:lgre~ment with MRA, Inc., dba Capitola Beach 
Company, ElI19 authorize the'>City Manager to execute the agreement 
commencingdnQctober 1, 2014, for a term of five years. [730-65 Special Use 
Permits/500-10AlC;,MRA, Inc. dba Capitola Beach Company] 

"-:-_ 'W·" 

Consider an Adminis!rative Policy to amend the Board, Commission and 
Committee Guide Procedures. [100-10] 

Designate the Mayor and Vice Mayor to act as liaisons with the Soquel Unified 
. . Elementary School District Board of Trustees. [1150-05] 

I. Consider approving a lease agreement with MRA, Inc., dba Capitola Beach 
Company, and authorize the City Manager to execute the agreement 
commencing on October 1, 2014, for a term of five years. [730-65 Special Use 
Permits/500-10 AlC: MRA, Inc. dba Capitola Beach Company] 

9. GENERAL GOVERNMENT I PUBLIC HEARINGS 

The following Item B.F. was pulled from the Consent Calendar" 

a.F. Consider a contract with Gene Bregman and Associates in an amount not to 
exceed $10,000 for a public opinion poll. [160-50/500-10 AlC: Gene Bregman 
and Associates] 

-16-

Item #: 9.A. Attach 1.pdf

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Thursday, January 9, 2014 12471 

8. CONSENT CALENDAR 

Council Member Norton requested that Item B.C. be removed from the 
Consent Calendar and discussed after Item B.F. 

Council Member Termini requested that Item B.F. be removed from the 
Consent Calendar to be discussed prior to Item 9.A. 

Council Member Harlan requested that Item B.H. be removed from the 
Consent Calendar and discussed after Item 9.E. 

Council Member Bottorff requested that Item B.I. be removed from the Consent 
Calendar and discussed after Item B.C. 

ACTION Motion made by Council Member Harlan, sec~)I'id$a by Council Member 
Termini, to approve Items B.A., B.B., B.D., B.E.,and B.G. on the Consent 
Calendar. The motion carried unanimously. 

A. 

B. 

C. 

D. 

E. 

F. 

I. 

H. 

Consider approving the City Council Minutes of the Special Joint Meeting of 
the City Council and the Planning CQmmission held on November 21, 2013; 
the Special Closed Session held onqecember 12, 2013; <ahd the Regular City 
Council Meeting held on DecemQ~t·c~~;'2013. 

Approval of City Check Registe}/~~~orts datedNQyember 22, 2013;December 
6,2013; December 13, 2013; andO~c~,mb~r20,2013. [300-10] 

Consider an Ordinance amendingCN~pt~f'15.04 of the Capitola Municipal 
Code pertaining to Building and Fire Mod~IGpdes to become effective January 
1, 2014 [2nd Reading]5[570,,10/111 0-1 0] . 

Adopt Ordinance No. 9BB ameridin"g Chapter2.~4 of the Capitola Municipal 
Code pertainjng to the Personnel System [2nd Reading]. rf100-25] 

ConsiderEJtign;of~u9get Calendarfor Fiscal Year 2014/2015. [330-05] 

Con$idet'~ contract With Gene Bregman and Associates in an amount not to 
exee~d $10,000 for[g;)public opipion poll. [160-50/500-10 AlC: Gene Bregman 
and A~sQ~iates] ...... . 

90nsider'approvin~lalea$ec:lgre~ment with MRA, Inc., dba Capitola Beach 
Company, ElI19 authorize the'>City Manager to execute the agreement 
commencingdnQctober 1, 2014, for a term of five years. [730-65 Special Use 
Permits/500-10AlC;,MRA, Inc. dba Capitola Beach Company] 

"-:-_ 'W·" 

Consider an Adminis!rative Policy to amend the Board, Commission and 
Committee Guide Procedures. [100-10] 

Designate the Mayor and Vice Mayor to act as liaisons with the Soquel Unified 
. . Elementary School District Board of Trustees. [1150-05] 

I. Consider approving a lease agreement with MRA, Inc., dba Capitola Beach 
Company, and authorize the City Manager to execute the agreement 
commencing on October 1, 2014, for a term of five years. [730-65 Special Use 
Permits/500-10 AlC: MRA, Inc. dba Capitola Beach Company] 

9. GENERAL GOVERNMENT I PUBLIC HEARINGS 

The following Item B.F. was pulled from the Consent Calendar" 

a.F. Consider a contract with Gene Bregman and Associates in an amount not to 
exceed $10,000 for a public opinion poll. [160-50/500-10 AlC: Gene Bregman 
and Associates] 



12472 CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Thursday, January 9, 2014 

Glenn Hanna, former City Treasurer, stated that the proposed public opinion 
poll which includes obtaining information from the public about the 
community's library needs is premature. 

ACTION Motion made by Council Member Termini, seconded by Council Member 
Bottorff, to decline the approval of a contract with Gene Bregman and 
Associates in an amount not to exceed $10,000 for a public opinion poll. 
The motion carried unanimously. 

The following Item B.C. was pulled from the Consent Calendar. 

8.C. Consider an Ordinance amending Chapter 15.04 of the Capitola Municipal 

ACTION 

Code pertaining to Building and Fire Model CQde~ to become effective 
January 1, 2014 [2nd Reading]. [570-10/1110-101,,3,;>''' 

Motion made by Council Member BottOrff,s~~q,r'ded by Council Member 
Termini, to consider an Ordinance No. 98iarnending Chapter 15.04 of 
the Capitola Municipal Code pertaining/to Building and Fire Model 
Codes to become effective January 1,]2014 [2nd Reading]. The motion 
carried with the following vote: AYES: Council Memb~rs.Harlan, Bottorff, 
Termini, and Mayor Storey. NOES: Council Member NotlQn. ABSENT: 
None. ABSTAIN: None. ' . 

The following Item B.I. was pulled from the Consent Calendar. 

8.1. Consider approving a lease agreement with MRA, Inc., dba Capitola Beach 
Company, and aUUlQr;ze the City Manager to execute the agreement 
commencing on Octob~(J,29~1, for a term of five years. [730-65 Special Use 
Permits/500-10 NC: MRt\, Inc.dbaCapitola Beach Company] 

ACTION 

A 

ACTION 

B. 

Ray Apolskis, Surf N Sha~k storeowl1er, stated· concerns regarding the 
Capitola Beach Company s~Hil1g Proc;luCts,incac;lgition to providing rentals and 
surf lessons. " . ">/ 

Gayle Ortiz, local resident, stated that she support the lease agreement 
betw~en Matt Arthur and the Cit9. 

Motion made by Council MembQf,Norton, seconded by Council Member 
I~rmini" to approvea~ lease agreement with MRA, Inc., dba Capitola 
a~a~h Company, with an amendment stating that the class size be 
limitepto no more than 4 clients per instructor, and authorize the City 
Manage,~to execute the agreement commencing on October 1, 2014, for a 
term of five years. The, motion carried unanimously. 

Consider artJ;.Jrgency Ordinance prohibiting commercial marijuana cultivation. 
[570-10] . 

The followin'~/il1dividuals provided support for the proposed urgency ordinance: 

R~I"l;:Circus, Coalition for Drug Free California member 

~~nuel Vieira, Cabrillo Mobile Home Estates Property Manager 

Nicholas Brian, stated opposition to the proposed Urgency Ordinance. 

Motion made by Council Member Termini, seconded by Council Member 
Bottorff, to approve the adoption of Urgency Ordinance No. 989 
prohibiting commercial marijuana cultivation. The motion carried 
unanimously. 

Consider allocating funding to Esplanade Sidewalk Project. [330-10/940-40] 

-17-

Item #: 9.A. Attach 1.pdf
12472 CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Thursday, January 9, 2014 

Glenn Hanna, former City Treasurer, stated that the proposed public opinion 
poll which includes obtaining information from the public about the 
community's library needs is premature. 

ACTION Motion made by Council Member Termini, seconded by Council Member 
Bottorff, to decline the approval of a contract with Gene Bregman and 
Associates in an amount not to exceed $10,000 for a public opinion poll. 
The motion carried unanimously. 

The following Item B.C. was pulled from the Consent Calendar. 

8.C. Consider an Ordinance amending Chapter 15.04 of the Capitola Municipal 

ACTION 

Code pertaining to Building and Fire Model CQde~ to become effective 
January 1, 2014 [2nd Reading]. [570-10/1110-101,,3,;>''' 

Motion made by Council Member BottOrff,s~~q,r'ded by Council Member 
Termini, to consider an Ordinance No. 98iarnending Chapter 15.04 of 
the Capitola Municipal Code pertaining/to Building and Fire Model 
Codes to become effective January 1,]2014 [2nd Reading]. The motion 
carried with the following vote: AYES: Council Memb~rs.Harlan, Bottorff, 
Termini, and Mayor Storey. NOES: Council Member NotlQn. ABSENT: 
None. ABSTAIN: None. ' . 

The following Item B.I. was pulled from the Consent Calendar. 

8.1. Consider approving a lease agreement with MRA, Inc., dba Capitola Beach 
Company, and aUUlQr;ze the City Manager to execute the agreement 
commencing on Octob~(J,29~1, for a term of five years. [730-65 Special Use 
Permits/500-10 NC: MRt\, Inc.dbaCapitola Beach Company] 

ACTION 

A 

ACTION 

B. 

Ray Apolskis, Surf N Sha~k storeowl1er, stated· concerns regarding the 
Capitola Beach Company s~Hil1g Proc;luCts,incac;lgition to providing rentals and 
surf lessons. " . ">/ 

Gayle Ortiz, local resident, stated that she support the lease agreement 
betw~en Matt Arthur and the Cit9. 

Motion made by Council MembQf,Norton, seconded by Council Member 
I~rmini" to approvea~ lease agreement with MRA, Inc., dba Capitola 
a~a~h Company, with an amendment stating that the class size be 
limitepto no more than 4 clients per instructor, and authorize the City 
Manage,~to execute the agreement commencing on October 1, 2014, for a 
term of five years. The, motion carried unanimously. 

Consider artJ;.Jrgency Ordinance prohibiting commercial marijuana cultivation. 
[570-10] . 

The followin'~/il1dividuals provided support for the proposed urgency ordinance: 

R~I"l;:Circus, Coalition for Drug Free California member 

~~nuel Vieira, Cabrillo Mobile Home Estates Property Manager 

Nicholas Brian, stated opposition to the proposed Urgency Ordinance. 

Motion made by Council Member Termini, seconded by Council Member 
Bottorff, to approve the adoption of Urgency Ordinance No. 989 
prohibiting commercial marijuana cultivation. The motion carried 
unanimously. 

Consider allocating funding to Esplanade Sidewalk Project. [330-10/940-40] 



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Thursday, January 9, 2014 12473 
ACTION 

C. 

ACTION 

D. 

ACTION 

E. 

Motion made by Council Member Termini, seconded by Council Member 
Bottorff, to allocate the following Capital Improvement Program funds: (1) 
$15,000 from the Esplanade Sidewalk Project; (2) $10,000 from the 
Stockton Avenue/Esplanade Intersection improvement Project (total of 
$25,000). The motion carried unanimously. 

Consider the adoption of a Green Energy Incentive Program. [750-10] 

Motion made by Council Member Norton, seconded by Council Member 
Harlan, to adopt of a Green Energy Incentive Prrgram. The motion 
carried unanimously. 

Consider a contract with the Animal Services Authority for Shelter and 
Adoption Services. [400-10/500-10 AlC: Animal S,E1r(ii<::~S Authority] 

Motion made by Council Member Termini,~~c(:)nded by Council Member 
Bottorff, to approve a contract with th~Anima'Services Authority for 
Shelter and Adoption Services. The motiQQcarri~Q:u,lJanimously. 
Consider an Ordinance amending Chapte~s 2.0S a~d2:16 of the Capitola 
Municipal Code regarding the City Manager and the PlanhiQQ Department [1 st 
Reading]. [570-10] 

ACTION Motion made by Council Merfttler Termini, secpnded by cdo'ric::i1 Member 
Harlan, to approve the first reading of the, Ordinance amending Chapters 
2.08 and 2.16 of the Capitola Municipal Code regarding the City Manager 
and the Planning D~Rqrtment with an additional amendment to include 

T·;.:~':·· .' .": 

that the City Manag~t mustpecome a resident of the County of Santa 
Cruz within one hunCl.redeighty days after appointment, and a recital 
indicating that the CitYC9unCiI·~n~9uragesth~ City Manager to live in 
the City. The motion carrieClunCinirnously.," 

The following Item 8.H.was pulled from. the Consent Calendar. 
/',". "' 

S.H. Designate the Mayorand Vice Mayor to act as liaisons with the Soquel Unified 
Elementary School District Boarcl'9f Trustees. [1150-05] 

ACTION Motion made by Council Memb~r;Bottorff, seconded by Council Member •... ~ 
Termini,to designate the MayoJStorey and Vice Mayor Norton to act as 
liai.sons with the Soquel Unified Elementary School District Board of 
Trll~te~s; and Council Member Bottorff and Council Member Harlan to 
act a!; alternate liaisons. The motion carried unanimously. 

10. ADJOURNMENT 

Mayor Storey. Fi'c;ljourned the meeting at S:53 PM to the next Regular Meeting of 
the City Council on Thursday, January 23, 2014, at 7:00 PM, in the City Hall 
CO~Qcil Chgmpers, 420 Capitola Avenue, Capitola, California. 

ATTEST: 

__________________ ,CMC 

Susan Sneddon, City Clerk 

Sam Storey, Mayor 

-18-

Item #: 9.A. Attach 1.pdf
CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Thursday, January 9, 2014 12473 

ACTION 

C. 

ACTION 

D. 

ACTION 

E. 

Motion made by Council Member Termini, seconded by Council Member 
Bottorff, to allocate the following Capital Improvement Program funds: (1) 
$15,000 from the Esplanade Sidewalk Project; (2) $10,000 from the 
Stockton Avenue/Esplanade Intersection improvement Project (total of 
$25,000). The motion carried unanimously. 

Consider the adoption of a Green Energy Incentive Program. [750-10] 

Motion made by Council Member Norton, seconded by Council Member 
Harlan, to adopt of a Green Energy Incentive Prrgram. The motion 
carried unanimously. 

Consider a contract with the Animal Services Authority for Shelter and 
Adoption Services. [400-10/500-10 AlC: Animal S,E1r(ii<::~S Authority] 

Motion made by Council Member Termini,~~c(:)nded by Council Member 
Bottorff, to approve a contract with th~Anima'Services Authority for 
Shelter and Adoption Services. The motiQQcarri~Q:u,lJanimously. 
Consider an Ordinance amending Chapte~s 2.0S a~d2:16 of the Capitola 
Municipal Code regarding the City Manager and the PlanhiQQ Department [1 st 
Reading]. [570-10] 

ACTION Motion made by Council Merfttler Termini, secpnded by cdo'ric::i1 Member 
Harlan, to approve the first reading of the, Ordinance amending Chapters 
2.08 and 2.16 of the Capitola Municipal Code regarding the City Manager 
and the Planning D~Rqrtment with an additional amendment to include 

T·;.:~':·· .' .": 

that the City Manag~t mustpecome a resident of the County of Santa 
Cruz within one hunCl.redeighty days after appointment, and a recital 
indicating that the CitYC9unCiI·~n~9uragesth~ City Manager to live in 
the City. The motion carrieClunCinirnously.," 

The following Item 8.H.was pulled from. the Consent Calendar. 
/',". "' 

S.H. Designate the Mayorand Vice Mayor to act as liaisons with the Soquel Unified 
Elementary School District Boarcl'9f Trustees. [1150-05] 

ACTION Motion made by Council Memb~r;Bottorff, seconded by Council Member •... ~ 
Termini,to designate the MayoJStorey and Vice Mayor Norton to act as 
liai.sons with the Soquel Unified Elementary School District Board of 
Trll~te~s; and Council Member Bottorff and Council Member Harlan to 
act a!; alternate liaisons. The motion carried unanimously. 

10. ADJOURNMENT 

Mayor Storey. Fi'c;ljourned the meeting at S:53 PM to the next Regular Meeting of 
the City Council on Thursday, January 23, 2014, at 7:00 PM, in the City Hall 
CO~Qcil Chgmpers, 420 Capitola Avenue, Capitola, California. 

ATTEST: 

__________________ ,CMC 

Susan Sneddon, City Clerk 

Sam Storey, Mayor 



ACTION SUMMARY MINUTES 

CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION 

THURSDAY, JAN. 16,2014 
7 P.M. CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Commissioners: Gayle Ortiz, Mick Routh, Linda Smith and T J Welch 
Absent: Ron Graves 

A. NEW BUSINESS 

1. Election of Chair and Vice-Chair 

ACTION: Commissioner Ortiz elected chair and Commissioner Smith elected Vice Chair 4-0 

2. Committee Appointments 

a. Traffic and Parking Commission 

b. Arts and Cultural Commission 

ACTION: Commission Graves reappointed to Traffic and Parking Commission and Commissioner 
Smith reappointed to Arts & Cultural Commission 4-0 

2. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 

A. Additions and Deletions to Agenda 

B. Public Comments 

C. Commission Comments 

D. Staff Comments 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

A. November 21, 2013, Joint Planning Commission and City Council Minutes General Plan 
Special Meeting 

ACTION: Approved 4-0 

B. December 5, 2013, Draft Planning Commission Minutes 

ACTION: Approved 3-0, 1 ABSTENTION 

-19-

Item #: 9.B. Minutes.pdf

ACTION SUMMARY MINUTES 

CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION 

THURSDAY, JAN. 16,2014 
7 P.M. CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Commissioners: Gayle Ortiz, Mick Routh, Linda Smith and T J Welch 
Absent: Ron Graves 

A. NEW BUSINESS 

1. Election of Chair and Vice-Chair 

ACTION: Commissioner Ortiz elected chair and Commissioner Smith elected Vice Chair 4-0 

2. Committee Appointments 

a. Traffic and Parking Commission 

b. Arts and Cultural Commission 

ACTION: Commission Graves reappointed to Traffic and Parking Commission and Commissioner 
Smith reappointed to Arts & Cultural Commission 4-0 

2. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 

A. Additions and Deletions to Agenda 

B. Public Comments 

C. Commission Comments 

D. Staff Comments 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

A. November 21, 2013, Joint Planning Commission and City Council Minutes General Plan 
Special Meeting 

ACTION: Approved 4-0 

B. December 5, 2013, Draft Planning Commission Minutes 

ACTION: Approved 3-0, 1 ABSTENTION 



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION SUMMARY - Thursday, Jan. 16,2014 2 

4. CONSENT CALENDAR 

A. 822 Bay Avenue #13-172 APN: 036-011-28 
Sign application for a new wall sign at the Quality Inn and Suites in the CC (Community 
Commercial) Zoning District. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Owner: Dan Patel 
Representative: Mike Terron, fiied 12/02/13 

ACTION: APPROVED 4-0 

B. 504 Bay Avenue #13-176 APN: 036-062-40 
Design Permit application for a minor addition (63 square feet) to the existing 
Commercial Building (Gayle's Bakery) in the CN (Neighborhood Commercial) Zoning 
District. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Owner: Upper Village Shops, Joint Venture 
Representative: Joe Ortiz, filed: 12/11/2013 

AcnON:APPROVED4~ 

5. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

A. 1730 Wharf Road #13-169 APN: 035-111-14 
Design Permit and Coastal Development Permit for a new single-family home in the 
R-1/AR (Single FamilylAutomatic Review) Zoning District. 
This project requires a Coastal Development Permit which is appealable to the 
California Coastal Commission after all possible appeals are exhausted through the 
City. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Owner: Bruce Golino 
Representative: Courtney Hughes, William Fisher Architecture, filed: 11/26/2013 

ACTION: DENIED 2-1 

B. 305 Fanmar Way #13-026 APN: 035-161-14 
Plan revision to a previously approved Design Permit for remodel and addition to a 
single-family dwelling in the R-1 (Single-Family Residence) Zoning District. 
Property Owner: Peter Wilk, filed 12/6/13 
Representative: Peter Wilk 

ACTION: DENIED 3-1 

6. DIRECTOR'S REPORT 

7. COMMISSiON COMMUNICATIONS 

8. ADJOURNMENT 
Adjourned at 8:45 p.m. to the next Planning Commission meeting Thursday, Feb. 5, 2014, at 
7 p.m., in the Capitola City Council Chambers, 420 Capitola Ave., Capitola, California. 

-20-

Item #: 9.B. Minutes.pdf
CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION SUMMARY - Thursday, Jan. 16,2014 2 

4. CONSENT CALENDAR 

A. 822 Bay Avenue #13-172 APN: 036-011-28 
Sign application for a new wall sign at the Quality Inn and Suites in the CC (Community 
Commercial) Zoning District. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Owner: Dan Patel 
Representative: Mike Terron, fiied 12/02/13 

ACTION: APPROVED 4-0 

B. 504 Bay Avenue #13-176 APN: 036-062-40 
Design Permit application for a minor addition (63 square feet) to the existing 
Commercial Building (Gayle's Bakery) in the CN (Neighborhood Commercial) Zoning 
District. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Owner: Upper Village Shops, Joint Venture 
Representative: Joe Ortiz, filed: 12/11/2013 

AcnON:APPROVED4~ 

5. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

A. 1730 Wharf Road #13-169 APN: 035-111-14 
Design Permit and Coastal Development Permit for a new single-family home in the 
R-1/AR (Single FamilylAutomatic Review) Zoning District. 
This project requires a Coastal Development Permit which is appealable to the 
California Coastal Commission after all possible appeals are exhausted through the 
City. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Owner: Bruce Golino 
Representative: Courtney Hughes, William Fisher Architecture, filed: 11/26/2013 

ACTION: DENIED 2-1 

B. 305 Fanmar Way #13-026 APN: 035-161-14 
Plan revision to a previously approved Design Permit for remodel and addition to a 
single-family dwelling in the R-1 (Single-Family Residence) Zoning District. 
Property Owner: Peter Wilk, filed 12/6/13 
Representative: Peter Wilk 

ACTION: DENIED 3-1 

6. DIRECTOR'S REPORT 

7. COMMISSiON COMMUNICATIONS 

8. ADJOURNMENT 
Adjourned at 8:45 p.m. to the next Planning Commission meeting Thursday, Feb. 5, 2014, at 
7 p.m., in the Capitola City Council Chambers, 420 Capitola Ave., Capitola, California. 



-21-

Item #: 9.C. Staff Report.pdf

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF JANUARY 23, 2014 

FROM: OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK 

SUBJECT: CONSIDER ORDINANCES AMENDING CHAPTERS 2.08 AND 2.16 OF THE 
CAPITOLA MUNICIPAL CODE REGARDING THE CITY MANAGER AND THE 
PLANNING DEPARTMENT 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt the proposed Ordinances amending Chapters 2.08 and 2.16 
of the Capitola Municipal Code regarding the City Manager and the Planning Department [2nd 

Reading]. 

BACKGROUND: The draft Ordinances amending Chapters 2.08 and 2.16 are being presented 
for a second reading. 

DISCUSSION: The City Council approved the first reading of these Ordinances at the Council 
meeting held on January 9, 2014. 

The proposed Ordinances are before the City Council for the second reading and final adoption. 
If adopted, the Ordinances will take effect in thirty (30) days. 

FISCAL IMPACT: None 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Draft Ordinance amending Chapter 2.08 
2. Draft Ordinance amending Chapter 2.16 

Report Prepared By: Susan Sneddon, CMC 
City Clerk 

Reviewed and 0 

By City Mana er: +I--'<o--+-

R:\CITY COUNCIL\Agenda Staff Reports\2014 Agenda Reports\01 23 14\09.C. Ordinance staff report City Mgr & Planning 
Director.docx 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-22-



ORDINANCE NO. __ 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
AMENDING CHAPTER 2.08 OF THE CAPITOLA MUNICIPAL CODE 

CITY MANAGER 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA FINDS AS FOLLOWS: 

A WHEREAS, the City of Capitola desires to have the City Manager reside in the City of 
Capitola; and 

B. WHEREAS. the State of California Constitution Article XI, Section 10{b) prohibits cities 
from requiring its employees to live within city limits, and 

C. WHEREAS, although the City Manager is required to liveiwithin Santa Cruz County, the 
City Council encourages the City Manager to reside in theCit'l.of Capitola. 

/'- -, ,'- // 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT HEREBY ORDAINED"S¥. THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
{r,;· .. ·; 

CITY OF CAPITOLA AS FOLLOWS:,,;> 

Section 1. Chapter 2.08 is hereby amended to reacras follows: 

Sections: 
2.08.010 Office created. 
2.08.020 Residence. 
2.08.030 Council member eligibility. 
2.08.040 Bond. 
2.08.050 Acting city manager. 
2.08.060 Compen~ation. 

"CHAPTER 2.08" 
CITY MANAGER 

2.08.065 Exemptionfrom civil service 
2.08.070 Powers and·dutles. 
2.08.080 L~w.~nforcemeht. 

2.08.09.0 Authority oy~remployees. 
2.08.100 •. Power of aBtA~intmentand removal. 
2.08.110 'Administrative;'reorganizatibn of officers. 
2.08.120 Orsinances. 
2.08.130 Att~'ndqnce at cou~6ir;meetings. 
2.08.140 Financi~lreports. ,. 
2.08.150 Budget.' 
2.08.160 Purchasingag~n[ 

2.08.170 Investigations·and:complaints. 
2.08.180 Public buildings. 
2.08.190 Hours of employment. 
2.08.200 Additional duties. 
2.08.210 Internal relations with council. 
2.08.220 Departmental cooperation. 
2.08.230 Attendance at commission meetings. 
2.08.240 At-will employment. 

-23-

Item #: 9.C. Attach 1.pdf

ORDINANCE NO. __ 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
AMENDING CHAPTER 2.08 OF THE CAPITOLA MUNICIPAL CODE 

CITY MANAGER 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA FINDS AS FOLLOWS: 

A WHEREAS, the City of Capitola desires to have the City Manager reside in the City of 
Capitola; and 

B. WHEREAS. the State of California Constitution Article XI, Section 10{b) prohibits cities 
from requiring its employees to live within city limits, and 

C. WHEREAS, although the City Manager is required to liveiwithin Santa Cruz County, the 
City Council encourages the City Manager to reside in theCit'l.of Capitola. 

/'- -, ,'- // 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT HEREBY ORDAINED"S¥. THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
{r,;· .. ·; 

CITY OF CAPITOLA AS FOLLOWS:,,;> 

Section 1. Chapter 2.08 is hereby amended to reacras follows: 

Sections: 
2.08.010 Office created. 
2.08.020 Residence. 
2.08.030 Council member eligibility. 
2.08.040 Bond. 
2.08.050 Acting city manager. 
2.08.060 Compen~ation. 

"CHAPTER 2.08" 
CITY MANAGER 

2.08.065 Exemptionfrom civil service 
2.08.070 Powers and·dutles. 
2.08.080 L~w.~nforcemeht. 

2.08.09.0 Authority oy~remployees. 
2.08.100 •. Power of aBtA~intmentand removal. 
2.08.110 'Administrative;'reorganizatibn of officers. 
2.08.120 Orsinances. 
2.08.130 Att~'ndqnce at cou~6ir;meetings. 
2.08.140 Financi~lreports. ,. 
2.08.150 Budget.' 
2.08.160 Purchasingag~n[ 

2.08.170 Investigations·and:complaints. 
2.08.180 Public buildings. 
2.08.190 Hours of employment. 
2.08.200 Additional duties. 
2.08.210 Internal relations with council. 
2.08.220 Departmental cooperation. 
2.08.230 Attendance at commission meetings. 
2.08.240 At-will employment. 



ORDINANCE NO. 

2.08.010 Office created. 
The office of the city manager of the city is created and established. The city manager 

shall be appointed by the city council wholly on the basis of his or her administrative and 
executive ability and qualifications and shall hold office for and during the pleasure of the city 
council. (Ord. 308 § 1, 1968) 

2.08.020 Residence. 
Residence in the city at the time of appointment of a city manager shall not be required 

as a condition of the appointment, but within one hundred eighty days thereafter the city 
manager must become a resident of the Gity,County of Santa Cruz. unless the city council 
approves his or her residence outside the city. (Ord. 308 § 2, 196?) 

2.08.030 Council member eligibility. 
No member of the city council shall be eligible for appointment as city manager until one year 
has elapsed after such council member as ceases~;tp~e a member of the city council. (Ord. 308 
§ 3,1968) 

2.08.040 Bond. 
The city manager shall furnish a corporate sqrety bon:<ito be apprc.\fed by the city 

council in such sum as may be determined by the citY'co\.lncil and shall be conditioned upon the 
faithful performance of the duties imposed upon the city r'nanflger as prescribed in this chapter. 
Any premium for such bond shall be a proper charge against!the~ city. (Ord. 308 § 4, 1968) 

2.08.050 Acting city manager. 
The assista'1tQ~tymanag~rshall serve asmanager Pro t~mpore during any temporary 

absence or disabilityof1the city manager. In the event there is no assistant city manager, the city 
manager, by a letter filed\iVith thecity c::lerk, shall designate a qualified city administrative officer 
to exercise.t~e povvers and p§~Qrrt;lth~{:!uties of manager during his or her temporary absence 
or disabilitY.':1 n' the'~venUhe 6!tyfrlanager's absence or disability extends over a six-month 
periodjtl'l~ city council may, aft~Fthe six-monthp~riod, appoint an acting city manager. (Ord. 
308 § 5,1968) 

2.08.060 Compensation. 
The city manager shall receive such compensation and expense allowances as the city 

council from time to time determines, and said compensation and expenses shall be a proper 
charge against such funds ofthe city as the city council designates. 

In addition, the city manager shall be reimbursed for all actual and necessary expenses 
incurred by him or her in the performance of his or her official duties, including those incurred 
when traveling on business pertaining to the city; reimbursement shall only be made, however, 
when an itemized claim, setting forth the sums expended for such business for which 
reimbursement is requested, has been presented to and approved by the city councilmayor. 

On termination of employment of the city manager by reason of involuntary removal from 
service other than for 'A'illful misconduct in office, the city manager shall receive cash severance 
pay in a lump sum, equal to hvo months pay, such pay to be computed at the highest salary 

-24-

Item #: 9.C. Attach 1.pdf
ORDINANCE NO. 

2.08.010 Office created. 
The office of the city manager of the city is created and established. The city manager 

shall be appointed by the city council wholly on the basis of his or her administrative and 
executive ability and qualifications and shall hold office for and during the pleasure of the city 
council. (Ord. 308 § 1, 1968) 

2.08.020 Residence. 
Residence in the city at the time of appointment of a city manager shall not be required 

as a condition of the appointment, but within one hundred eighty days thereafter the city 
manager must become a resident of the Gity,County of Santa Cruz. unless the city council 
approves his or her residence outside the city. (Ord. 308 § 2, 196?) 

2.08.030 Council member eligibility. 
No member of the city council shall be eligible for appointment as city manager until one year 
has elapsed after such council member as ceases~;tp~e a member of the city council. (Ord. 308 
§ 3,1968) 

2.08.040 Bond. 
The city manager shall furnish a corporate sqrety bon:<ito be apprc.\fed by the city 

council in such sum as may be determined by the citY'co\.lncil and shall be conditioned upon the 
faithful performance of the duties imposed upon the city r'nanflger as prescribed in this chapter. 
Any premium for such bond shall be a proper charge against!the~ city. (Ord. 308 § 4, 1968) 

2.08.050 Acting city manager. 
The assista'1tQ~tymanag~rshall serve asmanager Pro t~mpore during any temporary 

absence or disabilityof1the city manager. In the event there is no assistant city manager, the city 
manager, by a letter filed\iVith thecity c::lerk, shall designate a qualified city administrative officer 
to exercise.t~e povvers and p§~Qrrt;lth~{:!uties of manager during his or her temporary absence 
or disabilitY.':1 n' the'~venUhe 6!tyfrlanager's absence or disability extends over a six-month 
periodjtl'l~ city council may, aft~Fthe six-monthp~riod, appoint an acting city manager. (Ord. 
308 § 5,1968) 

2.08.060 Compensation. 
The city manager shall receive such compensation and expense allowances as the city 

council from time to time determines, and said compensation and expenses shall be a proper 
charge against such funds ofthe city as the city council designates. 

In addition, the city manager shall be reimbursed for all actual and necessary expenses 
incurred by him or her in the performance of his or her official duties, including those incurred 
when traveling on business pertaining to the city; reimbursement shall only be made, however, 
when an itemized claim, setting forth the sums expended for such business for which 
reimbursement is requested, has been presented to and approved by the city councilmayor. 

On termination of employment of the city manager by reason of involuntary removal from 
service other than for 'A'illful misconduct in office, the city manager shall receive cash severance 
pay in a lump sum, equal to hvo months pay, such pay to be computed at the highest salary 



ORDINANCE NO. 

received by the city manager during his or her service 'Nith the city. Involuntary removal from 
service includes reduction in pay not applicable to all employees of the city. (Ord. 308 § 6, 1968) 
2.08.065 Exemption from civil service: 

The City Manager is excluded from civil service or personnel system of the City, and the 
City Manager shall not be entitled to the benefits, advantages or protection of the civil service or 
personnel system and shall not be subject to the procedures outlined or prevailing to such 
system. 

2.08.070 Powers and duties. 
The city manager shall be the administrative head of the governmE'nt of the city under 

the direction and control of the city council except as otherwi~eBrpvided in this chapter. The city 
manager shall be responsible for the efficient administratiombfj:illthe affairs of the city which 
are under his or her control. In addition to these general.povV~f? and administrative head, and 
not as a limitation thereon, it shall be his or her duty andb~:r(kipe shall have the powers set 

"-'- --, "-.... ,., ... -... 

forth in Sections 2.08.080 through 2.08.200. (Ord. 308 §7, 1968) 

2.08.080 Law enforcement. 
It shall be the duty of the city manager to enforce all laws and ordinances of the city and 

to see that all franchises, contracts, permits and privileges granted by the citysqlJncil are 
faithfully observed. (Ord. 308 § 7.1,' {@f3~} .. i 

2.08.090 Authority over emPlOyees.':};:>' ... " 
It shall be the duty of the city manager ana$eor she shaUhave the authority to control, 

order and give directions to all heads of departments and to subdrcliljate officers and employees 
of the city under his or her jurisdiction throughtheir'(:Iepartment.heads. (Ord. 308 § 7.2, 1968) 

;,:; .... :',' '-", :/ 

2.08.100 Power of appointment and removal. 
It ~hall be the duty of the citymana~er to, a~dhe or she shall, appoint, remove, promote 

and demote any and.aH officers and employees of th$1city except the city clerk, city attorney, 
and citytteasurer, subjectto all applicable personnel ordinances, rules and regulations. (Ord. 
308 § 7.3, 1968) 

. . -

2.08.110 Adrriinistrative reorQaJlization of officers. 
It shall beth~duty and ~esponsibility of the city manager to conduct studies and effect 

such administrative reorganization of offices, positions or units under his or her direction as may 
be indicated in the interestot'efficient, effective and economical conduct of the city's business. 
(Ord. 308 § 7.4,1968) 

2.08.120 Ordinances. 
It shall be the duty of the city manager and he or she shall recommend to the city council 

for adoption such measures and ordinances as he or she deems necessary. (Ord. 308 § 7.5, 
1968) 

2.08.130 Attendance at council meetings. 
It shall be the duty of the city manager to attend all meetings of the city council unless 

excused therefrom by the mayor individually or city council as a whole, except when his or her 
removal is under consideration. (Ord. 308 § 7.6,1968) 

-25-

Item #: 9.C. Attach 1.pdf
ORDINANCE NO. 

received by the city manager during his or her service 'Nith the city. Involuntary removal from 
service includes reduction in pay not applicable to all employees of the city. (Ord. 308 § 6, 1968) 
2.08.065 Exemption from civil service: 

The City Manager is excluded from civil service or personnel system of the City, and the 
City Manager shall not be entitled to the benefits, advantages or protection of the civil service or 
personnel system and shall not be subject to the procedures outlined or prevailing to such 
system. 

2.08.070 Powers and duties. 
The city manager shall be the administrative head of the governmE'nt of the city under 

the direction and control of the city council except as otherwi~eBrpvided in this chapter. The city 
manager shall be responsible for the efficient administratiombfj:illthe affairs of the city which 
are under his or her control. In addition to these general.povV~f? and administrative head, and 
not as a limitation thereon, it shall be his or her duty andb~:r(kipe shall have the powers set 

"-'- --, "-.... ,., ... -... 

forth in Sections 2.08.080 through 2.08.200. (Ord. 308 §7, 1968) 

2.08.080 Law enforcement. 
It shall be the duty of the city manager to enforce all laws and ordinances of the city and 

to see that all franchises, contracts, permits and privileges granted by the citysqlJncil are 
faithfully observed. (Ord. 308 § 7.1,' {@f3~} .. i 

2.08.090 Authority over emPlOyees.':};:>' ... " 
It shall be the duty of the city manager ana$eor she shaUhave the authority to control, 

order and give directions to all heads of departments and to subdrcliljate officers and employees 
of the city under his or her jurisdiction throughtheir'(:Iepartment.heads. (Ord. 308 § 7.2, 1968) 

;,:; .... :',' '-", :/ 

2.08.100 Power of appointment and removal. 
It ~hall be the duty of the citymana~er to, a~dhe or she shall, appoint, remove, promote 

and demote any and.aH officers and employees of th$1city except the city clerk, city attorney, 
and citytteasurer, subjectto all applicable personnel ordinances, rules and regulations. (Ord. 
308 § 7.3, 1968) 

. . -

2.08.110 Adrriinistrative reorQaJlization of officers. 
It shall beth~duty and ~esponsibility of the city manager to conduct studies and effect 

such administrative reorganization of offices, positions or units under his or her direction as may 
be indicated in the interestot'efficient, effective and economical conduct of the city's business. 
(Ord. 308 § 7.4,1968) 

2.08.120 Ordinances. 
It shall be the duty of the city manager and he or she shall recommend to the city council 

for adoption such measures and ordinances as he or she deems necessary. (Ord. 308 § 7.5, 
1968) 

2.08.130 Attendance at council meetings. 
It shall be the duty of the city manager to attend all meetings of the city council unless 

excused therefrom by the mayor individually or city council as a whole, except when his or her 
removal is under consideration. (Ord. 308 § 7.6,1968) 



ORDINANCE NO. 

2.08.140 Financial reports. 
It shall be the duty of the city manager to keep the city council at all times fully advised 

as to the financial condition and needs of the city. (Ord. 308 § 7.7, 1968) 

2.08.150 Budget. 
It shall be the duty of the city manager to prepare and submit the proposed annual 

budget and the proposed annual salary plan to the city council for its approval. (Ord. 308 § 7.8, 
1968) 

2.08.160 Purchasing agent. 
It shall be the duty of the city manager and he or she ~h~lI. be responsible for the 

purchase of all supplies and services for all the departments.'p(divisions of the citY-ill 
accordance with the City purchasing policy. The city managgr/§hall make no purchase 
exceeding four hundred twenty five thousand dollars wltb6ti'r'P:dorcity council approval. No 
expenditures shall be submitted or recommended to ths'city coungilexcept on report and 
approval of the city manager. (Ord. 308 § 7.9,1968) 

2.08.170 Investigations and complaints.<y; 
It shall be the duty of the city manager to make investigations into the affairs of the city 

and any department or division the~e:Qf;Jand any contract or. the proper performance of any 
obligations of the city. Further, it sha:lCbe th~,c!uty of the city manager to investigate all 

• --. -'",;': c • 

complaints in relation to matters conc9Q)ipgthe :administration of the city government in regard 
to the service maintained by public utilities' in the City. (Ord. 308 § 7.10, 1968) 

.f'-c---

2.08.180 Public buildings. ../. ..... ....., 
It shall be the duty of the city p1anageran~he or she sh~U exercise general supervision 

over all public buildings,public parks:and all otherpublic property which are under the control 
and jurisdistiop.ofth~ city cou'nciL(Ord;i308§ 7.11,1968) 

/' " -.' ,., ,.', 

2.08.1$0 Hours of eniployment. 
It shall be the duty of toe city manager to devote his or her entire time to the duties of his 

or her office and in furtherin~rl6~. interestsqf the city. (Ord. 308 § 7.12, 1968) 
\r," - ~,~ - . 

2.08.200 Additional duties. 
It shall be the duty of thed!ty manager to perform such other duties and exercise such 

other powers as may be dele9i?ted to him or her from time to time by ordinance or resolution or 
other official action of the City,i(5ouncil. (Ord. 308 § 7.13, 1968) 

2.08.210 Internal relations with council. 
The city council and its members shall deal with the administrative services of the city 

only through the city manager, except for the purpose of inquiry, and neither the city council nor 
any member thereof shall give orders to any subordinates of the city manager. The city 
manager shall take his or her orders and instructions from the city council only when sitting in a 
duly convened meeting of the city council and no individual councilmember shall give any orders 
or instructions to the city manager. (Ord. 308 § 8, 1968) 

-26-

Item #: 9.C. Attach 1.pdf
ORDINANCE NO. 

2.08.140 Financial reports. 
It shall be the duty of the city manager to keep the city council at all times fully advised 

as to the financial condition and needs of the city. (Ord. 308 § 7.7, 1968) 

2.08.150 Budget. 
It shall be the duty of the city manager to prepare and submit the proposed annual 

budget and the proposed annual salary plan to the city council for its approval. (Ord. 308 § 7.8, 
1968) 

2.08.160 Purchasing agent. 
It shall be the duty of the city manager and he or she ~h~lI. be responsible for the 

purchase of all supplies and services for all the departments.'p(divisions of the citY-ill 
accordance with the City purchasing policy. The city managgr/§hall make no purchase 
exceeding four hundred twenty five thousand dollars wltb6ti'r'P:dorcity council approval. No 
expenditures shall be submitted or recommended to ths'city coungilexcept on report and 
approval of the city manager. (Ord. 308 § 7.9,1968) 

2.08.170 Investigations and complaints.<y; 
It shall be the duty of the city manager to make investigations into the affairs of the city 

and any department or division the~e:Qf;Jand any contract or. the proper performance of any 
obligations of the city. Further, it sha:lCbe th~,c!uty of the city manager to investigate all 

• --. -'",;': c • 

complaints in relation to matters conc9Q)ipgthe :administration of the city government in regard 
to the service maintained by public utilities' in the City. (Ord. 308 § 7.10, 1968) 

.f'-c---

2.08.180 Public buildings. ../. ..... ....., 
It shall be the duty of the city p1anageran~he or she sh~U exercise general supervision 

over all public buildings,public parks:and all otherpublic property which are under the control 
and jurisdistiop.ofth~ city cou'nciL(Ord;i308§ 7.11,1968) 

/' " -.' ,., ,.', 

2.08.1$0 Hours of eniployment. 
It shall be the duty of toe city manager to devote his or her entire time to the duties of his 

or her office and in furtherin~rl6~. interestsqf the city. (Ord. 308 § 7.12, 1968) 
\r," - ~,~ - . 

2.08.200 Additional duties. 
It shall be the duty of thed!ty manager to perform such other duties and exercise such 

other powers as may be dele9i?ted to him or her from time to time by ordinance or resolution or 
other official action of the City,i(5ouncil. (Ord. 308 § 7.13, 1968) 

2.08.210 Internal relations with council. 
The city council and its members shall deal with the administrative services of the city 

only through the city manager, except for the purpose of inquiry, and neither the city council nor 
any member thereof shall give orders to any subordinates of the city manager. The city 
manager shall take his or her orders and instructions from the city council only when sitting in a 
duly convened meeting of the city council and no individual councilmember shall give any orders 
or instructions to the city manager. (Ord. 308 § 8, 1968) 



ORDINANCE NO. 

2.08.220 Departmental cooperation. 
It shall be the duty of all subordinate officers and the city clerk, city treasurer and city 

attorney to assist the city manager in administering the affairs of the city efficiently, economically 
and harmoniously. (Ord. 308 § 8.1, 1968) 

2.08.230 Attendance at commission meetings. 
The city manager may attend any and all meetings of the planning commission, 

recreation and park commission, and any other commissions, boards or committees created by 
the city council, upon his or her own volition or upon direction of the city council. At such 
meetings which the city manager attends, he or she shall be heard by such commissions, 
boards or committees as to all matters upon which he or she wish

1
es to address the members 

thereof, and he or she shall inform said members as to the status of any matter being 
considered by the city council, and he or she shall cooperate to the fullest extent with the 
members of all commissions, boards or committees appointed by the city council. (Ord. 308 § 
8.2, 1968) 

2.08.240 At-will employment. 
The city manager shall be an at-will empl9y~e, who IT}ay be removed from office, or his 

or her authority temporarily suspended, at the soledjscretionQfthe majority vote of the whole 
city council, subject to any such restrictions as are spe¢ifi~a!JYset forth in the city manager's 
contract of employment. (Ord. 818 § 1,2000; Ord. 308 § 9,1;968) 

Section 2 This ordinance. shall take effect and h~ in full fo~be on , ___ _ ,2014. 

This ordinaf1ce. wasintr~~uced on the 9th day o(January, 2014, and was passed and 
adopted by the City Council of tn$. City of Capitola on the _-_ day of __ , 2014, by the 
following vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENt: 
ABSTAIN: 
DISQUALIFIED: 

APPROVED: 

Sam Storey, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
_________ ,CMC 

Susan Sneddon, City Clerk 

-27-

Item #: 9.C. Attach 1.pdf
ORDINANCE NO. 

2.08.220 Departmental cooperation. 
It shall be the duty of all subordinate officers and the city clerk, city treasurer and city 

attorney to assist the city manager in administering the affairs of the city efficiently, economically 
and harmoniously. (Ord. 308 § 8.1, 1968) 

2.08.230 Attendance at commission meetings. 
The city manager may attend any and all meetings of the planning commission, 

recreation and park commission, and any other commissions, boards or committees created by 
the city council, upon his or her own volition or upon direction of the city council. At such 
meetings which the city manager attends, he or she shall be heard by such commissions, 
boards or committees as to all matters upon which he or she wish

1
es to address the members 

thereof, and he or she shall inform said members as to the status of any matter being 
considered by the city council, and he or she shall cooperate to the fullest extent with the 
members of all commissions, boards or committees appointed by the city council. (Ord. 308 § 
8.2, 1968) 

2.08.240 At-will employment. 
The city manager shall be an at-will empl9y~e, who IT}ay be removed from office, or his 

or her authority temporarily suspended, at the soledjscretionQfthe majority vote of the whole 
city council, subject to any such restrictions as are spe¢ifi~a!JYset forth in the city manager's 
contract of employment. (Ord. 818 § 1,2000; Ord. 308 § 9,1;968) 

Section 2 This ordinance. shall take effect and h~ in full fo~be on , ___ _ ,2014. 

This ordinaf1ce. wasintr~~uced on the 9th day o(January, 2014, and was passed and 
adopted by the City Council of tn$. City of Capitola on the _-_ day of __ , 2014, by the 
following vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENt: 
ABSTAIN: 
DISQUALIFIED: 

APPROVED: 

Sam Storey, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
_________ ,CMC 

Susan Sneddon, City Clerk 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-28-



ORDINANCE NO. __ 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
AMENDING CHAPTER 2.16 OF THE CAPITOLA MUNICIPAL CODE 

PLANNING DEPARTMENT 

BE IT HEREBY ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA AS 
FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Chapter 2.16 is hereby amended to read as fOllows: 

":;-.'. 

"CHAPTER 2.16" , .. '.;v' 

PLANNING DEPARTMENT 

Sections: 
2.16.010 
2.16.020 
2.16.030 
2.16.040 
2.16.050 

Created. 
Employees. 
Director - Appointment and qualifications. 
Director - Powers and duties. 
Director - Compensation. 

'''~}~:<.~ 
:';~ 

2.16.010 Created.>, •••.•..•...•.... ,. .. 
The department of planning iSGt~~tedcan9 established in accordance with Section 

65200 et seq., of the Government Cods91::thestgterofCalifornia. (Ord. 331 § 1, 1970) 

2.16.020 Employees.... . ....... ..~.. ......>'''. 
The numben~f employee$.!9carry ouftheJunGtionsotitJe planning department shall be 

designated by the city m~J1ager a'l<;fthe community development director with the approval of 
the city council. (Ord. 331§ 2, 19?0)~ . 

2.16.030 Dir~ctor·l~pPOi~'th1el1f~~<f"q(l~lifi(;Cltibr1$. 
The communifyJdevelopmehtdirectorshall be appointed by the city councilcity manager 

and hold office at the pleasure of theqity council. He or she shall be qualified pursuant to 
Section 65201 of the Government cd8~of the state of California and shall have the ability to 
manage and direct the planning departmeJlt, and possess knowledge of U. ~ principles of state 
laws and city ordinances relating to zoning and planning, together with a working knowledge of 
engineers' drawings, mapping andtopography, and have the ability to collect, analyze and 
interpret data pertaining to planning and zoning activities. (Ord. 331 § 3, 1970) 

2.16.040 Director - Powers and duties. 
The community development director shall plan and supervise the technical work and 

administrative detail of the planning commission; serve as secretary to the planning commission 
and carry out their directives; develop and promote long range planning programs; prepare 
zoning and other regulatory ordinances in preliminary form; supervise the work of the staff of the 
planning department; supervise and participate in the administration of zoning ordinances; make 
land use studies and reports; consult with citizens and officials on planning problems; advise the 
city council on planning problems; maintain cooperative liaison with other agencies in the 
planning field, including state and local agencies; answer inquiries from the public concerning 
zoning regulations. (Ord. 331 § 4, 1970) 

-29-

Item #: 9.C. Attach 2.pdf

ORDINANCE NO. __ 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
AMENDING CHAPTER 2.16 OF THE CAPITOLA MUNICIPAL CODE 

PLANNING DEPARTMENT 

BE IT HEREBY ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA AS 
FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Chapter 2.16 is hereby amended to read as fOllows: 

":;-.'. 

"CHAPTER 2.16" , .. '.;v' 

PLANNING DEPARTMENT 

Sections: 
2.16.010 
2.16.020 
2.16.030 
2.16.040 
2.16.050 

Created. 
Employees. 
Director - Appointment and qualifications. 
Director - Powers and duties. 
Director - Compensation. 

'''~}~:<.~ 
:';~ 

2.16.010 Created.>, •••.•..•...•.... ,. .. 
The department of planning iSGt~~tedcan9 established in accordance with Section 

65200 et seq., of the Government Cods91::thestgterofCalifornia. (Ord. 331 § 1, 1970) 

2.16.020 Employees.... . ....... ..~.. ......>'''. 
The numben~f employee$.!9carry ouftheJunGtionsotitJe planning department shall be 

designated by the city m~J1ager a'l<;fthe community development director with the approval of 
the city council. (Ord. 331§ 2, 19?0)~ . 

2.16.030 Dir~ctor·l~pPOi~'th1el1f~~<f"q(l~lifi(;Cltibr1$. 
The communifyJdevelopmehtdirectorshall be appointed by the city councilcity manager 

and hold office at the pleasure of theqity council. He or she shall be qualified pursuant to 
Section 65201 of the Government cd8~of the state of California and shall have the ability to 
manage and direct the planning departmeJlt, and possess knowledge of U. ~ principles of state 
laws and city ordinances relating to zoning and planning, together with a working knowledge of 
engineers' drawings, mapping andtopography, and have the ability to collect, analyze and 
interpret data pertaining to planning and zoning activities. (Ord. 331 § 3, 1970) 

2.16.040 Director - Powers and duties. 
The community development director shall plan and supervise the technical work and 

administrative detail of the planning commission; serve as secretary to the planning commission 
and carry out their directives; develop and promote long range planning programs; prepare 
zoning and other regulatory ordinances in preliminary form; supervise the work of the staff of the 
planning department; supervise and participate in the administration of zoning ordinances; make 
land use studies and reports; consult with citizens and officials on planning problems; advise the 
city council on planning problems; maintain cooperative liaison with other agencies in the 
planning field, including state and local agencies; answer inquiries from the public concerning 
zoning regulations. (Ord. 331 § 4, 1970) 



2.16.050 Director Compensation. 
The community development director shall receive such compensation and expense 

allo'Nances as the council shall from time to time determine, and said compensation and 
expenses shall be a proper charge against such funds of the city as the council designates. 
(Ord. 331 § 5, 1970) 

Section 2 This ordinance shall take effect and be in full force on ______ , 2014. 

This ordinance was introduced on the 9th day of January, 2014, and was passed and 
adopted by the City Council of the City of Capitola on the _ day of __ , 2014, by the 
following vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 
DISQUALIFIED: 

APPROVED: 

ATTEST: 
Sam $tbrey; Mayor 

, ... /.',..- .. 

__________ , CMP 
Susan Sneddon, City Clerk 

-30-

Item #: 9.C. Attach 2.pdf

2.16.050 Director Compensation. 
The community development director shall receive such compensation and expense 

allo'Nances as the council shall from time to time determine, and said compensation and 
expenses shall be a proper charge against such funds of the city as the council designates. 
(Ord. 331 § 5, 1970) 

Section 2 This ordinance shall take effect and be in full force on ______ , 2014. 

This ordinance was introduced on the 9th day of January, 2014, and was passed and 
adopted by the City Council of the City of Capitola on the _ day of __ , 2014, by the 
following vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 
DISQUALIFIED: 

APPROVED: 

ATTEST: 
Sam $tbrey; Mayor 

, ... /.',..- .. 

__________ , CMP 
Susan Sneddon, City Clerk 



FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF JANUARY 23, 2014 

FINANCE DEPARTMENT 

CALIFORNIA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM ANNUAL 
ACTUARIAL VALUATION REPORTS AS OF JUNE 30,2012 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive the California Public Employees Retirement System 
Annual Actuarial Valuation Reports as of June 30,2012. 

BACKGROUND: On an annual basis, the City receives actuarial reports from the California 
Public Employee's Retirement System (CaIPERS or PERS) that confirm the current year 
employer contribution rates, establish rates for the next fiscal year, and project rates for the next 
year. 

DISCUSSION: The PERS contribution rates fluctuate for many reasons, including investment 
gains and losses and unexpected changes to payroll. Additionally, CalPERS recently adopted 
updated actuarial assumptions, resulting in an increase in rates for most employers. 

The City's contribution for Tier I and Tier II "Classic" employees is capped pursuant to existing 
MOU'S. The City's contribution rate for Tier I employees remains unchanged at 28.291 % for 
Safety and 16.488% for Miscellaneous. The City's contribution rate for Tier II employees also 
remains unchanged at 23.291 % and 11.488%, respectively. The Fiscal Year 2014/2015 
contribution rates for Classic Safety employees are 11.874% and 16.874% for Tier I and Tier II 
employees, respectively. This represents an increase of 1.853% points. The Fiscal Year 
2014/2015 contribution rates for Classic Miscellaneous employee are 10.292% and 15.292% for 
Tier I and Tier II employees, respectively. This represents an increase of 1.201 % points over the 
existing rate. This rate change decreases employee take-home pay. 

Based on the most recent actuary report, it is projected that Classic employee PERS Safety and 
Miscellaneous rates for Fiscal Year 2015/2016 will increase by 2.236% points and 1.084% 
points, respectively. The actual rates will be provided in next year's Actuarial Valuation Reports. 

Assembly Bill 340, the California Public Employees' Pension Reform Act (PEPRA), applies to 
new employees who were not previously members of the PERS reciprocal system. For PEPRA 
plans, the rates remain unchanged until June 30, 2015. After completion of the June 30, 2013 
actuarial valuation, the rates may be revised according to the results of that report. Member 
contribution rates for PEPRA plans are expected to remain at 50% of the total contribution. The 
Fiscal Year2015/2016 projected PEPRA rates are not provided by CalPERS at this time. 

R:\CITY COUNCIL\Agenda Staff Reports\2014 Agenda Reports\01 2314\09.0. PERS annual report June 30 2012_stf.docx 
-31-

Item #: 9.D. Staff Report.pdf

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF JANUARY 23, 2014 

FINANCE DEPARTMENT 

CALIFORNIA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM ANNUAL 
ACTUARIAL VALUATION REPORTS AS OF JUNE 30,2012 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive the California Public Employees Retirement System 
Annual Actuarial Valuation Reports as of June 30,2012. 

BACKGROUND: On an annual basis, the City receives actuarial reports from the California 
Public Employee's Retirement System (CaIPERS or PERS) that confirm the current year 
employer contribution rates, establish rates for the next fiscal year, and project rates for the next 
year. 

DISCUSSION: The PERS contribution rates fluctuate for many reasons, including investment 
gains and losses and unexpected changes to payroll. Additionally, CalPERS recently adopted 
updated actuarial assumptions, resulting in an increase in rates for most employers. 

The City's contribution for Tier I and Tier II "Classic" employees is capped pursuant to existing 
MOU'S. The City's contribution rate for Tier I employees remains unchanged at 28.291 % for 
Safety and 16.488% for Miscellaneous. The City's contribution rate for Tier II employees also 
remains unchanged at 23.291 % and 11.488%, respectively. The Fiscal Year 2014/2015 
contribution rates for Classic Safety employees are 11.874% and 16.874% for Tier I and Tier II 
employees, respectively. This represents an increase of 1.853% points. The Fiscal Year 
2014/2015 contribution rates for Classic Miscellaneous employee are 10.292% and 15.292% for 
Tier I and Tier II employees, respectively. This represents an increase of 1.201 % points over the 
existing rate. This rate change decreases employee take-home pay. 

Based on the most recent actuary report, it is projected that Classic employee PERS Safety and 
Miscellaneous rates for Fiscal Year 2015/2016 will increase by 2.236% points and 1.084% 
points, respectively. The actual rates will be provided in next year's Actuarial Valuation Reports. 

Assembly Bill 340, the California Public Employees' Pension Reform Act (PEPRA), applies to 
new employees who were not previously members of the PERS reciprocal system. For PEPRA 
plans, the rates remain unchanged until June 30, 2015. After completion of the June 30, 2013 
actuarial valuation, the rates may be revised according to the results of that report. Member 
contribution rates for PEPRA plans are expected to remain at 50% of the total contribution. The 
Fiscal Year2015/2016 projected PEPRA rates are not provided by CalPERS at this time. 

R:\CITY COUNCIL\Agenda Staff Reports\2014 Agenda Reports\01 2314\09.0. PERS annual report June 30 2012_stf.docx 



1-23-14 AGENDA REPORT: 
CALPERS ANNUAL ACTUARIAL VALUATION REPORTS AS OF JUNE 30, 2012 

'.' .,:, 
.... 

.' '" ••• 
: 

I .. 
PEPRA' 

•••••••••••• 
Classic;....Tier I Classic~Tier " ... ...... : 

". Ernployee; i;} 
.. ' ... 

•••••••••• 

.......• :> 

< ••.•. : Contribution • Safety.i • Misc 
••••• 

Safety < Mise '.: .•• .. &afety .. ····.···Misc··· 
FY05/06 0.0% 0.0% . ' .. J 1·<; 

.. .... :. ......... .. 
. ..•.... 

FY06/07 0.0% 0.0% ••• ...... ... '.' • • 
. 

•• 
. " . . .... 

FY07/08 1.623% 0.152% ··· •• L .•.... : .' . 
. ..... .. 

.... 
Dec 30. - July 2008 1.623% 3.594% , ......•. 

.' I .. ·• .• ·• .. I . . ... ;,' •... ,'.;' 
FY08/09 1.849% 3.576% ••• 

.' ( .( . .;; .. : 
'.' 

FY09/10 1.688% 3.663% 
..•. < .. '. . ; .' 

••••• 
••• 

-" . 
> ...... .... -:' . ., 

FYi 0/11 2.332% 4.128% 
. " .. .. ....; , .... .. 

FY11/12 7.801% 
FY12/13 8.449% 
FY13/14 10.021% 
FY14/15 11.874% 

:. .-,-- : 

. Contrib~ti.onRates(Classic) 
Safety 

Employer 
Employee 
EPMC (a) 
EPMC (b) 

Total 

Miscellaneous 
Employer 
Employee 
EPMC (a) 
EPMC (b) 

Total 

7.511% / ..... . .... ; 

8.267% 13.449% 

9.091% 15.021% 

10.292% 16.874% 

2014-15 
PERS'" Cap 
Rates' Revised 

27.849% 16.955% 
9.000% 9.000% 
2.506% 1.526% 
0.810% 0.810% 

40.165% 28.291% 

2014-15 
PERS 
Rates 

16.796% 
8.000% 
1.344% 
0.640% 

26.780% 

Cap 
Revised 
8.409% 
7.000% 
0.589% 
0.490% 

16.488% 

'. ...... 
.. ( 'V 

13.267% 11.50% 6.25% 
14.091% 11.50% 6.25% 
15.292% 11.50% 6.25% 

Tier I Tier" 
EmplOyee Employee 

Contrlbu.tion Contribution 

11.874% 16.874% 

Tier I Tier" 
Employee Employee 

Contribution Contribution 

10.292% 15.292% 

FISCAL IMPACT: All increases related to Classic PERS rates will be assumed by employees. PEPRA 
rates remain unchanged from Fiscal Year 2013/2014. 

ATTACHMENTS: (The following attachments are available at City Hall) 
1. CalPERS Safety Plan of the City of Capitola Actuarial Valuation Report as of June 30, 2012; 
2. CalPERS Miscellaneous Plan of the City of Capitola Actuarial Valuation Report as of June 30, 2012; 
3. CalPERS Benefit and Contribution Rates for New Safety Members, Effective January 1, 2013; 
4. CalPERS Benefit and Contribution Rates for New Miscellaneous Members, Effective January 1, 2013. 

Report Prepared By: Kyle R. Solberg, Senior Accountant 
Tori Hannah, Finance Director 

2 

Reviewed and Fo 
By City Manager --t+-~-

-32-

Item #: 9.D. Staff Report.pdf

1-23-14 AGENDA REPORT: 
CALPERS ANNUAL ACTUARIAL VALUATION REPORTS AS OF JUNE 30, 2012 

'.' .,:, 
.... 

.' '" ••• 
: 

I .. 
PEPRA' 

•••••••••••• 
Classic;....Tier I Classic~Tier " ... ...... : 

". Ernployee; i;} 
.. ' ... 

•••••••••• 

.......• :> 

< ••.•. : Contribution • Safety.i • Misc 
••••• 

Safety < Mise '.: .•• .. &afety .. ····.···Misc··· 
FY05/06 0.0% 0.0% . ' .. J 1·<; 

.. .... :. ......... .. 
. ..•.... 

FY06/07 0.0% 0.0% ••• ...... ... '.' • • 
. 

•• 
. " . . .... 

FY07/08 1.623% 0.152% ··· •• L .•.... : .' . 
. ..... .. 

.... 
Dec 30. - July 2008 1.623% 3.594% , ......•. 

.' I .. ·• .• ·• .. I . . ... ;,' •... ,'.;' 
FY08/09 1.849% 3.576% ••• 

.' ( .( . .;; .. : 
'.' 

FY09/10 1.688% 3.663% 
..•. < .. '. . ; .' 

••••• 
••• 

-" . 
> ...... .... -:' . ., 

FYi 0/11 2.332% 4.128% 
. " .. .. ....; , .... .. 

FY11/12 7.801% 
FY12/13 8.449% 
FY13/14 10.021% 
FY14/15 11.874% 

:. .-,-- : 

. Contrib~ti.onRates(Classic) 
Safety 

Employer 
Employee 
EPMC (a) 
EPMC (b) 

Total 

Miscellaneous 
Employer 
Employee 
EPMC (a) 
EPMC (b) 

Total 

7.511% / ..... . .... ; 

8.267% 13.449% 

9.091% 15.021% 

10.292% 16.874% 

2014-15 
PERS'" Cap 
Rates' Revised 

27.849% 16.955% 
9.000% 9.000% 
2.506% 1.526% 
0.810% 0.810% 

40.165% 28.291% 

2014-15 
PERS 
Rates 

16.796% 
8.000% 
1.344% 
0.640% 

26.780% 

Cap 
Revised 
8.409% 
7.000% 
0.589% 
0.490% 

16.488% 

'. ...... 
.. ( 'V 

13.267% 11.50% 6.25% 
14.091% 11.50% 6.25% 
15.292% 11.50% 6.25% 

Tier I Tier" 
EmplOyee Employee 

Contrlbu.tion Contribution 

11.874% 16.874% 

Tier I Tier" 
Employee Employee 

Contribution Contribution 

10.292% 15.292% 

FISCAL IMPACT: All increases related to Classic PERS rates will be assumed by employees. PEPRA 
rates remain unchanged from Fiscal Year 2013/2014. 

ATTACHMENTS: (The following attachments are available at City Hall) 
1. CalPERS Safety Plan of the City of Capitola Actuarial Valuation Report as of June 30, 2012; 
2. CalPERS Miscellaneous Plan of the City of Capitola Actuarial Valuation Report as of June 30, 2012; 
3. CalPERS Benefit and Contribution Rates for New Safety Members, Effective January 1, 2013; 
4. CalPERS Benefit and Contribution Rates for New Miscellaneous Members, Effective January 1, 2013. 

Report Prepared By: Kyle R. Solberg, Senior Accountant 
Tori Hannah, Finance Director 

2 

Reviewed and Fo 
By City Manager --t+-~-



CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF JANUARY 23,2013 

FROM: FINANCE DEPARTMENT 

SUBJECT: COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDED 
JUNE 30, 2013 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the City of 
Capitola for June 30, 2013. 
BACKGROUND: State law requires the City to retain an independent audit firm to audit the City's 
financial statements and issue an opinion. For Fiscal Year 2012/2013, the City has again received 
an "unqualified" opinion, which indicates the auditor believes the financial statements are 
presented fairly. The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the City of Capitola for 
the year ended June 30, 2013 is attached for reference. The financial statements for the Capitola 
Successor Agency are included in this document. 

DISCUSSION: The financial report presents the financial condition, results of operations, and 
current economic condition for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, for the City of Capitola and its 
component units. Financial information for the Successor Agency is presented as a separate 
Private Purpose Trust Fund within the CAFR. 
The financial statements are audited "in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States." The 
independent audit firm of Rogers, Anderson, Malody, and Scott, Certified Public Accountants, has 
issued the following opinion on the City's financial records, found on page 1 of the CAFR: "In our 
opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate 
remaining fund information of the City of Capitola, California, as of June 30, 2013, and the 
respective changes in financial position thereof for the year then ended in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America .... In our opinion, the 
information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole." 

The Fiscal Year 2012/2013 CAFR will be submitted to the Government Finance Officers' 
Association (GFOA) for the Excellence in Financial Reporting Award. The City's CAFR received 
this prestigious award for the first time in FY 2011/2012. The City has historically received the 
California Society of Municipal Finance Officers (CSMFO) Award for the Outstanding Financial 
Reporting consistency since 2000. Currently, the CSMFO prohibits organizations from submitting 
CAFR's to both award programs. Due to this requirement and the hi~h level of recognition 
associated with the GFOA Award, the City will not be submitting the FY 2012/13 CAFR to CSMFO. 

The next opportunity to review the City's financial picture, including updated revenue and 
expenditure forecasts, will be at the Midyear Budget Review on February 20,2014 at 6:00 pm. 

ATTACHMENTS 
1. City of Capitola Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, June 30, 2013; 
2. City of Capitola Management Representation Letter, January 14, 2014; 
3. Independent Auditor's Professional Standards Letter, January 14, 2014; 
4. Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control Letter; 
5. Independent Auditor's Report on Appropriations Limit Letter tb 
Report Prepared By: Tori Hannah Reviewed and Forwarded by Ity 

Finance Director Manager/Executive Director ". ' 
R:\CITY COUNCIL\Agenda Staff Reports\20 14 Agenda Reports\Ol 23 14\09.E. CAFR 20 13_Comprehensive Annual Financial Report_stf.docx 

-33-

Item #: 9.E. Staff Report.pdf

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF JANUARY 23,2013 

FROM: FINANCE DEPARTMENT 

SUBJECT: COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDED 
JUNE 30, 2013 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the City of 
Capitola for June 30, 2013. 
BACKGROUND: State law requires the City to retain an independent audit firm to audit the City's 
financial statements and issue an opinion. For Fiscal Year 2012/2013, the City has again received 
an "unqualified" opinion, which indicates the auditor believes the financial statements are 
presented fairly. The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the City of Capitola for 
the year ended June 30, 2013 is attached for reference. The financial statements for the Capitola 
Successor Agency are included in this document. 

DISCUSSION: The financial report presents the financial condition, results of operations, and 
current economic condition for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, for the City of Capitola and its 
component units. Financial information for the Successor Agency is presented as a separate 
Private Purpose Trust Fund within the CAFR. 
The financial statements are audited "in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States." The 
independent audit firm of Rogers, Anderson, Malody, and Scott, Certified Public Accountants, has 
issued the following opinion on the City's financial records, found on page 1 of the CAFR: "In our 
opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate 
remaining fund information of the City of Capitola, California, as of June 30, 2013, and the 
respective changes in financial position thereof for the year then ended in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America .... In our opinion, the 
information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole." 

The Fiscal Year 2012/2013 CAFR will be submitted to the Government Finance Officers' 
Association (GFOA) for the Excellence in Financial Reporting Award. The City's CAFR received 
this prestigious award for the first time in FY 2011/2012. The City has historically received the 
California Society of Municipal Finance Officers (CSMFO) Award for the Outstanding Financial 
Reporting consistency since 2000. Currently, the CSMFO prohibits organizations from submitting 
CAFR's to both award programs. Due to this requirement and the hi~h level of recognition 
associated with the GFOA Award, the City will not be submitting the FY 2012/13 CAFR to CSMFO. 

The next opportunity to review the City's financial picture, including updated revenue and 
expenditure forecasts, will be at the Midyear Budget Review on February 20,2014 at 6:00 pm. 

ATTACHMENTS 
1. City of Capitola Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, June 30, 2013; 
2. City of Capitola Management Representation Letter, January 14, 2014; 
3. Independent Auditor's Professional Standards Letter, January 14, 2014; 
4. Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control Letter; 
5. Independent Auditor's Report on Appropriations Limit Letter tb 
Report Prepared By: Tori Hannah Reviewed and Forwarded by Ity 

Finance Director Manager/Executive Director ". ' 
R:\CITY COUNCIL\Agenda Staff Reports\20 14 Agenda Reports\Ol 23 14\09.E. CAFR 20 13_Comprehensive Annual Financial Report_stf.docx 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-34-



 

Comprehensive Annual  

Financial Report 

City of Capitola, California 

For Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013 

-35-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF CAPITOLA, 
CALIFORNIA 

 
 
 

COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL 
FINANCIAL REPORT 

 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Prepared by the Capitola Finance Department 

-36-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



City Of Capitola 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 

Year Ended June 30, 2013 
 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
Page 

INTRODUCTORY SECTION: 

Letter of Transmittal ....................................................................................................................................... i 

List of Principal Officials .............................................................................................................................. xiii 

Organization Chart ...................................................................................................................................... xiv 

Awards for Financial Reporting .................................................................................................................... xv 
 
FINANCIAL SECTION: 

Independent Auditor's Report ....................................................................................................................... 1 

Management's Discussion & Analysis .......................................................................................................... 4 

Basic Financial Statements: 

 Government-wide Financial Statements: 

 Statement of Net Position ..................................................................................................................... 18 

 Statement of Activities .......................................................................................................................... 19 

 Fund Financial Statements: 

 Balance Sheet – Governmental Funds ................................................................................................ 20 

 Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds to the  

 Statement of Net Position .................................................................................................................. 22 

 Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – 

 Governmental Funds ......................................................................................................................... 23 

 Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in 

 Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities ............................................. 25 

 Statement of Fiduciary Net Position ..................................................................................................... 26 

 Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position .................................................................................. 27 

 Index to Notes to Financial Statements ................................................................................................... 28 

 Notes to Financial Statements ................................................................................................................. 29 
 
   Required Supplementary Information: 

 Schedule of Funding Progress for CRHP ................................................................................................ 65 

 Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance –  

 Budget and Actual: 

 General Fund .................................................................................................................................... 66 

 Federal Home Loan Reuse Fund ...................................................................................................... 67 

 Capitola Housing Successor Fund .................................................................................................... 68 

 Notes to Required Supplementary Information ....................................................................................... 69 
 

-37-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



City Of Capitola 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 

Year Ended June 30, 2013 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS – Continued 
 

Page 
   Supplementary Information: 

 Budgeted Major Funds: 

 Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances –  

 Budget and Actual: 

 Pacific Cove Debt Financing Fund ................................................................................................. 71 

 Non-Major Governmental Funds: 

 Combining Balance Sheet .................................................................................................................... 72 

 Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in  

 Fund Balances .................................................................................................................................. 76 

 Budgeted Non-major Funds: 

 Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances –  

 Budget and Actual: 

 Supplemental Law Enforcement Fund ........................................................................................... 80 

 Gas Tax Fund ................................................................................................................................ 81 

 Wharf Fund .................................................................................................................................... 82 

 Parking Reserve Fund ................................................................................................................... 83 

 Technology Fees Fund .................................................................................................................. 84 

 PEG Cable TV Access Fund .......................................................................................................... 85 

 Capitola Village and Wharf BIA Fund ............................................................................................ 86 

 CDBG Fund .................................................................................................................................... 87 

 HOME Grant Fund ......................................................................................................................... 88 

 Affordable Housing Fund ............................................................................................................... 89 

 BEGIN Grant Fund ......................................................................................................................... 90 

 2007 POB Debt Service Fund ........................................................................................................ 91 

 Capital Projects Fund ..................................................................................................................... 92 

 Agency Funds: 

 Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities ............................................................. 93 
 
STATISTICAL SECTION: 

 CAFR Statistical Section - Table of Contents ....................................................................................... 94 

 Financial Trends Information: 

  Net Position by Component  .......................................................................................................... 95 

  Changes in Net Position  ............................................................................................................... 96 

-38-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



City Of Capitola 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 

Year Ended June 30, 2013 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS – Continued 
Page 

STATISTICAL SECTION (continued): 

  Fund Balances of Government Funds ........................................................................................... 98 

  Change in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds  ...................................................................... 99 

  General Revenues By Source  .................................................................................................... 101 

 Revenue Capacity Information: 

  Net Taxable Assessed Value History ........................................................................................... 102 

  Assessed Value of Taxable Property  .......................................................................................... 103 

  Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates  ............................................................................... 104 

  Top Ten Property Taxpayers  ...................................................................................................... 105 

  Property Tax Levies and Collections  .......................................................................................... 106 

  Top 25 Sales Tax Taxpayers ....................................................................................................... 107 

 Debt Capacity Information 

  Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type ............................................................................................ 108 

  Ratios of General Bonded Debt Outstanding .............................................................................. 109 

  Direct and Overlapping Debt ........................................................................................................ 110 

  Legal Debt Margin Information ..................................................................................................... 111 

  Pledged - Revenue Coverage ...................................................................................................... 112 

 Demographic and Economic Information: 

  Demographic and Economic Statistics ........................................................................................ 113 

  Principal Employers - Top Ten ..................................................................................................... 114 

  Full-Time and Part-Time City Employees by Function ................................................................ 115 

 Operating Information: 

  Operating Indicators by Function ................................................................................................. 116 

  Capital Asset Statistics by Function ............................................................................................. 117 
 

-39-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

INTRODUCTORY SECTION 

-40-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page intentionally left blank 

 
 

-41-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



January 14, 2014 

Honorable Mayor, 
Members of the City Council, and 
Citizens of the City of Capitola 

SUBJECT: Comprehensive Annual Financial Report - June 30, 2013 

420 CAPITOLA AVENUE 

CAP I TOLA , CAL I FORN I A 95010 

TELEPHONE ( 831 ) 4 7 5 -730 0 

fAX ( 831 ) 479 - 8879 

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the City of Capitola for the fiscal year ended June 
30, 2013 is hereby submitted. 

REPORT PURPOSE AND ORGANIZATION 

State law requires that the accounts and fiscal affairs of all municipal entities be examined annually by 
an independent certified public accountant. The City's independent auditor, Rogers, Anderson, Malody, 
and Scott, LLP has audited the City's financial statements and issued an unqualified opinion that financial 
statements for fiscal year ended June 30, 2013 are fairly presented in conformity with generally 
accepted accounting principles (GAAP). This opinion, along with the basic financial statements of the 
City, are hereby submitted as the CAFR for the City of Capitola for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013 
and included in the financial section of this report in fulfillment of the above requirement. 

The independent audit of the financial statements is also typically conducted in conjunction with the 
federally mandated Single Audit. The standards governing the Single Audit require the independent 
auditor to report on items beyond fair presentat ion of the financial statements, including internal 
controls and compliance with lega l requirements involving the administration of federa l awards. A 
separately issued Single Audit on Federal Award Programs is available for the year ended June 30, 2012. 
A Single Audit Report was not required or prepared in FY 12/13 because the City had less than $500,000 
in federal grant expenditures. 

This report consists of City management's representations concerning the finances of the City of 
Cap itola. Consequently, management assumes fu ll responsibility for completeness, accuracy of data, 
and fairness of presentation, including all footnotes and disclosures. Management believes the data 
presented are accurate in all material respects and that they are presented in a manner designed to 
fairly set forth the f inancial position and results of operations of the City. To provide a reasonable basis 
for making these representations, City management has established a comprehensive framework of 
internal contro ls designed both to protect the City's assets from loss, theft, or misuse and to compile 
sufficiently reliable information for the preparation of the City's financial statements in conformity with 
genera lly accepted accounting principles. Because the cost of internal controls should not exceed their 
benefits, the City's internal controls have been designed to provide reasonable rather than absolute 
assurance that the financial statements are free of material misstatements. The audit prov ides users 

-42-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf

January 14, 2014 

Honorable Mayor, 
Members of the City Council, and 
Citizens of the City of Capitola 

SUBJECT: Comprehensive Annua l Financial Report - June 30, 2013 

420 CAP1TOLA AVENUE 

C AP1T O LA , CAL1FORN 1A 95 0 10 

TELEPHONE ( 831 ) 475 - 7300 

FA X ( 831 ) 479 - 8879 

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the City of Capitola for the fiscal year ended June 
30,2013 is hereby submitted. 

REPORT PURPOSE AND ORGANIZATION 

State law requires that the accounts and fiscal affairs of all municipal entities be examined annually by 
an independent certified public accountant. The City's independent auditor, Rogers, Anderson, Malody, 
and Scott, llP has audited the City's financial statements and issued an unqualified opinion that financial 
statements for fiscal year ended June 30, 2013 are fairly presented in conformity with generally 
accepted accounting principles (GAAP). This opinion, along with the basic financial statements of the 
City, are hereby submitted as the CAFR for the City of Capitola for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013 
and included in the financial section of this report in fulfillment of the above requ irement. 

The independent audit of the financial statements is also typically conducted in conjunction with the 
federa lly mandated Single Audit. The standards governing the Single Audit require the independent 
auditor to report on items beyond fair presentation of the financial statements, including internal 
controls and compliance with lega l requirements involving the administration of federa l awards. A 
separately issued Single Audit on Federa l Award Programs is available for the year ended June 30, 2012. 
A Single Audit Report was not required or prepared in FY 12/13 because the City had less than $500,000 
in federal grant expenditures. 

This report consists of City management's representations concerning the finances of the City of 
capitola . Consequently, management assumes fu ll responsibility for completeness, accuracy of data, 
and fairness of presentation, including all footnotes and disclosures. Management believes the data 
presented are accurate in all material respects and that they are presented in a manner designed to 
fairly set forth the financial position and results of operations of the City. To provide a reasonable basis 
for making these representations, City management has established a comprehensive framework of 
internal controls designed both to protect the City's assets from loss, theft, or misuse and to compile 
sufficiently reliable information for the preparation of the City's financial statements in conformity with 
generally accepted accounting principles. Because the cost of internal controls should not exceed their 
benefits, the City's internal controls have been designed to provide reasonable rather than absolute 
assurance that the financia l statements are free of material misstatements. The audit provides users 



 

with reasonable assurance that the information presented is free from material misstatements. As 
management, we assert that to the best of my knowledge and belief, this financial report is complete 
and reliable in all material respects. 
 
Generally accepted accounting principles require that management provide a narrative introduction, 
overview, and analysis to accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Management’s 
Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to complement MD&A and should 
be read in conjunction with it. The City’s MD&A can be found in the Financial Section of this document, 
immediately following the report of the independent auditor. 
 
CITY OF CAPITOLA PROFILE 
 
 
The City of Capitola is a small coastal community located in Santa Cruz County that occupies 
approximately two square miles and serves a population 9,981.  Located on the northern edge of 
Monterey Bay, approximately 35 miles north of Monterey and 75 miles south of San Francisco, Capitola 
enjoys a rich history and offers residents diverse recreational opportunities.  Capitola Village is located 
along a wide beach with expansive views of Monterey Bay and is home to numerous craft galleries, 
boutiques, and restaurants.  The City is host to numerous events, including the Begonia Festival, Capitola 
Art and Wine Festival, and the annual Wharf to Wharf race.  
 
Voted as one of the best small coastal towns by Sunset Magazine, Capitola offers fishing and boating 
services in addition to its beachfront restaurants, shops, and entertainment.  Other visitor attractions 
include the Capitola Historical Museum and Capitola Wharf.   
 
Although Capitola is considered a central coast beach destination, it is also one of two major retail 
centers in Santa Cruz County. The Capitola Mall combined with Brown’s Ranch and 41st Avenue 
businesses are the retail hub of the central county. With major retailers such as Macy’s, Sears, Kohl’s, 
CVS, Orchard Supply, Ross, Target, and Bed Bath and Beyond, Capitola is a “net regional retail provider” 
bringing in five to six times the City household retail demand of Capitola city residents.   
 
Capitola is also fortunate to have outstanding educational opportunities.  In addition, to having the New 
Brighton Middle School within its City limits, both Cabrillo Community College and the University of 
California, Santa Cruz are within eight miles of the City.  According to the U.S. Census Bureau’s 2010 
data, 95% of Capitola residents are high school graduates and 41% possess a Bachelor’s Degree or higher 
level degree. 
 
Form of Government 
 

Capitola is a General Law City which was incorporated in January 11, 1949.  The City is subject to the 
framework and procedures established by State Law and operates under the Council – City Manager 
form of government.  The Council is comprised of four Council Members and a Mayor, all of whom are 
directly elected by the citizens.  The Council Members serve four-year staggered terms; and the Mayor 
and Vice-Mayor are elected annually by the Council.  The Council has the authority to establish all laws 
and regulations with respect to municipal affairs, subject only to the limitations of the City Municipal 
Code and the State legislation.     
 
The City Council appoints a City Manager to serve as the City’s chief administrative officer.  The City 
Manager provides direction and leadership to all City departments; and ensures that all City Council 
policies are implemented.   

-43-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



 

 
City Services 
 

The City provides police protection, street, park and facilities maintenance, recreation, building, 
planning, zoning, administrative, and financial services for Capitola.  Independent special districts 
provide fire protection, water, sewer, and drainage services.   
 
The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report includes all financial activities of the City and the Successor 
Agency to the former Redevelopment Agency of the City of Capitola, two separate legal entities. City 
Council members also serve as the governing board members of the Successor Agency and the City 
Manager serves as its Executive Director.  Most activities of the Successor Agency are also subject to 
approval by an independent Oversight Board.  
 
Financial data for all funds through which services are provided by the City have been included in this 
report based on the criteria adopted by the Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB), which is 
the authoritative body in establishing U.S. Generally Accepted Accounting Procedures (GAAP) for local 
governments. 
 
Budgetary Policy and Control 
 

The City’s budgetary records are maintained on a modified accrual basis. Revenues are recorded when 
measurable and available and expenditures are recorded when goods or services are received and the 
liability incurred. The City produces a two-year annual budget, which serves as the foundation for the 
City of Capitola’s financial planning and control.  Based on the City’s Financial Management Policies, the 
City is required to maintain a balanced operating budget; along with using one-time revenues to fund 
non-recurring expenditures.  In the budget development process, the City references the following 
Budgeting Principles to identify key projects and goals:  Fiscal Policy, Public Service, Public Improvement, 
and Public Improvement Possibilities. 
  
In accordance with the City’s Municipal Code, the budget is adopted by resolution on or before June 
30th for the ensuing fiscal year.  Expenditures authorized in the final budget resolution are appropriated 
at the budget unit.  Capital projects are budgeted at the individual project level. City Council may 
appropriate, amend, or transfer funds by an affirmative vote of three Council members at any regular or 
special Council meeting. 
 
The Successor Agency’s two-year budget is incorporated into the City’s budget process; however, it is 
subject to biannual approval by the Oversight Board and the Department of Finance. 
 
 
Factors Affecting Financial Condition 
 

 
 
The information presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understood when it is considered 
from the broader perspective of the environment in which the City operates. 
 
Local Economy 
 

The City of Capitola, like many local governments, has been challenged due to the economic downturn, 
recent State take-aways, and reduced reserves.  In FY 11/12, the local economy began to show signs of 
economic recovery, which resulted in a net surplus in the General Fund’s primary operations of 

-44-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



 

$812,557.  This trend continued in FY 12/13 with core revenues, such as sales and transient occupancy 
taxes outperforming their combined budgetary projections by over 3.5%.   This increased performance, 
combined with salary and contract savings; and one-time revenues resulted in a net surplus in the 
General Fund’s primary operations of $193,404, after reserve contributions and CIP transfers.  While this 
reflects a better-than anticipated recovery, the City has taken a conservative approach in developing the 
FY 13/14 budget. 
  
The local unemployment rate provides a good indication of the area’s economic stability.  In Santa Cruz 
County, the unemployment rate declined from a five-year high of 12.7% in 2010 to 7.5% in 2013.  This 
reduction was consistent with an overall decline in the State’s unemployment rate.  In the City of 
Capitola, unemployment rates were moderately more favorable with a five-year high of 7.3% in 2011, 
and a 2013 rate of 5.5%.  This is reflected in increased sales and hotel occupancy rates.  
 
The three major sources of General Fund revenue include Sales Tax, Property Tax, and Transient 
Occupancy Tax (TOT).  These three revenues account for over 68% of all General Fund Revenues. 
 
Sales tax is the City’s largest source of revenue, accounting for over 46% of the General Fund Revenues. 
The City sales tax consists of 1% Bradley Burns; 0.25% Capitola District Tax (Measure D); and a new 
0.25% Capitola District Tax (Measure O) that became effective in the last quarter of FY 12/13.  In            
FY 12/13, the combined sales tax receipts of $6 million were 2.5% higher than amended budgetary 
estimates, and approximately 16.2% higher than the prior year.  This increase resulted from the addition 
of a new Target retail store located in the Capitola Mall, along with improved economic performance. 
 
Sales tax receipts typically respond quickly to economic conditions.  As displayed in the following chart, 
sales tax revenues responded to the weakening economy in FY 08/09 after the closure of two auto 
dealerships and two major department stores.  In FY 09/10, the economy began to slowly show signs of 
recovery, with the existing auto dealerships expanding their product line and increasing sales; and a new 
department store opening in the Capitola Mall.  These factors, along with a continuing increase in 
spending and the addition of a major retailer in the FY11/12 sales tax revenues.   The following chart 
also demonstrates proportional share of District and Bradley Burns Sales taxes.    
   

$0.0 

$1.0 

$2.0 

$3.0 

$4.0 

$5.0 

$6.0 

$7.0 

FY 07/08 FY 08/09 FY 09/10 FY 10/11 FY 11/12 FY 12/13

Sales Tax Trends
(in millions)

Bradley Burnes Measure D Measure O
 

 

-45-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf

• • • 



 

Capitola’s second major source of revenue is property tax.  In 2010-11, the General Fund and the 
Capitola Redevelopment Agency (RDA) received property tax revenues of $1.7 million and $2.4 million, 
respectively.  Due to the dissolution of the RDA, the RDA’s tax increment revenues are distributed to the 
Successor Agency Private Purpose Trust Fund in amounts that are only sufficient to fund obligations 
approved by the independent Oversight Board.  In FY12/13 the General Fund received $1.7 million in 
property tax receipts, prior to inclusion of Documentary Transfer Tax and Residual RDA distributions.  
This base amount was approximately $10,600 more than the prior year, and within $1,000 of the final 
budgeted amount. In FY 11/12, City received $52,534 in RPTTF revenues, while in FY 12/13 the City 
received $37,928.  These residual distributions are not indicative of a change in property values, but a 
distribution of excess property tax funds that were redistributed as part of the RDA dissolution process. 
 

The City’s property tax revenues do not respond to economic conditions as quickly as sales tax revenues.  
This delayed response, along with less volatility, assists the City in adjusting to economic downturns by 
lessening the immediacy of revenue loss.  The following chart includes Property Tax Revenue, as well as 
Property Tax In-Lieu of Vehicle License Fees.  Based on the historical data, property tax revenues have 
remained relatively consistent.  It is anticipated this trend will continue in the next fiscal year.   

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

$1.50 

$1.55 

$1.60 

$1.65 

$1.70 

$1.75 

FY 07/08 FY 08/09 FY 09/10 FY 10/11 FY 11/12 FY 12/13

Property Tax Trends
(in millions) 

Property Taxes - Regular Residual Distribution

-46-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf

• 



 

Transient occupancy tax (TOT) represents over 8% of General Fund revenues.  In FY 11/12, revenues 
increased by $310,000 over the prior year due to increased economic performance and the addition of a 
new 84-room major hotel.   Economic growth has continued through FY 12/13 with TOT revenues rising 
by $161,154 or 17.7% over the prior year. A portion of this increase can be attributed to a one-time 
internal hotel adjustment of $48,300.  While the City has projected a conservative growth rate of 2% in 
FY 13/14, the first quarter revenue receipts are trending positively at 19% or $55,000 over the prior year 
quarter.  Due to this increased performance and Capitola’s seaside location, the City is continuing efforts 
to attract hotels to the area.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Long‐term Financial Planning  
 

In the past, the City has made strategic decisions to help maintain resiliency in difficult economic times.  
As a continuation of this practice, the City is focusing on the following planning measures:  

Planning for Sales Tax Revenues 

The City of Capitola sales tax revenue consists of 1% Bradley Burns Sales tax and two 0.25% District 
taxes.  The first District tax, Measure D, extended an existing 0.25% temporary sales tax that was 
scheduled to sunset in 2008.  Measure D is now scheduled to expire in December of 2017.  The second 
District sales tax, Measure O, is a permanent 0.25% quarter sales tax that was approved by voters in 
November 2012 and went into effect April 1, 2013.  Measure O was implemented with the goal of 
replenishing reserves, funding CIP projects, and providing support for public safety initiatives.  The City 
developed a five year plan to ensure that Measure O funds were applied to their stated priorities.   

Each of the district taxes is anticipated to yield approximately $1 million in General Fund revenues 
annually.  Due to the April implementation of the new sales tax measure, the FY 12/13 revenues reflect 
only one quarter or $254,000 of Measure O receipts.  The City’s intent is to use the combined sales tax 
revenues to finance economic recovery efforts until the sunset date of Measure D.  It is anticipated that 
the loss of Measure D revenues could be offset by the retirement of a 2007 Pension Obligation Bond, 
which requires annual debt service payments of $670,000; increased sales tax revenue from a major 
retailer, and general economic growth.   

  
 

$0.0 

$0.2 

$0.4 

$0.6 

$0.8 

$1.0 

$1.2 

FY 07/08 FY 08/09 FY 09/10 FY 10/11 FY 11/12 FY 12/13

TOT Trends
(in millions)

-47-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



 

Replenishing and Increasing Reserves 
 
In March of 2011, an underground storm drain failed which resulted in damage to the Pacific Cove 
Mobile Home Park, City Hall, and portions of Capitola Village.  As a result, the City paid $1.4 million in 
flood related costs over the last two fiscal years; and assumed a $2.39 million debt to relocate residents 
of the City-owned mobile home park.   This incident reduced the City’s reserves from $1.87 million in FY 
09/10 to $561,000 in FY 11/12, with an additional $200,000 reduction anticipated in FY 13/14 to repair a 
damaged retaining wall. 

The 2011 storm drain failure, along with the economic downturn, emphasized the need to review 
reserve policy levels to ensure the City was maintaining a sufficient balance to effectively manage 
unforeseen events.  In a review of the City’s 2012 Benchmark Report, Capitola had the lowest reserve to 
operating expenditure ratio when compared to the benchmark cities.  After reviewing GFOA 
recommendations and the City’s financial history, the City increased the reserve policy levels.  The 
Emergency Reserves were increased from 5% to 10% of operating expenditures and the Contingency 
Reserves were increased from 10% to 15% of operating expenditures to assist with the volatile nature of 
the City’s primary revenue sources, and uneven receipting patterns of annual major revenues. The 
following chart contrasts the FY 12/13 ending fund balances with the original and revised funding policy 
levels. 

Fund 
Fiscal Year 

12/13 
Original Policy 

Level 
Revised Policy 

Level 
Deficit to Revised Policy 

Level 
Contingency $1,222,600 10% - $1.2 M 15% - $1.8 M $577,400 
Emergency $569,800 5% - 0.6 M 10% - $1.2 M $630,200 
Total $1,792,400  15% - $1.8 M 25% - $3.0 M $1,207,600 

Based on the original five-year Measure O Plan, the reserves would be fully funded in FY 16/17; however 
an additional $300,000 contribution from an insurance settlement and an additional allocation of 
$350,000 from the General Fund’s operating surplus, are anticipated to bring  the reserves to within 
$41,000 of their full funding level in FY 15/16. The historical and projected funding levels are presented 
below: 

 

$0.0 

$0.5 

$1.0 

$1.5 

$2.0 

$2.5 

$3.0 

$3.5 

FY07/08 FY 08/09 FY 09/10 FY 10/11 FY 11/12 FY 12/13 FY 13/14 FY 14/15 FY 15/16 FY 16/17 

Contingency and Emergency Reserve Funds 
(in millions) 

Contingency Emergency 

-48-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf

• Ii 



 

 

Controlling Payroll Costs 

The City of Capitola participates in the California Public Employees Retirement System (CalPERS).  Over 
the last two years, the CalPERS Board has approved two measures that are projected to increase the 
employer contribution rates.  This includes reducing the discount rate on actuarial earnings for the 
investment pool from 7.75% to 7.5%; and changing the terms on amortization and smoothing policies.  
These two measures are projected to increase employer contribution rates by an annual amount of two 
percentage points for Public Safety Employees and 1% for Miscellaneous Employees.  While most cities 
are preparing for these rising costs, the City of Capitola has negotiated caps on the employer’s share of 
retirement contributions.   

The City’s retirement caps, which were initially implemented in 2007, have proven to be an effective 
cost containment strategy.  The City’s maximum PERS contributions are set at 28.291% for Safety 
employees and 16.488% for Miscellaneous employees.  In FY 11/12, the City implemented further 
retirement reforms which included a 5% lower cap on the City’s share of PERS costs for newly hired 
employees. These “second tier” caps are applicable through the first five years of employment, with 
effective rates for Safety and Miscellaneous at 23.291% and 11.488%, respectively.  These internal 
measures combined with the State’s Public Employee Pension Reform Act (PEPRA) are anticipated to 
provide additional assistance in controlling payroll costs.  The PEPRA legislation which became effective 
in January of 2013, is applicable to all new employees who have not been previously enrolled in PERS or 
a reciprocal plan.  The new PEPRA plans provide reduced benefit plans at a lower cost to both the 
employer and employee.  

All labor agreements include a CPI-based Cost of Living Adjustment (COLA) that has been included in the 
FY 14/15 Planned Budget, with similar CPI-based COLAs scheduled over the term of the contract.  The 
City’s cap on PERS contributions may be revisited if PERS costs reach a specified threshold.     

Major Initiatives 
 
Managing the Dissolution of the Redevelopment Agency (RDA) 
 

In 2011, the Governor of the State of California signed Assembly Bill X1 26 which dissolved California 
Redevelopment Agencies.  Based on this legislation,   Communities could elect to assume Successor 
Agency responsibilities for the RDA and the RDA’s Low/Moderate Income Housing Fund.  On January 12, 
2012, City Council adopted a resolution to serve as the Successor Agency to the RDA and the Housing 
Successor to the Low/Moderate Income Housing Fund.   
 
The Successor Agency’s primary responsibility is to unwind the affairs of the former RDA, while the 
Housing Successor can continue to provide low to moderate income housing support.  In accordance 
with the legislation, the Successor Agency is only eligible to receive Real Property Tax Trust Fund (RPTTF) 
revenues sufficient to pay items on an approved Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule (ROPS). 
Payments listed on the Successor Agency’s ROPS were subject to the initial certification by the County 
Auditor-Controller; and bi-annual approval from the Successor Agency, the Oversight Board to the 
Successor Agency, and the Department of Finance. The Housing Successor is funded by former 
Low/Moderate Income Housing assets, along with potential support from the General Fund. 
 
All obligations listed on the first ROPS were approved by the Successor Agency and Oversight Board; and 
certified by the County Auditor-Controller’s Office.  This included ten recognized obligations, with six 

-49-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



 

month payments totaling $874,652.  While the Successor Agency was successful in receiving the local 
ROPS approval, the Department of Finance (DOF) denied RPTTF funding for two City/RDA loans.  This 
denial resulted in a reduction of $152,520 in annual interest payments to the General Fund; as well as 
the loss of $1.97 million in General Fund assets.  This amount includes a $618,028 Loan and Cooperative 
Agreement, which was used to establish the RDA; and a $1.35 million loan to acquire the Rispin 
Mansion, a designated historical property.  Based on DOF’s response, the City, Successor Agency, and 
the Oversight Board approved returning the Rispin Mansion to the City in exchange for termination of 
the loan.  This action provides Capitola residents and visitors with additional park space, as well as 
relieves the taxing agencies of the debt.  While the Successor Agency and the Oversight Board felt this 
met the intent of ABX1 26, the DOF denied this transaction and requested the Oversight Board to 
reconsider their decision.     
 
On August 29, 2012 the Oversight Board submitted a second resolution which unanimously reaffirmed 
the property transfer decision; however as of the date of this transmittal, no response has been 
received from the DOF.  Because the statutory timelines to contest the property transfer have expired, 
the City believes the transfer is complete.   
 
The City also requested retention of $88,970 for seven months of interest payments on the City/RDA 
loans for the period from July 1, 2011 to January 31, 2012.  This amount represents the prorated share 
of interest payments due to the City prior to the effective date of the RDA dissolution.  The prorated 
payments were approved at the local level on the Third ROPS; however they were denied by the 
Department of Finance.  The City met with the Department of Finance on November 15, 2012 to contest 
this action as part of the formal “Meet and Confer” process; however the DOF determination was 
upheld.  This resulted in the General Fund returning $152,520 to the Successor Agency to meet 
approved Successor Agency Obligations.   
 
The City has received a finding of completion related to the RDA dissolution process.  On January 10, 
2012, AB 1484 was amended to provide additional clarification on the RDA dissolution process.  This 
legislation defined a process where City/RDA loans could be reinstated, subsequent to a Due Diligence 
Review by a CPA firm, a Finding of Completion by the DOF, and approval of the Oversight Board. In        
FY 12/13, the City also completed two mandated Due Diligence Reviews and an Asset Transfer Review.  
As a result of the Asset Transfer Review, the General Fund was required to return an additional $47,895 
to the Successor Agency for interest paid on the Loan and Cooperative Agreement prior to the adoption 
of the legislation dissolving the Agency.  Although the City and Successor Agency disagreed with these 
findings, the City returned these funds to maintain compliance.   
 
AB 1484 contains a provision which allows the City to seek reinstatement of the loans; however this 
provision requires that the accumulated interest on the principal be recalculated from the origin of the 
loan at the interest rate earned by funds deposited into the Local Agency Investment Fund.  The 
Oversight Board has approved an interest rate reduction; however the Successor Agency was required 
to resubmit the request in accordance with the legislative timelines.  Some cities have been successful in 
rescinding DOF determinations through legal actions.  The City plans to seek reinstatement of the Loan 
and Cooperative Agreement as either part of AB 1484 or a separate legal process.  The City filed a Long 
Range Property Management Plan in November of 2013, which indicates the Successor Agency does not 
have any real property to report.   
 
Insurance Settlement 
 

The City is insured for claims up to $20 million, with a $10,000 deductable per occurrence.  Although the 
insurance was in effect at the time of the storm drain failure, the City’s insurance company denied the City’s 
claims for reimbursement.  The insurance company asserted that the damage was caused by a “flood” for 

-50-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



 

which the City did not have insurance coverage.  The City believed this interpretation was incorrect and 
sought legal action.  After two years of working with legal counsel and the insurance company, the parties 
agreed to a $1.35 million settlement.  The proceeds, minus legal fees were allocated to the following 
funding priorities:  $500,000 to prepayment of Pacific Cove Lease Debt, $350,000 to Capital Improvement 
Projects, and $295,000 to reserves.  The prepayment of debt was anticipated to save the City over $150,000 
in interest costs over the lifetime of the loan.  The capital improvement funds were applied to the following 
previously unfunded projects:  $150,000 for Stockton Avenue Pedestrian Improvements; $70,000 for Hill 
Street Pedestrian Improvements; $100,000 for park improvements; and $30,000 to fund Historic Depot 
street frontage and landscaping improvements.  A complete discussion of reserves is included in the Long-
Term Planning section of this letter. 
 
Transitioning the former Pacific Cove Mobile Home Park to a Temporary Parking Lot  
 

In FY 12/13, the City made the decision to convert the former Pacific Mobile Home Park to a temporary 
226-space parking area, with the expectation it would be converted to a public park, if the City 
developed a parking garage in the adjacent parking lot.  This lot is anticipated to provide additional 
parking for Village businesses and Capitola Beach, while also assisting to attract a new hotel to the 
Village.  It is anticipated that during summer months, a shuttle will operate between the parking lot and 
the Village/beach area to alleviate traffic congestion in the waterfront areas.  An additional benefit 
realized from this project will include moving the Police storage facility to a refurbished mobile home.  
This transition will allow the Community Room at City Hall to be available to the public.   
 
The $1.38 million project will include paving, lighting, landscaping, restroom updates, and the addition 
of pay stations to both the new temporary lot and the upper Pacific Cove lot.  This project has received 
funding approval for a low-interest loan through the California Infrastructure and Economic 
Development Bank (IBank).  Construction and project reimbursements are scheduled to begin in the late 
summer of 2013.  The debt service is anticipated to be paid from the savings realized through the tax-
exempt refinancing of the Pacific Cove Mobile Home Park loan and revenue from the new parking lot.   
 
Debt Reduction Strategies 
 

In FY 12/13, the City has been successful in retiring, prefunding, or reducing interest rates on significant 
debt obligations.  Information pertaining to these reductions are listed below: 
 
Library Development – $2.1 Million 
 

This approved Successor Agency obligation is intended to fund construction of a 12,500 square foot 
library branch at the corner of Clares Street and Wharf Road.  The original obligation of $2.6 million had 
a balance of $2.1 million on June 30, 2012, with an annual FY 12/13 scheduled payment scheduled at 
$211,720.  In FY 12/13, the Successor Agency received approval to make an additional payment of 
$739,548 from Real Property Tax Trust Funds.  If continued accelerated payments are approved, it is 
anticipated that this obligation will be paid in 2016, which is two years earlier than the scheduled 
retirement date. 
 
Pacific Cove Lease Financing - $1.8 Million 
 

In FY 11/12, the City initiated a $2.39 taxable lease/sublease agreement to fund the closure of the 
Pacific Cove Mobile Home Park.  In FY 12/13, it was determined that the site would be used for public 
purpose which allowed the City to refinance the loan at a lower rate.  The original 20-year lease include 
a 5.14% fixed interest rate for the first ten years, with a reset to a 10 year T-Bill plus 3%.  This amount 
was refinanced at a fixed interest rate of 3.25%, with a reset to a T-Bill plus 1.5% in year 10.  As a result 
of the refinancing, annual loan payments will be reduced by approximately $28,000.  It is also estimated 
that the City will save $350,000 in interest payments during the first nine years of the loan.  In FY 12/13, 

-51-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



 

the City also made an additional principal payment of $476,190.  This prefunding is estimated to save 
the City $150,000 over the life of the loan, while also decreasing the loan term.   
 
Other Post Employment Benefit Obligation (OPEB) 
 

The City currently pays for retiree health benefits on a pay-as-you-go basis.  In FY 12/13, the City made 
the decision to begin prefunding the OPEB obligation.  This initial prefunding amount of $30,000 has 
been incorporated in the FY 13/14 budget.  The City’s FY 12/13 Unfunded Actuarially Accrued Liability 
(UAAL) is $1,076,209.  Dependant upon the trust fund and investment plan selected, this could reduce 
the UAAL by as much as $350,000.  
 
Relevant Financial Policies 
 
Financial Management Policies 
 

The City has developed comprehensive Financial Management Policies to assist with the management of 
the operating and capital budgeting process; and to standardize and rationalize the issuance of debt.  
This document focuses on Capital Budgeting and Reserves – Issuance of Debt, Operating Budgeting and 
Reserves; and Other Polices, which addresses conformance with Generally Accepted Accounting 
Principles (GAAP), and Internal Borrowings.  This policy requires the City to maintain a balanced 
operating budget; along with the use of one-time revenues to fund non-recurring expenditures.   

A key component of this policy focuses on reserve requirements.  Each fiscal year, the final adopted 
General Fund budget is required to have a Contingency Reserve appropriation equal to 15% of the 
General Fund operating expenditures; and Emergency Reserve appropriation equal to 10% of the 
General Fund Operating Expenditures.  The purpose of the Contingency Reserve is to provide a prudent 
level of financial resources to protect against temporary revenue shortfalls; unanticipated operating 
costs; and/or to meet short-term cash flow requirements.  The purpose of the Emergency Reserve Fund 
is to protect against one-time significant costs that may arise from major unpredictable emergency 
events.  In FY 12/13, the combined thresholds were increased from 15% to 25% to provide a safeguard 
for future unanticipated events.  Replenishment strategies and support for the new policy requirements 
are discussed in the Long-Term Financial Planning section of this document. 

Investment Policy 
 

The City’s Investment Policy governs the investment of temporary cash excesses.  Investments are 
prioritized based on the following order of importance:  Safety of principal, liquidity, and earnings.  
Various low risk investments, such as U.S. Treasury bills are permitted.  During the year, all excess cash 
balances, which were not held by a fiscal agent, were invested in the California Local Agency Investment 
Fund (LAIF).  At no time during the year was the City's cash invested in a manner that violates this policy. 
 
AWARD FOR EXCELLENCE IN FINANCIAL REPORTING 
 
 
The Certificate for Outstanding Financial Reporting was awarded to the City of Capitola for the 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 by the California 
Society of Municipal Finance Officers (CSMFO). The City has received this award consistently since          
FY 99/00.  
 
The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) also awarded a 
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Capitola’s CAFR for the 

-52-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. This is the first year the City has received this prestigious award. This 
Certificate of Achievement is a prominent national award recognizing conformance with the highest 
standards for preparation of State and local government financial reports. In order to be awarded a 
Certificate of Achievement, a government unit must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized 
comprehensive annual financial report whose contents conform to program standards. This report must 
satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements. 

A GFOA Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of only one year. The City of Capitola believes 
this current CAFR conforms to the Certificate of Achievement program requirements; and will be 
submitting it to GFOA for review. Once a GFOA Award is received, CSMFO prohibits cities from applying 
and receiving both awards. Because the City has received the GFOA Award and plans to submit the 
current year document to the GFOA, it will not be applying for the CSMFO Certificate this year. 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 

The preparation of this report would not have been possible without the efficient and dedicated services 
of the entire Finance Department staff. I would like to also express our appreciation to the partners and 
staff of our auditors for their assistance and support. 

I wish to express my thanks and appreciation to the Mayor, members of the City Council, and the City 
Treasurer for their unfailing leadership and support in planning and conducting the financial operations 
of the City in a responsible and progressive manner. 

Respectfully submitted, , 

Jamie GO!o.te!i1~ 
City Manager 

-53-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf

fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. This is the first year the City has received this prestigious award. This 
Certificate of Achievement is a prominent national award recognizing conformance with the highest 
standards for preparation of State and local government financial reports. In order to be awarded a 
Certificate of Achievement, a government unit must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized 
comprehensive annual financial report whose contents conform to program standards. This report must 
satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements. 

A GFOA Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of only one year. The City of Capitola believes 
this current CAFR conforms to the Certificate of Achievement program requ irements; and will be 
submitting it to GFOA for review. Once a GFOA Award is received, CSMFO prohibits cities from applying 
and receiving both awards. Because the City has received the GFOA Award and plans to submit the 
cu rrent year document to the GFOA, it wil l not be applying for the CSMFO Certificate this year. 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 

The preparation of this report would not have been possible without the efficient and dedicated services 
of the entire Finance Department staff. I would like to also express our appreciation to the partners and 
staff of our auditors for their assistance and support. 

I wish to express my thanks and appreciation to the Mayor, members of the City Council, and the City 
Treasurer for their unfailing leadership and support in planning and conducting the financial operations 
of the City in a responsible and progressive manner. 

Respectfully submitted, , 

Ja mie Gol.t.te!il~ 
City Manager 



 

-xiii- 

CITY OF CAPITOLA 
 

LIST OF PRINCIPAL OFFICIALS 
FOR 

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 
 
 
 
 
 

 
ELECTED OFFICIALS 

 
Mayor - Stephanie Harlan 
Vice Mayor - Sam Storey 

Council Member - Ed Bottorff 
Council Member - Dennis Norton 

Council Member - Michael Termini 
City Treasurer - Christine McBroom 

 
 
 
 
 

APPOINTED OFFICIALS 
 

City Manager - Jamie Goldstein 
City Attorney - Atchison, Barisone, Condotti & Kovacevich 

 
 
 
 
 
 

DEPARTMENT HEADS/ADMINISTRATORS 
 

Administrative Services Director - Lisa Murphy 
Chief of Police - Rudy Escalante 

City Clerk - Su Sneddon 
Community Development Director - Rich Grunow 

Finance Director - Tori Hannah 
Public Works Director - Steve Jesberg 

 

-54-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• ' •••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• •••••• g •••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• ~ . 
Citizens of the City of Capitola . ..............................................................................•............................. .................................................... ~ 

II 

•...................... ~ .......... ~ 
: City Attorney (contract) : ••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• * 

I I 
Community Dev 

Director 
Finance 
Director 

Senior Planner 

Assoc Planner 
(Frozen) 

Building 
Inspector Dev Service Tech 

(.67) 

. 
~ ........................................................................... ~ 

Council Members II 
II 

II 
II 

City Treasurer 

I 

I City Manager I 
I 
l 

I Exec Assistant to the City Manager I 
I 

Receptionist 

I 
Police 
Chief 

Admin Asst. (.75) 

Captain-Admin 
Div (Frozen) 

Detectives (2) 

Records Mgr 

Records Clerk (1.75) 

Admin Analyst ~ 

J 

Captain-Op. Div. 

Sergeants (4) 

I 

Police Officers (13) 

Parking 
Enforcement (2) 

Community 
Service Officer (3) 

-xiv-

I City Clerk 

I 
I Records Coordinator 

I Information Systems Specialist 
L 

~ 
Public Works 

Director 

I Maint. Superintendant 

h 
UI 

Maintenance 
Worker 3 (2) 
(1) Frozen 

Maintenance 
Worker 1 &2 (8) 

I-

'-

~ 
Recreation 
Supervisor 

I 
Recreation 
Staff (1.25) 

Environmental 
Projects 
Manager 

'-1 Mechanic 

II 

I 

I 
J 

~ 
Admin Services 

Director 

Art & Cultural Museum 

-55-

Item
 #: 9.E

. A
ttach

 1.p
d

f

••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• ' •••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• •••••• g •••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• ~ 

Citizens of the City of Capitola 
. . . ..............................................................................•............................. .................................................... ~ . 

~ ........................................................................... ~ 

II 

•................................. ~ 
: City Attorney (contract) : ••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• * 

I I 
Community Dev 

Director 
Finance 
Director 

I I 

I II Bldg Official Senior Planner Senior Acct.1I 
Acct. 

I Assoc Planner I 
(Frozen) I Accounts I 

Building Clerk (1.38) 
Inspector Dev Service Tech 

(.67) 

Council Members II 
II 

I 

I City Manager 

I I Exec Assistant to the City Manager I 

I 
I 

Receptionist 

I 
Police 
Chief 

Admin Asst. (.75) 

Captain-Admin 
Div (Frozen) 

Detectives (2) 

Records Mgr 

Records Clerk (1.75) 

Admin Analyst 

~ 

I 

~ 

I 

W Captain-Op. Div. 

Sergeants (4) r 
I 

I Police Officers (13) 
I 

Parking 
Enforcement (2) 

Community 
Service Officer (3) 

-xiv-

II City Treasurer 
II 

I 
I City Clerk 

I 
I Records Coordinator 

I 
I Information Systems Specialist 

I 
Public Works 

Director 

I 
Maint. Superintendant 

I 
I 

Street Supervisor 
(Frozen) 

Maintenance 
Worker 3 (2) 
(1) Frozen 

Maintenance 
Worker 1 &2 (8) 

-

I 
Recreation 
Supervisor 

I 
Recreation 
Staff (1.25) 

Environmental 
Projects 
Manager 

L..-J Mechanic -.'-------' 

II 

I 

I 

I 
I 

Admin Services 
Director 

Art & Cultural Museum 



Government Finance Officers Association 

Certificate of 
Achievement 
for Excellence 

in Financial 
Reporting 

Presented to 

City of Capitola 

California 

For ils Comprehensive Annual 
Financial Report 

for the Fisca l Year Ended 

June 30, 2012 

Execliti ve Director/CEO 

-56-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf

Government Finance O ffi cers Associat ion 

Certificate of 
Achievement 
for Excellence 

in Financial 
Reporting 

Presented to 

City of Capitola 

California 

For its Comprehensive Annual 

Financia l Report 
for the Fi sca l Vear Ended 

June 30, 2012 

Execlitive Director/CEO 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page intentional left blank 

 

-57-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FINANCIAL SECTION 

-58-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page intentional left blank 

 
 

-59-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



735 E. Carnegie Dr. Suite 100 

San Bernard ino, CA 9240B 

909 889 0871 T 

9098895361 F 

ramscpa.net 

PARTNERS 

Brenda L. Odie, CPA, MST 

Terry P. Shea . CPA 

Kirk A. Franks, CPA 

Matthew B. W ilson, CPA, MSA, CGMA 

Scott W. Manno, CPA, CGMA 

Lcena Shanbhag, CPA, MST, CGMA 

Jay H. Zercher, CPA (Partner Ementus) 

Phi llip H . Waller , CPA (Partner Emer'itus) 

MANAGERS / STAFF 

Nancy O'Rafferty, CPA, MBA 

Bradferd A. Welebir, CPA, MBA 

Jenny Lill, CPA, MST 

Papa Matar Thiaw, CPA, MBA 

Maya S. Ivanova. CPA, MBA 

Peter E. MurTay. CPA 

Seong-Hyea Lee. CPA, MBA 

Charles De S,moni, CPA 

Yiann Fang, CPA 

Danrel T Turner', CPA, MSA 

Der'ek J. Bmwn. CPA, MST 

David D . Henwood, CPA 

MEMBERS 
An'lencan Institute of 
Cenrfred Publ ic Accountants 

PCPS Tile AICPA AI/ranee 

for (PA Flfrm 

Governmental AudIt 

Quality (etHer 

Cairforllla Socrety of 
Cenified Public Accountants 

ROGERS , ANDERSON , MALODY & SCOTT, LLP 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS, SINCE 1948 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

The Honorable City Council 
City of Capitola, California 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental 
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of 
Capitola, California (the City), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013, and the 
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City's basic 
financial statements as listed in the table of contents, 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these 
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and 
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our 
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial 
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States, Those standards require that we plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are 
free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts 
and disclosures in the financial statements, The procedures selected depend on the 
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of 
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the City's preparation 
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control. Accordingly, we express no 
such opinion, An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting 
policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements, 

-1-
STABILITY, ACCURACY. TRUST, -60-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf

735 E. Carnegie Dr. Su ite 100 

San Bernard ino. CA 92408 

9098890871 T 

9098895361 F 

ramscpa.net 

PARTNERS 

Brenda L Odie. CPA. MST 

Terry P. Shea. CPA 

Kirk A Franks. CPA 

Matthew B. Wilson. CPA MSA. CGMA 

Scott W. Manno. CPA. CGMA 

Leena Shanbhag. CPA. MST. CGMA 

Jay H . Zercher. CPA (Panner Emeritus) 

Phillip H Waller . CPA (Partner Emeritus) 

MANAGERS I STAFF 

Nancy O'Rafferty. CPA. MBA 

Bradferd A Welebir. CPA. MBA 

Jenny Liu. CPA. MST 

Papa Matar Thiaw. CPA. MBA 

Maya S Ivanova. CPA. MBA 

Peter E. Murray. CPA 

Seong-Hyea Lee. CPA. MBA 

Ch;]rles De Slllloni. CPA 

Yiann Fang. CPA 

Daniel T Turner. CPA. MSA 

Del'ek J. Bmwn. CPA. MST 

David D Henwood. CPA 

MEMBERS 
An)encan Institute of 

Cenlfied Public Accountants 

PCPS The AICPA Aillonce 

for CPA F,m)s 

Governmental Aud,( 

Qua/JlY Ce/ller 

Califorl1la Society of 
Cenified Public Accountants 

ROGERS , ANDERSON , MALODY & SCOTT, LLP 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS, SINCE 1948 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

The Honorable City Council 
City of Capitola, California 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental 
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of 
Capitola, California (the City), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013, and the 
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City's basic 
financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these 
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and 
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our 
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial 
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are 
free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts 
and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the 
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of 
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the City's preparation 
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control. Accordingly, we express no 
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting 
policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements. 

-1-
STABILITY. ACCURACY. TRUST. 



 

-2- 

 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinions. 
 
Opinions  
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining 
fund information of the City, as of June 30, 2013, and the respective changes in financial position, thereof 
for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America. 
 
Other Matters 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s 
discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison information, and schedule of funding progress, as listed 
in the accompanying table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such 
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the 
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied 
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of 
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion 
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with 
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
 
Other Information 
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial 
statements, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic 
financial statements. 
 
The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are the responsibility of management 
and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare 
the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in 
the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and 
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 
basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional 
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In 
our opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are fairly stated in all 
material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 
 
The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the 
audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on them. 
 
Implementation of New Pronouncement 
 
As discussed in Note 1 of the financial statements, the City adopted the provisions of GASB Statement 
No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net 
Position. 

-61-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



 

-3- 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated January 14, 
2014 on our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other 
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control 
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City’s internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance. 

 
San Bernardino, CA 
January 14, 2014 
 

-62-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf

~07T ul , 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page intentional left blank 

 
 
 
 
 

-63-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



-4- 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
 
 
As management of the City of Capitola, California, we offer readers of the City’s financial 
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2013. Readers are encouraged to consider the information presented here 
in conjunction with the accompanying letter of transmittal and the basic financial statements. 
 
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 
 
 
Government-Wide Highlights 
 

• The assets of the City exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year 
by $21.6 million (net position). Of this amount, $4.9 million (unrestricted net position) 
may be used to meet the City’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. 

 
• The total net position increased by $1,838,264 from FY 11/12.  This included a prior 

period adjustment of $1,427 related to the RDA dissolution; and a $1,836,837 increase 
in net position from governmental activities. 
 

• The City’s net capital assets decreased by $940,510 from the prior year. 
 

• The City’s long-term liabilities decreased by $904,607 from the prior year. 
 

• An extraordinary gain of $1,118,086 was recognized on the government wide financial 
statement.  This included a $1,349,000 million insurance settlement, net of $230,914 in 
attorney fees. 

 
Fund Highlights 
 

• The City’s governmental funds reported combined fund balances of $7.9 million, an 
increase of $43,042 from the prior year.  Of this amount, $2.0 million is reported as 
nonspendable, $1.6 million is assigned, and $2.8 million is available for spending at the 
City’s discretion. An additional $1.5 million is restricted for specific purposes by their 
providers through constitutional provisions or by enabling legislation. This is in 
compliance with Governmental Accounting Standard Board’s (GASB) Statement No. 54, 
Fund Balance Reporting and Government Fund Type Definitions, which is further 
described in Note 1, Section D10. 

 
• The $43,042 increase in the City’s governmental funds reported combined fund 

balances was primarily the net effect of approximately $1 million in expenditures related 
to the closure of Pacific Cove Mobile Home Park, and a $1.1 million extraordinary gain to 
recognize the net proceeds of an insurance settlement.  

 
• The Unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was $2.8 million or 25% of the total 

General Fund operating expenditures. 
  

-64-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



-5- 

 
OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
 
This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as the introduction to the City’s basic financial 
statements. The City’s basic financial statements are comprised of the following three 
components: (1) Government-Wide Financial Statements, (2) Fund Financial Statements, and 
(3) Notes to the Financial Statements. This report also contains supplementary information in 
addition to the basic financial statements. 
 
Government-Wide Financial Statements  
The Government-Wide Financial Statements are designed to provide readers with a broad 
overview of the City’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. 
 
The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the City’s assets and liabilities, with 
the differences between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in 
net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City is 
improving or deteriorating. 
 
The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the City’s net position changed 
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported, as soon as the 
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. 
Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result 
in cash flows in future fiscal periods. 
 
Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City of Capitola 
that are principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental 
activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their 
costs through users fees and charges (business-type activities).  The governmental activities of 
the City include general government, public safety, transportation, community development, and 
culture and recreation. The City does not have any business-type activities. 
 
The government-wide financial statements previously included the primary government 
activities; and one legally separate entity: The City of Capitola Redevelopment Agency (RDA). 
Due to the dissolution of the RDA, activities in the government-wide statements are now 
reported in a Private Purpose Trust Fund.  These activities were previously blended with those 
of the primary government because the City Council served as the governing board for each of 
these component units and the component units functioned as part of the City’s government. 
 
The Government-Wide Financial Statements can be found on pages 18-19 of this report. 
 
Fund Financial Statements 
A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that 
have been segregated for specific activities and objectives. The City, like other state and local 
governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related 
legal requirements. All of the funds of the City can be divided into two categories: governmental 
funds and fiduciary funds. 
 
Governmental Funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as 
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements, however governmental 
fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as 

-65-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



-6- 

well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such 
information may be useful in evaluating the City’s near-term financial requirements. 
 
Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial 
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar 
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.  
By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term 
financing decisions. Both the governmental funds balance sheet and the governmental funds 
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to 
facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities. 
 
The City maintains four major governmental funds: General Fund, Federal Home Loan Reuse, 
Capitola Housing Successor and Pacific Cove Debt Financing.  Information is presented 
separately in the governmental fund Balance Sheet and in the governmental fund Statement of 
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances.  Data from the other governmental 
funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation.  The City maintains seven internal 
service funds that provide goods and services solely for governmental activities. The activities 
are eliminated at the end of the fiscal year and any residual fund balances are combined with 
the General Fund. 
 
The City adopts an annual appropriated budget for all funds. A budgetary comparison statement 
is provided for each of the City’s governmental funds to demonstrate compliance with this 
budget. This comparison for the General Fund, Federal Home Loan Reuse Fund, and the 
Capitola Housing Successor are presented in the Required Supplementary Information section 
of this document. The budgetary comparison statements for the Budgeted Major Funds, Non-
Major Governmental Funds, and Fiduciary Funds are presented in the Supplementary 
Information Section of this report.   
 
The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 20-25 of this report. 
 
Fiduciary Funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside of the 
government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements 
because these resources are not available to support the City’s programs. The City is 
responsible for ensuring that the assets reported in these funds are used for their intended 
purpose. The Statement of Fiduciary Net Position and Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net 
Position are presented in the Basic Financial Statement section of this document. The City’s 
agency funds include: Brookvale Assessment District and Auto Center Assessment District. The 
Private Purpose Trust Fund includes the Successor Agency to the Capitola Redevelopment 
Agency.   
 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
The Notes to the basic financial statements provide additional information that is not essential to 
a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. 
The notes to the basic financial statements can be found on pages 29-64 of this report. 
 
Other Information 
In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents 
certain required supplementary information including the City of Capitola’s progress in funding 
the Capitola Retiree Health Plan, budget to actual comparisons, and statistics. This information 
can be found beginning on page 65 of this report. 
  

-66-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



-7- 

 
GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS  
 
 
 
As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of the City’s financial 
position. In the case of the City of Capitola, assets exceeded liabilities by $21.6 million at the 
close of the most recent fiscal year. 
 

2013 2012

Current and other assets $      17,138,332  $      13,643,385 
Capital assets         13,367,845          14,308,355 

Total Assets $      30,506,177  $      27,951,740 

Other liabilities           3,110,028            1,489,248 
Long term liabilities

Due in one year              663,578               621,475 
Due in more than one year           5,116,820            6,063,530 

Total Liabilities           8,890,426            8,174,253 

Net Position:
Net investment in capital assets         11,520,709          11,918,355 
Restricted           5,201,814            3,724,947 
Unrestricted           4,893,228            4,134,185 

Total Net Position, as restated $      21,615,751  $      19,777,487 

Governmental Activities

 
 
The largest portion of the City’s net position, $11.5 million or 53%, is reflected in its investment 
in capital assets (e.g., land, buildings, machinery, equipment, and infrastructure), less any 
related outstanding debt used to acquire those assets. The City uses these capital assets to 
provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets were not available for future spending. 
Although the City of Capitola‘s investment in capital assets is reported net of related debt, it 
should be noted that resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, 
since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. 
 
An additional portion of the City’s net position, $5.2 million or 24%, represented resources that 
were subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining $4.9 million or 
23%, of the City’s net position, were “unrestricted,” and may be used to meet the government’s 
ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. 
 
Further analysis is provided in the governmental activities section of this report. 
 

-67-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



-8- 

Governmental Activities  
Governmental activities increased the City of Capitola’s net position by $1,836,837. This 
increase is primarily due to an insurance settlement, the fourth quarter receipt of a new 0.25% 
sales tax, and increased economic performance. Each fiscal year contains unique grant 
revenues and extraordinary items; however in FY 12/13, core revenues were trending positive, 
with the City realizing reductions in salary and contract costs. The FY 12/13 beginning net 
position was restated to $19,778,914 due to a prior period adjustment of $1,427. The Statement 
of Changes in Net Position is provided below, followed by an explanation of key changes in FY 
12/13: 
 

2013 2012
Revenues
Program revenues:

Charges for services  $            3,033,589  $            3,880,665 
Operating contributions and grants                2,291,742                2,815,151 
Capital contributions and grants                       2,762                             -   

General revenues:
Taxes:

Property taxes                1,778,037                2,993,125 
Franchise taxes                   478,627                   482,782 
Sales and use taxes                6,040,542                5,200,303 
Transient occupancy taxes                1,074,507                   912,851 
Business license taxes                   291,642                   281,336 

Motor vehicle in-lieu, unrestricted                   240,891                   315,480 
Investment income                   230,166                   190,390 
Miscellaneous revenue                   398,320                   309,110 
Extraordinary items:

Disaster recovery                1,118,086                             -   
Flood disaster loss                             -                    (622,631)
Gain on dissolution of Redevelopment
  Agency                             -                  1,002,594 

Total revenues              16,978,911              17,761,156 

Expenses
General government                4,862,155                4,850,957 
Public safety                5,410,926                5,490,993 
Community development                   727,123                3,471,434 
Culture and recreation                1,397,858                1,009,568 
Transportation                2,456,455                2,556,293 
Interest and other charges                   287,557                   418,775 

Total expenses              15,142,074              17,798,020 

Change in Net Position 1,836,837               (36,864)                  

Ending Net Position, as restated  $          21,615,751  $          19,778,914 

Governmental Activities

-68-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



-9- 

 
Revenues 
As shown in the in the Statement of Changes in Net Position, revenues for FY 12/13 were $17.0 
million. The following graph includes program and general revenues and shows the percentage 
of governmental revenues by source:  
 

Charges for 
services, 18%

Operating 
contributions and 

grants, 13%

Property taxes, 
10%

Franchise taxes, 
3%

Sales and use 
taxes, 36%

Transient 
occupancy taxes, 

6%

Business license 
taxes, 2%

Motor vehicle in-
lieu, unrestricted,   

1%

Investment income, 
1%Gain on disposition 

of capital assets, 
1%

Miscellaneous 
revenue, 2%

Extraordinary item, 
7%

Sources of Revenue

 
These revenues represent a decrease of approximately of $782,245 over the prior year. This 
was primarily the result of the following factors: 
 

 Charges for Services – Reduction of $847,076 primarily due to increased 
development and one-time revenues in FY 11/12.  In FY 11/12, the City received 
additional building and planning revenues of $260,000; and $297,000 decrease in 
public art fees, which were largely associated with a major retail development.  In 
FY 12/13, this project was completed and revenues returned to a level that was 
more consistent with prior years.  In FY 11/12, the City also realized approximately 
$250,000 in one-time administrative RDA revenues.  This additional revenue was 
not available in FY 12/13.  Additional contributing factors include a $67,000 
decrease in recreational fees. 

 
 Grants and Contributions – Reduction of $523,409 resulting from a $1.1 million 

decrease in Community Development Operating Grants and Contributions, net of a 
deferred revenue adjustment.  In FY 11/12, the City received a $1.2 million grant 
received in FY 11/12 to fund the Bay Avenue Senior Housing Project, a 109 unit 
senior low income housing rehabilitation project.  In FY 12/13, General Government 
Operating Grants and Contributions increased by approximately $500,000.  This 
increase resulted from the net effect of FY 11/12 deferred revenue adjustments 
associated with the Housing Successor and the RDA dissolution process.   

 

-69-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



-10- 

 Property Taxes – Reduction of approximately $1.2 million in property tax revenues 
due to the dissolution of the RDA.  The General Government property taxes 
remained relatively constant.  Revenues to fund the former RDA’s obligations are 
now recorded in the Private Purpose Trust Fund. 

 
 Sales Tax Revenues – Increase of approximately $840,000 resulting from the 

opening of a major new retail store, $254,000 from the first quarter of Measure O 
receipts, and increased economic performance.  Measure O is a new 0.25% 
permanent sales tax that became effective in April of 2013.   

 
 Transient Occupancy Taxes – Increase of approximately $161,000 due to general 

economic improvement; and approximately $42,000 associated with a one-time 
internal hotel adjustment. 

 
 Extraordinary Items – In FY 12/13, the City received a $1,349,000 insurance 

settlement related to the 2011 storm drain failure.  Attorney fees of $230,914 
reduced the proceeds to $1,118,086.   In FY 11/12, the City realized a $1,002,594 
gain associated with the RDA dissolution, net of a $622,631 loss associated with a 
storm drain failure. 

 
Cost of Services 
 
Under GASB 34, program revenues are derived directly from programs or from parties outside 
the reporting government’s taxpayers or citizenry. These revenues reduce the net cost of the 
function to be financed from the government’s general revenues. General revenues are all other 
revenues not categorized as program revenues, and include taxes, unrestricted grants, 
contributions, investment earnings, and miscellaneous revenues. Total program revenues from 
governmental activities were $5.3 million. The table below presents the costs of each of the 
following City’s programs: 
 

Total Cost of Program  Net Cost of
Services Revenues Services

General government  $          4,862,155  $          2,839,815  $          2,022,340 
Public safety              5,410,926                 976,539              4,434,387 
Community development                 727,123                 632,393                   94,730 
Culture and recreation              1,397,858                 684,727                 713,131 
Transportation              2,456,455                 194,619              2,261,836 
Interest and other charges                 287,557                           -                   287,557 

Totals  $        15,142,074  $          5,328,093  $          9,813,981 
 

A description of each program is listed below: 
 

 General Government expenses comprise approximately 32% of all government 
expenses. This includes City Council, City Manager, City Clerk, City Attorney, 
Finance, Administrative Services, and Risk Management. These programs are offset 
by parking meter collections, grants, and administrative support fees. 

 
 Public Safety expenses comprise 36% of all governmental expenses. Revenues 

from fines, citations, grants, and animal services partially offset the cost of this 
program. 

-70-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



-11- 

 Community Development expenses comprise approximately 5% of all governmental 
expenses. Various building and planning fees, along with grant revenues, assist in 
funding these program costs. 

 
 Culture and Recreation expenses comprise over 9% of all governmental expenses. 

These programs are primarily funded through recreational classes and sports fees. 
 

 Transportation/Public Works expenses comprise 16% of all governmental expenses. 
This includes street, facility, park, and fleet maintenance; and oversight of the 
Pacific Cove Mobile Home Relocation Plan. Costs are partially offset by motor 
vehicle fuel taxes and various fees. 

 
 Interest expense comprises 2% of all governmental expenses. This interest expense 

is used to pay long-term debt obligations. 
 
Expenses  
 
As shown in the Statement of Changes in Net Position, expenditures decreased by 
approximately $2.7 million. This was primarily the result of $1.3 million in reduced Community 
Development grant funded activities in the HOME Grant and Housing Trust Funds.  In FY 12/13, 
most large scale housing subsidies were completed, with expenditures reflecting only ongoing 
program administration costs.  Additional Community Development reductions also occurred as 
a result of the RDA dissolution.  In FY 11/12, the former Low/Moderate Housing Fund expended 
$1.3 million in Housing Loan and Subsidies, along with administrative costs.  In FY 12/13, the 
Capitola Housing Successor budget was limited to funding expenses from loan proceeds.  
These amounts were offset by reduced Transportation spending of $100,000 related to the 
Pacific Cove park closure; $152,520 in decreased interest costs associated with the former 
RDA; and $300,000 in increased expenditures for a fee-funded public art project.    
 
A distribution of expenses by Function is provided below: 
 

General 
Government,  
$4,862,155 

Public Safety,  
$5,410,926 

Community 
Development,  

$727,123 

Culture and 
Recreation,  
$1,397,858 

Transportation,  
$2,456,455 

Interest and Other 
Charges,  $287,557 

Functional Expense

 

-71-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



-12- 

Financial Analysis of the City’s Funds 
As noted earlier, the City of Capitola uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate 
compliance with finance-related legal requirements. 
 
Governmental Funds 
The focus of the City of Capitola’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term 
inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing 
the City of Capitola’s financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve 
as a useful measure of a government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the 
fiscal year. 
 
At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Capitola’s governmental funds reported a 
combined ending fund balance of $7.9 million, an increase of $43,042 in comparison with the 
prior fiscal year. Approximately $2.0 million is reported as nonspendable, $1.6 million is 
assigned to Emergency Reserves and the Capital Projects Fund; and $2.8 million is available 
for spending at the City’s discretion.  An additional $1.5 million is restricted for specific 
purposes, which includes $414,853 in debt proceeds to continue the Pacific Cove Mobile Home 
Park project. 
 
General Fund 
The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City of Capitola. At the end of the current 
fiscal year, the total fund balance was $5.4 million.  This represents an increase of $860,851 or 
18.8% over the prior year.  Approximately 52% was unassigned fund balance, which was 
available for spending at the government’s discretion. The majority of the nonspendable balance 
relates to loans due from the Successor Agency. This includes a Purchase Agreement for the 
Rispin Property in the amount of $1.35 million and a $618,028 Loan and Cooperative 
Agreement that was used to establish the Redevelopment Agency. Additional information 
regarding these two agreements can be found in Note 15. 
 
It should be noted that the presentation of the General Fund in the City’s budget document is 
different than its presentation in the Governmental Fund Financial Statements.  This is primarily 
due the consolidation of the following funds for financial statement reporting purposes: General 
Fund, Contingency Reserve, Emergency Reserve, Open Spaces, General Plan Update and 
Maintenance; Stores, Information Technology, Equipment Replacement, Self-Insurance 
Liability, Workers Compensation, PERS, and Compensated Absences.   
  

-72-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



-13- 

Reconciliation between the operating activities of the City budget documents to the 
Governmental General Fund Financial Statements is presented below: 
 

 
Federal Home Loan Reuse 
The Federal Home Loan Reuse fund receives loan payments from recipients of HOME Program 
loans; and uses these revenues to fund additional affordable housing activities. All housing 
funded activities must be within the City and be in accordance with the Federal Home Reuse 
Guidelines. The FY12/13 revenues represent the receipt of principal and interest payments 
related to the Wharf Road Manor Homeowner’s Association Loan Program. 
 
Capitola Housing Successor 
This fund is used to account for the assets of the former RDA Low and Moderate Income Fund; 
and related housing activities. The funds are restricted in their use, reuse, and repayment 
pursuant to the original program requirements.  It is anticipated that as loan payments are 
received, the revenue generated would provide a funding source for new housing assistance 
programs.  Additional information regarding this transition can be found in Note 15.   
 
Pacific Cove Debt Financing 
The Pacific Cove Debt Financing Fund is used to account for the debt proceeds and the 
corresponding expenditures for the Pacific Cove Mobile Home Park Relocation Plan. This fund 
is also used for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, long-term debt principal, 
interest, and related costs of the City’s long term debt. In FY 11/12, the City received debt 
proceeds of $2.39 million to fund park closure costs.  In FY 12/13, the City spent $1,006,010 on 
continued park closure activities, which included the purchase of coaches, professional 
services, and maintenance.  It is anticipated that $414,853 of the remaining fund balance will be 
used in FY13/14 to complete the park closure. 
  

City Budget 
Documents

General Plan / 
Open Space

Emergency / 
Contingency 

Reserve
Internal 

Service Fund
Financial 

Statements

Beginning Fund Balance, as Restated 2,534,083$   260,107$       560,942$      1,223,217$ 4,578,349$   

Revenues 12,944,385$ 115,342$       -$             -$           13,059,727$ 
Expenditures 11,579,843   221,702         90               (402,271)     11,399,364   
Net Operating Difference 1,364,542$   (106,360)$      (90)$             402,271$    1,660,363$   

Financing Sources/Uses (2,289,224)$  -$              1,231,500$   (859,874)$   (1,917,598)$  
Extraordinary Item 1,118,086     -                -              -             1,118,086     
Net Change in Fund Balance 193,404        (106,360)        1,231,410     (457,603)     860,851        

Ending Fund Balance 2,727,487$   153,747$       1,792,352$   765,614$    5,439,200$   

-73-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



-14- 

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS 
 
 
A detailed budgetary comparison schedule for the year ended June 30, 2013 is presented as 
Required Supplementary Information following the notes to the financial statements. This 
information can be found on page 66.  Key budgetary differences are provided below. 
 
Revenues:   
Revenues exceeded the Final Budget by approximately $217,673.  Key factors relating to the 
increase include:  Sales tax receipts of approximately $130,000 in the final two quarters; and 
$110,000 increased TOT tax revenues, increased performance in building licenses and building 
permits of $86,787, net of $103,000 in Intergovernmental Revenues that consisted of carry-
forward Police Department grants. 
 
Expenses: 
Expenses prior to transfers and the extraordinary item were approximately $511,078 below the 
Amended budget.  This was primarily the result of the following factors: 
 

• General Government savings of approximately $149,000:  This savings resulted 
primarily from the carry-forward of an $89,000 General Plan contract; combined with 
$50,000 in net salary and contract savings.  

 
• Public Safety savings of approximately $248,000:  This savings was achieved from 

$138,000 in salary savings related to overtime and position vacancies; a $42,000 
grant carry-forward, and $48,000 in contract savings primarily related to State and 
County processing fees.   

 
• Community Development and Transportation savings of approximately $102,000.  

This was primarily related to $45,000 in salary savings related to transitions within 
each department; and $58,000 contracts for maintenance and repairs; and supplies. 

 
Appropriations: 
Variances between the Original and Final budgets are primarily due to the inclusion of 
continuing appropriations for special projects from the prior year; appropriation for revenues 
associated with a 0.25% voter-approved sales tax measure; and recognition of an extraordinary 
item. 
  

-74-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



-15- 

Fund Balance: 
The General Fund Ending Fund Balance was $5,439,200 as of June 30, 2013. This amount was 
$728,751 greater than the final budget projection based on the revenue and expenditure 
information noted above. The Unassigned amounts identified as Contingency and Emergency 
reserves are provided for reference. An additional discussion of the City’s Contingency and 
Emergency reserves can be found in the Financial Management Policies section of the 
Transmittal letter. 
 

 
CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 
 
 
Capital Assets 
The City’s value of governmental assets (net of accumulated depreciation) at the end of FY 
12/13 was $13,367,845. This investment in capital assets includes land, building, equipment, 
vehicles, and infrastructure. The infrastructure classification typically includes roads, streets, 
sidewalks, medians, and bridges. The total decrease in the City of Capitola’s investment in 
capital assets for the current fiscal year was 6.6% or $940,510. This decrease includes 
approximately $449,000 related to depreciation expense, $213,000 for the disposal of parking 
meters that are scheduled to be retrofitted with pay stations; and $321,000 related to the 
disposal of City-owned mobile homes in conjunction with the Pacific Cove Mobile Home Park.  
 
Additional information on the City of Capitola’s capital assets can be found in Note 4 to the 
financial statements. 
 

 
  

Fund balance:
Nonspendable:

Prepaid items  $             56,177 
Due from successor agency            1,968,028 

Assigned:
Emergency reserve               569,706 

Unassigned:
Contingencies            1,222,646 
Unassigned            1,622,643 

Total fund balance  $        5,439,200 

Governmental Activities

Land  $          3,844,909 
Buildings and improvements              2,778,269 
Equipment              2,688,523 
Infrastructure            24,257,833 
Construction in progress                 724,389 
Depreciation          (20,926,078)

Total fixed assets  $        13,367,845 

-75-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



-16- 

Long-Term Debt 
The City’s long-term debt at the end of FY12/13 was $5,780,398.  This represents a reduction of 
$904,607 or 13.5% when compared to FY 11/12.  Significant changes include a $485,000 
payment on the 2007 Pension Obligation Bonds and a $542,000 payment on the Capital Lease.  
The capital lease payments include a regular principal payment of $66,664, and an additional 
contribution of $476,177 that was prefunded with a portion of the insurance settlement 
proceeds.  This debt reduction was offset by increases in the Compensated Absences and Net 
OPEB obligations.   
 
An overview of all long-term obligations is presented below; while comprehensive information 
can be found in Note 6.  
 

 
 
 
ECONOMIC FACTORS, NEXT YEAR’S BUDGETS, AND RATES 
 
 
On June 13, 2013, the Council adopted the FY 13/14 Budget, with a total appropriation of $21 
million, and a General Fund appropriation of $13.7 million. Adequate resources were projected 
to be available to fund the proposed expenditures. The General Fund budget reflects a 
conservative growth estimate with sales tax revenues anticipated to increase by 2%; prior to the 
addition of Measure O sales tax receipts.  A similar increase was projected for TOT taxes; while 
property taxes were estimated to be relatively stable. The $1 million in Measure O sales tax 
receipts have been appropriated with an equivalent amount of expenditures that are consistent 
with the ballot’s stated priorities.  The Measure O priorities include CIP/Street projects, reserves, 
and public safety initiatives. 
 
Additional cost-control measures included negotiating new contracts with all bargaining units, 
which retain a cap on the City’s share of pension payments. This strategy has proven to assist 
the City in maintaining relatively flat payroll expenses over the last few years; while also 
insulating the City from projected rising pension costs. 
 
Prospects for the Future 
 
Measure O sales tax revenues are projected to fully fund reserves at their increased levels in 
FY 15/16; while also allowing the City to complete necessary street projects.  Current multi-year 
projections indicate that if operating revenues and expenditures remain relatively constant, the 
 

Governmental Activities

Bonds Payable:
2007 POB Bonds  $          2,890,000 

Loans Payable:
Capital Lease Payable - Pacific Cove              1,847,136 
Notes Payable                   35,136 
Compensated absences                 648,413 
Net OPEB Obligation                 359,713 

Total  $          5,780,398 

-76-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



-17- 

City would not be impacted by the loss of expiring Measure D sales tax revenues in December 
of 2017.  Additional concerns include the potential loss of the $250,000 Successor Agency 
Administrative Allowance in FY 14/15; however due to increased performance in core revenues, 
no structural action has been taken.  The City will continue to monitor financial trends and adjust 
the two-year budget as needed.   
 
Opportunities for development include converting the vacant Pacific Cove Mobile Home Park to 
a parking lot that would provide much-needed parking to the Capitola Village and Beach.  This 
$2.39 million additional parking lot is anticipated to provide traffic calming measures in the 
summer, as well as facilitate development of a hotel within the Capitola Village.  The City is also 
proposing the placement of a multi-use park on the City-owned McGregor property. This park is 
anticipated to be funded with proceeds from the insurance settlement and local contributions.   
 
The City has successfully completed the current RDA dissolution and Assembly Bill 1484 (AB 
1484) reporting and audit requirements; however there is still some uncertainty regarding 
whether the City will receive compensation for $1.9 million in loans made to the former RDA.  
The City has not incorporated interest revenues into the forecast budgets; however the City is 
cautiously optimistic about recovering the principal or the related property through the AB 1484 
loan reinstatement process, or through legal actions.  Additional information can be found in the 
Transmittal, as well as Note 15. 
 
Local, State, and National Economy 
 
In 2008, events in the local, state, and national economies led to a significant downturn in 
financial markets.  In FY 11/12, there were beginning signs of economic recovery, with 
increased sales tax, TOT tax, and an increasing demand for building/planning services.   In FY 
12/13, this trend continued with Capitola’s annual sales tax and transient occupancy tax levels 
rising by over 11%; increased home sales and prices; and a reduction in unemployment rates.  
This trend is consistent with the statewide economic conditions and the Conference Board’s 
June 2013 survey, which indicated that national consumer confidence levels were at a five-year 
high. 
 
Requests for Information 
 
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City's finances and to 
demonstrate the City's accountability for its fiscal activities to citizens, taxpayers, investors, 
creditors, and any other interested parties.  If you have questions about this report or need 
additional information, contact the City Manager, City of Capitola at 420 Capitola Avenue, 
Capitola, California 95010. 

-77-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
 

-78-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page intentionally left blank 

 
 
 

-79-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



Governmental
Activities

ASSETS
Cash and investments 5,626,509$         
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for uncollectibles 100,997              
Due from other governments 1,715,065           
Due from successor agency 1,968,028           
Loans receivable 7,543,485           
Debt issuance costs 128,071              
Prepaids 56,177                
Capital assets:

Non-depreciable:
Land 3,844,909           
Construction in progress 724,389              

Depreciable:
Equipment 2,688,523           
Buildings and improvements 2,778,269           
Infrastructure 24,257,833         
Accumulated depreciation (20,926,078)        

Total Assets 30,506,177         

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 591,341              
Accrued liabilities 232,552              
Interest payable 87,599                
Deposits payable 282,906              
Unearned revenue 1,915,630           
Noncurrent liabilities:

Due within one year 663,578              
Due in more than one year 5,116,820           

Total Liabilities 8,890,426           

Net Position
Net investment in capital assets 11,520,709         
Restricted for:

Public safety 100,622              
Transportation 1,513,046           
Community development 3,510,779           
Culture and recreation 77,367                

Unrestricted 4,893,228           

Total Net Position 21,615,751$        

June 30, 2013
Statement of Net Position

CITY OF CAPITOLA

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
-18-

-80-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



Net (Expense)
Revenue and
Changes in  
Net Position

Charges Operating Capital
for Grants and Grants and Governmental 

Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities
Governmental activities:

General government 4,862,155$      947,834$         1,891,981$     -$              (2,022,340)$     
Public safety 5,410,926        731,831           241,946          2,762            (4,434,387)       
Community development 727,123           523,566           108,827          -                (94,730)            
Culture and recreation 1,397,858        684,727           -                  -                (713,131)          
Transportation 2,456,455        145,631           48,988            -                (2,261,836)       
Interest and other charges 287,557           -                  -                  -                (287,557)          

Total Governmental Activities 15,142,074$    3,033,589$     2,291,742$    2,762$          (9,813,981)     

General Revenues:
Taxes:

Property taxes 1,778,037        
Franchise taxes 478,627           
Sales and use taxes 6,040,542        
Transient occupancy taxes 1,074,507        
Business license taxes 291,642           

Motor vehicle in-lieu, unrestricted 240,891           
Investment income 131,166           
Gain on disposition of capital assets 99,000             
Miscellaneous revenue 398,320           

Extraordinary Item:
Disaster recovery 1,118,086        

Total General Revenues and Extraordinary Item 11,650,818      

Change in Net Position 1,836,837        

Net Position, Beginning of Year, as Restated 19,778,914      

Net Position, End of Year 21,615,751$    

Program Revenues

Year Ended June 30, 2013
Statement of Activities

CITY OF CAPITOLA

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
-19-

-81-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



 

 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
 
 

 
Major Governmental Funds 
 

GENERAL FUND 
 

The General Fund accounts for all financial resources except those to be accounted for in another 
fund. It is the general operating fund for the City. 

 
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

 
Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are 
restricted or committed to expenditures for specific purposes other than debt service and capital 
projects.  The following funds have been classified as major funds: 
 
Federal Home Loan Reuse Fund - This fund accounts for housing loan principal and interest 
payments that will be available for a similar future federal program. 
 
Capitola Housing Successor Fund - This fund is used to account for the assets of the former RDA 
Low and Moderate Income Fund; and related housing activities.  The funds are restricted in their 
use, reuse, and repayment pursuant to the original program requirements.  It is anticipated that as 
loan payments are received, the revenue generated would fund new housing activities. 
 

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS 
 

Debt Service Funds are used to account for all financial resources that are restricted, committed, or 
assigned to expenditure for principal, interest and related costs. The following fund has been 
classified as a major fund: 
 
Pacific Cove Debt Financing Fund - This fund is used to account for the debt proceeds and the 
corresponding expenditures for the Pacific Cove Mobile Home Park Relocation Plan.  This fund is 
also used for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, long-term debt principal, 
interest, and related costs of the long-term debt issued by the City.  
 
 

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
 

Other Governmental Funds - These funds constitute all other governmental funds that do not meet 
the GASB Statement No. 34 major fund test of assets, liabilities, revenues or expenditures for the 
governmental funds.  These funds consist of other Special Revenue Funds, a Debt Service Fund 
and a Capital Projects Fund of the City for the year ended. 

-82-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



Special Revenue
Fund

Federal
Home

General Loan Reuse
ASSETS

Cash and investments 2,980,846$             23,221$                  
Accounts receivable 41,055                    -                          
Due from other governments 1,682,861               -                          
Due from other funds (note 3) 36,203                    -                          
Due from successor agency 1,968,028               -                          
Loans receivable -                          3,750,992               
Prepaids 56,177                    -                          

Total Assets 6,765,170$            3,774,213$             

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Accounts payable 460,950$                -$                        
Accrued liabilities 230,401                  -                          
Deferred revenue 396,547                  3,750,992               
Due to other funds -                          -                          
Deposits payable 238,072                  -                          

Total Liabilities 1,325,970               3,750,992               

Fund balances:
Nonspendable 2,024,205 -                          
Restricted -                          23,221                    
Assigned 569,706                  -                          
Unassigned 2,845,289 -                          

Total Fund Balances 5,439,200               23,221                    

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 6,765,170$            3,774,213$             

June 30, 2013
Balance Sheet

Governmental Funds
CITY OF CAPITOLA

-20-
-83-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



Special Revenue Debt Service 
Fund Fund

Capitola Pacific Non-Major
Housing Cove Governmental

Successor Debt Financing Funds Totals

80,437$                415,879$              2,126,126$            5,626,509$            
-                        -                        59,942                  100,997                
-                        120                       32,084                  1,715,065             
-                        -                        -                        36,203                  
-                        -                        -                        1,968,028             

3,469,017             -                        323,476                7,543,485             
-                        -                        -                        56,177                  

3,549,454$            415,999$             2,541,628$           17,046,464$          

240$                     1,146$                  129,005$              591,341$              
-                        -                        2,151                    232,552                

3,469,017             -                        323,476                7,940,032             
-                        -                        36,203                  36,203                  
-                        -                        44,834                  282,906                

3,469,257             1,146                    535,669                9,083,034             

-                        -                        -                        2,024,205             
80,197                  414,853                978,394                1,496,665             

-                        -                        1,046,245             1,615,951             
-                        -                        (18,680)                 2,826,609             

80,197                  414,853                2,005,959             7,963,430             

3,549,454$            415,999$             2,541,628$           17,046,464$          

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
-21-

-84-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page intentionally left blank 

 
 

-85-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



Fund balances of governmental funds 7,963,430$           

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position 
are different because:

Capital assets net of depreciation have not been included in governmental
fund activity:

Capital assets 34,293,923           
Accumulated depreciation (20,926,078)          

Long term debt has not been included in the governmental fund activity:

Notes payable (35,136)                
Bonds payable (4,737,136)            
Compensated absences (648,413)               
Net OPEB Obligation (359,713)               
Accrued interest payable (87,599)                

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period
expenditures and, therefore, are deferred in the funds.

Long-term receivables 6,024,402             
Deferred charges 128,071                

Net position of governmental activities 21,615,751$         

Governmental Funds to the Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2013

Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of

CITY OF CAPITOLA
Governmental Funds

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
-22-

-86-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



Special Revenue
Fund

Federal
Home

General Loan Reuse
REVENUES

Taxes 9,371,712$              -$                         
Licenses and permits 501,587                   -                           
Fines and forfeitures 688,272                   -                           
Intergovernmental 558,773                   -                           
Charges for services 1,717,547                -                           
Use of money and property 24,858                     15,014                     
Other revenue 196,978                   -                           

Total Revenues 13,059,727              15,014                     

EXPENDITURES
Current:

General government 2,835,749                -                           
Public safety 5,248,766                -                           
Community development 476,854                   -                           
Culture and recreation 905,088                   -                           
Transportation 1,932,907                -                           

Capital outlay -                           -                           
D bt i

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Year Ended June 30, 2013

CITY OF CAPITOLA
Governmental Fund Types

Debt service:
Debt issuance costs -                           -                           
Principal -                           -                           
Interest and fiscal charges -                           -                           

Total Expenditures 11,399,364              -                           

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
over (Under) Expenditures 1,660,363                15,014                     

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 99,000                     -                           
Transfers in -                           -                           
Transfers out (2,016,598)               -                           

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (1,917,598)               -                           

EXTRAORDINARY ITEM
Disaster recovery 1,118,086                -                           

Total Extraordinary Item 1,118,086                -                           

Net Change in Fund Balances 860,851                   15,014                     

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year, as Restated 4,578,349                8,207                       

Fund Balances, End of Year 5,439,200$              23,221$                   

-23-
-87-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



Special Revenue Debt Service  
Fund Fund

Capitola Pacific Non-Major
Housing Cove Governmental

Successor Debt Financing Funds Totals

-$                        -$                        235,663$                9,607,375$             
-                          -                          18,704                    520,291                  
-                          -                          -                          688,272                  
-                          -                          278,381                  837,154                  
-                          -                          143,982                  1,861,529               

82,771                    2,263                      110,439                  235,345                  
999                         -                          39,664                    237,641                  

83,770                    2,263                      826,833                  13,987,607             

-                          1,006,010               23,411                    3,865,170               
-                          -                          119,911                  5,368,677               

5,000                      -                          230,079                  711,933                  
-                          -                          213,257                  1,118,345               
-                          -                          224,209                  2,157,116               
-                          -                          551,206                  551,206                  

-                          37,810                    -                          37,810                    
-                          542,864                  488,113                  1,030,977               
-                          134,451                  185,966                  320,417                  

5,000                      1,721,135               2,036,152               15,161,651             

78,770                    (1,718,872)              (1,209,319)              (1,174,044)              

-                          -                          -                          99,000                    
-                          701,124                  1,450,274               2,151,398               
-                          -                          (134,800)                 (2,151,398)              

-                          701,124                  1,315,474               99,000                    

-                          -                          -                          1,118,086               

-                          -                          -                          1,118,086               

78,770                    (1,017,748)              106,155                  43,042                    

1,427                      1,432,601               1,899,804               7,920,388               

80,197$                  414,853$                2,005,959$             7,963,430$             

-24-
-88-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds 43,042$                    

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities 
are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in 
the statement of activities, the costs of those assets is allocated over 
their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense. This is the amount 
by which depreciation exceeded capital outlays in the current period.

Capital outlays 306,472                    
Depreciation (951,577)                  
Loss on disposal of assets (295,405)                  

Repayment of debt service principal and capital lease liabilities are 
expenditures in the governmental funds but the repayment reduces 
long-term liabilities in the statement of net position. 1,030,977                 

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to
governmental funds.  This transaction, however, does not have an
effect on net position.  Also, governmental funds report the effect of
issuance costs, premiums, discounts and similar items when debt
is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized
in the statement of activities.

Long-term debt issuance costs 37,810                      

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require 
the use of current financial resources and, therefore,  are not 
reported as expenditures in governmental funds.

Amortization of issuance costs (15,190)                    
Change in compensated absences payable (57,788)                    
Change in OPEB (68,582)                    
Change in accrued interest expense 32,860                      

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current 
financial resources are not reported as revenues in the funds.

Grant revenues 1,774,218                 

Change in net position of governmental activities 1,836,837$               

Year Ended June 30, 2013

and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Activities

CITY OF CAPITOLA
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
-25-

-89-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



Private 
Purpose

Trust Fund Agency Fund

ASSETS
Cash and investments 3,386$                 36,237$               
Accounts receivable 586,012               -                       
Capital assets: 

Land 1,038,880            -                       
Building and improvements 311,814               -                       

Total Assets 1,940,092            36,237$               

LIABILITIES 
Deposits -                       36,237$               
Long-term liabilities (note 15):

Due within one year 250,243               -                       
Due in more than one year 2,244,054            -                       

Total Liabilities 2,494,297            36,237$               

NET POSITION (DEFICIT)
Held in trust for successor agency and

June 30, 2013
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position

CITY OF CAPITOLA
Fiduciary Funds

Held in trust for successor agency and
 other purposes (554,205)              

Total Net Position (Deficit) (554,205)$            

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
-26-

-90-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



Private 
Purpose

Trust Fund
ADDITIONS
  RPTTF distributions 1,120,077$          
  Investment earnings 56                        
  Other revenue 200,415               

 Total additions 1,320,548            

DEDUCTIONS
  Administrative allowance 250,000               
  Other payments 339,455               
  Debt service: 

  Interest 21,243                 

 Total deductions 610,698               

Change in net position 709,850               
Net position (deficit), beginning of the period, as restated (1,264,055)           

Net position (deficit), end of the period (554,205)$            

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
Year Ended June 30, 2013

CITY OF CAPITOLA
Fiduciary Funds

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
-27-

-91-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES............................................................. 29

A. Description of Reporting Entity.................................................................................................. 29
B. Basis of Presentation................................................................................................................. 29
C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation................... 30
D. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position or Equity............................................................................ 32

1) Cash and Investments ....................................................................................................... 32
2) Receivables and Payables.................................................................................................. 32
3) Property Taxes.................................................................................................................. 32
4) Capital Assets.................................................................................................................. 33
5) Prepaid Items................................................................................................................... 34
6) Deferred Revenue.............................................................................................................. 34
7) Compensated Absences.................................................................................................... 35
8) Reclassification and Eliminations........................................................................................ 35
9) Use of Estimates .............................................................................................................. 35
10) Fund Equity ..................................................................................................................... 35
11) Implementation of New Pronouncement............................................................................. 36

NOTE 2 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS........................................................................................................... 37

NOTE 3 – INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS..................................................... 41

NOTE 4 – CAPITAL ASSETS.......................................................................................................................... 42

NOTE 5 – OTHER ASSETS........................................................................................................................... 43

NOTE 6 – LONG TERM DEBT........................................................................................................................ 44

NOTE 7 – FUND BALANCE CLASSIFICATIONS........................................................................................... 47

NOTE 8 – OTHER REQUIRED DISCLOSURES............................................................................................. 47

NOTE 9 – RISK MANAGEMENT……………………………............................................................................. 47

NOTE 10 – JOINT VENTURES......................................................................................................................... 48

NOTE 11 – CITY'S EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT PLAN.................................................................................. 50

NOTE 12 – PUBLIC AGENCY RETIREMENT PLAN........................................................................................ 52

NOTE 13 – OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS.................................................................................... 53

NOTE 14 – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES....................................................................... 56

NOTE 15 – SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE FORMER CAPITOLA REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY.............. 56

NOTE 16 – RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES....................................................................................................... 62

NOTE 17 – EXTRAORDINARY ITEM............................................................................................................... 63

NOTE 18 – PRIOR PERIOD RESTATEMENT.................................................................................................. 63

City of Capitola
Index to Notes to Financial Statements

Year Ended June 30, 2013

-28- -92-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page intentionally left blank 

 
 

-93-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



CITY OF CAPITOLA 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2013 
 
 

-29- 

1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 

A) Description of Reporting Entity 
 
The City of Capitola (the City) was incorporated in 1949 under the laws of the State of 
California.  Capitola is a General Law City and is subject to the framework and 
procedures established by State law.  The City operates under the Council-City 
Manager form of government. The City provides police protection, street, park and 
facilities maintenance; recreation, building, planning, zoning, administrative, and 
financial services for Capitola.  Independent special districts provide fire protection, 
water, sewer, and drainage services. 

 
B) Basis of Presentation 

 
The City’s basic financial statements are prepared in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board is the acknowledged standard setting body for establishing 
accounting and financial reporting standards followed by governmental entities in the 
United States of America. 
 
Government-Wide Financial Statements: The government-wide financial statements 
(i.e., the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities) report information on 
all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government and its component units. For 
the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. 
Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental 
revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a 
significant extent on fees and charges for support.  All City activities are governmental; 
no business-type activities are reported in the statements. 
 
The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a 
given function or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are 
expenses that are clearly identifiable with a specific program, project, function or 
segment. Program revenues of the City include: 1) charges to customers or applicants 
who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a 
given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting 
the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and 
other items that are properly not included among program revenues are reported 
instead as general revenues. 
 
Fund Financial Statements: Separate financial statements are provided for 
governmental funds and fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the 
government-wide financial statements. Major individual governmental funds are 
reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements. 

-94-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



CITY OF CAPITOLA 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2013 
 
 

-30- 

1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued) 
 

C) Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 
 
The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when 
earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing 
of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which 
they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all 
eligibility requirements imposed by the providers have been met. 
 
Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial 
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues 
are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are 
considered to be available when they are collected within the current period or soon 
enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the City 
considers the majority of revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of 
the end of the current fiscal period.  The City’s only exception to this timeline is Sales 
Tax receipts.  Sales Tax is recorded in the period it is earned, which results in a 90 day 
accrual on this revenue. 
 
Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual 
accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to 
compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is 
due. 
 
Property taxes, sales taxes, transient occupancy taxes, franchise taxes, and interest 
associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual, 
and are therefore recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. Only the portion 
of special assessments receivable due within the current fiscal period is considered to 
be susceptible to accrual as revenue of the current period. All other revenue items are 
considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the City. 
 

-95-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



CITY OF CAPITOLA 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2013 
 
 

-31- 

1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued) 
 

C) Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation, 
(continued) 

 
The City reports the following major governmental funds: 
 
General Fund 
 
The General Fund accounts for all financial resources except those to be accounted for 
in another fund. It is the general operating fund for the City. 
 
Federal Home Loan Reuse Fund 
 
The Federal Home Loan Reuse Fund accounts for housing loan principal and interest 
payments that will be available for a similar future federal program. 
 
Capitola Housing Successor Fund 
 
This Capitola Housing Successor Fund is used to account for the assets of the former 
RDA Low and Moderate Income Fund; and related housing activities.  The funds are 
restricted in their use, reuse, and repayment pursuant to the original program 
requirements.  It is anticipated that as loan payments are received, the revenue 
generated would provide a funding source for new housing assistance programs. 
 
Pacific Cove Debt Financing Fund 
 
The Pacific Cove Debt Financing Fund is used to account for the debt proceeds and the 
corresponding expenditures for the Pacific Cove Mobile Home Park Relocation Plan.  
This fund is also used for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, long-
term debt principal, interest, and related costs of the long-term debt issued by the City.   
 
Agency Funds 
 
The Agency Funds are used to account for assets held by the City in a trustee capacity 
or as an agent for individuals, private organizations, other governmental units, and/or 
other funds. The City maintains the following two Agency funds as an agent for 
bondholders:  Brookvale Assessment District and Auto Center Assessment District. 
 
Private Purpose Trust Funds 
 
The Private Purpose Trust Fund accounts for the activities of the City of Capitola as 
Successor Agency to the Capitola Redevelopment Agency.  The Successor Agency’s 
primary purpose is to expedite the dissolution of the former Redevelopment Agency’s 
assets in accordance with AB X1 26 and AB 1484.   

-96-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



CITY OF CAPITOLA 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2013 
 
 

-32- 

1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued) 
 

D) Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position or Equity 
 

1) Cash and Investments 
 
Investments are reported in the accompanying balance sheet at fair market value, 
except for nonparticipating certificates of deposit and investment contracts that would 
be reported at cost because they are not transferable and they have terms that are not 
affected by changes in market interest rates. 
 
Changes in fair market value that occur during a fiscal year are recognized as 
investment income reported for that fiscal year. Investment income includes interest 
earnings, changes in fair market value, and any gains or losses realized upon the 
liquidation, maturity, or sale of investments. 
 
The City pools cash and investments of all funds. Each fund’s share in this pool is 
displayed in the accompanying financial statements as cash and investments. 
 
The City pools idle cash from all funds in order to increase income earned through its 
investment program. Investment income from pooled investments is allocated to those 
funds that are required by law or administrative action to receive interest. Investment 
income is allocated on a monthly basis based on the cash balance in each fund. 

 
2) Receivables and Payables 
 
Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements 
outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either “due to/from other 
funds” (i.e., the current portion of interfund loans) or “advances to/from other funds” 
(i.e., the non-current portion of interfund loans).  

 
Noncurrent portions of long-term interfund loan receivables are reported as advances 
and such amounts are offset equally by a fund balance reserve account that indicates 
they do not constitute expendable available financial resources and therefore are not 
available for appropriation. 
 
3) Property Taxes 
 
California Constitution Article XIII A, limits the combined property tax rate to one percent 
of a property’s assessed valuation. Additional taxes may be imposed with voter 
approval. Assessed value is calculated at one hundred percent of a property’s fair 
value, as defined by Article XIII A, and may be increased no more than two percent per 
year unless a change in ownership occurs. The state legislature has determined the 
method of distributing the one percent tax levy among the various taxing jurisdictions. 

-97-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



CITY OF CAPITOLA 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2013 
 
 

-33- 

1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued) 
 

D) Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position or Equity, (continued) 
 
3) Property Taxes (continued) 
 
Property tax revenues are recognized in the fiscal year for which taxes have been 
levied, and collected within sixty days of fiscal year end. Property taxes are billed and 
collected as follows: 
 
 Secured Unsecured 
Valuation/Lien Date(s) January 1 January 1 
Levy Date(s) July 1 July 1 
Due Date(s) November 1 (50%) 

February 1 (50%) 
August 1 

Delinquency Date(s) December 10 (Nov.) 
April 10 (Feb.) 

August 31 

 
The City adopted an alternative method of property tax distribution (the “Teeter Plan”). 
Under this method, the City receives 100% of its secured property tax levied in 
exchange for foregoing any interest and penalties collected on delinquent taxes. The 
City receives payments as a series of advances made by the County throughout the 
fiscal year. The secured property tax levy is recognized as revenue upon receipt 
including the final payment, which generally is received within 60 days after the fiscal 
year. 

 
4) Capital Assets 
 
All capital assets are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual 
historical cost is not available. Contributed capital assets are valued at their estimated 
fair value on the date contributed. City policy is to capitalize all tangible property with a 
useful life of two or more years and a cost or assigned valued exceeding $5,000, with 
the exception of infrastructure valued at $50,000 or more. 
 
With the implementation of GASB Statement No. 34, the City recorded all its public 
domain (infrastructure) capital assets placed in service after June 30, 1980, which 
include roads, bridges, curbs and gutters, streets and sidewalks, drainage systems, and 
lighting systems. 

 

-98-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



CITY OF CAPITOLA 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2013 
 
 

-34- 

1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued) 
 
D) Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position or Equity, (continued) 

 
4) Capital Assets (continued) 
 
The purpose of depreciation is to spread the cost of capital assets equitably among all 
users over the life of these assets. The amount charged to depreciation expense each 
fiscal year represents that fiscal year’s pro rata share of the cost of capital assets. 
GASB Statement No. 34 requires that all capital assets with limited useful lives be 
depreciated over the estimated useful lives. Deprecation is provided using the straight 
line method which means the cost of the assets is divided by its expected useful life in 
years and the result is charged to expense each fiscal year until the assets are fully 
depreciated. The City has assigned the useful lives listed below to capital assets. 
 

Structures and Improvements 50 years 
Equipment 5 – 25 years 
Infrastructure 15 – 50 years 

 
5) Prepaid Items 
 
Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and 
are reported as prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements. 
The City accounts for such items using the consumption method. 
 
6) Deferred Revenue 
 
Revenues received, but not yet earned, are deferred until such time as those monies 
meet the revenue recognition criteria. In the case of intergovernmental revenues in the 
fund financial statements, e.g., grants, entitlements and shared revenue, the basis of 
accounting for such revenue is determined according to the procedures common to 
each fund type in which the grant, entitlement, or shared revenue is recorded. Grants, 
entitlements, and shared revenues received earlier than the time established by the 
revenue recognition criteria are reported as deferred revenues. 
 
Revenues earned, but not yet received, may not be available in a timely manner to pay 
current expenditures or obligations. Such receivables, not meeting the availability 
criteria necessary for accrual under the modified accrual basis accounting principles, 
are classified as deferred revenues for that period in the fund financial statements. In 
the government-wide financial statements, however, availability criteria are not 
considered. Instead, revenues are recognized at the point in time when revenue is 
earned through performance or similar recognition standards. 

 

-99-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



CITY OF CAPITOLA 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2013 
 
 

-35- 

1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued) 
 

D) Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position or Equity, (continued) 
 

7) Compensated Absences 
 
In compliance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 16, the 
City has established a liability for accrued vacation in relevant funds.  Based on prior 
MOU language, a sick leave liability is also accrued for one remaining employee. For 
governmental fund types, the current liability appears in the respective funds and the 
long-term liability appears in the government-wide financial statements.  
 
This liability is set up for the current employees at the current rates of pay. If vacation 
and the sick leave balances are not used by employees during the term of employment, 
compensation is payable to the employee at the time of retirement. Such compensation 
is calculated at the employee’s prevailing rate at the time of retirement or termination. 
Each fiscal year, an adjustment to the liability is made based on pay rate changes and 
adjustments for the current portion. The General Fund is primarily responsible for the 
repayment of the governmental portion of compensated absences. 

 
8) Reclassifications and Eliminations 
 
Interfund balances must generally be eliminated in the government-wide statements, 
except for net residual amounts due between governmental activities. Amounts 
involving fiduciary funds should be reported as external transactions.  Any allocations 
must reduce the expenses of the function from which the expenses are being allocated, 
so that the expenses are reported only once - in the function in which they are 
allocated. 

 
9) Use of Estimates 

 
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America and necessarily include amounts 
based on estimates and assumptions by management. Actual results could differ from 
those amounts. 
 
10)  Fund Equity 

 
The City has implemented GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and 
Governmental Fund Type Definitions. This statement provides more clearly defined 
fund balance categories to make the nature and extent of the constraints placed on a 
government’s fund balance more transparent. These classifications and constraints 
have been incorporated into the City’s Fund Balance Policy.  The following 
classifications describe the relative strength of the spending constraints placed on the 
purposes for which resources can be used: 

 

-100-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



CITY OF CAPITOLA 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2013 
 
 

-36- 

1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued) 
 

D) Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position or Equity, (continued) 
 

10)  Fund Equity (continued) 
 

Nonspendable – Amounts that are not in a spendable form or are legally or 
contractually required to be maintained intact. 

 
Restricted – Amounts that have constraints placed on them by third-party 
providers (grantors, bondholders, and higher levels of government) or by law 
through constitutional provisions or by enabling legislation. 

 
Committed – Amounts constrained to specific purposes by a government 
itself, using the highest level of decision-making authority.  This includes an 
action by City Council, ordinance, or resolution.  The Committed amounts 
cannot be used for any other purpose unless the City removes or changes 
the specified use by taking the same type of action it previously employed to 
commit those amounts. 
  
Assigned – Amounts the City intends to use for a specific purpose, but are 
neither restricted nor committed.  Such intent should be expressed by the 
City Council or its designated officials to assign amounts to be used.  

 
Unassigned – Amounts that are for any purpose; positive amounts are 
reported only in the General Fund. 

 
When an expenditure is incurred for which both restricted and unrestricted (committed, 
assigned, or unassigned) are available, it is the City's policy to consider restricted 
amounts first, then unrestricted resources.  When an expenditure is incurred for 
purposes for which amounts in any of the unrestricted fund balance appropriations 
could be used, it is the City's Policy that committed amounts would be used first, 
followed by assigned, and then unassigned fund balance classifications. 
 
 
11)  Implementation of New Pronouncement 

 
Beginning with the current fiscal year, the City implemented GASB No. 63, "Financial 
Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net 
Position." This statement is designed to improve financial reporting by standardizing the 
presentation of deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources and 
their effects on the government’s net position. 

-101-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



CITY OF CAPITOLA 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2013 
 
 

-37- 

1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued) 
 
D) Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position or Equity, (continued) 
 

11)  Implementation of New Pronouncements (continued) 
 
Deferred outflows of resources are transactions that result in the consumption of net 
position in one period that are applicable to future periods and are not considered 
assets as described by the statement. Deferred outflows of resources are required to be 
presented separately after assets on the statement of net position.  
 
Deferred inflows of resources are transaction that result in the acquisition of net position 
in one period that are applicable to future periods and are not considered to be liabilities 
as described by the statement. Deferred outflows of resources are required to be 
presented separately after liabilities on the statement of net position. 
 
The statement defines net position as the residual of all other elements presented in a 
statement of financial position. It is the difference between (a) assets and deferred 
outflows of resources and (b) liabilities and deferred inflows of resources. 
 
For the period covered by these financial statements the City has no transactions 
classified as deferred inflows or outflows of resources. 
 
 

2) CASH AND INVESTMENTS 
 

Cash and investments held by the City at June 30, 2013 are classified in the accompanying 
financial statement as follows: 

 
Statement of Net Position:

Cash and investments 5,626,509$              

Statement of Fiduciary Net Position:
Cash and investments 39,623                     

Total cash and investments 5,666,132$              

 

-102-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



CITY OF CAPITOLA 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2013 
 
 

-38- 

2) CASH AND INVESTMENTS, (continued) 
 

Cash and investments held by the City consisted of the following: 
 

Petty cash 1,450$                     
Demand deposits 2,300,482                
Investments 3,364,200                

Total cash and investments 5,666,132$              

 
Investments Authorized by the California Government Code and the City of Capitola's 
Investment Policy 

 
Allowable investment instruments are defined in the California Government Code Section 
53600, et. seq., as amended. If the Code is further revised to allow additional investments 
or is changed regarding the limits on certain categories of investments, the City is 
authorized to conform to these changes, excluding those changes that may be prohibited 
by this policy. Where the Government Code specifies a percentage limitation for a particular 
category of investments, that percentage is applicable only at the date of purchase. 

 
The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized by the City’s investment 
policy and the California Government Code (or the City's investment policy, if more 
restrictive). The table also identifies certain provisions that address interest rate risk, credit 
risk, and concentration of credit risk. 
 

 
 

Authorized Investment Type * 

 
Maximum 
Maturity 

Maximum 
Percentage 
of Portfolio 

 Maximum 
Investment in 
One Issuer 

     
U. S. Treasury Bills 5 years 60%  None 
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit (CD) 1 year None  None 
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) N/A None  None 
Guaranteed Investment Contracts 15 months None  None 

 
* Maximums based on state law requirements or investment policy requirements, whichever 
is more restrictive. 
 
Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk 

 
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair 
value of an investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment is, the greater 
the sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market interest rates. One of the ways that the 
City manages its exposure to interest rates risk is by purchasing a combination of shorter 
term and longer term investments and by timing cash flows from maturities so that a portion 
of the portfolio is maturing or coming close to maturity evenly over time as necessary to 
provide the cash flow and liquidity needed for operations. 

-103-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



CITY OF CAPITOLA 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2013 
 
 

-39- 

2) CASH AND INVESTMENTS, (continued) 
 
Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk, (continued) 
 
Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the City’s investments (including 
investments held by bond trustees) to market interest rate fluctuations is provided by the 
following table that shows the distribution of the City’s investments by maturity: 

 

12 months 13 to 24 25 to 60 More than
Investment Type or less months months 60 months Total

Local Agency 
Investment Fund 3,364,200$    -$          -$          -$          3,364,200$    

Total 3,364,200$    -$          -$          -$          3,364,200$    

Remaining Maturity

 
Investment with Fair Values Highly Sensitive to Interest Rate Fluctuations 

 
During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, the City did not hold any investments that were 
highly sensitive to interest rate fluctuations (to a greater degree than already indicated in 
the information provided above). 

 
Disclosures Relating to Credit Risk 

 
Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to 
the holder of the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally 
recognized statistical rating organization. Presented below is the minimum rating required 
by (where applicable) the California Government Code or the City’s investment policy, or 
debt agreements, and the actual rating as of fiscal year end for each investment type.  
 

Minimum Exempt
Legal From

Investment Type Total Rating Disclosure AAA Aa Not Rated

Local Agency
Investment Fund 3,364,200$    N/A N/A -$       -$       3,364,200$    *

Total 3,364,200$    -$       -$       3,364,200$    

Rating as of Year End

 
 * The State investment pool does not offer an investment rating. 

-104-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



CITY OF CAPITOLA 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2013 
 
 

-40- 

2) CASH AND INVESTMENTS, (continued) 
 

Concentration of Risk 
 
The investment policy of the City contains no limitations on the amount that can be invested 
in any one issuer beyond that stipulated by the California Government Code. There are no 
investments in any one issuer that represent 5% or more of total City investments. 

 
Custodial Credit Risk 

 
Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository 
financial institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able 
to recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The custodial 
credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty (e.g., 
brokerdealer) to a transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of its 
investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of another party. The California 
Government Code and the City’s investment policy do not contain legal or policy 
requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits, other than 
the following provision for deposits: The California Government Code requires that a 
financial institution secure deposits made by state or local government units by pledging 
securities in an undivided collateral pool held by a depository regulated under state law 
(unless so waived by the governmental unit). The market value of the pledged securities in 
the collateral pool must equal at least 110% of the total amount deposited by the public 
agencies. California law also allows financial institutions to secure City deposits by pledging 
first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of the secured public deposits. As of 
June 30, 2013 the City had deposits with financial institutions in excess of federal 
depository insurance limits by $2,753,281 that were held in collateralized accounts.   

 
Investment in State Investment Pool 

 
The City is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF).  LAIF was 
established in 1977 under the California Government Code Section 16429.1 et seq. as an 
investment alternative for local California governments and special districts.  LAIF oversight 
is governed by a five member board designated by law, with the State Treasurer as Board 
Chairman.  The State Treasurer elected to invest these monies as part of the State’s 
Pooled Money Investment Account (PMIA) to achieve the maximum rate of return, while 
maintaining the goals of safety, liquidity, and yield.  All LAIF funds are insulated from State 
borrowing including State General Fund transfers or loans and AB 55 loans.   
 
The total LAIF balance at June 30, 2013 was $21 billion with 2,626 participating agencies.  
The total Capitola LAIF investment on June 30, 2013 was $3.5 million or less than 0.02% of 
the total LAIF funding.  The fair value of the City’s investment in this pool is also $3.4 million 
and is reported in the accompanying financial statements based on the on the City’s pro 
rata share of the fair value provided by LAIF (in relation to the amortized cost of that 
portfolio).  The balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting records 
maintained by LAIF, which are recorded as an amortized cost basis. 

-105-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



CITY OF CAPITOLA 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2013 
 
 

-41- 

3) INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS 
 
Due To/From Other Funds 
 
Due to/from other funds at June 30, 2013 is as follows: 

 
Due from other funds Due to other funds Amount

General Fund Non-Major governmental funds 36,203$             
 

The interfund payable balances represent routine and temporary cash flow assistance from 
and to the General Fund until the amounts receivable from other agencies are collected to 
reimburse eligible expenditures. 

 
Interfund Transfers 
 
Interfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2013 are as follows: 

 
 

Pacific Non-Major
Cove Governmental

Debt Financing Funds Total

General Fund 566,324$       1,450,274$    2,016,598$    
Non-Major Governmental Funds 134,800         -                 134,800         

Total 701,124$      1,450,274$   2,151,398$    

Transfers In

Tr
an

sf
er

s 
O

ut

 
Transfers include $701,124 in debt service payments and an additional principal payment on the 
Pacific Cove Debt Financing loan.  This included $566,324 from the General Fund, $84,800 from 
the Parking Reserves, and $50,000 from the Affordable Housing Fund.  Other General Fund 
transfers to Non-major Governmental Funds includes $614,600 to CIP, $162,800 to Parking 
Reserves, and $672,874 to the Pension Obligation Bond. 

-106-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



CITY OF CAPITOLA 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2013 
 
 

-42- 

4) CAPITAL ASSETS 
 

Capital assets activity for the year ended June 30, 2013 is as follows: 
 

Beginning Ending
Governmental activities: balance Additions Deletions balance
Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land  $      3,844,909  $                 -    $                 -    $     3,844,909 
Construction in progress             588,903           142,821              (7,335)            724,389 

Total capital assets, not being depreciated          4,433,812           142,821              (7,335)         4,569,298 

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Equipment          3,000,750           163,651          (475,878)         2,688,523 
Building and improvements          3,100,207                     -            (321,938)         2,778,269 
Infrastructure        24,250,498               7,335                     -         24,257,833 

Total capital assets, being depreciated        30,351,455           170,986          (797,816)       29,724,625 

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Equipment        (2,293,084)          (157,376)           430,345        (2,020,115)
Building and improvements        (1,547,780)            (60,702)             72,066        (1,536,416)
Infrastructure      (16,636,048)          (733,499)                     -        (17,369,547)

     (20,476,912)          (951,577)           502,411      (20,926,078)

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net          9,874,543          (780,591)          (295,405)         8,798,547 

Total governmental activities capital assets,
net of accumulated depreciation  $    14,308,355  $      (637,770)  $      (302,740)  $   13,367,845 

Depreciation Allocations 
 

Depreciation expense was charged to functions and programs based on their usage of the 
related assets. The amounts allocated to each function or program were as follows: 

 
Governmental Activities:

General government 575,210$                 
Public safety 42,249                     
Cultural and recreation 34,779                     
Transportation 299,339                   

Total Depreciation Expense - Governmental Activities  $                 951,577 

 

-107-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



CITY OF CAPITOLA 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2013 
 
 

-43- 

5) OTHER ASSETS 
 

Due from Successor Agency 
 
The City provided support services without compensation to the former Redevelopment 
Agency for the period from July 1, 1997 through June 30, 2001.  During this period, the 
Redevelopment Agency incurred substantial costs for a proposed expansion of the 
redevelopment area and amendment of the redevelopment plan.  The uncompensated 
administrative support costs incurred by the City were determined to be $618,028.  The City 
and RDA entered into a Cooperation Agreement for the RDA to repay this amount at a 5% 
simple interest rate, with interest payments due annually.  In June 2006, the City and 
Agency agreed to amend the interest rate to the greater of the following:  a) the interest rate 
charged by the Public Employees Retirement System for the City’s unfunded liability; b) the 
true interest cost of any obligation bond sold by the City; c) the State of California LAIF rate, 
or d) 5%. The principal amount of this reimbursement is to be paid as Agency funds 
become available, but in no event later than twenty-five years from the Agreement date.  As 
of June 30, 2013, the principal owed to the City is $618,028.  

 
In July 2003, the City of Capitola sold the Rispin Mansion property to the RDA in exchange 
for a $1,350,000 note.  The City and the RDA agreed to calculate interest on the note at a 
5% simple interest rate, with interest payments due quarterly.  As with the Cooperation 
Agreement, in June of 2006, the City and Agency amended the interest rate to the greater 
of the following:  a) the interest rate charged by the Public Employees Retirement System 
for the City’s unfunded liability; b) the true interest cost of any pension obligation bond sold 
by the City; c) the State of California LAIF rate; or d) 5%.  The outstanding principal sum of 
this Note is due and payable in full on June 24, 2017 (“Maturity Date”). 
 
Due to the Dissolution of the Agency in January of 2012, the combined loan balances of  
$1,968,028 were transferred to the Successor Agency in accordance with AB X1 26 and AB 
1484.  In FY 12/13, the City did not receive any principal or interest payments on these 
loans due to conflicting interpretations of the legislation; and the timelines and requirements 
associated with the loan reinstatement process. Subsequently, the City and the Oversight 
Board have resolved to transfer the Rispin Property to the City and terminate the $1.35 
million loan.  This transfer was not recognized in FY 12/13, due to uncertainties regarding 
the transaction.  Additional information can be found in the Transmittal Letter, and the 
Successor Agency and Risk and Uncertainties Notes.  

-108-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



CITY OF CAPITOLA 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2013 
 
 

-44- 

5) OTHER ASSETS, (continued) 
 
Housing and Community Development Loan Program 

 
The City uses Federal Home Loan Reuse, Affordable Housing and CDBG Program Income 
funds to provide housing loans to eligible applicants. Such loans are made to low and 
moderate income households to improve or rehabilitate residences. The City accounts for 
this program in the Special Revenue Funds. Total loans receivable of $7.5 million at June 
30, 2013 are listed below: 

 
CDBG Federal Capitola

Program Home Loan Affordable Housing
Income Reuse Housing Successor Total

Individual Loans 154,263$       524,276$        -$            774,074$        1,452,613$       
Bay Avenue Senior Apartments -                 3,019,517       -              1,570,358       4,589,875         
Castle Mobile Home Park -                 -                  169,213       1,124,585       1,293,798         
Wharf Road Manor -                 207,199          -              -                  207,199            

154,263$      3,750,992$    169,213$    3,469,017$     7,543,485$      

They have been reflected in the accompanying financial statements as loans receivable 
with an offsetting deferred revenue in the fund financial statements. 

 
 
6) LONG TERM DEBT 
 

A summary of changes in long-term debt for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013 was as 
follows: 

 
Beginning Ending Due Within
balance Additions Reductions balance One Year

2007 POB Bonds 3,375,000$         $                 -   (485,000)$         2,890,000$      $       515,000 

Capital Lease - Cove Financing            2,390,000                     -              (542,864)        1,847,136             78,397 
Notes Payable                 38,249                     -                  (3,113)             35,136               5,340 
Compensated Absences               590,625 361791 (304,003)                     648,413             64,841 
Net OPEB Obligation               291,131             68,582 -                              359,713                     -   

Totals  $        6,685,005  $       430,373  $     (1,334,980)  $    5,780,398  $       663,578 

 

-109-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



CITY OF CAPITOLA 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2013 
 
 

-45- 

6) LONG TERM DEBT, (continued) 
 
2007 Pension Obligation Bonds 

 
In July of 2007, the City issued $5,040,000 of Pension Obligation Bonds in order to pre-fund 
a portion of the PERS Side Fund liability as determined by PERS for the City's Safety and 
Miscellaneous Plans. Payments of interest are payable semi-annually on August 1 and 
February 1 of each year with a stated interest rate of 6.010%. The Bonds mature through 
August 1, 2017. The bonds are payable from any source of legally available funds of the 
City, including amounts on deposit in the General Fund. 

 
The debt-service maturity schedule for the Pension Obligation Bonds is as follows: 

 
Fiscal Year

Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total

2014 515,000$         188,263$      703,263$        
2015 545,000         158,213      703,213         
2016 575,000           126,360        701,360          
2017 610,000           92,704          702,704          
2018 645,000           19,382          664,382          

Total 2,890,000$     584,922$     3,474,922$     

 
 

Capital Leases Payable - Pacific Cove Debt Financing 
 
On March 23, 2012, the City executed a $2.39 million lease/sublease agreement to 
facilitate relocating the residents of the Pacific Cove Mobile Home Park.  The City-owned 
mobile home park was permanently closed for safety reasons after a pipe failure flooded 
the park.  This lease agreement used the existing City Hall site and the adjacent Upper 
Pacific Cove Parking lot as the subject lease property.  The original lease agreement was 
for 20 years at 5.14% fixed interest rate for the first 10 years, with a reset to 10 year T-Bill 
plus 3%.  The lease was renegotiated during fiscal year 2012-13 to a tax-exempt lease with 
a 3.25% interest rate, with a reset in year 10 to a 10 year T-Bill + 1.5%. As a result of the 
refinancing, annual loan payments were reduced by approximately $28,000.  Savings on 
interest over the first nine years is estimated to be $350,000. 
 
In Fiscal Year 2012-13, the City made a decision to apply $500,000 from the disaster 
recovery insurance settlement to the Pacific Cove Lease.  This resulted in a principal 
reduction of $476,190, with a prepayment penalty of $23,810. 

-110-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



CITY OF CAPITOLA 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2013 
 
 

-46- 

6) LONG TERM DEBT, (continued) 
 
Capital Leases Payable - Pacific Cove Debt Financing. (continued) 
 
Future lease payments under the capital lease as of June 30, 2013 are as follows: 

 
Fiscal Year

Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total

2014  $          78,397  $       52,169  $       130,566 
2015 73,676             56,890          130,566          
2016 76,090             54,476          130,566          
2017 78,593             51,983          130,576          
2018 81,157             49,409          130,566          

2019-2023 447,458           205,372        652,830          
2024-2028 525,724           127,106        652,830          
2029-2032 486,041           36,211          522,252          

1,847,136$      633,616$      2,480,752$     

 
Note Payable 

 
On January 26, 2012 the City Council approved the City’s participation in a financing 
program and retrofit project with PG&E to place LED fixtures in City-owned streetlights. The 
City has executed a loan document with PG&E in the amount of $38,249. The terms of the 
loan are at 0% interest and will be paid off over 86 months. The monthly payment will be 
$445 per month. 
 
Compensated Absences 

 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 16 identifies certain items that 
should be accrued as a liability as the benefits are earned by the employees but only to the 
extent it is probable that the employer will compensate the employees for the benefits 
through cash payments conditioned on the employee’s termination or retirement. 

 
City employees accumulate earned but unused benefits that can be converted to cash at 
termination of employment. The non-current portion of these vested benefits, payable in 
accordance with various collective bargaining agreements, totals $583,572 as of June 30, 
2013. 

-111-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



CITY OF CAPITOLA 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2013 
 
 

-47- 

7) FUND BALANCE CLASSIFICATIONS 
 

The details of the fund balances as of June 30, 2013 are presented below: 
 

Federal Capitola Pacific Non-Major Total
Home Housing Cove Governmental Governmental 

General Fund Loan Reuse Successor Debt Financing Funds Funds
Nonspendable:

Prepaids 56,177$            -$            -$            -$               -$                  56,177$            
Due from Successor Agency 1,968,028         -              -              -                 -                    1,968,028         

Restricted for:
Transportation -                    -              -              414,853         978,394            1,393,247         
Public Safety -                    -              -              -                 -                    -                    
Community Development -                    23,221        80,197        -                 -                    103,418            

Assigned to:
Other Capital Projects -                    -              -              -                 1,046,245         1,046,245         
Emergency Reserve 569,706            -              -              -                 -                    569,706            

Unassigned:
Contingencies 1,222,646         -              -              -                 -                    1,222,646         
Unassigned 1,622,643         -              -              -                 (18,680)             1,603,963         

Total 5,439,200$       23,221$     80,197$     414,853$      2,005,959$       7,963,430$      

 
8) OTHER REQUIRED DISCLOSURES 
 

Deficit Fund Balances 
 

The following funds reported deficit fund balances at June 30, 2013: 
 

CDBG Program Income (13,910)$        
Home Grant (4,770)             

 
These deficits are expected to be reduced by future revenues or transfers from other funds. 

 
 
9) RISK MANAGEMENT 

 
The City participates in the Monterey Bay Area Self-Insurance Agency (Authority), a joint 
powers agency comprising the City and nine other local jurisdictions, created pursuant to 
California law for liability and workers compensation insurance services. The Monterey Bay 
Area Self-Insurance Authority’s Board of Directors is elected from representatives of the 
member governments, and controls operations of the fund, including selection of 
management and approval of operating budgets. It is independent of the individual member 
influence, except for their representation on the board, and is therefore not a component 
unit of the City for reporting purposes. 

-112-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



CITY OF CAPITOLA 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2013 
 
 

-48- 

9) RISK MANAGEMENT, (continued) 
 
The City is exposed to various risks including worker injuries, tort liability, theft, damage or 
destruction of assets, errors and omissions, and natural disasters. With respect to risks 
other than workers’ compensation, the City and other pool participants pay an annual 
premium estimated by the pool administrator to be sufficient to cover all liability claims for 
which the pool is obligated. If a covered entity’s losses exceed its premiums, there is no 
individual supplemental assessment, and if a covered entity’s losses are lower than its 
assessment, it does not receive a refund. However, annual budget appropriations are 
experience-based. The pool views its activities in the aggregate and makes overall 
adjustments to the premiums charged, and is therefore intended to be self-sustaining 
through member contributions (premiums). Risk of loss is retained by the City for general 
liability claims up to $10,000 per occurrence. The fund carries excess loss coverage for 
general liability claims between $990,000 and $20,000,000 per insured event, and is 
uninsured for losses in excess of $20,000,000 per event. Unpaid claims at fiscal year end, 
as reported by the fund, were not material. There was no reduction in the City’s insurance 
coverage as compared to the previous fiscal year, nor have there been any losses 
exceeding coverage during any of the three previous years. 

 
Premium payment amounts are determined by the fund's Board, and are charged to the 
City’s general fund as expenditures when paid. 
 
In the proper course of operation, the Authority issued debt in the aggregate principal 
amount of $5,150,000 on October 1, 2004. The Authority is required to collect and disburse 
the loan premiums in accordance with the loan agreement, Article VI, Section 6.03. The 
Member agencies are required by the Amended and Restated Joint Powers Agreement 
Relating to the Monterey Bay Area Self-Insurance Authority, Article 20 to pay to the 
Authority their individual debt service amount and associated expenses, as determined by 
the Authority. Furthermore, the Member Agencies contribution will be payable from any 
source of available funds of the Member, including amounts on deposit in the general fund 
of the Member. Audited financial statements of the Authority can be obtained at 1 Civic 
Center Drive, Scotts Valley, CA 90566. 
 
 

10) JOINT VENTURES 
 

Santa Cruz Consolidated Emergency Communications Center 
 

The City is a member of the Santa Cruz Consolidated Emergency Communications Center, 
a Joint Powers Authority created to establish and operate a consolidated communications 
center which provides emergency call receiving and dispatching services. Other members 
of the Authority include the Cities of Santa Cruz and Watsonville, and the County of Santa 
Cruz. The members, including the City of Capitola, are responsible for funding the 
operations of the Authority through annual assessments. The annual assessments are 
based on percentages calculated for each member. Audited financial statements of the 
Authority can be obtained at 495 Upper Park Rd, Santa Cruz, CA 95065. 

-113-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



CITY OF CAPITOLA 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2013 
 
 

-49- 

10) JOINT VENTURES, (continued) 
 

Santa Cruz Consolidated Emergency Communications Center, (continued) 
 
In addition, the Authority and member agencies have entered into a Use Agreement relating 
to the issuance of the Authority’s Santa Cruz County Public Financing Authority 2002 Lease 
Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series A, in the aggregate principal amount of $5,760,000. 
These bonds were refunded in May as 2012 Lease Revenue Bonds, Series A with a 
principal of $3,965,000.  The proceeds were used to refinance the existing debt that was 
used for building costs; purchase additional equipment, and make a lease termination 
payment to the County to acquire space that is currently being used for the Emergency 
Operations Center (EOC).  The term bonds are due on June 15, 2034. 
 
The following represents the City of Capitola’s obligation for future use payments: 

 
Fiscal Year Annual Use

Ending June 30, Payment

2014 34,299$           
2015 33,988            
2016 34,256            
2017 34,450            
2018 33,989            

2019-2023 170,473          
2024-2028 171,099          
2029-2034 205,481          

Total 718,035$         

 
Other Activities 

 
The City participates in other joint activities for the provisions of law enforcement activities, 
including the Santa Cruz County Narcotics Enforcement Team (SCCNET) and the Criminal 
Justice Council. None of these activities are conducted as a separate legal entity; therefore, 
they are not joint ventures, but are cost-sharing arrangements only. No separate financial 
statements are prepared for these activities, nor is the City exposed to risk of additional 
costs beyond reimbursement of its share of on-going operating costs. 

-114-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



CITY OF CAPITOLA 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2013 
 
 

-50- 

11) CITY'S EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT PLAN 
 

Plan Description 
 

The City of Capitola contributes to the California Public Employees Retirement System 
(CalPERS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer public employee defined benefit pension plan. 
CalPERS provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, and 
death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries.  CalPERS acts as a common investment 
and administrative agent for participating public entities within the State of California.  
Benefit provisions and all other requirements are established by state statute and city 
ordinance.   
 
On January 1, 2013, the State of California’s Public Employees' Pension Reform Act of 
2013 (PEPRA) became effective.  This legislation established the maximum defined benefit 
retirement formulas that could be offered by a public agency.  The new PEPRA plans must 
be  offered to employees who were hired after January 1, 2013; and who did not participate 
in CalPERS or a reciprocal system.  PEPRA plans are also applicable to employees who 
participated in CalPERS or a reciprocal system prior to January 1, 2013, but who had a six 
month break in service before they were hired.  Existing and new employees that did not 
meet the PEPRA criteria are enrolled in the City’s original or “Classic” retirement plan.  The 
City of Capitola offers the following retirement plans:  
   

Miscellaneous Employees 
o Classic: 2.5% at 55 
o PEPRA: 2.0% at 62 

 
Safety Employees 

o Classic: 3.0% at 50 
o PEPRA: 2.7% at 57 

 
Copies of CalPERS’ annual financial report may be obtained from their executive office: 
400 P Street, Sacramento, California 95814.  

-115-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



CITY OF CAPITOLA 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2013 
 
 

-51- 

11) CITY'S EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT PLAN, (continued) 
 
Funding Policy 

 
Active plan members are required to contribute a percentage of their annual covered salary. 
The City of Capitola actuarially determined FY12/13 member contribution rates for both the 
Miscellaneous Plan and the Safety Plans are provided in the following table:  
 

Classic Plan PEPRA Plan

Benefit Vesting Schedule 5 Years Service 5 Years Service
Benefit Payment Monthly for Life Monthly for Life
Benefit Plan 2.5% at 55 2.0% at 62
Benefit Provision 1 Year Final Compensation 3 Year Final Compensation
Actuarially Required Employee Contribution Rates 8.000% 6.25%
Actuarially Required Employer Contribution Rates 14.921% 6.25%

Classic Plan PEPRA Plan

Benefit Vesting Schedule 5 Years Service 5 Years Service
Benefit Payment Monthly for Life Monthly for Life
Benefit Plan 3.0% at 50 2.7% at 57
Benefit Provision 1 Year Final Compensation 3 Year Final Compensation
Actuarially Required Employee Contribution Rates 9.000% 11.5%
Actuarially Required Employer Contribution Rates 24.706% 11.5%

Miscellaneous

Safety

 
In 2007, all memoranda of understandings (MOU’s) capped the City's share of retirement 
contributions at 16.488% for Miscellaneous employees and 28.291% for Safety employees.  
These caps, which were applicable to Classic plans, were renegotiated in Fiscal Year  
2012-13; however a provision was added to reduce the City’s cap on retirement costs for 
new hires during their first five years of employment.  This resulted in a Classic Tier II cap 
on the City’s retirement costs of 11.488% and 23.291% for Miscellaneous and Safety 
employees, respectively.  All PEPRA employees were not subject to this cap. 
 
All actuarially determined contribution requirements for plan members are established by 
State statute and the employer contribution rate is established and may be amended by 
CalPERS. 

-116-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



CITY OF CAPITOLA 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2013 
 
 

-52- 

11) CITY'S EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT PLAN, (continued) 
 
Three Year Trend Information for the City of Capitola Miscellaneous Employees’ 
Retirement Plan 

 
Fiscal Required Percentage
Year Contributions Contributed

2011 430,383$       100%
2012 542,125         100%
2013 506,191         100%

 
 

Three Year Trend Information for the City of Capitola Safety Employees’ Retirement 
Plan 

 
Fiscal Required Percentage
Year Contributions Contributed

2011 405,773$       100%
2012 478,776         100%
2013 553,407         100%

 
 

12) PUBLIC AGENCY RETIREMENT PLAN 
 

Overview 
 

The Federal Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1990 (FOBRA 90), mandated that all 
public sector employees not covered by their employers’ existing retirement system(s) as of 
January 1, 1992, be covered by Social Security or an alternate plan. The City has provided 
these employees with a plan called The Public Agency Retirement System, which qualifies 
under Internal Revenue Code Sections 401(a) and 501. 

 
Plan Description 

 
The Public Agency Retirement System (PARS) is a defined contribution plan covering part-
time, temporary or seasonal employees and all employees not covered by another 
retirement plan. The Plan is sponsored and paid for by employees and employer 
contributions. Members are 100% vested. Benefits are paid to the members in lump sum 
payments at termination, or if payment is in excess of $3,500, the employee has the option 
of a lump sum payment at termination or at normal retirement age (60). 

 
The City has the right to terminate or amend the Plan at any time. 

-117-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



CITY OF CAPITOLA 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2013 
 
 

-53- 

12) PUBLIC AGENCY RETIREMENT PLAN, (continued) 
 
Contributions 

 
A total annual contribution of 7.5% of covered earnings is contributed to the PARS account 
for each eligible employee. The City of Capitola contributes 1.3% and the employee 
contributes 6.2%. During the fiscal year , contributions totaled $18,970.  This amount
included contributions of $3,238 by the City and $15,732 by employees. The City acts as 
administrator with a trustee managing the investments and accounts. Fees are charged by 
the trustee and are paid from member earnings. Employer liabilities under the Plan are 
limited to the amount of the current contributions. 
 
The City’s contribution for fiscal year 2012-13 differs from the contribution totals provided by 
PARS in the following table because PARS reports on a calendar year, rather than a fiscal 
year basis. 
 
Plan Net Position and Changes in Net Position 

 

Balance 1/1/12 65,315$         
Contributions 18,346           
Earnings 908                

Subtotal 84,569           
Less:    Expenses (4,632)           

Disbursements (19,737)         

Balance 12/31/12 60,200$        

 
 
13) OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 

 
Plan Description 

 
The City’s defined benefit postemployment healthcare plan, (City of Capitola Retiree 
Healthcare Plan, CRHP), provides medical benefits to eligible retired City employees and 
spouses. CRHP is an agent multiple-employer plan administered by California Public 
Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS), which acts as a common investment and 
administrative agent for participating public employers within the State of California. A menu 
of benefit provisions, as well as other requirements, is established by State statute within 
the Public Employees’ Retirement Law. CRHP selects optional benefit provisions from the 
benefit menu by contract with CalPERS and adopts those benefits through City resolution. 
CalPERS issues a Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR). The CAFR is issued in 
aggregate and includes the sum of all CalPERS plans. Copies of the CalPERS CAFR may 
be obtained from the CalPERS Executive Office, 400 P Street, Sacramento, California 
95814. 

-118-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



CITY OF CAPITOLA 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2013 
 
 

-54- 

13) OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS, (continued) 
 
Funding Policy 

 
The contribution requirements of plan members and the City are established and may be 
amended by the City Council. The City currently contributes the Public Employees’ Medical 
and Hospital Care Act (PEMHCA) minimum. 

 
The City is required to contribute the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), 
an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 
45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to 
cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding 
excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years. The current ARC rate is 2.1% of the 
annual covered payroll. On May 14, 2009, the City Council adopted a resolution indicating 
that contributions will be made on the “pay-as-you-go” basis. This method requires making 
contributions to the plan at about the same time and in about the same amount as benefit 
payments and expenses become due. 
 
Annual OPEB Cost 

 
The City’s annual OPEB cost, net OPEB obligation (asset) and the related information for 
2013 were as follows: 

 
Total

Annual required contribution 92,743$         
Interest on net OPEB obligation 13,101           
Adjustments to annual required contribution (12,009)          
    Annual OPEB cost (expense) 93,835           
Contributions made (25,253)          
    Increase in net OPEB obligation 68,582           
Net OPEB obligation - beginning of year 291,131         
Net OPEB obligation - end of year 359,713$       

 

-119-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



CITY OF CAPITOLA 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2013 
 
 

-55- 

13) OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS, (continued) 
 

For 2013, the City’s annual OPEB cost (expense) of $93,835 for CRHP was greater than 
the ARC by $1,092. The City’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost 
contributed to the plan, and the net OPEB obligation for 2013 and the two preceding years 
were as follows: 
 

Fiscal Annual OPEB Percentage of Net OPEB
Year Cost (AOC) OPEB Cost Contributed Obligation

6/30/2011 99,690$         24.5% 224,323$         
6/30/2012 89,186           25.1% 291,131           
6/30/2013 93,835           26.9% 359,713           

THREE YEAR TREND INFORMATION FOR CRHP

 
 

Funded Status and Funding Progress 
 

The funded status of the plan as of July 1, 2013, was as follows: 
 

Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL) 1,006,369$    
Actuarial Value Plan Assets -$               
Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability (UAAL) 1,006,369$    
    Funded Ratio (Actuarial Value of Plan Assets/AAL) 0%
Covered Payroll (Active Plan Members) 4,686,029$    
    UAAL as a Percentage of Covered Payroll 21.48%

 
 

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts 
and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples 
include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. 
Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required 
contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are 
compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The 
schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information following 
the notes to the financial statements, presents multiyear trend information that shows 
whether the actuarial value of the plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative 
to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits. 

-120-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



CITY OF CAPITOLA 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2013 
 
 

-56- 

13) OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS, (continued) 
 
Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 

 
Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan 
(the plan as understood by the employer and plan members) and include the types of 
benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of 
benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial methods 
and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce short-term volatility 
in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-
term perspective of the calculations. 

 
The following is a summary of the actuarial assumptions and methods: 

 
Valuation Date July 1, 2011
Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal Cost Method
Amortization Method Level Percent of Payroll
Remaining Amortization Period 30 Years as of the Valuation Date, Open Period
Actuarial Assumptions:

Investment Rate of Return 4.50%
Projected Salary Increase 3.25%
Heath Care Trend Rate 10.00%

 
 

14) COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 
 

Claims and lawsuits have been filed against the City in the normal course of business. The 
outcome of these matters is not presently determinable. However, in the opinion of 
management, the resolution of these matters is not expected to have a significant impact on 
the financial condition of the City. 

 
 

15) SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE FORMER CAPITOLA REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
  

On December 29, 2011, the California Supreme Court upheld Assembly Bill X1 26 that 
provided for the dissolution of all redevelopment agencies in the State of California.  Most 
cities in California established a redevelopment agency that was included in the reporting 
entity of the city as a blended component unit (since the governing board of the city or 
county in many cases, also served as the governing board for those agencies). The Bill 
provided that upon dissolution of a redevelopment agency, either the city or another unit of 
local government could agree to serve as the “successor agency” to hold the assets until 
they are distributed to other units of state and local government.  On January 12, 2012, the 
City Council met and created a Successor Agency in accordance with the Bill as part of City 
resolution number 3906.  

-121-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



CITY OF CAPITOLA 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2013 
 
 

-57- 

15) SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE FORMER CAPITOLA REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY, 
(continued)  
 
After the law was enacted on June 28, 2011, redevelopment agencies in the State of 
California could not enter into new projects, obligations or commitments.  Upon the date of 
dissolution, February 1, 2012, significant matters previously controlled by the City Councils 
of the cities that created each redevelopment agency were now subject to the approval of 
the seven-member Oversight Board, and typically the California Department of Finance 
(DOF): 

 
 Sale and distribution of assets 
 Any change in obligation of terms 
 Prepayment or defeasance of debt 
 Acceptance of grants 
 Funding of debt service reserves 
 Budget for any remaining activities 

 
In the current and future years, successor agencies are only allocated tax revenue in the 
amount that is necessary to pay the estimated annual payments on approved Recognized 
Obligation Payment Schedules (ROPS) until all enforceable obligations are paid in full.   All 
obligations listed on the Capitola ROPS were approved by the Successor Agency and the 
Oversight Board, however the Department of Finance disallowed payment requests on two 
City/RDA loans.  These loans included a $618,028 Loan and Repayment Agreement and a 
$1.35 million loan to purchase the City-owned Rispin Mansion property. 
 
In June 2012, the California legislature passed AB 1484.  This legislation provided 
clarification regarding the dissolution process and imposed new requirements.  AB 1484 
declared Successor Agencies are separate legal entities distinct from the sponsoring 
government, clarified matters pertaining to the affordable housing programs previously 
performed by the former RDA; and clarified matters pertaining to Enforceable Obligation 
and Recognized Obligation Payment Schedules (EOPS/ROPS).  The legislation also 
established a requirement for all Successor Agencies to complete a due diligence review, 
established a process to receive a Finding of Completion that will provide significant 
benefits to local agencies (allowing them to begin spending debt proceeds and providing a 
formula for the repayment of money previously borrowed from the sponsoring government); 
and made a number of other significant changes in the dissolution process and the post-
dissolution activities of Successor Agencies.   

 
In Fiscal Year 2012-13, the Successor Agency completed two Due Diligence Reviews as 
required by the legislation. The Due Diligence review resulted in a recapture of the residual 
fund balance in the Successor Agency’s primary operating account of $89,536 and a 
disallowed payment to the City in the amount of $47,895 for a City/RDA loan.  While the 
Successor Agency and the City disagreed with this determination, the combined amount of 
$137,431 was remitted to the County Auditor-Controller to maintain compliance.  The 
completion of these two reviews resulted in the Successor Agency received a Finding of 
Completion on May 24, 2013.   

-122-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



CITY OF CAPITOLA 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2013 
 
 

-58- 

15) SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE FORMER CAPITOLA REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY, 
(continued)  

 
The Bill also directed the California State Controller to review the propriety of any transfers 
of assets between redevelopment agencies and other public bodies that occurred after 
January 1, 2011.  If the public body that received such transfers was not contractually 
committed to a third party for the expenditure or encumbrance of those assets, the State 
Controller was required to order the available assets to be transferred to the public body 
designated as the Successor Agency.  The Capitola Successor Agency completed the 
Asset Transfer Review on October 7, 2013.  The report findings required the City to return 
$52,313 to the Successor Agency for an interest payment on a City/RDA loan. The 
Successor Agency and the City also disagreed with this determination. 
 
The Successor Agency and Oversight Board have approved reinstatement of the $618,028 
Loan and Repayment Agreement at a reduced interest rate; however this reinstatement 
was initially denied by the Department of Finance.  The Department of Finance has 
indicated that application for this reinstatement should be subject to the timelines 
established in AB 1484.     
 
The Successor Agency, City, and the Oversight Board have also approved a resolution to 
terminate the Rispin Property Purchase Loan in exchange for the return of the property.  
This would result in the reduction of $1.35 million dollars in Successor Agency debt.  The 
Department of Finance requested the Oversight Board reconsider this decision; and the 
Oversight Board unanimously reaffirmed their property transfer decision in August.  The 
City did not receive a response from the Department of Finance in relation to this action, 
and the statutory time to deny the action has elapsed.  The City’s RDA attorney believes 
this action is effective due timing; however final confirmation may be received when the 
Successor Agency files a required Long Range Property Management Plan.    
 
After the date of dissolution, activities of the dissolved redevelopment agency are reported 
in a fiduciary trust fund (private purpose trust fund) in the financial statements of the City.  
The assets and liabilities relating to the Successor Agency are provided in the following 
sections:   

 
Capital Assets 
 
The capital assets of the Successor Agency  as of June 30, 2013 are as follows: 
 

Beginning Ending
Successor Agency Assets: balance Additions Deletions balance
Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land  $      1,038,880 -$                -$                 $     1,038,880 
Building and improvements             311,814 -                  -                             311,814 

Total capital assets, not being depreciated  $      1,350,694 -$                -$                 $     1,350,694 

 

-123-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



CITY OF CAPITOLA 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2013 
 
 

-59- 

15) SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE FORMER CAPITOLA REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY, 
(continued)  

 
Long-Term Debt 

 
In accordance with the provisions of California AB X 1 26 (Bill), the obligations of the former 
Redevelopment Agency became vested with the funds established for the Successor 
Agency upon the date of dissolution, February 1, 2012.  Former tax increment revenues 
pledged to fund the debts of the former Redevelopment Agency are distributed to the 
Successor Agency subject to the reapportionment of such revenues as provided by the Bill.   
 
The debt of the Successor Agency as of June 30, 2013 is as follows: 

 
Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions balance One Year

Advances Payable  $     1,968,028 -$               $                 -    $  1,968,028 -$              
Notes Payable         1,000,000 -                      (1,000,000)                   -   -                
RDA Pass-Throughs, restated               2,127,607                                               (951,268)       1,176,339        250,243 

Totals  $     5,095,635 -    $   (1,951,268)  $  3,144,367  $     250,243 

 
 
Due to the City 

 
The obligations due to the City represent a loan in the amount of $618,028 for staff and 
administrative costs associated with the expansion of the redevelopment area and the 
amendment of the redevelopment plan; and a note in the amount of $1,350,000 to 
purchase the City-owned Rispin Mansion property.  Complete details on these obligations 
can be found in the Note 5. 
 
Notes Payable 
 
On September 29, 2000, the former Capitola Redevelopment Agency borrowed $1,000,000 
to provide temporary, short-term financing for various capital projects.  The loan allowed for 
the principal to be fully prepaid without premium by the Agency upon a thirty day written 
notice to the lender at any time after September 29, 2001. On March 30, 2006, Chase NYC 
took over the WestAmerica note and established a new expiration date of September 29, 
2014.  Interest was 4.75% ($47,500/year) payable semiannually on March 29 and 
September 29.  The Successor Agency, Oversight Board to the Successor Agency, and the 
California Department of Finance approved early payment of this debt to assist in winding 
down the affairs of the Successor Agency.  This debt was fully paid at June 30, 2013.  

-124-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



CITY OF CAPITOLA 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2013 
 
 

-60- 

15) SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE FORMER CAPITOLA REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY, 
(continued)  

 
Long-Term Debt, (continued) 
 
Redevelopment Agency Pass-Through Agreements:  County Library Building Fund 
 
Previous California redevelopment law permitted redevelopment agencies to negotiate 
agreements with overlapping taxing jurisdictions, whereby the Agency pays a portion of its 
tax increment revenues to other jurisdictions whose revenue and function(s) may be 
adversely impacted by the Agency. The terms of such agreements were negotiable in 
accordance with the needs of the Agency and the jurisdictions. Accordingly, the Agency 
negotiated agreements with certain overlapping jurisdictions, which called for deferred 
payment of portions of the Agency’s tax increment revenues.  

 
In August 2004, the Agency entered into an Implementation Agreement with the County of 
Santa Cruz to clarify and confirm provisions in the original Pass-Through Agreement, and 
First and Second Library Agreements. The Implementation Agreement requires that the 
Agency design and commence construction of a library building and related on-site 
improvements no later than June 30, 2018. The Agency’s maximum obligation for this 
project, beginning with the 2004-05 fiscal year, was $1,400,000, which increases 5% per 
annum (compounded annually) until the fiscal year in which the library construction is 
completed or the full amount of the Agency portion has been paid to the County.  

 
Beginning February 1, 2005, and February 1st of each fiscal year thereafter through 
February 1, 2018, or until the total amount of the Agency is funded or the Library 
construction is completed, the Agency is required to pay minimum scheduled payments into 
a County trust account, which earns interest at a rate equivalent to the County’s pooled 
investment fund rate.  
 
The Agency is provided with the opportunity to prefund any portion of the obligation at any 
time. “Prefund” means to provide the total amount of funding needed in a particular year to 
achieve the total Agency obligation as of that fiscal year. Prefunding in the amount of the 
maximum obligation of the Agency through the fiscal year ending June 30, 2018 is 
$2,640,000. The Agency recorded the initial debt of $1,400,000 as of the 2004-05 fiscal 
year.  The outstanding balance was required to be increased by 5% each year and reduced 
by the minimum scheduled payment each year.  In FY 12/13, the City chose to record the 
full value of the remaining debt, less any payments, to be consistent with the Recognized 
Obligation Payment Schedule and to reflect the impact of accelerated principal payments. 
 
In Fiscal Year 2012-13, the Oversight Board and the Department of Finance approved two 
payments in excess of the required $211,720 minimum payment.  These payments resulted 
in an additional reduction in principal balance of $739,548.  The Capitola Branch Library 
Trust obligation at June 30, 2013 is $1,176,339.   

-125-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



CITY OF CAPITOLA 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2013 
 
 

-61- 

15) SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE FORMER CAPITOLA REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY, 
(continued)  

 
Long-Term Debt, (continued) 
 
Redevelopment Agency Pass-Through Agreements: County Library Building Fund, 
continued) 
 
If sufficient funds are available for distribution from the Redevelopment Property Tax Trust 
Fund in Fiscal Year 2013-14, it is anticipated the Successor Agency will continue to pursue 
accelerating payments on this debt.  The proposed funding plan is provided below; while a 
schedule detailing the minimum scheduled payments under the original obligation are 
provided for reference.        
 

FY 12/13 FY 13/14 FY 14/15 FY 15/16
Outstanding Liability: July 1 2,127,607$         1,176,339$             456,339$                169,223$               
Payment / Planned Payments 951,268              720,000                  287,116                  169,223                 

     Outstanding Liability: June 30 1,176,339$         456,339$                169,223$                -$                       

 

 
Minimum scheduled payments/original obligation: 
 

Minimum 
Scheduled

Fiscal Year Payment Amount

2013-14  $                    250,243 
2014-15                        287,116 
2015-16                        325,579 
2016-17                        366,577 
2017-18                        417,640  

-126-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



CITY OF CAPITOLA 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2013 
 
 

-62- 

16) RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES 
 
Grants 
 
Amounts received or receivable from grant agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by 
grantor agencies. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, may 
constitute a liability of the applicable funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures that may be 
disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time, although the government 
expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial. 

 
City/Successor Agency Obligations 
 
Deductions (expenses) incurred by the Successor Agency for the year ended June 30, 
2013 (and subsequent years in which the Successor Agency is in operation) are subject to 
review by various State agencies and the County in which the Successor Agency resides.  
If any expenses incurred by the Successor Agency are disallowed by the State agencies or 
County, the City, acting as the Successor Agency could be liable for the repayment of the 
disallowed costs from either its own funds or by the State withholding remittances normally 
paid to the City. Over the last fiscal year, the Successor Agency has been successful in 
receiving funding for all approved obligations, with the exception of City/RDA loans.  The 
amount, if any, of expenses that may be disallowed by the State agencies or County cannot 
be determined at this time as to be immaterial or not. 
 
The City and the Successor Agency plan to pursue reinstatement of the $618,028 Loan and 
Repayment Agreement through the AB 1484 reinstatement process; or choose to pursue 
legal action based on two recent Superior Court cases.  The Superior Court recently ruled 
that the DOF was incorrect in denying payment on the Cities of Emeryville and Riverside 
City/RDA loans.  The Court indicated that these obligations were valid if the Oversight 
Board approved reentering the agreements prior to the passage of AB 1484.  These cases 
could be applicable to the City’s Loan and Repayment Agreement because the Capitola 
Oversight Board chose to reenter the agreement prior to the passage of AB 1484.  While 
the DOF is appealing the court’s decision in both the Emeryville and Riverside cases; the 
Successor Agency and Oversight Board approved the reinstatement of the loan at a 
reduced interest rate on the most recent Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule 
(ROPS).  This reinstatement has been met with denial from the Department of Finance due 
to timing; however they have suggested that the Successor Agency reapply for 
reinstatement within the legislatively determined timeline.       

-127-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



CITY OF CAPITOLA 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2013 
 
 

-63- 

17) EXTRAORDINARY ITEM 
 

In March 2011, a pipe failure flooded the Capitola Village, businesses, and residents, as 
well as the Capitola Police Department.  The City recognized over $1.4 million in 
extraordinary expenditures over the last two fiscal years for disaster recovery; while also 
assuming a $2.39 million loan to implement a relocation plan for residents of the damaged 
City-owned mobile home park.  The damage recovery expenditures were primarily funded 
through the City’s Emergency and Contingency Reserves.  Efforts were made to seek 
reimbursement from the City’s insurance company; however the claim was initially denied.  
In Fiscal Year 2012-13, the City and the insurance company reached a $1,349,000 
settlement agreement.  This amount was netted against $230,914 in related attorney fees, 
to arrive at the Fiscal 2012-13 extraordinary item of $1,118,086.   
 
 

18) PRIOR PERIOD RESTATEMENT 
 

Special Revenue Fund

Capitola Housing Successor

Fund balance - beginning, as previously reported -$                   
Prior period adjustment 1,427                 

Fund balance - beginning, as restated 1,427$               
 

The fund balance was restated by $1,427. This balance should have been applied to the 
Capitola Housing Successor Fund in Fiscal Year 2011-12; however it was recorded in the 
Private Purpose Trust Fund.  

 
Fiduciary Fund

Private Purpose Trust Fund

Net position - beginning, as previously reported (1,262,628)$       
Prior period adjustment (1,427)                

Net position - beginning, as restated (1,264,055)$       
 

The fund balance was restated by ($1,427). This balance should have been applied to the 
Capitola Housing Successor Fund in Fiscal Year 2011-12; however it was recorded in the 
Private Purpose Trust Fund.  

-128-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



CITY OF CAPITOLA 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2013 
 
 

-64- 

18) PRIOR PERIOD RESTATEMENT, (continued) 
 

GOVERNMENT WIDE STATEMENTS

Net position - beginning, as previously reported 19,777,487$      
Prior period adjustment 1,427                 

Net position - beginning, as restated 19,778,914$      

 
Net position was restated by $1,427. This balance should have been applied to the Capitola 
Housing Successor Fund in Fiscal Year 2011-12; however it was recorded in the Private 
Purpose Trust Fund.  
 
 

19) SUBSEQUENT EVENT  
 

On June 18, 2013, the City of Capitola was approved for a $1,372,500 low-interest loan 
with the California Infrastructure and Economic Development Bank (IBank).  This loan is 
considered a lease-lease back obligation with the General Fund as the source of 
repayment; and the City Public Works Corporation Yard serving as the leased asset.  The 
loan term is 20 years at a fixed 2.26% interest rate.  The annual loan payments are 
estimated to be $89,554.  Loan proceeds will be used for the construction of new parking lot 
in the vacant Pacific Cove Mobile Home Park, which includes construction of a walkway to 
the adjacent lot, restroom renovations, installation of signage; and the placement of 
paystations in the two City parking lots.  At the time of this document, the IBank is 
estimating that the final loan documents will be available in February of 2014. 

 

-129-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
 
 
 
 
 
 

-130-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



 

-65- 

CITY OF CAPITOLA 
Schedule of Funding Progress for CRHP 

Year Ended June 30, 2013 
 
 

Actuarial
Accrued UAAL as a 

Actuarial Actuarial Liability Unfunded Percentage of
Valuation Value of (AAL) Entry AAL Funded Covered Covered

Date Assets Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
(A) (B) (B - A) (A/B) (C) [(B - A) / C ]

7/1/2008 -$           1,043,809$  1,043,809$  -$           3,125,748$  33.39%
7/1/2011 -$           1,006,309$  1,006,309$  -$           4,686,029$  21.48%

 
GASB 45 was implemented prospectively in fiscal year 2009. There were no previous actuarial 
valuations. 
 

 
 

-131-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



 

 

GENERAL FUND 
 
 

The General Fund accounts for all financial resources except those to be accounted for in 
another fund. It is the general operating fund for the City. 
 

-132-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



Variance with
Original Final Actual Final Budget

Revenues:
Taxes 8,546,600$     9,069,610$     9,371,712$     302,102$        
Licenses and permits 456,700          414,800          501,587          86,787            
Fines and forfeitures 707,000          707,000          688,272          (18,728)           
Intergovernmental 495,700          435,244          558,773          123,529          
Charges for services 1,913,500       1,986,800       1,717,547       (269,253)         
Use of money and property 13,600            23,800            24,858            1,058              
Other revenue 84,400            204,800          196,978          (7,822)             

Total revenues 12,217,500     12,842,054     13,059,727     217,673          

Expenditures:
Current:

General government 2,426,089       2,984,745       2,835,749       148,996          
Public safety 5,594,790       5,496,820       5,248,766       248,054          
Community development 567,008          507,512          476,854          30,658            
Culture and recreation 945,976          917,166          905,088          12,078            
Transportation 2,091,328       2,004,199       1,932,907       71,292            

Budgeted Amounts

CITY OF CAPITOLA
Required Supplementary Information

General Fund
Budgetary Comparison Schedule

Year Ended June 30, 2013

.
Total expenditures 11,625,191     11,910,442     11,399,364     511,078          

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures 592,309          931,612          1,660,363       728,751          

Other financing sources (uses):
Proceeds from sale of

capital assets 85,000            103,000          99,000            (4,000)             
Transfers out (848,580)         (2,016,608)      (2,016,598)      10                   

Total Other Financing 
Sources (Uses) (763,580)         (1,913,608)      (1,917,598)      (3,990)             

Extraordinary item:
Disaster recovery -                 1,118,086       1,118,086       -                 

Net change in fund 
balance (171,271)         136,090          860,851          724,761          

Fund balance, beginning 4,578,349       4,578,349       4,578,349       -                 

Fund balance, ending 4,407,078$     4,714,439$     5,439,200$     724,761$        

-66-
-133-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



 

 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
 
 
Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that 
are restricted or committed to expenditures for specific purposes other than debt service and 
capital projects.  The following funds have been classified as major funds: 
 
Federal Home Loan Reuse Fund - This fund accounts for housing loan principal and interest 
payments that will be available for a similar future federal program. 
 
Capitola Housing Successor Fund - This fund is used to account for the assets of the former 
RDA Low and Moderate Income and related housing activities.  The funds are restricted in their 
use, repayment, and reuse pursuant to the original program requirements.  It is anticipated that 
as loan payments are received, the revenue generated would fund new housing activities. 
 
 
 

-134-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



Variance with
Original Final Actual Final Budget

Revenues:
Use of money and property 12,200$         12,300$         15,014$         2,714$           

Total revenues 12,200          12,300         15,014          2,714            

Expenditures:
Community development 10,000           5,000             -                 5,000             

Total expenditures 10,000          5,000           -                5,000            

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures 2,200             7,300             15,014           7,714             

Net change in fund 
balance 2,200             7,300             15,014           7,714             

Fund balance beginning 8 207 8 207 8 207 -

Budgeted Amounts

Major Special Revenue Fund
Budgetary Comparison Schedule

Year Ended June 30, 2013

CITY OF CAPITOLA
Federal Home Loan Reuse Fund

Fund balance, beginning 8,207            8,207           8,207            -                

Fund balance, ending 10,407$         15,507$         23,221$         7,714$           

-67-
-135-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



Variance with
Original Final Actual Final Budget

Revenues:
Use of money and property -$               82,645$         82,771$         126$              
Other revenue -                 -                 999                999                

Total revenues -                82,645         83,770          1,125           

Expenditures:
Community development 14,500           14,200           5,000             9,200             

Total expenditures 14,500          14,200         5,000            9,200           

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (14,500)          68,445           78,770           10,325           

Net change in fund 
balance (14,500)          68,445           78,770           10,325           

CITY OF CAPITOLA

Budgeted Amounts

Major Special Revenue Fund
Budgetary Comparison Schedule

Year Ended June 30, 2013

Capitola Housing Successor

Fund balance, beginning, as restated 1,427            1,427           1,427            -               

Fund balance, ending (13,073)$        69,872$         80,197$         10,325$         

-68-
-136-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page intentionally left blank 

 
 

-137-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



 

-69- 

CITY OF CAPITOLA 
Notes to Required Supplementary Information 

Year Ended June 30, 2013 
 
 
BUDGETS AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING 
 
The City adheres to the following procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the 
financial statements:  
 
Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America for governmental funds. The City’s budget ordinance requires 
that in April of each fiscal year, the City Manager must submit a preliminary budget that includes 
projected expenditures and the means of financing them, to the City Council for the fiscal year 
commencing the following July 1. As modified during public study sessions, the preliminary 
budget becomes the proposed budget. Following public hearings on the proposed budget, the 
final annual budget is adopted by the City Council in June of the following fiscal year. After 
adoption of the final budget, transfers of appropriations within a general fund department, or 
within each fund can be made by the City Manager. Budget modifications between funds, 
increases or decreases to a fund’s overall budget, transfers between general fund departments 
or transfers that affect capital projects must be approved by the City Council or Agency Board. 
Numerous properly authorized amendments are made during the fiscal year. Appropriations 
lapse at fiscal year end. 
 
While the General Fund’s budgetary control is defined at the Department level, their 
presentation in the financial statements are slightly different.  This difference includes the 
presentation of the City Council, City Manager, City Attorney, and Finance Departments under 
the General Government classification. 
 
Budgetary control is enhanced by integrating the budget into the general ledger. Encumbrance 
accounting is employed (e.g., purchase orders) to avoid over-expenditure. Encumbrances 
outstanding at fiscal year-end are automatically rebudgeted in the following fiscal year, unless 
specifically cancelled by Council action. Per Capitola Municipal Code 3.20.060.C: “The 
appropriation for the uncompleted balance of executory contracts should not lapse at year-end, 
but is automatically appropriated for the succeeding fiscal year unless specifically cancelled by 
council action.” 
 
Budgets were adopted for all governmental funds with the exception of the following Special 
Revenue Fund: Development Fees Fund. 
 
The excess of expenditures over appropriations in individual funds, as well as the General Fund 
Departments and their financial statement classifications are provided below:  
 
Sufficient annual revenues in the General Fund and the Supplemental Law Enforcement 
Fund were used to subsidize excess expenditures within each of the funds.  Support for the 
excess expenditures within the Capitola Village and Wharf BIA Fund was provided from their 
fund balance; while the excess expenditure within the Home Grant Fund was financed through a 
temporary loan from the General Fund.  It is anticipated that the HOME Grant Fund will receive 
additional revenues to support grant management expenditures in the next fiscal year.  

-138-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



 

-70- 

 CITY OF CAPITOLA 
Notes to Required Supplementary Information 

Year Ended June 30, 2013 
 
 
BUDGETS AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING, continued 
 
Excess of expenditures over appropriations in individual funds are as follows:  
 

DEPARTMENTS Appropriations Expenditures Variance
General Fund Department:
 City Attorney 330,272$        352,588$        (22,316)$         

FUNDS
Non-Major Governmental:

Supplemental Law Enforcement 119,500          119,911          (411)                
Capitola Village and Wharf BIA 70,100            72,151            (2,051)             
HOME Grant Fund 3,200              10,000            (6,800)              

-139-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
 
 

-140-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



 

 

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS 
 

 
Debt Service Funds are used to account for all financial resources that are restricted, 
committed, or assigned to expenditure for principal, interest and related costs.  The following 
fund has been classified as a major fund: 
 
Pacific Cove Debt Financing Fund - This fund is used to account for the debt proceeds and the 
corresponding expenditures for the Pacific Cove Mobile Home Park Relocation Plan.  This fund 
is also used for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, long-term debt principal, 
interest, and related costs of the long-term debt issued by the City.   

-141-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



Variance with
Original Final Actual Final Budget

Revenues:
Use of money and property -$               -$               2,263$            2,263$            

Total revenues -                 -                 2,263              2,263              

Expenditures:
Transportation 285,160          1,090,263       1,006,010       84,253            
Debt service:

Debt issuance costs -                -               37,810          (37,810)          
Principal 66,664           566,664        542,864        23,800           
Interest and fiscal charges 114,547         134,451        134,451        -                

Total expenditures 466,371         1,791,378     1,721,135     70,243           

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (466,371)         (1,791,378)      (1,718,872)      72,506            

Other financing sources:

CITY OF CAPITOLA

Budgeted Amounts

Major Debt Service Fund
Budgetary Comparison Schedule

Year Ended June 30, 2013

Pacific Cove Debt Financing Fund

Transfers in 181,211          701,114          701,124          10                   

Total other financing 
sources 181,211         701,114        701,124        10                  

Net change in fund 
balance (285,160)         (1,090,264)      (1,017,748)      72,516            

Fund balance, beginning 1,432,601      1,432,601     1,432,601     -                

Fund balance, ending 1,147,441$     342,337$        414,853$        72,516$          

-71-
-142-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



 

 

NON-MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS, 
NON-MAJOR DEBT SERVICE FUND AND 
NON-MAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 

 
 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
 
Special revenue funds are used to account for and report the proceeds of specific revenue 
sources that are restricted or committed to expenditure for specified purposes other than debt 
service or capital projects. 
 
Supplemental Law Enforcement Fund - This fund accounts for the receipt and expenditure of 
Supplemental Law Enforcement revenues provided by the State of California. 
 
Gas Tax Fund - This fund accounts for receipts and expenditures of gasoline tax revenues as 
provided by State law. 
 
Wharf Fund - In accordance with the State law and contractual commitments, this fund accounts 
for wharf operating revenues and expenditures. 
 
Development Fees Fund - This fund accounts for receipts and expenditures of fees assessed 
on development to alleviate the impact of traffic problems due to that development. 
 
Parking Reserve Fund - This fund accounts for 16% of parking meter revenue from the village 
area (Parking Meter Zone A1).  The fund was established to fund parking improvement projects 
throughout the village. 
 
Technology Fees Fund - This fund accounts for revenues received from technology fees to be 
used for new permit processing program. 
 
PEG Cable TV Access Fee Fund - This fund accounts for Public Education and Government 
(PEG) Cable TV access fees. 
 
Capitola Village and Wharf BIA Fund - This fund accounts for the receipt and expenditure of 
assessments for the Business Improvement Area. 
 
Community Development Block Grants (CDBG) Fund - This fund accounts for grant revenue 
applied for and received from the Federal Department of Housing and Urban Development 
(HUD) through the California Small Cities Grant Program administered by California Department 
of Housing and Community Development (HCD) to address local community development 
needs. 

CDBG Program Income - This fund accounts for housing loan principal and interest repayments 
for the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program. 
 
HOME Grant Fund - This fund accounts for the revenues and expenditures for the CalHOME 
grant to assist with affordable housing within the City. 

-143-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



 

 

NON-MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS, 
NON-MAJOR DEBT SERVICE FUND AND 

NON-MAJOR CAPITAL PROJECT FUND, (continued) 
 
 
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS (continued) 
 
Affordable Housing Fund - This fund accounts for the creation of new affordable housing and 
rehabilitation of existing affordable housing. 
 
BEGIN Grant Fund - This fund accounts for receipts and expenditures of the Building Equity and 
Growth in Neighborhoods (BEGIN) grant. 
 
DEBT SERVICE FUND 
 
2007 POB Debt Service Fund - Accounts for the accumulation of resources for, and payment of 
long-term debt principal and interest related to the 2007 Pension Obligation Bonds. 
 
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 
 
Capital Projects Fund - Accounts for financial resources segregated for the acquisition of major 
capital facilities and equipment by the City. 
 

-144-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



Supplemental 
Law Gas 

Enforcement Tax Wharf
Assets

Cash and investments 101,745$           461$                  28,122$             
Accounts receivable 44,951               -                     -                     
Due from other governments 379                    22,107               -                     
Loans receivable -                     -                     -                     

Total Assets 147,075$          22,568$            28,122$            

Liabilities and Fund Balances
Liabilities:

Accounts payable 31,596$             10,582$             906$                  
Accrued liabilities 2,151                 -                     -                     
Deferred revenue -                     -                     -                     
Due to other funds 12,706               -                     -                     
Deposits payable -                     -                     1,000                 

Total Liabilities 46,453         10,582         1,906           

Fund balances:
Restricted 100,622             11,986               26,216               
Assigned -                     -                     -                     
Unassigned -                     -                     -                     

Total Fund Balances (Deficit) 100,622       11,986         26,216         

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 147,075$          22,568$            28,122$            

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Non-Major Governmental Funds
CITY OF CAPITOLA

Combining Balance Sheet
June 30, 2013

-72-
-145-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



PEG Capitola
Development Parking Technology Cable Village and

Fees Reserve Fees TV Access Wharf BIA

-$                   75,098$             35,737$             51,151$             1,378$               
-                     -                     -                     -                     3,191                 
-                     -                     -                     4,574                 -                     
-                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

-$                   75,098$             35,737$            55,725$            4,569$               

-$                   -$                   -$                   4,574$               2,325$               
-                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
-                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
-                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
-                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

-               -               -               4,574           2,325           

-                     75,098               35,737               51,151               2,244                 
-                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
-                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

-               75,098         35,737         51,151         2,244           

-$                   75,098$             35,737$            55,725$            4,569$               

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

-73-
-146-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



CDBG
Program HOME 

CDBG Income Grant
Assets

Cash and investments -$                   -$                   -$                   
Accounts receivable 11,800               -                     -                     
Due from other governments 5,024                 -                     -                     
Loans receivable -                     154,263             -                     

Total Assets 16,824$            154,263$          -$                  

Liabilities and Fund Balances
Liabilities:

Accounts payable 1,350$               200$                  -$                   
Accrued liabilities -                     -                     -                     
Deferred revenue -                     154,263             -                     
Due to other funds 5,017                 13,710               4,770                 
Deposits payable -                     -                     -                     

Total Liabilities 6,367           168,173       4,770           

Fund balances:
Restricted 10,457               -                     -                     
Assigned -                     -                     -                     
Unassigned -                     (13,910)              (4,770)                

Total Fund Balances (Deficit) 10,457         (13,910)        (4,770)          

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 16,824$            154,263$          -$                  

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

CITY OF CAPITOLA
Non-Major Governmental Funds

Combining Balance Sheet
June 30, 2013

-74-
-147-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



DEBT CAPITAL
SERVICE PROJECTS

FUND  FUND
Total

2007 POB Non-Major
Affordable Debt Capital Governmental
Housing BEGIN Grant Service Projects Funds

184,049$           -$                   480,834$           1,167,551$        2,126,126$        
-                     -                     -                     -                     59,942               
-                     -                     -                     -                     32,084               

169,213             -                     -                     -                     323,476             

353,262$           -$                   480,834$          1,167,551$       2,541,628$        

-$                   -$                   -$                   77,472$             129,005$           
-                     -                     -                     -                     2,151                 

169,213             -                     -                     -                     323,476             
-                     -                     -                     -                     36,203               
-                     -                     -                     43,834               44,834               

169,213       -               -               121,306       535,669       

184,049             -                     480,834             -                     978,394             
-                     -                     -                     1,046,245          1,046,245          
-                     -                     -                     -                     (18,680)              

184,049       -               480,834       1,046,245    2,005,959    

353,262$           -$                   480,834$          1,167,551$       2,541,628$        

FUNDS
SPECIAL REVENUE

-75-
-148-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



Supplemental 
Law Gas

Enforcement Tax Wharf
Revenues:

Taxes -$              235,663$       -$              
Licenses and permits -                -                -                
Intergovernmental 169,554         -                -                
Charges for services -                -                -                
Use of money and property 222                32                  85,290           
Other revenue -                38,249           -                

Total Revenues 169,776         273,944         85,290           

Expenditures:
Current:

General government -                -                -                
Public safety 119,911         -                -                
Community development -                -                -                
Culture and recreation -                -                95,719           

CITY OF CAPITOLA
Non-Major Governmental Funds

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures 
and Changes in Fund Balances

Year Ended June 30, 2013

Transportation -                224,209         -                
Capital outlay -                38,249           -                
Debt service:

Principal -                3,113             -                
Interest and fiscal charges -                -                -                

Total Expenditures 119,911         265,571         95,719           

Excess (Deficiency) of
Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 49,865           8,373             (10,429)          

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in -                -                -                
Transfers out -                -                -                

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) -                -                -                

Net Change in Fund Balances 49,865           8,373             (10,429)          

Fund Balances (Deficit), Beginning of Year 50,757           3,613             36,645           

Fund Balances (Deficit), End of Year 100,622$      11,986$        26,216$        

-76-
-149-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



PEG Capitola
Development Parking Technology Cable Village and 

Fees Reserve Fees TV Access Wharf BIA

-$              -$              -$              -$              -$              
-                -                -                18,704           -                
-                -                -                -                -                
-                -                10,543           -                68,890           
-                -                -                153                73                  

1,415             -                -                -                -                

1,415             -                10,543           18,857           68,963           

-                -                -                19,268           -                
-                -                -                -                -                

3,441             -                -                -                72,151           
-                -                -                -                -                

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

-                -                -                -                -                
-                -                -                -                -                

-                -                -                -                -                
-                -                -                -                -                

3,441             -                -                19,268           72,151           

(2,026)            -                10,543           (411)              (3,188)            

-                162,800         -                -                -                
-                (84,800)          -                -                -                

-                78,000           -                -                -                

(2,026)            78,000           10,543           (411)              (3,188)            

2,026             (2,902)            25,194           51,562           5,432             

-$              75,098$         35,737$        51,151$        2,244$           

-77-
-150-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



CDBG 
Program HOME

CDBG Income Grant
Revenues:

Taxes -$              -$              -$              
Licenses and permits -                -                -                
Intergovernmental 108,827         -                -                
Charges for services -                -                -                
Use of money and property -                6,969             -                
Other revenue -                -                -                

Total Revenues 108,827         6,969             -                

Expenditures:
Current:

General government -                -                -                
Public safety -                -                -                
Community development 76,816           2,500             10,000           
Culture and recreation -                -                -                

CITY OF CAPITOLA
Non-Major Governmental Funds

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures 
and Changes in Fund Balances

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Year Ended June 30, 2013

Transportation -                -                -                
Capital outlay -                -                -                
Debt service:

Principal -                -                -                
Interest and fiscal charges -                -                -                

Total Expenditures 76,816           2,500             10,000           

Excess (Deficiency) of
Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 32,011           4,469             (10,000)          

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in -                -                -                
Transfers out -                -                -                

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) -                -                -                

Net Change in Fund Balances 32,011           4,469             (10,000)          

Fund Balances (Deficit), Beginning of Year (21,554)          (18,379)          5,230             

Fund Balances (Deficit), End of Year 10,457$        (13,910)$       (4,770)$         

-78-
-151-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



DEBT CAPITAL
SERVICE PROJECTS

FUND  FUND
Total

2007 POB Non-Major
Affordable Debt Capital Governmental 
Housing BEGIN Grant Service Projects Funds

-$              -$              -$              -$              235,663$       
-                -                -                -                18,704           
-                -                -                -                278,381         

45,008           -                -                19,541           143,982         
17,700           -                -                -                110,439         

-                -                -                -                39,664           

62,708           -                -                19,541           826,833         

-                -                1,501             2,642             23,411           
-                -                -                -                119,911         

5,000             60,171           -                -                230,079         
-                -                -                117,538         213,257         

SPECIAL REVENUE
FUNDS

-                -                -                -                224,209         
-                -                -                512,957         551,206         

-                -                485,000         -                488,113         
-                -                185,966         -                185,966         

5,000             60,171           672,467         633,137         2,036,152      

57,708           (60,171)          (672,467)        (613,596)        (1,209,319)     

-                -                672,874         614,600 1,450,274      
(50,000)          -                -                -                (134,800)        

(50,000)          -                672,874         614,600         1,315,474      

7,708             (60,171)          407                1,004             106,155         

176,341         60,171           480,427         1,045,241      1,899,804      

184,049$       -$              480,834$      1,046,245$   2,005,959$    

-79-
-152-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page intentionally left blank 

 
 

-153-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



Variance with
Original Final Actual Final Budget

Revenues:
Intergovernmental 74,100$       172,500$       169,554$     (2,946)$        
Use of money and property -               100                222              122              

Total revenues 74,100         172,600         169,776       (2,824)          

Expenditures:
Public safety 72,200         119,500         119,911       (411)             

Total expenditures 72,200       119,500       119,911     (411)            

Net change in fund balance 1,900           53,100           49,865         (3,235)          

Fund balance, beginning 50,757       50,757         50,757       -              

Fund balance, ending 52,657$       103,857$       100,622$     (3,235)$        

Budgeted Amounts

Year Ended June 30, 2013

Non-Major Special Revenue Fund
Budgetary Comparison Schedule

CITY OF CAPITOLA
Supplemental Law Enforcement Fund

-80-
-154-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



Variance with
Original Final Actual Final Budget

Revenues:
Taxes 271,500$     234,200$     235,663$     1,463$          
Use of money and property -               -               32                32                 
Other revenue -               37,300         38,249         949               

Total revenues 271,500       271,500       273,944       2,444            

Expenditures:
Transportation 258,000     222,000     224,209     (2,209)         
Capital outlay -             38,300       38,249       51                
Debt service:

Principal 6,000         6,000         3,113         2,887           
Interest and fiscal charges 3,100         3,100         -              3,100           

Total expenditures 267,100     269,400     265,571     3,829           

Net change in fund balance 4,400           2,100           8,373           6,273            

Budgeted Amounts

Non-Major Special Revenue Fund
Budgetary Comparison Schedule

Year Ended June 30, 2013

CITY OF CAPITOLA
Gas Tax Fund

Fund balance, beginning 3,613         3,613         3,613         -              

Fund balance, ending 8,013$         5,713$         11,986$       6,273$          

-81-
-155-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



Variance with
Original Final Actual Final Budget

Revenues:
Use of money and property 83,700$       82,700$       85,290$       2,590$         

Total revenues 83,700         82,700         85,290         2,590           

Expenditures:
Culture and recreation 83,700         119,100       95,719         23,381         

Total expenditures 83,700       119,100     95,719       23,381         

Net change in fund balance -               (36,400)        (10,429)        25,971         

Fund balance, beginning 36,645       36,645       36,645       -              

Fund balance, ending 36,645$       245$            26,216$       25,971$       

CITY OF CAPITOLA

Budgeted Amounts

Non-Major Special Revenue Fund
Budgetary Comparison Schedule

Year Ended June 30, 2013

Wharf Fund

-82-
-156-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



Variance with
Original Final Actual Final Budget

Revenues: -$               -$               -$               -$               

Expenditures:
Capital outlay -                 24,000            -                 24,000            

Total expenditures -                 24,000            -                 24,000            

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
   over (under) expenditures -                 (24,000)           -                 24,000            

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 84,800            162,800          162,800          -                 
Transfers out (84,800)           (84,800)           (84,800)           -                 

Total other financing 
sources (uses) -                 78,000            78,000            -                 

Budgeted Amounts

Non-Major Special Revenue Fund
Budgetary Comparison Schedule

Year Ended June 30, 2013

CITY OF CAPITOLA
Parking Reserve fund

Net change in fund balance -                 102,000          78,000            24,000            

Fund balance, beginning (2,902)             (2,902)             (2,902)             -                 

Fund balance (deficit), ending (2,902)$           99,098$          75,098$          24,000$          

-83-
-157-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



Variance with
Original Final Actual Final Budget

Revenues:
Charges for services 5,900$         8,200$         10,543$       2,343$         

Total revenues 5,900           8,200           10,543         2,343           

Expenditures:
Community development 5,000           5,000           -               5,000           

Total expenditures 5,000           5,000           -               5,000           

Net change in fund balance 900              3,200           10,543         7,343           

Fund balance, beginning 25,194         25,194         25,194         -               

Fund balance, ending 26,094$       28,394$       35,737$       7,343$         

Budgeted Amounts

Non-Major Special Revenue Fund
Budgetary Comparison Schedule

Year Ended June 30, 2013

CITY OF CAPITOLA
Technology Fees Fund

-84-
-158-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



Variance with
Original Final Actual Final Budget

Revenues:
Licenses and permits 19,500$          19,100$          18,704$          (396)$              
Use of money and property 600                 100                 153                 53                   

Total revenues 20,100            19,200            18,857            (343)               

Expenditures:
General government 24,500            22,100            19,268            2,832              

Total expenditures 24,500            22,100            19,268            2,832              

Net change in fund balance (4,400)             (2,900)             (411)               2,489              

Fund balance, beginning 51,562            51,562            51,562            -                 

Fund balance, ending 47,162$          48,662$          51,151$          2,489$            

Budgeted Amounts

Non-Major Special Revenue Fund
Budgetary Comparison Schedule

Year Ended June 30, 2013

CITY OF CAPITOLA
PEG Cable TV Access Fund

-85-
-159-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



Variance with
Original Final Actual Final Budget

Revenues:
Charges for services 70,200$       69,420$       68,890$       (530)$           
Use of money and property 100              100              73                (27)               

Total revenues 70,300         69,520         68,963         (557)             

Expenditures:
Community development 71,600         70,100         72,151         (2,051)          

Total expenditures 71,600       70,100       72,151       (2,051)         

Net change in fund balance (1,300)          (580)             (3,188)          (2,608)          

Fund balance, beginning 5,432         5,432         5,432         -              

Fund balance, ending 4,132$         4,852$         2,244$         (2,608)$        

Year Ended June 30, 2013

Budgeted Amounts

Non-Major Special Revenue Fund
Budgetary Comparison Schedule

CITY OF CAPITOLA
Capitola Village and Wharf BIA Fund

-86-
-160-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



Variance with
Original Final Actual Final Budget

Revenues:
Intergovernmental 143,200$     111,300$     108,827$     (2,473)$        

Total revenues 143,200       111,300       108,827       (2,473)          

Expenditures:
Community development 174,389       143,500       76,816         66,684         

Total expenditures 174,389     143,500     76,816       66,684         

Net change in fund balance (31,189)        (32,200)        32,011         64,211         

Fund balance (deficit), beginning (21,554)      (21,554)      (21,554)      -              

Fund balance, ending (52,743)$      (53,754)$      10,457$       64,211$       

Budgeted Amounts

CITY OF CAPITOLA
CDBG Fund

Non-Major Special Revenue Fund
Budgetary Comparison Schedule

Year Ended June 30, 2013

-87-
-161-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



Variance with
Original Final Actual Final Budget

Revenues: -$             -$             -$             -$             

Expenditures:
Community development 15,000         3,200           10,000         (6,800)          

Total expenditures 15,000       3,200         10,000       (6,800)         

Net change in fund balance (15,000)        (3,200)          (10,000)        (6,800)          

Fund balance, beginning 5,230         5,230         5,230         -              

Fund balance (deficit), ending (9,770)$        2,030$         (4,770)$        (6,800)$        

Budgeted Amounts

Non-Major Special Revenue Fund
Budgetary Comparison Schedule

Year Ended June 30, 2013

CITY OF CAPITOLA
HOME Grant Fund

-88-
-162-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



Variance with
Original Final Actual Final Budget

Revenues:
Charges for services 5,000$         45,000$       45,008$       8$                
Use of money and property 500              18,200         17,700         (500)             

Total revenues 5,500           63,200         62,708         (492)             

Expenditures:
Community development 5,000           5,000           5,000           -               

Total expenditures 5,000           5,000           5,000           -               

         Excess (deficiency) of revenues
            over (under) expenditures 500              58,200         57,708         (492)             

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers out (50,000)        (50,000)        (50,000)        -               

Total other financing 
sources (uses) (50,000)      (50,000)      (50,000)      -              

Budgeted Amounts

Non-Major Special Revenue Fund
Budgetary Comparison Schedule

Year Ended June 30, 2013

CITY OF CAPITOLA
Affordable Housing Fund

( ) ( ) ( ) ( )

Net change in fund balance (49,500)        8,200           7,708           (492)             

Fund balance, beginning 176,341       176,341       176,341       -               

Fund balance, ending 126,841$     184,541$     184,049$     (492)$           

-89-
-163-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



Variance with
Original Final Actual Final Budget

Revenues: -$            -$            -$            -$               

Expenditures:
Community development 60,000         60,171         60,171         -                 

Total expenditures 60,000         60,171         60,171         -                 

Net change in fund balance (60,000)       (60,171)       (60,171)       -                 

Fund balance, beginning 60,171         60,171         60,171         -                 

Fund balance, ending 171$            -$            -$            -$               

Year Ended June 30, 2013

Budgeted Amounts

CITY OF CAPITOLA
BEGIN Grant Fund

Non-Major Special Revenue Fund
Budgetary Comparison Schedule

-90-
-164-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



Variance with
Original Final Actual Final Budget

Revenues: -$             -$             -$             -$             

Expenditures:
General government 1,501           1,501           1,501           -               
Debt service:

Principal 485,000       485,000       485,000       -               
Interest and fiscal charges 188,300       188,300       185,966       2,334            

Total expenditures 674,801       674,801       672,467       2,334            

         Excess (deficiency) of revenues
            over (under) expenditures (674,801)      (674,801)      (672,467)      2,334            

Other financing sources:
Transfers in 673,300       671,600       672,874       1,274            

Net change in fund balance (1,501)          (3,201)          407              3,608            

Year Ended June 30, 2013

Budgeted Amounts

Non-Major Debt Service Fund
Budgetary Comparison Schedule

CITY OF CAPITOLA
2007 POB Debt Service Fund

Fund balance, beginning 480,427     480,427     480,427     -              

Fund balance, ending 478,926$     477,226$     480,834$     3,608$          

-91-
-165-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



Variance with
Original Final Actual Final Budget

Revenues:
Intergovernmental -$             538,000$     -$             (538,000)$       
Charges for services 25,000         25,000         19,541         (5,459)             

Total revenues 25,000       563,000     19,541       (543,459)        

Expenditures:
General government 42,200         19,700         2,642           17,058             
Culture and recreation 20,000         257,000       117,538       139,462           
Capital outlay 22,500         1,179,719    512,957       666,762           

Total expenditures 84,700         1,456,419    633,137       823,282           

         Excess (deficiency) of revenues
             over (under) expenditures (59,700)        (893,419)      (613,596)      279,823           

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 22,500         587,100       614,600       27,500             

Budgeted Amounts

Non-Major Capital Projects Fund
Budgetary Comparison Schedule

Year Ended June 30, 2013

CITY OF CAPITOLA
Capital Projects Fund

Total other financing 
sources (uses) 22,500         587,100       614,600       27,500             

Net change in fund balance (37,200)        (306,319)      1,004           307,323           

Fund balance, beginning 1,045,241  1,045,241  1,045,241  -                 

Fund balance, ending 1,008,041$  738,922$     1,046,245$  307,323$         

-92-
-166-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



Balance Balance
July 1, 2012 Additions Deductions June 30, 2013

BROOKVALE ASSESSMENT DISTRICT

Assets
Cash and investments 15,883$       61$              -$             15,944$          
Accounts receivable 14 -               14                -                  

Total assets 15,897$       61$              14$              15,944$          

Liabilities
Due to bond holders 15,897$       47$              -$             15,944$          

Total liabilities 15,897$       47$              -$             15,944$          

AUTO CENTER ASSESSMENT DISTRICT

Assets
Cash and investments 20,215$       78$              -$             20,293$          
Accounts receivable 18 -               18                -                  

Total assets 20,233$      78$             18$              20,293$         

Year Ended June 30, 2013
Fiduciary Funds - Agency Funds

CITY OF CAPITOLA
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities

0, 33$ 8$ 8$ 0, 93$

Liabilities
Due to bond holders 20,233$       60$              -$             20,293$          

Total liabilities 20,233$       60$              -$             20,293$          

TOTALS - ALL AGENCY FUNDS

Assets
Cash and investments 36,098$       139$            -$             36,237$          
Accounts receivable 32                -               32                -                  

Total assets 36,130$       139$            32$              36,237$          

Liabilities
Due to bond holders 36,130$       107$            -$             36,237$          

Total liabilities 36,130$       107$            -$             36,237$          

-93-
-167-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



2013- 1 Net Position by Component
2013- 2 Changes in Net Position
2013- 3 Fund Balances of Government Funds
2013- 4 Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
2013- 5 General Revenues By Source

2013- 6 Net Taxable Assessed Value History
2013- 7 Assessed Value of Taxable Property
2013- 8 Direct & Overlapping Property Tax Rates
2013- 9 Top Ten Property Taxpayers
2013- 10 Property Tax Levies & Collections
2013- 11 Top 25 Sales Tax Taxpayers

2013- 12 Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type
2013- 13 Ratios of General Bonded Debt Outstanding
2013- 14 Direct and Overlapping Debt
2013- 15 Legal Debt Margin Information
2013- 16 Pledged-Revenue Coverage

2013- 17 Demographic and Economic Statistics
2013- 18 Principal Employers - Top Ten
2013- 19 Full-time and Part-time City Employees by Function

2013- 20 Operating Indicators by Function
2013- 21 Capital Asset Statistics by Function

CITY OF CAPITOLA
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

Table of Contents
Fiscal year ended June 30, 2013

Statistical Section (Unaudited)

Operating Information

Financial Trends

Revenue Capacity

Debt Capacity

Demographic and Economic Information

-94-

-168-

Item
 #: 9.E

. A
ttach

 1.p
d

f



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page intentionally left blank 

 
 

-169-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
Primary government activities

Invested in Capital Assets,
  Net of related debt 15,551$ 15,006$ 14,572$ 15,650$ 15,636$ 15,659$ 15,598$ 15,054$ 11,918$ 11,521$ 
Restricted for

Debt Service 437        -         -         -         -         -         -         -         -         -         
Public Safety -         -         -         14          4            -         -         10          51          101        
Transportation -         -         42          602        464        73          63          184        2,445     1,513     
Community Development 1,742     2,157     3,310     3,633     1,717     1,107     1,317     1,256     1,141     3,511     
Culture and Recreation -         -         -         -         -         -         -         185        88          77          

Total Restricted 2,179$   2,157$   3,352$   4,249$   2,185$   1,180$   1,380$   1,635$   3,725$   5,202$   

Unrestricted 3,547     1,944     4,732     5,135     3,191     3,435     4,575     3,249     4,134     4,893     
Total Primary govt net position 21,277$ 19,107$ 22,656$ 25,034$ 21,012$ 20,274$ 21,553$ 19,938$ 19,777$ 21,616$

Source:  City of Capitola Finance Department 2013-1

NOTES:  The City of Capitola has no business-type activities;  governmental and primary government figures are the same. The City of 
Capitola implemented GASB 34 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003.  

CITY OF CAPITOLA, CALIFORNIA
Net Position by Component
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(accrual basis of accounting)
(amounts expressed in thousands)

-95-

-170-

Item
 #: 9.E

. A
ttach

 1.p
d

f



EXPENSES: 2004 2005 2006 2007
Primary government activities

General government 4,654$        4,206$        3,963$        4,343$        
Public safety 4,254          4,542          5,350          5,733          
Community development 1,052          4,177          1,227          1,550          
Culture and recreation 1,385          1,476          1,511          1,596          
Transportation 1,432          1,397          1,501          1,697          
Interest and other charges 171             171             152             190             

Total primary government expenses 12,948$      15,969$      13,704$      15,109$      

PROGRAM REVENUES:
Primary government activities

Charges for services:
General government 1,218$        1,046$        724$           705$           
Public safety 617             609             556             688             
Community development 429             510             1,478          1,469          
Culture and recreation 705             769             685             749             
Transportation 32               34               11               18               

Operating grants and contributions 301             291             812             1,010          
Capital grants and contributions 496             324             161             514             

Total primary govt program revenues 3,798$        3,583$        4,427$        5,153$        

NET PRIMARY GOVT REV/(EXP) (9,150)$       (12,386)$     (9,277)$       (9,956)$       

CHANGES IN NET POSITION:
Primary government activities

Taxes:
Property Taxes 2,657$        2,903$        3,465$        3,916$        
Transaction and Use Tax (.25%) -              209             975             1,048          
Sales and Use tax 5,395          5,235          4,132          4,174          
Transient occupancy taxes 493             516             543             604             
Franchise taxes 364             391             418             438             
Business license tax -              -              303             326             
Other taxes -              -              -              -              

Intergovernmental 502             261             1,415          1,421          
Investment income 281             510             226             287             
Other general revenues 24               191             109             120             
Transfers -              -              -              -              
Extraordinary Item -              -              -              -              

Total primary government activities 9,716$        10,216$      11,586$      12,334$      

CHANGES IN NET POSITION:
Total primary government activities 566$          (2,170)$      2,309$        2,378$       

Source:  City of Capitola Finance Department

GENERAL REVENUES AND OTHER 

NOTES:  The City of Capitola implemented GASB 34 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003. 

CITY OF CAPITOLA, CALIFORNIA
Changes in Net Position
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(accrual basis of accounting)
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Fiscal Year

-96- -171-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

4,398$        4,482$        5,103$        5,453$        4,851$        4,862$        
5,298          5,927          5,533          5,422          5,491          5,411          
2,193          2,218          2,428          2,068          3,471          727             
1,658          1,035          1,025          995             1,010          1,398          
1,522          2,530          1,932          2,445          2,556          2,456          

589             533             509             448             419             288             
15,658$      16,725$      16,530$      16,831$      17,798$      15,142$      

794$           658$           806$           759$           1,059$        948$           
736             905             1,009          902             759             732             

1,153          1,617          2,266          1,077          1,145          523             
726             709             696             655             751             685             

13               34               53               54               166             145             
1,420          286             1,469          1,040          3,131          2,292          

-              527             388             421             -              3                 
4,842$        4,736$        6,687$        4,908$        7,011$        5,328$        

(10,816)$     (11,989)$     (9,843)$       (11,923)$     (10,787)$     (9,814)$       

4,034$        4,147$        4,066$        4,107$        2,993$        1,778$        
1,016          788             928             850             932             1,510          
3,939          2,858          3,289          3,002          3,322          4,531          

644             605             592             602             913             1,074          
437             459             462             477             483             479             
299             278             282             267             281             292             
-              -              -              -              -              -              

1,507          1,417          979             1,323          947             241             
379             394             238             185             190             131             
452             305             287             289             309             497             
-              -              -              -              -              -              
-              -              -              (795)            380             1,118          

12,707$      11,251$      11,123$      10,307$      10,750$      11,651$      

1,891$        (738)$          1,280$       (1,616)$      (37)$           1,837$        

2013-2

Fiscal Year

-97- -172-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page intentionally left blank 

 
 

-173-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

Reserved
Prepaid -$       1$           -$       -$         -$         21$          116$        
Advances 1,968     1,968     1,968     1,968       1,968       1,968       1,968       

Total Reserved 1,968$   1,969$   1,968$   1,968$     1,968$     1,989$     2,084$     
Unreserved

Designated 1,421$   2,060$   3,175$   3,467$     3,185$     2,659$     2,928$     
Unrestricted 683         886         1,340     1,342       1,350       1,350       1,350       

Total Unreserved 2,104$   2,946$   4,515$   4,809$     4,535$     4,009$     4,278$     
Fund Balance GASB 54

Nonspendable 1,973$    1,970$    2,024$    
Restricted -          -          -          
Committed -          -          -          
Assigned -          -          570          
Unassigned 2,786       2,608       2,846       

Total General Fund 4,072$   4,915$   6,483$   6,777$     6,503$     5,998$     6,362$     4,759$    4,578$    5,440$    

Reserved
Low income housing 1,742$   1,655$   1,790$   1,808$     -$         -$         -$         
Debt service 458         7             38           608          -           -           -           

Total Reserved 2,200$   1,662$   1,828$   2,416$     -$         -$         -$         
Unreserved, reported in:

Unrestricted -$       -$       -$       -$         -$         -$         -$         
Special revenue funds 612         612         714         938          3,423       2,976       1,643       
Capital project funds 840         194         475         440          1,874       1,322       627          
Debt service funds (397)       (302)       -         -           -           -           1,458       

Total Unreserved 1,055$   504$      1,189$   1,378$     5,297$     4,298$     3,728$     
Fund Balance GASB 54

Nonspendable 109$        586$        -$        
Restricted 1,705       1,858       1,497       
Committed -          -          -          
Assigned 1,564       1,045       1,046       
Unassigned (19)          (148)        (19)          

Total All Other Govt Funds 3,255$   2,166$   3,017$   3,794$     5,297$     4,298$     3,728$     3,359$    3,341$    2,524$    

TOTAL 7,327$   7,081$   9,500$   10,571$   11,800$   10,296$   10,090$   8,118$    7,919$    7,964$    

Source:  City of Capitola Finance Department 2013-3

CITY OF CAPITOLA, CALIFORNIA
Fund Balances of Government Funds
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(modified accrual basis of accounting)
(amounts expressed in thousands)

NOTES:  The City of Capitola implemented GASB 34 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003.  

 Represented below per GASB 54 

 Represented below per GASB 54 

Pre-GASB 54 balances stated above

Pre-GASB 54 balances stated above

GENERAL FUND

ALL OTHER GOVERNMENT FUNDS

-98-

-174-

Item
 #: 9.E

. A
ttach

 1.p
d

f



2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
REVENUES:

Taxes 8,909$        9,253$        11,375$      12,047$      12,008$      10,239$      
Licenses & permits 746             835             357             255             270             664             
Intergovernmental 1,206          918             750             1,225          1,121          1,745          
Fines and forefeitures 575             571             512             639             672             702             
Charges for services 1,405          1,578          2,092          2,263          2,467          1,744          
Use of money and property 440             510             778             971             1,046          812             
Other 193             299             86               89               434             178             

Total revenues 13,474$      13,964$      15,950$      17,489$      18,018$      16,084$      

EXPENSES:
Current:

General government 3,699$        3,437$        3,266$        3,583$        3,672$        3,591$        
Public safety 4,087          4,726          5,261          5,631          5,246          5,869          
Community development 1,075          1,547          1,358          1,831          2,324          2,362          
Culture and recreation 1,346          1,446          1,478          1,564          1,630          1,009          
Transportation 1,325          1,436          1,493          1,690          1,476          2,575          
Capital outlay 1,640          885             413             1,858          1,015          1,224          

Subtotal 13,172$      13,477$      13,269$      16,157$      15,363$      16,630$      

Debt service:
Cost of Issuance -$            -$            -$            -$            125$           -$            
Principal retirement 959             559             91               91               123             499             
Interest and agent fees 196             174             171             170             471             529             

Subtotal 1,155$        733$           262$           261$           719$           1,028$        

Total expenditures 14,327$      14,210$      13,531$      16,418$      16,082$      17,658$      
Excess/(deficiency) of revenues 
    over/(under) expenditures (853)$          (246)$         2,419$       1,071$       1,936$        (1,574)$      

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/(USES):
Sale of capital assets 1,239$        -$            -$            -$            166$           -$            
Transfers in 1,624          469             1,053          1,764          2,754          1,775          
Transfers out (1,624)         (469)            (1,053)         (1,764)         (2,754)         (1,775)         
Issuance of bonds -              -              -              -              5,040          -              
Payment to bond escrow agent -              -              -              -              -              -              

Total other financing sources/(uses) 1,239$        -$            -$            -$            5,206$        -$            
Special Items

Flood Disaster loss/recovery -$            -$            -$            -$            -$            -$            
Prefunding of PERS liability -              -              -              -              (5,913)         -              
Gain/Loss on RDA dissolution -              -              -              -              -              -              

Net change in fund balances 386$          (246)$         2,419$       1,071$       1,229$        (1,574)$      

Beginning fund balance, as restated 6,941$        7,327$        7,081$        9,500$        10,571$      11,800$      
Changes in fund balance 386             (246)            2,419          1,071          1,229          (1,574)         
Ending fund balance 7,327$        7,081$       9,500$       10,571$     11,800$      10,226$     

Debt service as a percentage
   of noncapital expenditures 8.28% 5.50% 2.01% 1.82% 4.75% 6.25%

Source:  City of Capitola Finance Department

Fiscal Year

Debt service as a percentage of noncapital expenditures reflects total governmental fund expenditures less the capital 
outlay shown separately in the Changes in Fund Balances schedule as capital outlays and any expenditures for 
capitalized assets contained within the functional expenditure categories.  The sum of these is reported as a reconciling 
item in the reconciliation of the statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances of the governmental 
funds to the statement of activities.

NOTES:  The City of Capitola implemented GASB 34 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003. 

CITY OF CAPITOLA
Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(modified accrual basis of accounting)
(amounts expressed in thousands)

-99-
-175-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



2010 2011 2012 2013

10,285$      10,335$      9,878$        9,607$        
609             474             630             520             

2,932          2,426          2,755          837             
803             702             724             688             

1,380          1,278          1,907          1,862          
595             492             403             235             
163             173             90               238             

16,767$      15,880$      16,387$      13,987$      

4,232$        4,483$        4,034$        3,865$        
5,441          5,468          5,436          5,369          
2,338          1,986          3,458          712             

986             1,009          1,041          1,118          
2,017          2,294          2,204          2,157          

847             665             757             551             
15,861$      15,905$      16,930$      13,772$      

-$            -$            43$             38$             
535             704             673             1,031          
507             447             394             320             

1,042$        1,151$        1,110$        1,389$        

16,903$      17,056$      18,040$      15,161$      

(136)$          (1,176)$       (1,653)$       (1,174)$       

-$            -$            2,390$        99$             
1,337          1,945          2,272          2,151          

(1,337)         (1,945)         (2,272)         (2,151)         
-              -              -              -              
-              -              -              -              
-$            -$            2,390$        99$             

-$            (795)$          (623)$          1,118$        
-              -              -              -              
-              -              (190)            -              

(136)$          (1,971)$       (76)$            43$            

10,226$      10,090$      7,995$        7,920$        
(136)            (1,971)         (75)              43               

10,090$      8,119$        7,920$        7,963$        

6.51% 6.92% 6.45% 9.35%

2013-4

Fiscal Year

-100-
-176-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



(amounts expressed in thousands)

Fiscal 
Year

 Sales Tax 
Revenue (1)

Property 
Taxes (2)

Transient 
Occupancy 

Tax
Franchise 

Taxes
Business 
Licenses

Investment 
Income

Miscellaneous, 
Intergovern-
mental, and 

Other 
Revenues

Total General 
Revenues

2004 5,394,876$ 2,656,740$   493,364$  363,655$  272,200$  281,245$  253,478$       9,715,558$   
2005 5,234,955   3,111,857     515,578    390,908    319,000    509,839    133,918         10,216,055   
2006 6,460,002   3,464,933     543,438    417,451    302,890    225,995    171,041         11,585,750   
2007 6,579,908   3,915,955     603,997    438,412    325,946    287,069    183,019         12,334,306   
2008 6,417,075   4,033,686     643,541    437,065    299,394    379,439    497,094         12,707,294   
2009 4,859,096   4,147,459     605,365    459,042    277,959    394,135    507,957         11,251,013   
2010 4,993,844   4,065,897     591,925    461,937    281,739    237,926    489,162         11,122,430   
2011 4,890,518   4,107,291     601,726    477,084    266,948    185,346    573,436         11,102,349   
2012 5,200,303   2,993,125     912,851  482,782  281,336  190,390   309,110       10,369,897 
2013 6,040,542   1,778,037     1,074,507 478,627  291,642  131,166   398,320       10,192,841 

NOTES:

Source:  City of Capitola Finance Department 2013-5

(1)  Capitola had a 0.25% local Transaction and Use Tax in effect beginning April 2005.  In April 2013 an additional 
overlapping 0.25% local Transaction & Use Tax was implemented.  In January, 2018, the extension of the original 0.25% will 
expire and the local Transaction & Use Tax will revert to 0.25%. 
(2)  Beginning in fiscal year 2006, the State of California included "Property Taxes In Lieu of Vehicle License Fees" as part of 
the Property Tax distributions.  Dissolution of the Redevelopment Agencies in California in fiscal 2012 reduced property taxes 
by the tax increment formerly received by the Agencies. 

CITY OF CAPITOLA, CALIFORNIA
General Revenues By Source
Last Ten Fiscal Years

General Revenue By Source

-101--177-

Item
 #: 9.E

. A
ttach

 1.p
d

f



Net Taxable Assessed Value History

(amounts expressed in thousands)

Secured Unsecured
SBE 

Nonunitary

Total 
Assessed 

Value
% 

Change
2004 1,210,228     63,451         1,066           1,274,745      n/a
2005 1,280,108     63,427         1,508           1,345,043      5.51%
2006 1,388,112     62,489         1,456           1,452,057      7.96%
2007 1,511,826     68,819         1,330           1,581,975      8.95%
2008 1,624,095     71,157         748              1,696,000      7.21%
2009 1,681,379     73,387         748              1,755,514      3.51%
2010 1,689,396     67,883         889              1,758,168      0.15%
2011 1,701,476     70,118         579              1,772,173      0.80%
2012 1,717,637     66,695         579              1,784,911      0.72%
2013 1,726,023     71,136         83                1,797,242      0.69%

2013-6

CITY OF CAPITOLA, CALIFORNIA

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal 
Year 

City of Capitola

Source:  HdL Companies, Santa Cruz County Assessor 2012/13 Combined Tax 
Rolls

NOTES:  California Consitution Article 13A establishes a county assessor "full 
cash value" property valuation formulated on varying base years and not at 
current fair market value.  As a result, there is not a reasonable basis available 
for estimating actual value of taxable property for the City of Capitola for 
comparative purposes. 

-102- -178-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



CITY OF CAPITOLA, CALIFORNIA
Assessed Value of Taxable Property
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(amounts expressed in thousands)

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
833,954$     891,359$     982,739$     1,089,341$  1,164,558$  1,212,668$  1,209,657$  1,224,372$  1,241,453$  1,233,173$  
300,850       306,386       315,660       327,341       341,720       350,240       363,033       367,656       369,399       387,425       

11,102         11,314         11,541         13,881         14,558         14,849         15,146         15,520         14,239         13,869         
11,143         11,676         11,954         14,582         14,905         13,345         14,748         16,950         14,788         15,078         

5                  5                  5                  5                  5                  5                  114              5                  6                  6                  
4,992           5,085           5,069           5,171           6,895           9,946           10,145         10,121         10,197         10,401         

18,299         20,050         22,906         19,184         34,619         30,120         24,165         13,773         13,303         13,370         
1,066           1,508           1,456           1,330           748              748              889              579              579              83                

29,883         34,233         38,238         42,321         46,835         50,206         52,388         53,079         54,252         52,701         
63,451         63,427         62,489         68,819         71,157         73,387         67,883         70,118         66,695         71,136         

 $ 1,274,745  $ 1,345,043  $ 1,452,057  $ 1,581,975  $ 1,696,000  $ 1,755,514  $ 1,758,168  $ 1,772,173  $ 1,784,911  $ 1,797,242 
          (1,066)           (1,508)           (1,456)           (1,330)              (748)              (748)              (889)              (579)              (579)                (83)
       0.19298        0.19007        0.18517        0.18133        0.17950        0.18062        0.18468        0.18456        0.17987        0.18035 

NOTES:  Exempt values are not included in total.

Source:  HdL Companies, Santa Cruz County Assessor 2003/04 - 2012/13 Combined Tax Rolls
2013-7

Institutional

Unsecured

Category
Residential
Commercial
Industrial

Cross Reference

In 1978 the voters of the State of California passed Proposition 13 which limited taxes to a total maximum rate of 1%, based upon the the assessed value of the property being taxed. 
Each year, the assessed value of property may be increased by an "inflation factor" (limited to a maximum of 2%). With few exceptions, property is only reassessed as a result of new 
construction activity or at the time it is sold to a new owner. At that point, the property is reassessed based upon the added value of the construction or at the purchase price (market 
value) or economic value of the property sold. The assessed valuation data shown above represents the only data currently available with respect to the actual market value of taxable 
property and is subject to the limitations described above.

Exempt
TOTALS

 Total Direct Property Tax Rate

Miscellaneous
Recreational
Vacant
SBE Nonunitary

-103-

-179-

Item
 #: 9.E

. A
ttach

 1.p
d

f



Last Ten Fiscal Years

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
City Direct Property Tax Rates

Basic Levy (1) 1.00000   1.00000   1.00000   1.00000   1.00000   1.00000   1.00000   1.00000   1.00000   1.00000   
Redevelopment Rate (2) 1.00000   1.00000   1.00000   1.00000   1.00000   1.00000   1.00000   1.00000   1.00000   (2)
Total Direct Property Tax Rate (3) 0.19298   0.19007   0.18517   0.18133   0.17950   0.18062   0.18468   0.18456   0.17987   0.18035   

Overlapping Property Tax Rates (4)

Santa Cruz High School 0.03700   0.03300   0.03900   0.01367   0.01924   0.02274   0.02798   0.02336   0.02602   0.02615   
Soquel Elementary School 0.02600   0.02900   0.02000   0.02114   0.02772   0.02320   0.02364   0.02435   0.02406   0.02435   
Live Oak Elementary School 0.02300   0.04200   0.04300   0.05187   0.04776   0.04842   0.04939   0.05246   0.05295   0.05514   
Cabrillo College 0.01900   0.03800   0.03700   0.02670   0.03000   0.03324   0.03598   0.03609   0.03896   0.04048   
Total Overlapping Property Tax Rate (3) 0.10500   0.14200   0.13900   0.11338   0.12472   0.12760   0.13699   0.13626   0.14199   0.14612   

City Share of 1% levy per Proposition 13 (5) 0.07471   0.07471   0.07471   0.07471   0.07471   0.07471   0.07471   0.07471   0.07471   0.07471   

Total Direct Rate (3) 0.19298   0.19007   0.18517   0.18133   0.17950   0.18062   0.18468   0.18456   0.17987   0.18035   
Total Direct & Overlapping Rate 1.10500   1.14200   1.13900   1.11338   1.12472   1.12760   1.13699   1.13626   1.14199   1.14612   

NOTES:

2013-8SOURCE:  HdL Companies, Santa Cruz County Assessor's Office

CITY OF CAPITOLA, CALIFORNIA

(Rate per $100 of taxable value)

Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates

Fiscal Year

(1)  In 1978, California voters passed Proposition 13 which set the property tax rate at a 1.00% fixed amount.  This 1.00% is shared by all taxing agencies for which the subject 
property resides within.  In addition to the 1.00% fixed amount, property owners are charged taxes as a percentage of assessed property values for the payment of any voter 
(2)  Redevelopment Rate is based on the largest RDA tax rate area and only includes rate(s) from indebtedness adopted prior to 1989 per California State statute.  RDA direct and 
overlapping rates are applied only to the incremental proeprty balues.  The approval of ABX1 26 eliminated Redevelopment from the State of California for the fiscal year 2012-13 

d th ft(3)  Because basic and debt rates vary by tax rate area individual rates cannot be summed.  The Total Direct Rate is the weighted average of all individual direct rates applied by the 
government preparing the statistical section information.
(4)  Overlapping rates are those of local and county governments that apply to property owners within the City.  Not all overlapping rates apply to all city property owners.
(5)  City's Share of 1% Levy is based on the City's share of the general fund tax rate area with the largest net taxable value within the city.  ERAF general fund tax shifts may not be 

-104-

-180-

Item
 #: 9.E

. A
ttach

 1.p
d

f



Top Ten Property Taxpayers

Taxpayer
2013 Net Assessed 

Valuation

Percent of Total City 
Net Assessed 

Valuation
 2004 Net Assessed 

Valuation 

Percent of Total City 
Net Assessed 

Valuation

Macerich Partnership LP  $              61,963,872 3.45%  $               59,061,052 4.63%
Macerich Capitola Adjacent LP                  25,500,000 1.42%
Aspromonte Hotels LLC                  18,064,732 1.01%
Ow George Jr Trustees Et al                  13,656,353 0.76%                   11,877,187 0.93%
Brown Ranch Properties 11,018,631                0.61% 9,398,848                   0.74%
Macquarie Capitola Villas Inc                  10,126,114 0.56%
Target Corporation                    8,498,000 0.47%
Melanie Kett Wirtanen Trustee                    8,115,441 0.45%
850 Rosedale LLC 7,911,701                  0.44%
1100 41st Avenue LLC 7,430,140                  0.41%

Baskin Properties LLC                   13,453,243 1.06%
Dan Bochner et al                   11,232,165 0.88%
Macys West Inc                     9,378,475 0.74%
Values Pacific                     8,881,824 0.70%
The Salvation Army Corporation                     8,677,620 0.68%
Harry L. and Anna Jenkins                     8,162,235 0.64%
Redtree Properties LP                     6,869,795 0.54%

172,284,984$           9.59% 146,992,444$            11.53%

   Memo:  Gross Assessed Value 1,797,242,490$         100.00% 1,274,744,694$          100.00%

2013-9

Source:  HdL Companies, Santa Cruz County Assessor2012/13 Combined Tax Rolls and the SBE Non Unitary Tax Roll 

CITY OF CAPITOLA, CALIFORNIA

Current Year and Nine Years Ago

2013 2004

-105-

-181-

Item
 #: 9.E

. A
ttach

 1.p
d

f



Amount
Percent of 

Levy Amount
Percent of 

Levy
2004 2,200,889$     2,200,889$    100% - 2,200,889$      100%
2005 2,268,012       2,268,012      100% - 2,268,012        100%
2006 2,412,712       2,412,712      100% - 2,412,712        100%
2007 2,605,158       2,605,158      100% - 2,605,158        100%
2008 2,715,388       2,715,388      100% - 2,715,388        100%
2009 2,851,724       2,851,724      100% - 2,851,724        100%
2010 2,783,546       2,783,546      100% - 2,783,546        100%
2011 2,813,554       2,813,554      100% - 2,813,554        100%
2012 1,900,533       1,900,533      100% - 1,900,533        100%
2013 899,975          899,975         100% - 899,975           100%

2013-10

Property Taxes 
Levied for the 
Fiscal Year

Reduction in property taxes levied from 2011 through 2013 reflects the 2/1/2012 State of California dissolution 
of Redevelpment Agencies and the associated elimination of tax increment received by the City of Capitola.

CITY OF CAPITOLA, CALIFORNIA
Property Tax Levies and Collections
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Source:  Santa Cruz County Auditor-Controller, City of Capitola Finance Department.

NOTES:  Figures presented include City property taxes and Redevelopment Agency tax increment, as well as 
amounts collected by the City and Redevelopment Agency that are pass throughs for other agencies, and real 
and personal property.  The figures do not include Property Taxes In Lieu of Vehicle License Fees.  In fiscal 
year 1993-94, Santa Cruz County adopted the Teeter Plan under which the City of Capitola receives its entire 
tax levy, regardless of delinquencies as long as it qualifies for the Teeter Plan.

Fiscal Year 
Ended June 

30,

Collected within the Fiscal 
Year of Levy Total Collections to Date

Collections in 
Subsequent 

Years

-106-

-182-

Item
 #: 9.E

. A
ttach

 1.p
d

f



CITY OF CAPITOLA, CALIFORNIA
Top 25 Sales Tax Taxpayers, as of June 30, 2013
Listed alphabetically

TOP 25 SALES TAX TAXPAYERS

AT&T Mobility** 41st Avenue
Bed Bath & Beyond Clares Street
Beverages & More 41st Avenue
Big 5 Sporting Goods 41st Avenue
Chevron Service Station (AJ's Fuel Market of Capitola) - Bay Ave. Bay Avenue
Chevron Service Station (Chevron USA) - 41st Ave. 41st Avenue
CVS - combined 41st and Bay Ave. 41st and Bay Avenues
Kohls 41st Avenue
Macy's Department Store 41st Avenue
Nob Hill General Stores Bay Avenue
O'Neill Surf Shop 41st Avenue
Orchard Supply Hardware 41st Avenue
Ross Stores 41st Avenue
Santa Cruz Mazda Auto Plaza Drive
Save Mart Supermarkets 41st Avenue
Sears Roebuck & Company Capitola Road
Shadowbrook Restaurant Wharf Road
Shell Service Stations 41st Avenue
Target* 41st Avenue
Toyota of Santa Cruz Auto Plaza Drive
Trader Joe's Clares Street
Union 76 Service Station (Capitola 76) - 41st Ave. 41st Avenue
Union 76 Service Station (Gawfco Enterprises) - 41st Ave. 41st Avenue
Verizon Wireless 41st Avenue
Whole Foods 41st Avenue

NOTES:

* Indicates new to Top 25
** Indicates return to Top 25 after at least one year out of the top twenty-five.
Source:  California State Board of Equalization 2013-11

Information presented is as of June, 2013.  It is alphabetical and is not indicative of relative nor total 
sales volume.  

-107-

-183-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



(amounts expressed in dollars unless otherwise noted)

2004 -$             440,000$     2,642,477$    3,082,477$      1.01% 306$     
2005 -               -               4,771,059      4,771,059        1.46% 477       
2006 -               -               3,558,373      3,558,373        1.02% 359       
2007 -               -               3,586,079      3,586,079        0.94% 362       
2008 5,040,000    -               3,658,424      8,698,424        2.14% 877       
2009 4,670,000    -               275,875         4,945,875        1.19% 495       
2010 4,265,000    -               3,749,414      8,014,414        2.00% 795       
2011 3,830,000    -               3,543,270      7,373,270        2.23% 723       
2012 3,375,000    -               3,310,005      6,685,005        2.02% 670       
2013 2,890,000    -               2,890,398      5,780,398        1.73% 579       

Source:  City of Capitola Financial Statements 2013-12

Fiscal 
Year 

Ended   
June 30

General 
Obligation 

Bonds

Lease 
Revenue 

Bonds Other debt

CITY OF CAPITOLA, CALIFORNIA
Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Government/Total Primary Government Activities

Other debt has been restated for years 2004 through 2013 per comment from Government Finance 
Officers Association (GFOA) and includes as applicable tax anticipation note, county library long term 
debt, capital leases, net Other Post Emplyment Benefits (OPEB) obligation, compensated absences 
as of year end, notes payable, and RDA deferred pass throughs.  

Tot. Gov't./ 
Primary Gov't. 

Activities

NOTES:  The City of Capitola has no business-type activities;  governmental and total primary 
government figures are the same.  Details regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the 
notes to the financial statements.
In July, 2007, the City of Capitola issued a $5,040,000 Pension Obligation Bond (POB) which was 
used to pay off the City's CalPERS unfunded pension liability as of that point in time.

Total 
Outstanding 
Debt as a % 

of Total 
Personal 
Income

Debt per 
Capita 

-108- -184-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



(amounts expressed in dollars unless otherwise noted)

2004 -$             440,000$     2,642,477$    3,082,477$      1.01% 306$     
2005 -               -               4,771,059      4,771,059        1.46% 477       
2006 -               -               3,558,373      3,558,373        1.02% 359       
2007 -               -               3,586,079      3,586,079        0.94% 362       
2008 5,040,000    -               3,658,424      8,698,424        2.14% 877       
2009 4,670,000    -               275,875         4,945,875        1.19% 495       
2010 4,265,000    -               3,749,414      8,014,414        2.00% 795       
2011 3,830,000    -               3,543,270      7,373,270        2.23% 723       
2012 3,375,000    3,310,005      6,685,005        2.02% 670       
2013 2,890,000    2,890,398      5,780,398        1.73% 579       

Source:  City of Capitola Financial Statements 2013-13

CITY OF CAPITOLA, CALIFORNIA
Ratios of General Bonded Debt Outstanding
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Government/Total Primary Government Activities Total 
Outstanding 

Debt to 
Personal 
Income

Debt per 
Capita 

NOTES:  The City of Capitola has no business-type activities;  governmental and total primary 
government figures are the same.  Details regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the 
notes to the financial statements.
In July, 2007, the City of Capitola issued a $5,040,000 Pension Obligation Bond (POB) which was 
used to pay off the City's CalPERS unfunded pension liability as of that point in time.
Other debt has been restated for years 2004 through 2013 per comment from Government Finance 
Officers Association (GFOA) and includes as applicable tax anticipation note, county library long term 
debt, capital leases, net Other Post Emplyment Benefits (OPEB) obligation, compensated absences 
as of year end, notes payable, and RDA deferred pass throughs.  

Fiscal 
Year 

Ended   
June 30

General 
Obligation 

Bonds

Lease 
Revenue 

Bonds Other debt

Tot. Gov't./ 
Primary Gov't. 

Activities

-109- -185-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



CITY OF CAPITOLA, CALIFORNIA
Direct & Overlapping Debt
Fiscal Year end
June 30, 2013

2012-13 Assessed Valuation 1,797,242,490$     

Total Debt City’s Share of
OVERLAPPING TAX AND ASSESSMENT DEBT: % Applicable (1) 6/30/2013 Debt 6/30/2013

Cabrillo Joint Community College District 5.431% 148,995,101$        8,091,924$     
Santa Cruz City High School District 11.742% 40,371,526            4,740,425        
Live Oak School District 7.002% 16,621,079            1,163,808        
Soquel Union School District 38.548% 11,440,000            4,409,891        

  TOTAL OVERLAPPING TAX AND ASSESSMENT DEBT 217,427,706$        18,406,048$   

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GENERAL FUND DEBT:
Santa Cruz County Certificates of Participation 5.479% 67,237,262$          3,683,930$     
Santa Cruz County Office of Education Certificates of Participation 5.479% 10,690,000            585,705           
Cabrillo Joint Community College District Certificates of Participation 5.431% 1,480,000              80,379             
Live Oak School District Certificates of Participation 7.002% 15,127,892            1,059,255        
Soquel Union School District 38.548% 1,930,000              743,976           
Santa Cruz City Schools Certificates of Participation 11.742% 6,031,000              708,160           
City of Capitola General Fund Obligations 100.000% 1,043,262              1,043,262        
City of Capitola Lease Financing 100.000% 1,847,136              1,847,136        
City of Capitola Pension Obligation Bond 100.000% 2,890,000             2,890,000      
Monterey Bay Unified Air Pollution Control Authority Certificates of Participation 2.040% 1,755,000              35,802             

  TOTAL GROSS DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GENERAL FUND DEBT 110,031,552$        12,677,605$   

TOTAL DIRECT DEBT 5,780,398$            5,780,398$     
TOTAL OVERLAPPING 321,678,860$        25,303,255$   
COMBINED TOTAL DEBT 327,459,258$        31,083,653$   (2)

Ratios to 2011-12 Assessed Valuation
Total Overlapping Tax and Assessment Debt 1.02%

Ratios to Adjusted Assessed Valuation
Combined Direct Debt  ($5,780,399) 0.32%
Combined Total Debt 1.73%

STATE SCHOOL BUILDING AID REPAYABLE AS OF 6/30/13 $0

Source:  MuniServices, LLC, City of Captiola Finance Department 2013-14

(2)  Excludes tax and revenue anticipation notes, revenue, mortgage revenue and non-bonded capital lease obligations.  Qualified Zone 
Academy Bonds are included based on principal due at maturity.

(1)  The percentage of overlapping debt applicable to the city is estimated using taxable assessed property value.  Applicable percentages 
were estimated by determining the portion of the overlapping district's assessed value that is within the boundaries of the city divided by the 
district's total taxable assesed value.

-110-

-186-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

Assessed Valuation 1,274,745$    1,345,043$    1,452,057$    1,581,975$    1,696,000$    1,755,514$    1,758,168$    1,772,173$    1,784,911$    1,797,242$    

RDA Base Valuation 194,534         202,415         202,415         214,599         226,445         234,375         241,401         243,413         238,631         242,272         
Adj. assessed valuation 1,080,211$    1,142,628$    1,249,642$    1,367,376$    1,469,555$    1,521,139$    1,516,767$    1,528,760$    1,546,280$    1,554,970$    

Debt limit percentage 15% 15% 15% 15% 15% 15% 15% 15% 15% 15%
Debt limit 162,032         171,394         187,446         205,106         220,433         228,171         227,515         229,314         231,942         233,246         
Total net applicable debt  

Gen. obligation bonds 440                -                -                -                5,040             4,670             4,265             3,830             3,375             2,890             
Legal debt margin 161,592$       171,394$       187,446$       205,106$       215,393$       223,501$       223,250$       225,484$       228,567$       230,356$       

0.27% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 2.34% 2.09% 1.91% 1.70% 1.48% 1.25%

Source: Santa Cruz County Auditor-Controller, Santa Cruz County Assessor, City of Capitola Finance Department
2013-15

CITY OF CAPITOLA

(amounts expressed in thousands)
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year

NOTES:  The bonded indebtedness of the City may not in the aggregate exceed the sum of fifteen (15%) of the total assessed valuation of property within the City, exclusive of any indebtedness 
that has been or may hereafter be incurred for the purposes of acquiring, constructing, extending, or maintaining municipally owned assets for which purposes a further indebtedness may be 
incurred by the issuance of bonds, subject only to the provisions of the City of Capitola bylaws and the State Constitution.

Ratio of Total Net Applicable 
Debt to Debt Limit 

Legal Debt Margin Information

-111-

-187-

Item
 #: 9.E

. A
ttach

 1.p
d

f



Principal Interest Principal Interest

2004 -$         -$         -$         n/a -$         -$         -$         n/a
2005 -           -           -           n/a -           -           -           n/a
2006 -           -           -           n/a -           -           -           n/a
2007 -           -           -           n/a -           -           -           n/a
2008 -           -           -           n/a -           -           -           n/a
2009 -           -           -           n/a -           -           -           n/a
2010 -           -           -           n/a -           -           -           n/a
2011 -           -           -           n/a -           -           -           n/a
2012 -           -           -           n/a -           -           -           n/a
2013 -           -           -           n/a -           -           -           n/a

NOTES:  The City of Capitola has no tax allocation bonds or other revenue bonds.
SOURCE:  City of Capitola Finance Department 2013-16

CITY OF CAPITOLA
Pledged-Revenue Coverage 
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Tax Allocation Bonds

Coverage

Other Revenue Bonds
Fiscal 
Year 

Ended 
June 30,

Tax 
Increment

Available 
Revenue

Debt ServiceDebt Service

Coverage

-112-

-188-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



Calendar Year Population

Total Personal 
Income (In 
Thousands)

Per Capita 
Personal 
Income Median Age

Unemployment 
Rate

2004 10,084             305,265$         30,272$           38.0 3.8%
2005 10,011             327,558           32,720             38.0 3.4%
2006 9,913               347,750           35,080             37.0 3.5%
2007 9,901               382,055           38,588             37.0 3.1%
2008 9,922               405,993           40,918             37.0 3.2%
2009 9,992               414,240           41,457             38.0 4.1%
2010 10,078             400,794           39,769             41.3 6.4%
2011 10,198             329,905           32,350             38.3 7.3%
2012 9,981               330,271           33,090             42.9 6.9%
2013 9,988               334,029           33,443             41.1 5.5%

NOTES:  For calendar year ended during the fiscal year.

2013-17

CITY OF CAPITOLA
Demographic and Economic Statistics
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Sources:  HdL Companies, California State Department of Finance, California Employment Development 
Department,  ESRI, U. S. Census Bureau, American Community Survey 

-113- -189-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



Employer Ranking
Number of 
Employees

% of Total 
Employment

Number of 
Employees

% of Total 
Employment

Target 1 200 2.90% 0.00%
Macys 2 200 2.90% 250 3.73%
Subaru, Toyota, Kia of Santa Cruz 3 177 2.57% 0.00%
Gayles Bakery & Rosticceria 4 159 2.30% 0.00%
Whole Foods Market 5 127 1.84% 0.00%
Shadowbrook Restaurant/aka Culinary Enterprises 6 119 1.72% 135 2.01%
Trader Joe's 7 108 1.57% 100 1.49%
Kohl's 8 102 1.48% 0.00%
Sears 9 100 1.45% 0.00%
Nob Hill Foods 10 96 1.39% 0.00%

0.00%
Mervyn's LLC (2) 230 3.43%
Santa Cruz County Office of Education (3) 220 3.28%
Gottschalks Inc. (4) 188 2.81%
Sears (5) 150 2.24%
Orchard Supply Hardware (5) 125 1.87%
Spa Fitness Centers, Inc. (6) 125 1.87%
Longs Drug Stores  (7) 100 1.49%

1388 20.12% 1623 24.22%

Total City Labor Force 6900 100.00% 6701 100.00%

SOURCE:  MuniService, LLC, City of Capitola Finance Department 2013-18

(7)  Longs Drug Stores had two locations in the City of Capitola that were acquired by and now do business as CVS 
Pharmacy.

(6)  Spa Fitness Centers, Inc. changed ownership and now does business as In-Shape Capitola.  They are not currently 
one of the top ten employers in the City.

2006 (1)2013

(5)  Sears and Orchard Supply Hardware remain in business in Capitola but are not currently one of the top ten 
employers in the City.

CITY OF CAPITOLA
Principal Employers - Top Ten 
Current year and 2006 (1)

(1)  2006 is the closest year to the prescribed comparison with available data.  2006 information based on direct 
communication with the City's businesses.

(4)  Gottschalks Inc. closed the Capitola store at the end of fiscal year 2009 and was remodeled and opened as Target 
(#1) in July, 2012.

(2)  Mervyn's LLC closed the Capitola store at the end of calendar 2008 and was replaced by Kohl's (#8) in October 
2009.
(3)  The County Office of Education moved to a new facility outside  of the City in August, 2011.

-114-

-190-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 1.pdf



Function 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
General government

City Manager 7.50 7.50 7.50 7.50 7.50 7.50 7.50 7.50 7.75 7.65
Finance 5.25 5.25 5.25 5.25 5.38 4.38 4.38 4.38 4.38 4.38
City Attorney 0.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00

12.75 13.75 13.75 13.75 13.88 12.88 12.88 12.88 13.13 13.03
Police

Chief, Captain, Sgts. 7.00 7.00 7.00 7.00 7.00 6.00 6.00 6.00 6.00 6.00
Officers 13.00 13.00 14.00 15.00 15.00 15.00 15.00 15.50 15.00 15.00
CSOs 2.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 3.00
Parking Enforcement 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 2.00 3.00 2.00
Administrative 3.25 5.50 5.75 6.50 6.50 6.50 4.75 4.75 3.75 4.25

28.25 31.50 32.75 34.50 34.50 33.50 30.75 30.25 29.75 30.25
Public Works

Streets 8.33 8.33 8.33 8.00 8.33 8.33 7.33 7.33 7.33 5.00
Parks 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 4.00 4.00 3.00 4.00
Fleet Maintenance 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00

14.33 14.33 14.33 14.00 14.33 14.33 12.33 12.33 11.33 10.00
Recreation

Supervisor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Other - full year 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 1.50 1.50 1.50 1.50 2.00

3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 2.50 2.50 2.50 2.50 3.00

Community Development 3.67 4.67 4.67 4.00 4.67 4.67 3.67 3.67 1.67 2.00

Building 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 1.00 1.50 2.00 2.00
Total City Employees 64.00 69.25 70.50 71.25 72.38 69.88 63.13 63.13 60.38 60.28

NOTES:  Full time equivalents (FTE);  does not include temporary or seasonal employees
SOURCE:  City of Capitola Finance Department 2013-19

CITY OF CAPITOLA
Full-time and Part-time City Employees by Function
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year

-115-

-191-

Item
 #: 9.E

. A
ttach

 1.p
d

f



INDICATOR 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
Police department

Adult arrests 852     877     879     1,069  1,000  908     850     731     766     693     
Calls for service (in thousands) 22       18       21       22       21       20              20        19        20        16 

Public works
Miles paved 26       26       26       26       26       26       26       26       26       26       

New construction
Commercial units 2         -          2         3         1         1         1         -          -          -          

Valuation (in millions) 1$       -          4$       5$       1$       1$       13$     -          -          -          

Residential units (1) 7       10     17     18     69      122    8       3       7       9       
Valuation (in millions) 3$       4$       6$       6$       11$     20$     2$       1$       3$       3$       

Recreation Revenue
(in thousands)
Classes 330$  321$  335$  356$  378$  336$  319$  325$  329$  298$  
Sports fees 79       61       72       82       70       71       59       61       60       53       
Junior Guard 142     171     169     184     175     194     214     220     241     240     
Camp Capitola 54       71       67       76       80       80       79       102     121     94       
Aquatics 24       27       27       23       19       -      -      -      -      -      

Net Class Revenue 629$   651$   670$   721$   722$   681$   671$   708$   751$   685$   

Jade St. Rental 7       16     16     8       7        4        5       5       6       7       
Net Recreation Rev 636$  667$  686$  729$  729$  685$  676$  713$  757$  692$  

(1)  Residential units and associated valuations are total additional, new or substantially new (by code definition) units. 

2013-20

Source:  City of Capitola Building Department, Finance Department, Police Department, Public Works Department

CITY OF CAPITOLA
Operating Indicators by Function
Last Ten Fiscal Years (except as noted)

Fiscal Year

-116-

-192-

Item
 #: 9.E

. A
ttach

 1.p
d

f



Indicator 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
Police

Stations 1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         

Public works
Streets (miles) 26       26       26       26       26       26       26       26       26       26       
Streetlights 71       71       71       71       71       71       71       71       71       71       
Traffic signals 8         8         8         8         8         8         8         8         8         8         

Parks and recreation
Parks 7         7         7         7         7         7         7         7         7         7         
Community centers 1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1         

General
Commercial buildings 2         2         2         2         2         2         2         2         2         2         

Source: City of Capitola Public Works Department 2013-21

CITY OF CAPITOLA
Captial Asset Statistics by Function
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year

-117-

-193-

Item
 #: 9.E

. A
ttach

 1.p
d

f



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-194-



January 14, 2014 

Rogers, Anderson, Malady & Scott, LLP 
735 E. Carnegie Drive, Suite 100 
San Bernardino, CA 92408 

420 CAPLTOLA AVENUE 

CAPLTOLA , CA L IFORNLA 9:10LO 

TELEPHONE ( 83L J 475·7300 

FAX (83 1 ) 479 · 8879 

This representation letter is provided in connection with your audit of the financial statements of 
the City of Capitola, which comprise the respective financial position of the governmental 
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information as of June 30, 2013, 
and the respective changes in financial position for the year then ended, and the related notes 
to the financial statements, for the purpose of expressing opinions as to whether the financial 
statements are presented fairly, in all material respects . in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP). 

Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters thai are material. 
Items are considered material , regardless of size, if they involve an omission or misstatement of 
accounting information that, in light of surrounding circumstances, makes it probable that the 
judgment of a reasonable person relying on the information would be changed or influenced by 
the omission or misstatement. An omission or misstatement that is monetarily small in amount 
could be considered material as a result of qualitative factors. 

We confirm, to the best of our knowledge and belief, as of December 30, 2013, the following 
representations made to you during your audit. 

Financial Statements 

1) We have fulfilled our responsibilities. as set ou t in Ihe terms of the audit engagement letter 
dated May 6, 2013, including our responsibility for the preparation and fair presentation of 
the financial statements and for preparation of the supplementary information in accordance 
with the applicable criteria. 

2) The financial statements referred to above are fairly presented in conformity with U.S. GAAP 
and include all properly classified funds and other financial information of the primary 
government and all component units required by generally accepted accounting principles to 
be Included in the financial reporting entity. 

3) We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of 
internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that 
are free from material misstatement. whether due to fraud or error. 

4) We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of 
internal control to prevent and detect fraud. 

-195-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 2.pdf

January 14, 2014 

Rogers, Anderson, Malody & Scott. LLP 
735 E. Carnegie Drive, Suite 100 
San Bernardino, CA 92408 

4tO CAPITOLA AVENUE 

CAPITOLA , CAL I FORNIA 9'010 

TELEPHONE ( 831) 475 · 7300 

FAX (83 1 ) 479·8879 

This representation letter is provided in connection with your audit of the financial statements of 
the City of Capitola, which comprise the respective financial position of the governmental 
activities, each major fund , and the aggregate remaining fund information as of June 30, 2013, 
and the respective changes in financial position for the year then ended, and the related notes 
to the financial statements, for the purpose of expressing opinions as to whether the financial 
statements are presented fairly, in all material respects , in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP), 

Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are material. 
Items are considered material , regardless of size, if they involve an omission or misstatement of 
accounting information that , in light of surrounding circumstances, makes it probable that the 
judgment of a reasonable person relying on the information would be changed or influenced by 
the omission or misstatement. An omission or misstatement that is monetarily small in amount 
could be considered material as a result of qualitative factors. 

We confirm, to the best of our knowledge and belief, as of December 3D, 2013, the following 
representations made to you during your audit. 

Financial Statements 

1) We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of the audit engagement leiter 
dated May 6, 2013, including our responsibility for the preparation and fair presentation of 
the financial statements and for preparation of the supplementary information in accordance 
with the applicable criteria. 

2) The financial statements referred to above are fairly presented in conformity with U.S. GAAP 
and include all properly classified funds and other financial information of the primary 
government and aU component units required by generally accepted accounting principles to 
be Included in the financial reporting entity. 

3) We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of 
internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that 
are free from material misstatement. whether due to fraud or error. 

4} We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of 
internal control to prevent and detect fraud . 



Rogers, Anderson, Malady & Scott, LLP Page 2 

5) Significant assumptions we used in making accounting estimates are reasonable . 

6) Related party relationships and transactions, including revenues, expenditures/expenses, 
loans, transfers , leasing arrangements, and guarantees, and amounts receivable from or 
payable to related parties have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in 
accordance with the requirements of U.S. GAAP. 

7) All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which U.S. GAAP 
requires adjustment or disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed. No events, including 
instances of noncompliance, have occurred subsequent to the balance sheet date and 
through the date of this letter that would require adjustment to or disclosure in the 
aforementioned financial statements. 

8) The effects of all known actual or possible litigation, claims, and assessments have been 
accounted for and disclosed in accordance with U.S. GAAP. 

9) Guarantees, whether written or oral, under which the City of Capitola is contingently liable, if 
any, have been properly recorded or disclosed. 

Information Provided 

10) We have provided you with : 

a) Access to all information, of which we are aware , that is relevant to the preparation and 
fair presentation of the financial statements, such as records, documentation, and other 
matters. 

b) Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit. 

c) Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom you determined it necessary 
to obtain audit evidence. 

d) Minutes of the meetings of City of Capitola or summaries of actions of recent meetings 
for which minutes have not yet been prepared. 

11) All material transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in 
the financial statements. 

12) We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the fisk that the financial 
statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud . 

13) We have no knowledge of any fraud or suspected fraud that affects the entity and involves: 

a) Management, 

b) Employees who have significant roles in internal control, or 

c) Others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

-196-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 2.pdf

Rogers, Anderson, Malady & Scott, LLP Page 2 

5) Significant assumptions we used in making accounting estimates are reasonable. 

6) Related party relationships and transactions, including revenues, expenditures/expenses, 
loans, transfers, leasing arrangements, and guarantees, and amounts receivable from or 
payable to related parties have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in 
accordance with the requirements of U.S. GAAP. 

7) All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which U.S. GAAP 
requires adjustment or disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed. No events, including 
instances of noncompliance, have occurred subsequent to the balance sheet date and 
through the date of this letter that would require adjustment to or disclosure in the 
aforementioned financial statements. 

8) The effects of all known actual or possible litigation, claims, and assessments have been 
accounted for and disclosed in accordance with U.S. GAAP. 

9) Guarantees, whether written or oral, under which the City of Capitola is contingently liable, if 
any, have been properly recorded or disclosed. 

Information Provided 

10) We have provided you with: 

a) Access to all information, of which we are aware, that is relevant to the preparation and 
fair presentation of the financial statements, such as records, documentation, and other 
matters. 

b) Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit. 

c) Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom you determined it necessary 
to obtain audit evidence. 

d) Minutes of the meetings of City of Capitola or summaries of actions of recent meetings 
for which minutes have not yet been prepared. 

11) All material transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in 
the financial statements. 

12) We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial 
statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud. 

13) We have no knowledge of any fraud or suspected fraud that affects the entity and involves: 

a) Management, 

b) Employees who have significant roles in internal control, or 

c) Others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements. 



Rogers, Anderson , Malady & Scott, lLP Page 3 

14)We have no knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the entity's 
financial statements communicated by employees, former employees, regulators, or others. 

15)We have no knowledge of instances of noncompliance or suspected noncompliance with 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, or grant agreements, or abuse, whose effects 
should be considered when preparing financial statements. 

16)We have disclosed to you all known actual or possible litigation, claims, and assessments 
whose effects should be considered when preparing the financial statements. 

17) We have disclosed to you the identity of the entity's related parties and all the related party 
relationships and transactions of which we are aware. 

Government-specific 

18) We have made available to you all financial records and related data. 

19) There have been no communications from regulatory agencies concerning noncompliance 
with, or deficiencies in, financial reporting practices. 

20) We have identified to you any previous audits, attestation engagements, and other studies 
related to the audit objectives and whether related recommendations have been 
implemented. 

21) The City of Capitola has no plans or intentions that may materially affect the carrying value 
or classification of assets, liabilities, or equity. 

22) We are responsible for compliance with the laws. regulations. and provisions of contracts 
and grant agreements applicable to us, including tax or debt limits and debt contracts; and 
we have identified and disclosed to you all laws, regulations and provisions of contracts and 
grant agreements that we believe have a direct and material effect on the determination of 
financial statement amounts or other financial data significant to the audit objectives, 
including legal and contractual provisions for reporting specific activities in separate funds. 

23) There are no violations or possible violations of budget ordinances, laws and regulations 
(including those pertaining to adopting, approving, and amending budgets), provisions of 
contracts and grant agreements, tax or debt limits, and any related debt covenants whose 
effects should be considered for disclosure in the financial statements, or as a basis for 
recording a loss contingency, or for reporting on noncompliance. 

24) As part of your Rudit. you assisted with preparation of the financial statements and related 
notes. We have designated an individual with suitable skill, knowledge, or experience to 
oversee your services and have assumed aU management responsibilities. We have 
reviewed, approved, and accepted responsibility for those financial statements and related 
notes 

25) The City of Capitola has satisfactory title to all owned assets, and there are no liens or 
encumbrances on such assets nor has any asset been pledged as collateral. 

-197-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 2.pdf

Rogers, Anderson , Malady & Scott, LLP Page 3 

14) We have no knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the entity's 
financial statements communicated by employees, former employees, regulators, or others. 

1S)We have no knowledge of instances of noncompliance or suspected noncompliance with 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, or grant agreements, or abuse, whose effects 
should be considered when preparing financial statements. 

16) We have disclosed to you all known actual or possible litigation, claims, and assessments 
whose effects should be considered when preparing the financial statements. 

17) We have disclosed to you the identity of the entity's related parties and all the related party 
relationships and transactions of which we are aware. 

Government-specific 

18) We have made available to you all financial records and related data. 

19) There have been no communications from regulatory agencies concerning noncompliance 
with, or deficiencies in, financial reporting practices. 

20) We have identified to you any previous audits, attestation engagements, and other studies 
related to the audit objectives and whether related recommendations have been 
implemented. 

21) The City of Capitola has no plans or intentions that may materially affect the carrying value 
or classification of assets, liabilities, or equity. 

22) We are responsible for compliance with the laws, regulations, and provisions of contracts 
and grant agreements applicable to us, including tax or debt limits and debt contracts; and 
we have identified and disclosed to you all laws, regulations and provisions of contracts and 
grant agreements that we believe have a direct and material effect on the determination of 
financial statement amounts or other financial data significant to the audit objectives, 
including legal and contractual provisions for reporting specific activities in separate funds . 

23) There are no violations or possible violations of budget ordinances, laws and regulations 
(including those pertaining to adopting, approving, and amending budgets) , provisions of 
contracts and grant agreements, tax or debt limits, and any related debt covenants whose 
effects should be considered for disclosure in the financial statements, or as a basis for 
recording a loss contingency, or for reporting on noncompliance. 

24) As part of your Rudit , you assisted with preparation of the financial statements and related 
notes. We have designated an individual with suitable skill, knowledge, or experience to 
oversee your services and have assumed all management responsibilities. We have 
reviewed, approved, and accepted responsibility for those financial stalements and related 
notes 

25) The City of Capitola has satisfactory title to all owned assets, and there are no liens or 
encumbrances on such assets nor has any asset been pledged as collateral. 



Rogers, Anderson, Malady & Scott, LLP Page 4 

26) The City of Capitola has complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that would 
have a material effect on the financial statements in the event of noncompliance, 

27) We have followed all applicable laws and regulations in adopting, approving, and amending 
budgets. 

28) The financial statements include all joint ventures with an equity interest. and properly 
disclose all other joint ventures and other related organizations. 

29) The financial statements properly classify all funds and activities. 

30) All funds that meet the quantitative criteria in GASBS Nos. 34 and 37 for presentation as 
major are identified and presented as such and all other funds that are presented as major 
are particularly important to financial statement users. 

31) Components of net posi tion (net investment in capital assets; restricted; and unrestricted) 
and equity amounts are properly classified and, if applicable, approved. 

32) Investments are properly valued. 

33) Provisions for uncollectible receivables have been properly identified and recorded. 

34) Expenses have been appropriately classified in or allocated to functions and programs in the 
statement of activities, and allocations have been made on a reasonable basis. 

35) Revenues are appropriately classified in the statement of activities within program revenues, 
and general revenues. 

36) Interfund, internal, and intra-entity activity and balances have been appropriately classified 
and reported. 

37) Special and extraordinary items are appropriately classified and reported. 

38) Deposits and investment securities are properly classified as to risk and are properly 
disclosed. 

39) Capital assets, including infrastructure and intangible assets, are properly capitalized, 
reported, and, if applicable, depreciated. 

40) We have appropriately disclosed the City of Capitola's policy regarding whether to first apply 
restricted or unrestricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both 
restricted and unrestricted net position is available and have determined that net position is 
properly recognized under the policy. 

-198-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 2.pdf

Rogers, Anderson , Malady & Scott, LLP Page 4 

26) The City of Capitola has complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that would 
have a material effect on the financial statements in the event of noncompliance. 

27) We have followed all applicable laws and regulations in adopting, approving, and amending 
budgets. 

28) The financial statements include all joint ventures with an equity interest. and properly 
disclose all other joint ventures and other related organizations. 

29) The financial statements properly classify all funds and activities. 

30) All funds that meet the quantitative criteria in GASBS Nos. 34 and 37 for presentation as 
major are identified and presented as such and all other funds that are presented as major 
are particularly important to financial statement users. 

31) Components of net position (net investment in capital assets; restricted; and unrestricted) 
and equity amounts are properly classified and, if applicable, approved. 

32) Investments are properly valued. 

33) Provisions for uncollectible receivables have been properly identified and recorded. 

34) Expenses have been appropriately classified in or allocated to functions and programs in the 
statement of activities. and allocations have been made on a reasonable basis. 

35) Revenues are appropriately classified in the statement of activities within program revenues, 
and general revenues. 

36) Interfund, internal, and intra-entity activity and balances have been appropriately classified 
and reported. 

37) Special and extraordinary items are appropriately classified and reported. 

38) Deposits and investment securities are properly classified as to risk and are properly 
disclosed. 

39) Capital assets, including infrastructure and intangible assets, are properly capitalized, 
reported. and, if applicable, depreciated. 

40) We have appropriately disclosed the City of Capitola's policy regarding whether to first apply 
restricted or unrestricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both 
restricted and unrestricted net position is available and have determined that net position is 
properly recognized under the policy. 



Rogers, Anderson, Malady & Scott, LlP Page 5 

41) We acknowledge our responsibility for the required supplementary information (RSI). The 
RSI is measured and presented within prescribed guidelines and the methods of 
measurement and presentation have not changed from those used in the prior period. We 
have disclosed to you any significant assumptions and interpretations underlying the 
measurement and presentation of the RSI. 

42) With respect to the supplementary information accompanying the financial statements 

a) We acknowledge our responsibility for presenting the supplementary information in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America, and we believe the supplementary information, including its form and content. 
is fairly presented in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America. The methods of measurement and presentation of the 
supplementary information have not changed from those used in the prior period, and 
we have disclosed to you any significant assumptions or interpretations underlying the 
measurement and presentation of the supplementary information. 

b) If the supplementary information is not presented with the audited financial statements, 
we will make the audited financial statements readily available to the intended users of 
the supplementary information no later than the date we issue the supplementary 
information and the auditor's report thereon. 

Signature; 

Title: , 7 
Title: ____________ _ 

-199-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 2.pdf

Rogers, Anderson, Malady & Scott, LLP Page 5 

41) We acknowledge our responsibility for the required supplementary information (RSI). The 
RSI is measured and presented within prescribed guidelines and the methods of 
measurement and presentation have not changed from those used in the prior period. We 
have disclosed to you any significant assumptions and interpretations underlying the 
measurement and presentation of the RSI . 

42) With respect to the supplementary information accompanying the financial statements 

a) We acknowledge our responsibility for presenting the supplementary information in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America, and we believe the supplementary information, including its form and content, 
is fairly presented in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America. The methods of measurement and presentation of the 
supplementary information have not changed from those used in the prior period, and 
we have disclosed to you any significant assumptions or interpretations underlying the 
measurement and presentation of the supplementary information. 

b) If the supplementary information is not presented with the audited financial statements, 
we will make the audited financial statements readily available to the intended users of 
the supplementary information no later than the date we issue the supplementary 
information and the auditor's report thereon. 

Signature: 

Title: 
I 7 

Title: ____________ _ 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-200-



735 E. Carnegie Dr. Suite 100 

San Bernardino, CA 92408 

909889 0871 T 

9098895361 F 

ramscpa. net 

PARTNERS 

Brenda L. Odie. CPA, MST 

Terry P. Shea, CPA 

Krr-k A Franks. CPA 

Matthew B. Wilson , CPA, MSA, CGMA 

Scott W. Manno, CPA. CGMA 

Leena Shanbhag. CPA, MST. CGMA 

Jay H . Zercher, CPA (Partner Emeritus) 

Phillip H . Waller'. CPA (Partner Emeritus) 

MANAGERS I STAFF 

N<1ncy O'Rafferty. CPA. MBA 

Br<1dferd A. Welebir. CPA. MBA 

Jenny Liu, CPA. MST 

Papa Matar' Thraw, CPA, MBA 

Maya S. Ivanova. CPA, MBA 

Peter E. Murray. CPA 

Seong-Hyea Lee. CPA, MBA 

Chades De Srmoni, CPA 

Yi ;mn Fang, CPA 

Danrel T Turner, CPA, MSA 

Der'ek J Brown. CPA, MST 

David D . Henwood. CPA 

MEMBERS 
Arnerican Institute of 

Cenrfied Public Accountants 

PCPS The AICPA AI/rance 

(or CPA Frrms 

Governlllenlal Audrl 

Qualrty Cenler 

Calrfornra Socrety of 
Certrfied Publrc Accountants 

ROGERS, ANDERSON, MALODY & SCOTT, LLP 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS, SINCE 1948 

January 14, 2014 

To the Honorable City Council 
City of Capitola 
Capitola, California 

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, 
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the 
City of Capitola for the year ended June 30, 2013. Professional standards 
require that we provide you with information about our responsibilities 
under generally accepted auditing standards, as well as certain 
information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. We have 
communicated such information in our letter to you dated May 6, 2013. 
Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the 
following information related to our audit. 

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate 
accounting policies. The significant accounting policies used by the City 
of Capitola are described in Note 1 to the financial statements. During the 
year under audit, the City adopted Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of 
Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position. The 
application of existing policies was not changed during the year under 
audit. We noted no transactions entered into by the governmental unit 
during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or 
consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the 
financial statements in the proper period. 

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements 
prepared by management and are based on management's knowledge 
and experience about past and current events and assumptions about 
future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive 
because of their significance to the financial statements and because of 
the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly 
from those expected. The most sensitive estimates affecting the City's 
financial statements were: 

STABILITY. ACCURACY. TRUST. -201-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 3.pdf

735 E. C ar negie Dr. Suite 100 

Sa n Bernardino , CA 92408 

909889 0871 T 

9098895361 F 

r amscpa. net 

PARTNERS 

Brenda L Odie, CPA, MST 

Terry P Shea. CPA 

Krr-k A Franks, CPA 

Matthew B. Wilson. CPA. MSA. CGMA 

Scott W . Manno. CPA. CGMA 

Leena Shanbhag. CPA. MST. CGMA 

Jay H . Zercher, CPA (Partner Emeritus) 

Phillip H . Waller. CPA (Partner Ementus) 

MANAGERS I STAFF 

Nancy O'Rafferty, CPA. MBA 

Bradferd A. Welebir. CPA. MBA 

Jen~y Liu, CPA. MST 

Papa Matar Th,aw, CPA, MBA 

Maya S Ivanova, CPA, MBA 

Peter E. Murray. CPA 

Seong-Hyea Lee. CPA. MBA 

Chades De Slllloni , CPA 

Yiann Fang, CPA 

Daniel T Turner, CPA, MSA 

Derek J Brown. CPA, MST 

David D Henwood, CPA 

MEMBERS 
Arnencan Inslitute of 
Cenlfled PubliC Accountants 

PCPS The AICPA Al/lOllce 

{or CPA F,rrllS 

GovernlJlelltal Audl! 

QuoillY Cellter 

C:lhfornla Society of 
Certified PubliC Accountants 

ROGERS, ANDERSON, MALODY & SCOTT, LLP 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS, SI N CE 1948 

January 14, 2014 

To the Honorable City Council 
City of Capitola 
Capitola, California 

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, 
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the 
City of Capitola for the year ended June 30, 2013. Professional standards 
require that we provide you with information about our responsibilities 
under generally accepted auditing standards, as well as certain 
information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. We have 
communicated such information in our letter to you dated May 6, 2013. 
Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the 
following information related to our audit. 

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate 
accounting policies. The significant accounting policies used by the City 
of Capitola are described in Note 1 to the financial statements. During the 
year under audit, the City adopted Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of 
Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position. The 
application of existing policies was not changed during the year under 
audit. We noted no transactions entered into by the governmental unit 
during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or 
consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the 
financial statements in the proper period. 

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements 
prepared by management and are based on management's knowledge 
and experience about past and current events and assumptions about 
future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive 
because of their significance to the financial statements and because of 
the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly 
from those expected. The most sensitive estimates affecting the City's 
financial statements were: 

STABILITY. ACCURACY. TRUST. 



 

Honorable City Council  Page 2 
City of Capitola 
 
 
 

Management’s estimate of the fair value of cash and investment is based on 
information provided by financial institutions. We evaluated the key factors and 
assumptions used to develop the fair value of cash and investments in 
determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a 
whole. 
 
Management’s estimate of capital asset depreciation is based on historical 
estimates of each capitalized item’s useful life expectancy or cost recovery period. 
We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the capital asset 
depreciation calculations in determining that they are reasonable in relation to the 
financial statements taken as a whole. 
 
Management’s estimate of the liability for pensions and other post-employment 
benefits is based on actuarial reports provided by independent actuaries. We 
evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the estimate in 
determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a 
whole. 
 

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear. 
 
Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 
 
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and 
completing our audit. 
 
Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements 
 
Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified 
during the audit, other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the 
appropriate level of management. No such misstatements were noted as part of our audit 
procedures. 
 
Disagreements with Management 
 
For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, 
or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the 
financial statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such 
disagreements arose during the course of our audit. 

-202-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 3.pdf



  

Honorable City Council  Page 3 
City of Capitola 
 
 
 
Management Representations 
 
We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the 
management representation letter dated January 14, 2014.  
 
Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants 
 
In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and 
accounting matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a 
consultation involves application of an accounting principle to the governmental unit’s financial 
statements or a determination of the type of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those 
statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to 
determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such 
consultations with other accountants. 
 
Other Audit Findings or Issues 
 
We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and 
auditing standards, with management each year prior to retention as the governmental unit’s 
auditors. However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional 
relationship and our responses were not a condition to our retention. 
 
Other Matters 
 
With respect to the supplementary information accompanying the financial statements, we made 
certain inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the 
information to determine that the information complies with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America, the method of preparing it has not changed from the 
prior period, and the information is appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the 
financial statements. We compared and reconciled the supplementary information to the 
underlying accounting records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial 
statements themselves. 
 
This information is intended solely for the use of the City Council and management of the City of 
Capitola and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these 
specified parties. 
 
 

Very truly yours, 

 
Rogers, Anderson, Malody & Scott, LLP 
San Bernardino, California 

-203-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 3.pdf



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-204-



735 E. Carnegie Dr. Suite 100 

San Bernardino, CA 92408 

909889 0871 T 

909 889 5361 F 

ramscpa.net 

PARTNERS 

Brenda L. Odie, CPA, MST 

Ter-ry P. Shea, CPA 

K ... k A. Franks, CPA 

Matthew B. Wilson, CPA. MSA. CGMA 

Scott W . Manno. CPA. CGMA 

Leena Shanbhag, CPA. MST, CGMA 

Jay H. Zercher, CPA (Partner Emerrtus) 

Phillip H . Waller. CPA (Partner Emerrtus) 

MANAGERS I STAFF 

Nancy O'Rafferty. CPA. MBA 

Bradfer-d A. Welebir. CPA. MBA 

Jenny Liu, CPA. MST 

Papa Matar' Thraw, CPA. MBA 

Maya S. Ivanova. CPA. MBA 

Peter E. MurTay. CPA 

Seong-Hyea Lee. CPA, MBA 

Charles De Srrnonr, CPA 

Yiann Fang, CPA 

Danrel T Turner , CPA, MSA 

Derek J. Brown. CPA. MST 

David D Henwood. CPA 

MEMBERS 
American Institute of 

Certrfied Public Accountants 

PCPS The A/CPA Allronce 

for CPA Frrms 

Governmell{Q/ Aud,l 

QUO/,ly CCll(er 

California Society of 
Certified PubliC Accountants 

ROGERS, ANDERSON, MALODY & SCOTT, LLP 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS , SINCE 1948 

To the Honorable City Council 
City of Capitola 
Capitola, California 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted 
in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits 
contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General 
of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, each 
major fund , and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Capitola (the 
City), California as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013, and the related 
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City's basic 
financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated January 14, 
2014, 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered 
the City's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine 
the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of 
expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control. 
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's 
internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control 
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing 
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a 
timely basis, A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a 
material misstatement of the en tity's financial statements will not be prevented, or 
detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, 
or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a 
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance, 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the 
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in 
internal control that might be material weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. 
Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in 
internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material 
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

STABILITY. ACCURACY. TRUST. -205-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 4.pdf

735 E. Carnegie Dr. Suite 100 

San Bernardino, CA 92408 

909 889 0871 T 

909 889 5361 F 

ramscpa. net 

PART NERS 

Brenda L Odie, CPA, MST 

Terry P Shea. CPA 

Kwk A. Franks, CPA 

Matthew B. Wilson. CPA. MSA. CGMA 

Scott W Manno. CPA. CGMA 

Leena Shanbhag. CPA. MST. CGMA 

Jay H. Zercher, CPA (Partner Ementus) 

Phillip H . Waller. CPA (Parmer Ementus) 

MANAGERS / STAFF 

Nancy O'Rafferty, CPA, MBA 

B'-adfe,'d A. Weleb,,-. CPA. MBA 

Jenny Liu, CPA. MST 

Papa Matar Th,aw, CPA, MBA 

Maya S Ivanova. CPA. MBA 

Peter E Mll/Tay. CPA 

Seong-Hyea Lee. CPA. MBA 

Charles De S"nonl, CPA 

Yiann Fang, CPA 

DanIel T Turner, CPA, MSA 

Derek J Brown. CPA. MST 

David D Henwood. CPA 

MEMBERS 
Arnerrcan Institute of 
Cenlfied Publ,c Accou ntants 

PCPS The A/CPA AlIlQnce 

{or CPA Firms 

Governmenta/ Audl( 

QUO/I(Y CCIl(er 

CalIfornia Society of 
Cenified Public Accountants 

ROGERS, ANDERSON, MALODY & SCOTT, LLP 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS , SINCE 1948 

To the Honorable City Council 
City of Capitola 
Capitola, California 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted 
in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits 
contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General 
of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, each 
major fund , and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Capitola (the 
City), California as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013, and the related 
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City's basic 
financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated January 14, 
2014. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered 
the City's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine 
the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of 
expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control. 
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's 
internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control 
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing 
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a 
timely basis, A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a 
material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or 
detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, 
or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a 
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance, 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the 
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in 
internal control that might be material weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. 
Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in 
internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material 
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

STABILITY. ACCURACY. TRUST. 



Honorable City Council  Page 2 
City of Capitola 
 
 
Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City’s financial statements are free from 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on 
the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with 
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. 
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be 
reported under Government Auditing Standards. 
 
Purpose of this Report 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

 
January 14, 2014 
San Bernardino, California 

-206-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 4.pdf

.::;;" r u/J , 



735 E. Carnegi e Dr. Suite 100 

, Sa n Bernardino. CA 92408 

909 889 087 I T 
909 8B9 5361 F 
,-a mscpa.net 

PARTNERS 

B'-enda L. Odie. CPA. MST 

Te,-ry P. Shea. CPA 

K,rk A Franks. CPA 

Matthew B. Wilson. CPA MSA. CGMA 

Scott W. Manno. CPA CGMA 

Leena Shanbhag. CPA MST. CGMA 

Jay H. Ze,-cher. CPA (Partner Ementus) 

Phillip H . Waller. CPA (Partne,- Emeritus) 

MANAGERS I STAFF 

Nancy O'Raffer-ty. CPA. MBA 

B,-adferd A Welebir. CPA. MBA 

Jenny Lill . CPA. MST 

Papa Matar Th,aw. CPA. MBA 

Maya S Ivanova. CPA. MBA 

Pete,- E Murray. CPA 

Seong-Hyea Lee. CPA. MBA 

Cha,-Ies De S,moni. CPA 

Yiann Fang. CPA 

D;lfl,el T. TUf"fler-. CPA. MSA 

Derek J Bmwn. CPA. MST 

David D . Henwood. CPA 

MEMBERS 
Alllencan Institute of 
Cen,fied Public Accountants 

PCPS Thc A/CPA AI/ranee 

{or CPA F,nns 

Govcmmenra/ Aud,r 

Qua/,ry Center 

Cal,forn'a Soc,ety of 
Cen,fjed Publre Accountants 

ROGERS , ANDERSON, MALODY & SCOTT, LLP 
CERTI FIED PUBLIC ACCOU NTANTS, SI N CE 1948 

To the Honorable City Council 
City of Capitola 
Capitola, California 

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT'S REPORT 
ON AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 

APPLIED TO APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT WORKSHEETS 

We have performed the procedures enumerated below to the 
accompanying Appropriations Limit worksheet of the City of Capitola, 
California, (the City) for the year ended June 30, 2013. These 
procedures, which were agreed to by the City and the League of 
California Cities (as presented in the publication entitled Agreed-upon 
Procedures Applied to the Appropriations Limitation Prescribed by 
Article XIII-B of the California Constitution), were performed solely to 
assist the City in meeting the requirements of Section 1.5 of Article 
XIII-B of the California Constitution. The City's management is 
responsible for the Appropriations Limit worksheet. This agreed-upon 
procedures engagement was conducted in accordance with 
attestation standards established by the American Institute of 
Certified Public Accountants. The sufficiency of these procedures is 
solely the responsibility of those parties specified in this report. 
Consequently, we make no representation regarding the sufficiency 
of the procedures described below either for the purpose for which 
this report has been requested or for any other purpose. 

The procedures performed and our findings were as follows: 

1. We obtained the completed worksheets and compared the 
limit and annual adjustment factors included in those 
worksheets to the limit and annual adjustment factors that 
were adopted by resolution of the City Council. We also 
compared the population and inflation options included in the 
aforementioned documents to those that were selected by a 
recorded vote of the City Council. 

Finding: No exceptions were noted as a result of our 
procedures. 

2. For the accompanying Appropriations Limit worksheet, we 
added last year's limit to total adjustments and agreed the 
resulting amount to this year's limit. 

Finding: No exceptions were noted as a result of our 
procedures. 

STABILITY. ACCURACY. TRUST. -207-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 5.pdf

735 E. Carnegie Dr. Suite 100 

, San Bernardino . CA 92408 

909 889 087 I T 

9098895361 F 

ramscpa.net 

PART NERS 

BI'enda L. Odie. CPA. MST 

Terry P Shea. CPA 

Kirk A Franks. CPA 

Matthew B, Wilson. CPA. MSA. CGMA 

Scott W . Manno . CPA. CGMA 

Leena Shanbhag. CPA. MST. CGMA 

Jay H , Zercher. CPA (Panner Emeritus) 

Phillip H . Waller. CPA (Panne,' Emerr tus) 

MANAGERS I STAFF 

Nancy O'Rafferty. CPA. MBA 

BI'adferd A. Welebir. CPA. MBA 

jenflY Lill . CPA. MST 

Papa Matar Th,aw. CPA. MBA 

Maya S Ivanova. CPA. MBA 

Peter E Murray. CPA 

Seong-Hyea Lee. CPA. MBA 

Cha.-les De Simoni. CPA 

Y,ann Fang. CPA 

D"nlel T Tumel'. CPA. MSA 

Derek J Bmwn. CPA. MST 

David D . Henwood. CPA 

MEMBERS 
AnlenCill1 Institute of 
Cert ified PubliC Accoun tants 

PCPS The AICPA AI/rance 

(or CPA Flfl11S 

Governmental Audit 

Quality Cen ter 

Calrfornla Society of 
Certified PubliC Accountants 

ROGERS, ANDERSON, MALODY & SCOTT, LLP 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS, SINCE 1948 

To the Honorable City Council 
City of Capitola 
Capitola, California 

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT'S REPORT 
ON AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 

APPLIED TO APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT WORKSHEETS 

We have performed the procedures enumerated below to the 
accompanying Appropriations Limit worksheet of the City of Capitola, 
California, (the City) for the year ended June 30, 2013. These 
procedures, which were agreed to by the City and the League of 
California Cities (as presented in the publication entitled Agreed-upon 
Procedures Applied to the Appropriations Limitation Prescribed by 
Article XIII-B of the California Constitution), were performed solely to 
assist the City in meeting the requirements of Section 1.5 of Article 
XIII-8 of the California Constitution. The City's management is 
responsible for the Appropriations Limit worksheet. This agreed-upon 
procedures engagement was conducted in accordance with 
attestation standards established by the American Institute of 
Certified Public Accountants. The sufficiency of these procedures is 
solely the responsibility of those parties specified in this report. 
Consequently, we make no representation regarding the sufficiency 
of the procedures described below either for the purpose for which 
this report has been requested or for any other purpose. 

The procedures performed and our findings were as follows: 

1. We obtained the completed worksheets and compared the 
limit and annual adjustment factors included in those 
worksheets to the limit and annual adjustment factors that 
were adopted by resolution of the City Council. We also 
compared the population and inflation options included in the 
aforementioned documents to those that were selected by a 
recorded vote of the City Council. 

Finding: No exceptions were noted as a result of our 
procedures. 

2. For the accompanying Appropriations Limit worksheet, we 
added last year's limit to total adjustments and agreed the 
resulting amount to this year's limit. 

Finding: No exceptions were noted as a result of our 
procedures. 

STABILITY. ACCURACY. TRUST. 



Honorable City Council Page 2 
City of Capitola, California 
 
 

 
3. We agreed the current year information presented in the accompanying Appropriations 

Limit worksheet to the other documents referenced in #1 above. 
 

Finding: No exceptions were noted as a result of our procedures. 
 
4. We agreed the prior year appropriations limit presented in the accompanying 

Appropriations Limit worksheet to the prior year appropriations limit adopted by the City 
Council during the prior year. 

 
Finding: No exceptions were noted as a result of our procedures. 

 
We were not engaged to, and did not perform an examination. The objective of which would be 
the expression of an opinion on the accompanying Appropriations Limit worksheet. Accordingly, 
we do not express such an opinion. Had we performed additional procedures, other matters 
might have come to our attention that would have been reported to you. No procedures have 
been performed with respect to the determination of the appropriation limit for the base year, as 
defined by the League publication entitled Article XIII-B of the California Constitution. 
 
This report is intended solely for the information and use of the City Council and management of 
the City and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified 
parties. However, this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited. 

 
January 14, 2015 
San Bernardino, California 

-208-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 5.pdf

~07T U;a , 



 
City of Capitola 

APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT COMPUTATION 
2012 – 2013 

 
 

   2012 - 2013 
    

Change in Local Non-residential New Construction   26.98% 
    
Population Change    
 County Population Growth   0.77% 
    
Change in Local Non-residential New Construction    
 Converted to a Ratio   1.26983 
    
Population Change Converted to a Ratio   1.0077 
    
Calculation of Growth Factor   1.2796 
    
2011 – 2012 Limit $  17,915,578   
    
2012 – 2013 Appropriations Limit    
 ($17,915,578 X 1.2796) $  22,924,774   

 
 

-209-

Item #: 9.E. Attach 5.pdf



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-210-



FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF JANUARY 23, 2014 

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 

CONSIDER A CLOSURE DATE AND A CONTRACT WITH OPEN STREETS OF 
SANTA CRUZ COUNTY FOR THE ESPLANADE CLOSURE TO VEHICLE TRAFFIC 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Reschedule the planned one day closure of the Esplanade to vehicle 
traffic to May 4, 2014, and authorize the City Manager to enter into a contract with Open Streets 
Santa Cruz County in the amount of $1 to promote and coordinate the event. 

BACKGROUND: On June 27, 2013, the City Council scheduled a one day closure of the Esplanade 
for October 13, 2013. Unfortunately, due to delays in the construction of the Lower Pacific Cove 
Parking Lot, that date was cancelled. With the construction now underway and scheduled to be 
completed by early Spring, the event can now be rescheduled. 

In 2013, the Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission and the California Coastal 
Conservancy provided grants to Open Streets Santa Cruz County to organize and promote car-free 
events in the cities of Capitola and Watsonville. Open Streets Santa Cruz County has offered to help 
the City promote and plan the rescheduled "community day." 

DISCUSSION: Staff is recommending the event be set for May 4, 2014, which should allow for good 
weather but is prior to the busy summer season. In addition, staff recommends the City contract with 
Open Streets Santa Cruz County to promote and coordinate this event for the City. A scope of 
services from Open Streets Santa Cruz County is attached that details the objectives and goals for 
the day and the services they will be providing. These services include program organization, 
community outreach and promotion, volunteer coordination, and post event evaluation. 

Open Streets Santa Cruz County is a non-profit organization that promotes individual and community 
health through creative use of public spaces. They have orchestrated two highly successful "open 
street" events in the City of Santa Cruz along West Cliff Drive. They are an ~xperienced organization 
that can assist with the City with creating and evaluating this community day. Staff is recommending a 
contract with Open Streets Santa Cruz County to help resolve insurance issues and to differentiate 
the event from other special events that are not coordinated by the City. 

As detailed in the scope of work, it is anticipated that streets closed to vehicle traffic will be used for 
non-commercial activities that encourage residents and visitors to come to the Village and use the 
public spaces for a variety of activities. Businesses will be encouraged to sponsor events and other 
activities to bring customers to their store, but no merchandise or services will be allowed to be sold 
on the street. Informational tables and other non-retail features may be placed along the streets. 
Additionally there will be free music and Open Streets Santa Cruz will organize several family-friendly 
activities. The goal is to not create a street fair, but to determine if providing additional pedestrian 
open spaces increases the vitality of the Village. 

The community day activities take place from 11 a.m. to 4 p.m. City staff will close the streets to 
vehicle traffic in the early morning, except deliveries, with signage directing people to the Pacific Cove 
Parking Lots. A shuttle service will be run out of the new Lower Pacific Cove Parking Lot. 

ATTACHMENTS: (1) Scope of Services dated January 15, 2014 

Report Prepared By: Steven Jesberg 
Public Works Director 

Reviewed and Forw~ed 
By City Manager~ 

-211-

Item #: 10.A. Staff Report.pdf

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF JANUARY 23, 2014 

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 

CONSIDER A CLOSURE DATE AND A CONTRACT WITH OPEN STREETS OF 
SANTA CRUZ COUNTY FOR THE ESPLANADE CLOSURE TO VEHICLE TRAFFIC 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Reschedule the planned one day closure of the Esplanade to vehicle 
traffic to May 4, 2014, and authorize the City Manager to enter into a contract with Open Streets 
Santa Cruz County in the amount of $1 to promote and coordinate the event. 

BACKGROUND: On June 27, 2013, the City Council scheduled a one day closure of the Esplanade 
for October 13, 2013. Unfortunately, due to delays in the construction of the Lower Pacific Cove 
Parking Lot, that date was cancelled. With the construction now underway and scheduled to be 
completed by early Spring, the event can now be rescheduled. 

In 2013, the Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission and the California Coastal 
Conservancy provided grants to Open Streets Santa Cruz County to organize and promote car-free 
events in the cities of Capitola and Watsonville. Open Streets Santa Cruz County has offered to help 
the City promote and plan the rescheduled "community day." 

DISCUSSION: Staff is recommending the event be set for May 4, 2014, which should allow for good 
weather but is prior to the busy summer season. In addition, staff recommends the City contract with 
Open Streets Santa Cruz County to promote and coordinate this event for the City. A scope of 
services from Open Streets Santa Cruz County is attached that details the objectives and goals for 
the day and the services they will be providing. These services include program organization, 
community outreach and promotion, volunteer coordination, and post event evaluation. 

Open Streets Santa Cruz County is a non-profit organization that promotes individual and community 
health through creative use of public spaces. They have orchestrated two highly successful "open 
street" events in the City of Santa Cruz along West Cliff Drive. They are an ~xperienced organization 
that can assist with the City with creating and evaluating this community day. Staff is recommending a 
contract with Open Streets Santa Cruz County to help resolve insurance issues and to differentiate 
the event from other special events that are not coordinated by the City. 

As detailed in the scope of work, it is anticipated that streets closed to vehicle traffic will be used for 
non-commercial activities that encourage residents and visitors to come to the Village and use the 
public spaces for a variety of activities. Businesses will be encouraged to sponsor events and other 
activities to bring customers to their store, but no merchandise or services will be allowed to be sold 
on the street. Informational tables and other non-retail features may be placed along the streets. 
Additionally there will be free music and Open Streets Santa Cruz will organize several family-friendly 
activities. The goal is to not create a street fair, but to determine if providing additional pedestrian 
open spaces increases the vitality of the Village. 

The community day activities take place from 11 a.m. to 4 p.m. City staff will close the streets to 
vehicle traffic in the early morning, except deliveries, with signage directing people to the Pacific Cove 
Parking Lots. A shuttle service will be run out of the new Lower Pacific Cove Parking Lot. 

ATTACHMENTS: (1) Scope of Services dated January 15, 2014 

Report Prepared By: Steven Jesberg 
Public Works Director 

Reviewed and Forw~ed 
By City Manager~ 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-212-



Mission: Open Streets Santa Cruz County fosters individual and community 
health through creative use of public space. 

Capitola Open Streets Community Day Proposal 
1/14/2014 

Overview 
The City of Capitola wishes to contract with Open Streets Santa Cruz County to coordinate a 
Capitola Open Streets Community Day event. This initiative follows Capitola City Council's 
direction to staff in spring of 2013 to investigate the options for a car-free day in the 
Esplanade area of Capitola Village. In June staff returned with a proposal to hold the event 
on October 13, 2013. However the event was postponed due to the delayed construction 
timeline of the new parking lot next to City Hall. 

Objectives 
The City of Capitola wishes to organize a pilot car-free event to understand the potential 
benefits, opportunities, as well as any negative impacts of the Esplanade being temporarily 
closed to automobile traffic for use as a pedestrian space. If successful this pilot may serve 
to lay the groundwork for additional temporary closures of the Esplanade. 

The mission of Open Streets Santa Cruz County is to foster individual and community health 
through creative use of public space. This non-profit program organizes car-free events in 
various locations of the County which promote health, community and local business. To date 
two highly successful Open Streets events have been held in the City of Santa Cruz in 
October 2012 and 2013 on West Cliff Drive. Both events attracted over 9,000 participants 
and generated a groundswell of interest in and support for future Open Streets events. 

Capitola Open Streets Community Day goals: 
1. Pilot use of the Esplanade as a car-free pedestrian space. 
2. Provide an opportunity for the community to enjoy Capitola Village without sharing 

space with automobiles. 
3. Promote community, civic pride and quality of life for residents. 
4. Promote Capitola Village businesses. 
5. Enhance visitor experience of Capitola Village. 
6. Introduce Capitola residents to other uses of the streets and open spaces. 
7. Promote health and active living. 
8. Improve access to and enjoyment of the beachfront. 
9. Promote alternatives to driving alone such as bicycling, walking, carpool and bus. 

10. Promote knowledge and protection of marine environment. 

A project under Ecology Action 877 Cedar St., Suite 240 Santa Cruz, CA 95060 www.scopenstreets.org 

-213-

Item #: 10.A. Attach 1.pdf

Mission: Open Streets Santa Cruz County fosters individual and community 
health through creative use of public space. 

Capitola Open Streets Community Day Proposal 
1/14/2014 

Overview 
The City of Capitola wishes to contract with Open Streets Santa Cruz County to coordinate a 
Capitola Open Streets Community Day event. This initiative follows Capitola City Council's 
direction to staff in spring of 2013 to investigate the options for a car-free day in the 
Esplanade area of Capitola Village. In June staff returned with a proposal to hold the event 
on October 13, 2013. However the event was postponed due to the delayed construction 
timeline of the new parking lot next to City Hall. 

Objectives 
The City of Capitola wishes to organize a pilot car-free event to understand the potential 
benefits, opportunities, as well as any negative impacts of the Esplanade being temporarily 
closed to automobile traffic for use as a pedestrian space. If successful this pilot may serve 
to lay the groundwork for additional temporary closures of the Esplanade. 

The mission of Open Streets Santa Cruz County is to foster individual and community health 
through creative use of public space. This non-profit program organizes car-free events in 
various locations of the County which promote health, community and local business. To date 
two highly successful Open Streets events have been held in the City of Santa Cruz in 
October 2012 and 2013 on West Cliff Drive. Both events attracted over 9,000 participants 
and generated a groundswell of interest in and support for future Open Streets events. 

Capitola Open Streets Community Day goals: 
1. Pilot use of the Esplanade as a car-free pedestrian space. 
2. Provide an opportunity for the community to enjoy Capitola Village without sharing 

space with automobiles. 
3. Promote community, civic pride and quality of life for residents. 
4. Promote Capitola Village businesses. 
5. Enhance visitor experience of Capitola Village. 
6. Introduce Capitola residents to other uses of the streets and open spaces. 
7. Promote health and active living. 
8. Improve access to and enjoyment of the beachfront. 
9. Promote alternatives to driving alone such as bicycling, walking, carpool and bus. 

10. Promote knowledge and protection of marine environment. 

A project under Ecology Action 877 Cedar St., Suite 240 Santa Cruz, CA 95060 www.scopenstreets.org 



Proposed date, time and location 
A Sunday, May 4, 2014, 11 a,m. to 4 p.m. 
A Car-free zone the length of the Esplanade from Stockton Ave to Monterey Ave, as well 

as San Jose Ave. 

Roles 
City of Capitola will coordinate the street closure, including: traffic plan, signage and maps; 
police officers; barricades and pre-event NO-Parking/Tow-away signage. 

In coordination with the City of Capitola, Open Streets Santa Cruz County (OSSCC) be 
responsible for coordination of: 

1. Community outreach and promotion (in coordination with City promotion channels and 
contacts) 

2. Media promotion (radio, print, TV) 
3. Event programming coordination (activities, music and presenters) 
4. Event evaluation 
5. Volunteer coordination (as needed) 

The event will utilize OSSCC's existing branding to promote the event, including: logo 
(modified to include the City of Capitola's name), as well as general poster and ad layout 
templates. Additionally the event will be promoted on the OSSCC website (with new 
dedicated pages), via its email contact list and Facebook page. 

Capitola Open Streets guiding principles and guidelines 
1. Open space opportunity for healthy outdoor recreation and community gathering 
2. FREE and family-friendly 
3. Participatory - emphasis on programming that is interactive and promotes participant 

engagement 
4. Alcohol free 
5. No pop-up tents and canopies with sales - different from a traditional street 

fair/festival, this event will highlight existing storefronts. 
6. The City's Community Grant partner organizations which work in the areas of marine 

preservation and access, as well as health and fitness and arts may apply to host 
interactive activities and conduct outreach. 

Potential methods to reduce parking demand and event-related traffic by 
promoting bike/walk/bus and carpool to event 

1. Offer a free raffle ticket for event raffle or other free incentive item to participants who 
arrive without a car (walk, bike or bus) or who park in the Pacifir. Cove Parking lots 

2. Offer free, secure "valet" bike parking (sponsored by Open Streets Santa Cruz County 
and/or SCCRTC) 

3. Offer free bicycle inspections and adjustments by a local bicycle shop (e.g. Family 
Cycling Center and/or Cabrillo bicycle tool co-op volunteers) 

A project under Ecology Action 877 Cedar St., Suite 240 Santa Cruz, CA 95060 www.scopenstreets.org 

-214-

Item #: 10.A. Attach 1.pdf

Proposed date, time and location 
A Sunday, May 4, 2014, 11 a,m. to 4 p.m. 
A Car-free zone the length of the Esplanade from Stockton Ave to Monterey Ave, as well 

as San Jose Ave. 

Roles 
City of Capitola will coordinate the street closure, including: traffic plan, signage and maps; 
police officers; barricades and pre-event NO-Parking/Tow-away signage. 

In coordination with the City of Capitola, Open Streets Santa Cruz County (OSSCC) be 
responsible for coordination of: 

1. Community outreach and promotion (in coordination with City promotion channels and 
contacts) 

2. Media promotion (radio, print, TV) 
3. Event programming coordination (activities, music and presenters) 
4. Event evaluation 
5. Volunteer coordination (as needed) 

The event will utilize OSSCC's existing branding to promote the event, including: logo 
(modified to include the City of Capitola's name), as well as general poster and ad layout 
templates. Additionally the event will be promoted on the OSSCC website (with new 
dedicated pages), via its email contact list and Facebook page. 

Capitola Open Streets guiding principles and guidelines 
1. Open space opportunity for healthy outdoor recreation and community gathering 
2. FREE and family-friendly 
3. Participatory - emphasis on programming that is interactive and promotes participant 

engagement 
4. Alcohol free 
5. No pop-up tents and canopies with sales - different from a traditional street 

fair/festival, this event will highlight existing storefronts. 
6. The City's Community Grant partner organizations which work in the areas of marine 

preservation and access, as well as health and fitness and arts may apply to host 
interactive activities and conduct outreach. 

Potential methods to reduce parking demand and event-related traffic by 
promoting bike/walk/bus and carpool to event 

1. Offer a free raffle ticket for event raffle or other free incentive item to participants who 
arrive without a car (walk, bike or bus) or who park in the Pacifir. Cove Parking lots 

2. Offer free, secure "valet" bike parking (sponsored by Open Streets Santa Cruz County 
and/or SCCRTC) 

3. Offer free bicycle inspections and adjustments by a local bicycle shop (e.g. Family 
Cycling Center and/or Cabrillo bicycle tool co-op volunteers) 

A project under Ecology Action 877 Cedar St., Suite 240 Santa Cruz, CA 95060 www.scopenstreets.org 



Business engagement at Capitola Open Streets Community Day 
Open Streets Community Day is a great opportunity for Capitola Village businesses to reach 
new customers as the event will draw many participants and there will be no outside 
vendors. 

Businesses are encouraged to attract visitors by hosting engaging activities for participants. 
Suggested activities include: 

1. Collectively organize a passport card or treasure/scavenger hunt activity which 
encourages public participants to circulate throughout the Village to visit a variety of 
businesses. 

2. Offer special discounts/coupons. 
3. Host demos of products and services. 
4. Host a fun interactive activity for people to participate in . 
5. Set up an interesting display of products. 

Nation-wide Open Streets events are having a positive economic impact for local 
businesses. Examples include: 

1. Los Angeles CiLAvia June 2013 CicLAvia - UCLA's Luskin School of Public Affairs found 
that local Los Angeles businesses made 10% more in sales than during typical 
Sundays. And businesses that actively participated in the Open Streets initiative -
with vending tables out front, music or signage - saw a phenomenal 57% sales 
boost. 

2. Sunday Streets Berkeley October 2012 - Businesses reported a 30-50% increase in 
sales on the day of the event. 

3. Louisville, KY CyLOUvia October 2012 - 70% of participants surveyed reported 
spending money at a business or restaurant along the route and 50% reported 
discovering a new store or restaurant. 

4. St. Louis Open Streets - 75% of participants surveyed reported spending money at a 
business or restaurant along the route and 70% reported discovering a new store or 
restaurant. 

5. Carrboro Open Streets, NC April 2013 - 25% of participants surveyed reported 
spending money at a business or restaurant along the route and 25% reported 
discovering a new business. Also 80 of 100 Market Bucks handeJ out at Open Streets 
were redeemed at the Carrboro Farmers' Market and counts indicated there were 
more customers at the Carrboro Farmers than the previous Sunday. 

Ways business community can support/sponsor event 
1. Provide a letter of support to Capitola City Council for Capitola Open Streets 

Community Day 
2. Event promotion through website, newsletter and social media 
3. Donate prizes for event raffle (free tickets for attendees who bike/walk/or but to event 

and/or complete an event survey) in exchange for related promotion 
4. Contribute towards rental costs, e.g. sound equipment and/or tables and chairs to 

create a "European Plaza" of outdoor seating for participants 
restaurants/cafes/businesses 

5. Sponsor event T-shirts 
6. Sponsor music entertainment (as needed) 

A project under Ecology Action 877 Cedar St., Suite 240 Santa Cruz, CA 95060 www.scopenstreets.org 

-215-

Item #: 10.A. Attach 1.pdf

Business engagement at Capitola Open Streets Community Day 
Open Streets Community Day is a great opportunity for Capitola Village businesses to reach 
new customers as the event will draw many participants and there will be no outside 
vendors. 

Businesses are encouraged to attract visitors by hosting engaging activities for participants. 
Suggested activities include: 

1. Collectively organize a passport card or treasure/scavenger hunt activity which 
encourages public participants to circulate throughout the Village to visit a variety of 
businesses. 

2. Offer special discounts/coupons. 
3. Host demos of products and services. 
4. Host a fun interactive activity for people to participate in . 
5. Set up an interesting display of products. 

Nation-wide Open Streets events are having a positive economic impact for local 
businesses. Examples include: 

1. Los Angeles CiLAvia June 2013 CicLAvia - UCLA's Luskin School of Public Affairs found 
that local Los Angeles businesses made 10% more in sales than during typical 
Sundays. And businesses that actively participated in the Open Streets initiative -
with vending tables out front, music or signage - saw a phenomenal 57% sales 
boost. 

2. Sunday Streets Berkeley October 2012 - Businesses reported a 30-50% increase in 
sales on the day of the event. 

3. Louisville, KY CyLOUvia October 2012 - 70% of participants surveyed reported 
spending money at a business or restaurant along the route and 50% reported 
discovering a new store or restaurant. 

4. St. Louis Open Streets - 75% of participants surveyed reported spending money at a 
business or restaurant along the route and 70% reported discovering a new store or 
restaurant. 

5. Carrboro Open Streets, NC April 2013 - 25% of participants surveyed reported 
spending money at a business or restaurant along the route and 25% reported 
discovering a new business. Also 80 of 100 Market Bucks handeJ out at Open Streets 
were redeemed at the Carrboro Farmers' Market and counts indicated there were 
more customers at the Carrboro Farmers than the previous Sunday. 

Ways business community can support/sponsor event 
1. Provide a letter of support to Capitola City Council for Capitola Open Streets 

Community Day 
2. Event promotion through website, newsletter and social media 
3. Donate prizes for event raffle (free tickets for attendees who bike/walk/or but to event 

and/or complete an event survey) in exchange for related promotion 
4. Contribute towards rental costs, e.g. sound equipment and/or tables and chairs to 

create a "European Plaza" of outdoor seating for participants 
restaurants/cafes/businesses 

5. Sponsor event T-shirts 
6. Sponsor music entertainment (as needed) 

A project under Ecology Action 877 Cedar St., Suite 240 Santa Cruz, CA 95060 www.scopenstreets.org 



Possible activities, presenters and music at Capitola Open Streets 
Activities hosts may be required to provide a Certificate of Insurance and participant 
waivers. 

1. Walking history tour of Capitola Village, the first seaside resort in California (Capitola 
History Museum) 

2. Esplanade beach wall chalk art. Provide chalk and invite public to contribute to a 
temporary public art project. (Capitola Arts Commission) 

3. Capitola Business Treasure/Scavenger hunt 
4. Beach obstacle course challenge (Jr. Lifeguards) 
5. Kids bicycle obstacle course by the Bike Smart! program of Ecology Action (A bicycling 

and skateboarding area may be provided on private property.) 
6. Hula hooping 
7. Bike and wagon decorating and contest/parade 
8. Hula dance (with ukulele music) 

10. Dog agility course (Capitola Dogs or Pacific Veterinary Clinic) 
11. Beach clean-up (Save Our Shores) 
12. Zumba 
13. Tai Chi/Qi Gong 
14. Human chess game 
15. Dress up theme for event based on an overall event theme (e.g. Open Streets by the 

Sea) 
16. Wheelchair obstacle course promoting handicapped accessible sidewalks; blindfolded 

walkabout (what does it feel like for blind individuals to to navigate sidewalks and 
crosswalks?), etc. (Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission, Elderly and 
Disabled Transportation Advisory Committee) 

Possible Music Acts 
1. Ukulele Club (play regularly on Sundays 10-11:30 a.m. on Esplanade) 
2. Steve Graves 
3. Beach Cowboys 
4. Sadza marimba 
5. Peter Weiss the Singing Scientist 
6. Flor de Cana 
7. Steve Coulter - harp 
8. Sambada - Afro-Brazilian dance music 

Evaluation plan to measure sUccess 
1. Conduct participant counts at barricaded intersections (as feaSible). 
2. Conduct public participant surveys at event (possibly offer free event raffle ticket as 

incentive) including questions such as: Why did you come to Capitola Village today? 
What did you do? Did you visit any shops or eat at any restaurants? Did you learn 
about a new Capitola Village business or restaurant? Would you like there to be more 
Open Streets days on the Esplanade in the future? 

3. Post-event interviews/surveys with Village businesses. 

A project under Ecology Action 877 Cedar St., Suite 240 Santa Cruz, CA 95060 www.scopenstreets.org 

-216-

Item #: 10.A. Attach 1.pdf

Possible activities, presenters and music at Capitola Open Streets 
Activities hosts may be required to provide a Certificate of Insurance and participant 
waivers. 

1. Walking history tour of Capitola Village, the first seaside resort in California (Capitola 
History Museum) 

2. Esplanade beach wall chalk art. Provide chalk and invite public to contribute to a 
temporary public art project. (Capitola Arts Commission) 

3. Capitola Business Treasure/Scavenger hunt 
4. Beach obstacle course challenge (Jr. Lifeguards) 
5. Kids bicycle obstacle course by the Bike Smart! program of Ecology Action (A bicycling 

and skateboarding area may be provided on private property.) 
6. Hula hooping 
7. Bike and wagon decorating and contest/parade 
8. Hula dance (with ukulele music) 

10. Dog agility course (Capitola Dogs or Pacific Veterinary Clinic) 
11. Beach clean-up (Save Our Shores) 
12. Zumba 
13. Tai Chi/Qi Gong 
14. Human chess game 
15. Dress up theme for event based on an overall event theme (e.g. Open Streets by the 

Sea) 
16. Wheelchair obstacle course promoting handicapped accessible sidewalks; blindfolded 

walkabout (what does it feel like for blind individuals to to navigate sidewalks and 
crosswalks?), etc. (Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission, Elderly and 
Disabled Transportation Advisory Committee) 

Possible Music Acts 
1. Ukulele Club (play regularly on Sundays 10-11:30 a.m. on Esplanade) 
2. Steve Graves 
3. Beach Cowboys 
4. Sadza marimba 
5. Peter Weiss the Singing Scientist 
6. Flor de Cana 
7. Steve Coulter - harp 
8. Sambada - Afro-Brazilian dance music 

Evaluation plan to measure sUccess 
1. Conduct participant counts at barricaded intersections (as feaSible). 
2. Conduct public participant surveys at event (possibly offer free event raffle ticket as 

incentive) including questions such as: Why did you come to Capitola Village today? 
What did you do? Did you visit any shops or eat at any restaurants? Did you learn 
about a new Capitola Village business or restaurant? Would you like there to be more 
Open Streets days on the Esplanade in the future? 

3. Post-event interviews/surveys with Village businesses. 

A project under Ecology Action 877 Cedar St., Suite 240 Santa Cruz, CA 95060 www.scopenstreets.org 



CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF JANUARY 23, 2014 

FROM: CITY MANAGERS OFFICE 

SUBJECT: SINGLE-USE PLASTIC AND PAPER CARRYOUT BAG REDUCTION FEE 
REVIEW 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive report and provide direction to staff. 

BACKGROUND: The City Council enacted Ordinance No. 977 on January 10, 2013, adopting 
Chapter 8.07 to the Capitola Municipal Code which eliminated the use of single-use plastic 
bags, and required retail merchants to charge a fee for paper bags. In addition, at the same 
City Council Meeting, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 3949 which set the fee for paper 
bags at 25 Cents per paper bag distributed at the point of sale as required in Section 
8.07.030(D) of the Capitola Municipal Code. 

DISCUSSION: In· January of 2013 the City Council considered a Resolution which required 
merchants to charge a fee for paper bags. After much deliberation by the City Council as to the 
amount of the fee, it was set at 25 Cents per bag with the caveat that staff would bring it back 
for review in one year. The fee is meant to act as a deterrent to shoppers from using paper bags 
and to encourage them to bring their own reusable bags. State law prevents local governments 
from charging for plastic bags, and paper bags also have a significant impact on the 
environment. 

Prior to the implementation of the ban, "Save our Shores," a non-profit organization dedicated to 
the preservation of our environment, conducted a survey on the usage of plastic bags. Prior to 
the ban and the 25 Cent fee, 53% of the shoppers surveyed were using reusable bags. After 
the implementation of the ban and the fee, 89% of shoppers surveyed were using reusable 
bags. 

It has been one year since the enactment of the ban and the implementation of the fee. Staff 
has received approximately 15 to 20 email and phone call complaints from citizens and 
merchants about the fee over the past year. Currently, the County of Santa Cruz and the City of 
Watsonville each charge 25 Cents per bag while the City of Santa Cruz charges 10 Cents per 
bag. The City of Scotts Valley does not have a bag ban in place at this time. Staff is asking for 
direction from the City Council as to whether or not to change the fee or leave it at 25 Cents. 

FISCAL IMPACT: Changes to the fee for paper bags will not have a fiscal impact on the City. 
The money collected for the paper bags is retained by the merchant. 

ATTACHMENT: 
1. Resolution No. 3949 
2. Survey 

Report Prepared By: Lisa Murphy 
Administrative Services Director 

Reviewed and Fo~ed 
By City Manager:~ 

R:\CITY COUNCIL\Agenda Staff Reports\20 14 Agenda Reports\OI 23 14\IO.B. Plastic Bag Ord Review.docx -217-

Item #: 10.B. Staff Report.pdf

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF JANUARY 23, 2014 

FROM: CITY MANAGERS OFFICE 

SUBJECT: SINGLE-USE PLASTIC AND PAPER CARRYOUT BAG REDUCTION FEE 
REVIEW 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive report and provide direction to staff. 

BACKGROUND: The City Council enacted Ordinance No. 977 on January 10, 2013, adopting 
Chapter 8.07 to the Capitola Municipal Code which eliminated the use of single-use plastic 
bags, and required retail merchants to charge a fee for paper bags. In addition, at the same 
City Council Meeting, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 3949 which set the fee for paper 
bags at 25 Cents per paper bag distributed at the point of sale as required in Section 
8.07.030(D) of the Capitola Municipal Code. 

DISCUSSION: In· January of 2013 the City Council considered a Resolution which required 
merchants to charge a fee for paper bags. After much deliberation by the City Council as to the 
amount of the fee, it was set at 25 Cents per bag with the caveat that staff would bring it back 
for review in one year. The fee is meant to act as a deterrent to shoppers from using paper bags 
and to encourage them to bring their own reusable bags. State law prevents local governments 
from charging for plastic bags, and paper bags also have a significant impact on the 
environment. 

Prior to the implementation of the ban, "Save our Shores," a non-profit organization dedicated to 
the preservation of our environment, conducted a survey on the usage of plastic bags. Prior to 
the ban and the 25 Cent fee, 53% of the shoppers surveyed were using reusable bags. After 
the implementation of the ban and the fee, 89% of shoppers surveyed were using reusable 
bags. 

It has been one year since the enactment of the ban and the implementation of the fee. Staff 
has received approximately 15 to 20 email and phone call complaints from citizens and 
merchants about the fee over the past year. Currently, the County of Santa Cruz and the City of 
Watsonville each charge 25 Cents per bag while the City of Santa Cruz charges 10 Cents per 
bag. The City of Scotts Valley does not have a bag ban in place at this time. Staff is asking for 
direction from the City Council as to whether or not to change the fee or leave it at 25 Cents. 

FISCAL IMPACT: Changes to the fee for paper bags will not have a fiscal impact on the City. 
The money collected for the paper bags is retained by the merchant. 

ATTACHMENT: 
1. Resolution No. 3949 
2. Survey 

Report Prepared By: Lisa Murphy 
Administrative Services Director 

Reviewed and Fo~ed 
By City Manager:~ 

R:\CITY COUNCIL\Agenda Staff Reports\20 14 Agenda Reports\OI 23 14\IO.B. Plastic Bag Ord Review.docx 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-218-



7891. 

RESOLUTION NO. 3949 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
SETTING A FEE FOR EACH SINGLE USE PAPER CARRY OUT BAG AS PROVIDED 

IN CAPITOLA MUNICIPLE CODE SECTION 8.07 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Capitola approved a ban on single use plastic 
bags and a fee on single use paper bags; and 

WHEREAS, that single use carry plastic and paper carryout bag reduction ordinance is 
codified in Chapter 8.07 of the Capitola Municipal Code; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Capitola held a duly noticed public hearing on 
January 10, 2013 to set the fee at 25 Cents per paper bag distributed at the point of sale which is 
to be retained by the retail establishment as required in Section B.07.030(D); and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Capitola does 
hereby resolve that the fee for each single-use paper carry out bags provided to customers at the 
point of sale shall be 25 Cents. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the fee will go into effect upon effectiveness of Capitola 
Municipal Code Chapter 8.07. 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the above and foregoing resolution was passed and adopted by 
the City Council of the City of Capitola at its regular meeting held on the 10th day of January, 2013, 
by the following vote: 

AYES: Council Members Norton, Storey, Bottorf, Termini, and Mayor Harlan 

NOES: None 

ABSENT: None 

ABSTAIN: None 

'. 

&~~ 
Stephanie Harlan, Mayor 

-219-

Item #: 10.B. Attach 1.pdf

7891. 

RESOLUTION NO. 3949 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
SETTING A FEE FOR EACH SINGLE USE PAPER CARRY OUT BAG AS PROVIDED 

IN CAPITOLA MUNICIPLE CODE SECTION 8.07 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Capitola approved a ban on single use plastic 
bags and a fee on single use paper bags; and 

WHEREAS, that single use carry plastic and paper carryout bag reduction ordinance is 
codified in Chapter 8.07 of the Capitola Municipal Code; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Capitola held a duly noticed public hearing on 
January 10, 2013 to set the fee at 25 Cents per paper bag distributed at the point of sale which is 
to be retained by the retail establishment as required in Section B.07.030(D); and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Capitola does 
hereby resolve that the fee for each single-use paper carry out bags provided to customers at the 
point of sale shall be 25 Cents. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the fee will go into effect upon effectiveness of Capitola 
Municipal Code Chapter 8.07. 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the above and foregoing resolution was passed and adopted by 
the City Council of the City of Capitola at its regular meeting held on the 10th day of January, 2013, 
by the following vote: 

AYES: Council Members Norton, Storey, Bottorf, Termini, and Mayor Harlan 

NOES: None 

ABSENT: None 

ABSTAIN: None 

'. 

&~~ 
Stephanie Harlan, Mayor 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-220-



City of Capitola Plastic Bag Ban Ordinance Surveys conducted by Save Our Shores - Ordinance effective April 10, 2013 

Total # of % of 
# of Total # of shoppers shoppers 

# of shoppers shoppers using using 
shoppers using using reusable reusable 
using plastic single-use bags or no Total # of bags or no 

Date Store Name Street Address Start time Duration paper bags bags bags bag shoppers bag 

Before 4/10 

4/6/2013 Savemart 1475 41st Street 11:00:00 1 9 45 54 29 83 35% 

4/6/2013 Target 1825 41st Street 12:08:00 1 0 86 86 39 125 31% 

4/6/2013 Trader Joes 3555 Clares Street 13:20:00 1 75 0 75 99 174 57% 

4/7/2013' Savemart 1475 41st Street 11:25:00 1 14 47 61 26 87 30% 

4/7/2013 Target 1825 41st Street 12:33:00 1 0 91 91 47 138 34% 

4/7/2013 Trader Joes 3555 Clares Street 13:39:00 1 62 0 62 113 175 65% 

4/7/2013 Trader Joes 3555 Cia res Street 11:20:00 1 73 0 73 115 188 61% 

4/8/2013 Savemart 1475 41st Street 17:00:00 1 2 5 7 172 179 96% 

4/6/2013 Target 3555 Cia res Street 12:08:00 1 2 137 139 54 193 28% 

4/9/2013 Trader Joes 3555 Cia res Street 17:00:00 1 76 0 76 107 183 58% 

TOTALS: [% of reusable/no bag BEFORE 25 cent feel 313 411 724 801 1525 53% 

After 4/10 

4/15/2013 SaveMart 1475 41st Ave 1 2 3 5 167 172 97% 

4/27/2013 Trader Joes 3555 Clares Street 12:40:00 1 14 0 14 123 137 90% 

4/28/2013 Target 1825 41st Street 13:52:00 1 15 0 15 101 116 87% 

4/29/2013 Savemart 1475 41st Street 15:05:00 1 8 12 20 77 97 79% 

4/28/2013 CVS 1750 41st Street 13:15:00 1 11 0 11 103 114 90% 

4/29/2013 Rite Aid 41st Str.eet 14:21:00 1 5 0 5 67 72 93% 

4/28/2013 Trader Joes 3555 Cia res Street 10:30:00 1 38 0 38 155 193 80% 

5/8/2013 CVS 1750 41st Street 9:00:00 1 6 0 6 60 66 91% 

5/8/2013 Rite Aid 41st Street 14:45:00 1 1 0 1 61 62 98% 

5/9/2013 Savemart 1475 41st Street 11:30:00 1 9 0 9 79 88 90% 

TOTALS: [% of reusable/no bag AFTER 25 cent feel 109 15 124 993 1117 89% 

-221-

Item
 #: 10.B

. A
ttach

 2.p
d

f

City of Capitola Plastic Bag Ban Ordinance Surveys conducted by Save Our Shores - Ordinance effective April 10, 2013 

Total # of % of 
# of Total # of shoppers shoppers 

# of shoppers shoppers using using 
shoppers using using reusable reusable 
using plastic single-use bags or no Total # of bags or no 

Date Store Name Street Address Start time Duration paper bags bags bags bag shoppers bag 

Before 4/10 

4/6/2013 Savemart 1475 41st Street 11:00:00 1 9 45 54 29 83 35% 

4/6/2013 Target 1825 41st Street 12:08:00 1 0 86 86 39 125 31% 

4/6/2013 Trader Joes 3555 Clares Street 13:20:00 1 75 0 75 99 174 57% 

4/7/2013' Savemart 1475 41st Street 11:25:00 1 14 47 61 26 87 30% 

4/7/2013 Target 1825 41st Street 12:33:00 1 0 91 91 47 138 34% 

4/7/2013 Trader Joes 3555 Clares Street 13:39:00 1 62 0 62 113 175 65% 

4/7/2013 Trader Joes 3555 Cia res Street 11:20:00 1 73 0 73 115 188 61% 

4/8/2013 Savemart 1475 41st Street 17:00:00 1 2 5 7 172 179 96% 

4/6/2013 Target 3555 Cia res Street 12:08:00 1 2 137 139 54 193 28% 

4/9/2013 Trader Joes 3555 Cia res Street 17:00:00 1 76 0 76 107 183 58% 

TOTALS: [% of reusable/no bag BEFORE 25 cent feel 313 411 724 801 1525 53% 

After 4/10 

4/15/2013 SaveMart 1475 41st Ave 1 2 3 5 167 172 97% 

4/27/2013 Trader Joes 3555 Clares Street 12:40:00 1 14 0 14 123 137 90% 

4/28/2013 Target 1825 41st Street 13:52:00 1 15 0 15 101 116 87% 

4/29/2013 Savemart 1475 41st Street 15:05:00 1 8 12 20 77 97 79% 

4/28/2013 CVS 1750 41st Street 13:15:00 1 11 0 11 103 114 90% 

4/29/2013 Rite Aid 41st Str.eet 14:21:00 1 5 0 5 67 72 93% 

4/28/2013 Trader Joes 3555 Cia res Street 10:30:00 1 38 0 38 155 193 80% 

5/8/2013 CVS 1750 41st Street 9:00:00 1 6 0 6 60 66 91% 

5/8/2013 Rite Aid 41st Street 14:45:00 1 1 0 1 61 62 98% 

5/9/2013 Savemart 1475 41st Street 11:30:00 1 9 0 9 79 88 90% 

TOTALS: [% of reusable/no bag AFTER 25 cent feel 109 15 124 993 1117 89% 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-222-



CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF JANUARY 23, 2014 

FROM: DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS AND PLANNING DEPARTMENT 

SUBJECT: CONSIDER AN AMENDMENT TO CHAPTER 10.36.055 OF THE CAPITOLA 
MUNICIPAL CODE AMENDING PARKING METER ZONE B 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve the first reading of an Ordinance amending Chapter 
10.36.055 of the Capitola Municipal Code (CMC) pertaining to Parking Meter Zone B to include the 
Lower Pacific Cove Parking Lot. 

BACKGROUND: Over the past year the City has attempted to amend its Local Coastal Program 
(LCP) to allow changes to parking meter rates and zones through issuance of a Coastal 
Development Permit rather than the current LCP amendment process. Unfortunately, staff has 
been unable to reach an agreement with California Coastal Commission staff on proposed 
conditions for a free park and ride shuttle. Consequently, staff recommends abandoning the 
previously submitted LCP amendment in favor or a new Municipal Code and LCP amendment 
which solely adds the new Lower Pacific Cove Parking Lot to existing Meter Zone B. 

DISCUSSION: The proposed code amendment would add lower Pacific Cove area into Meter 
Zone B as described in Chapter 10.36.055. This change will ensure consistency between the 
Municipal Code and the Local Coastal Plan. The meter fees in the new lot will be the existing rate 
of 50-cents per hour that is charged in the existing Pacific Cove parking lot. 

FISCAL IMPACT: Adoption of this Ordinance will increase meter zone B by 227 spaces. The 
Fiscal Year 2013/2014 budget anticipates an increase in revenue of 30% for Meter Zone B from 
these spaces at the exiting rate of 50-cents per hour. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Draft Ordinance 
2. CMC Strikeout version 

Report Prepared By: Steven Jesberg 
Public Works Director 

Rich Grunow 
Community Development Director 

Reviewed and 0 

By City Manag 

R:\CITY COUNCIL\Agenda Staff Reports\2014 Agenda Reports\Ol 23 14\lO.C CMC Pac Cove Amendment_Report.docx 
-223-

Item #: 10.C. Staff Report.pdf

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF JANUARY 23, 2014 

FROM: DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS AND PLANNING DEPARTMENT 

SUBJECT: CONSIDER AN AMENDMENT TO CHAPTER 10.36.055 OF THE CAPITOLA 
MUNICIPAL CODE AMENDING PARKING METER ZONE B 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve the first reading of an Ordinance amending Chapter 
10.36.055 of the Capitola Municipal Code (CMC) pertaining to Parking Meter Zone B to include the 
Lower Pacific Cove Parking Lot. 

BACKGROUND: Over the past year the City has attempted to amend its Local Coastal Program 
(LCP) to allow changes to parking meter rates and zones through issuance of a Coastal 
Development Permit rather than the current LCP amendment process. Unfortunately, staff has 
been unable to reach an agreement with California Coastal Commission staff on proposed 
conditions for a free park and ride shuttle. Consequently, staff recommends abandoning the 
previously submitted LCP amendment in favor or a new Municipal Code and LCP amendment 
which solely adds the new Lower Pacific Cove Parking Lot to existing Meter Zone B. 

DISCUSSION: The proposed code amendment would add lower Pacific Cove area into Meter 
Zone B as described in Chapter 10.36.055. This change will ensure consistency between the 
Municipal Code and the Local Coastal Plan. The meter fees in the new lot will be the existing rate 
of 50-cents per hour that is charged in the existing Pacific Cove parking lot. 

FISCAL IMPACT: Adoption of this Ordinance will increase meter zone B by 227 spaces. The 
Fiscal Year 2013/2014 budget anticipates an increase in revenue of 30% for Meter Zone B from 
these spaces at the exiting rate of 50-cents per hour. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Draft Ordinance 
2. CMC Strikeout version 

Report Prepared By: Steven Jesberg 
Public Works Director 

Rich Grunow 
Community Development Director 

Reviewed and 0 

By City Manag 

R:\CITY COUNCIL\Agenda Staff Reports\2014 Agenda Reports\Ol 23 14\lO.C CMC Pac Cove Amendment_Report.docx 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-224-



ORDINANCE NO. 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
AMENDING CHAPTER 10.36.055 OF THE CAPITOLA MUNICIPAL CODE 

AMENDING PARKING METER ZONE B 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY OF CAPITOLA OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Chapter 10.36.055.A.3 of the Capitola Municipal Code is hereby amended to 
read as follows: 

L' :'_"'~'~) 

3. Parking Meter Zone B. The city-owned parking;'iots adjacent to, and directly to 
the north and east of Capitola city hall, APN 35-141-a31lQc~ted at 426 Capitola Avenue, 
as depicted on the map attached hereto as Exhiblt:"B" f61,Hld on file in the office of the 
city clerk, shall constitute parking meter zon~ B. The city pUb!1~hyvorks director, acting in 
the director's capacity as superintendeptof streets, is hereby. authorized to install 
parking meters in all public parking spac'es located in zone B and~p place appropriate 
signage in zone B relative to said metered parking. Parking meters wiffroperate in zone B 
each day of the week from the hours of eight a.m. to. eight p.m. Th~~§lty council, by 
resolution or minute order, ma¥.j~g~,signate days when said parking meters will not 
operate. 11;<"X;<'·' 

Section 2. This ordinance shall b::~\itlfOrc~K~6(;(take effect thirty (30) days after final 
adoption. /:> 11,:;. 

This ordinance w~'s introduced on the 23f~;&~Y>;f Ja~J~tY, 2014, and was passed and 
adopted by the City Council of the City of Capitola on the _ day of February, 2014, by 
the foliowingvptE;l: 

AYES:: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

ATTEST: 

Susan Sneddon, CMC 
City Clerk 

APPROVED: 

Sam Storey, Mayor 

R:\CITY COUNCIL\Agenda StaffReports\2014 Agenda Reports\OI 23 14\10.C CMC Pac Cove Amendment_ Ordinance.docx 

-225-

Item #: 10.C. Attach 1.pdf

ORDINANCE NO. 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
AMENDING CHAPTER 10.36.055 OF THE CAPITOLA MUNICIPAL CODE 

AMENDING PARKING METER ZONE B 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY OF CAPITOLA OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Chapter 10.36.055.A.3 of the Capitola Municipal Code is hereby amended to 
read as follows: 

L' :'_"'~'~) 

3. Parking Meter Zone B. The city-owned parking;'iots adjacent to, and directly to 
the north and east of Capitola city hall, APN 35-141-a31lQc~ted at 426 Capitola Avenue, 
as depicted on the map attached hereto as Exhiblt:"B" f61,Hld on file in the office of the 
city clerk, shall constitute parking meter zon~ B. The city pUb!1~hyvorks director, acting in 
the director's capacity as superintendeptof streets, is hereby. authorized to install 
parking meters in all public parking spac'es located in zone B and~p place appropriate 
signage in zone B relative to said metered parking. Parking meters wiffroperate in zone B 
each day of the week from the hours of eight a.m. to. eight p.m. Th~~§lty council, by 
resolution or minute order, ma¥.j~g~,signate days when said parking meters will not 
operate. 11;<"X;<'·' 

Section 2. This ordinance shall b::~\itlfOrc~K~6(;(take effect thirty (30) days after final 
adoption. /:> 11,:;. 

This ordinance w~'s introduced on the 23f~;&~Y>;f Ja~J~tY, 2014, and was passed and 
adopted by the City Council of the City of Capitola on the _ day of February, 2014, by 
the foliowingvptE;l: 

AYES:: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

ATTEST: 

Susan Sneddon, CMC 
City Clerk 

APPROVED: 

Sam Storey, Mayor 

R:\CITY COUNCIL\Agenda StaffReports\2014 Agenda Reports\OI 23 14\10.C CMC Pac Cove Amendment_ Ordinance.docx 



to 
..... 
. -.c .-J
: 

""'" 
T

""" 

>< 
W

 
0 N

 >-I.... 

CO 
:::J 
C

 
CO 

""") 

co Q
) 

(/) 
eo 

C
 

..!!! 
~C'! 

-
0 

0 
0 
~
N
 

Q
.
L

-

eo 
Q

) 
(
)
 

+oJ 
Q

) 
""": 
0 

'+-:E
 

0 
LO

 

>
.0

) 
0 c:i 

+
o

J
C

 
--

--
(
)
 
~
 

L
-

eo 
0 

c... 

-226-

Item
 #: 10.C

. A
ttach

 1.p
d

f

City of Capitola 
Parking Meter Zone B 

o 0.05 0.1 
Miles 

0.2 

Exhibit B 

January 2014 



-227-

Item #: 10.C. Attach 2.pdf

Capitola Municipal Code 

10.36.055 Parking meter zones/rates. 

A. The following parking meter zones are hereby established in the city of Capitola: 

3. Parking Meter Zone B. The city-owned parking lot~ adjacent to, and directly to 
the north and east of Capitola city hall, portion of APN 35-141-33 located at 426 
Capitola Avenue, which encompasses the area known as Pacific Cove Parking 
bGt,-as depicted on the map attached hereto as Exhibit uB" found on file in the 
office of the city clerk, shall constitute parking meter zone B. The city public 
works director, acting in the director's capacity as superintendent of streets, is 
hereby authorized to install parking meters in all public parking spaces located in 
zone B and to place appropriate signage in zone B relative to said metered 
parking. Parking meters will operate in zone B each day of the week from the 
hours of eight a.m. to eight p.m. The city council, by resolution or minute order, 
may designate days when said parking meters will not operate. 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-228-



CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF JANUARY 23, 2014 

FROM: CITY MANAGER'S DEPARTMENT 

SUBJECT: COMMUNITY BASED HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES PROVIDERS 
PROGRAM FISCAL YEAR 2014-2015 APPLICATION PRC CESS 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 1) Determine whether or not to allow a new agency or organization 
to apply for the existing Community Based Health and Human Services Providers Program for 
Fiscal Year 2014-2015; and 2) Designate two Council Members to an ad hoc committee to 
review the process and applications and make a funding recommendation. 

BACKGROUND: Each year the City Council makes a determination as to whether or not to 
allow a new agency or organization to apply for funding for the Community Based Health and 
Human Services Providers Program for the following fiscal year. In addition, two council 
members are appointed to review the process and applications. 

DISCUSSION: The City of Capitola Community Based Health and Human Services Providers 
Program currently provides funding for a variety of agencies/organizations. The total amount in 
the current fiscal year is $254,270. The City Council must make a determination if it will allow 
any new agencies or organizations to apply for funds. Last fiscal year the Council accepted new 
applicants. Typically during budget deliberations, the City Council will also appoint two Council 
Members to review the process and the applications and make funding recommendations to the 
City Council. 

Staff is recommending consolidating these two actions for a more strr lmlined process. The 
opportunity to determine the actual amount of funding will be during budget deliberations. This 
year the application process will begin on February 7,2014, and close on March 7,2014. 

FISCAL IMPACT: Unknown 

ATTACHMENT: None 

Report Prepared By: Lisa G. Murphy 
Administrative Services Director 

R:\CITY COUNCIL\Agenda Staff Reports\20 14 Agenda Reports\Ol 23 14\1O.D. COIDJrl tity Grants New App 
Determination Jeport.docx -229-

Item #: 10.D. Staff Report.pdf

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF JANUARY 23, 2014 

FROM: CITY MANAGER'S DEPARTMENT 

SUBJECT: COMMUNITY BASED HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES PROVIDERS 
PROGRAM FISCAL YEAR 2014-2015 APPLICATION PRC CESS 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 1) Determine whether or not to allow a new agency or organization 
to apply for the existing Community Based Health and Human Services Providers Program for 
Fiscal Year 2014-2015; and 2) Designate two Council Members to an ad hoc committee to 
review the process and applications and make a funding recommendation. 

BACKGROUND: Each year the City Council makes a determination as to whether or not to 
allow a new agency or organization to apply for funding for the Community Based Health and 
Human Services Providers Program for the following fiscal year. In addition, two council 
members are appointed to review the process and applications. 

DISCUSSION: The City of Capitola Community Based Health and Human Services Providers 
Program currently provides funding for a variety of agencies/organizations. The total amount in 
the current fiscal year is $254,270. The City Council must make a determination if it will allow 
any new agencies or organizations to apply for funds. Last fiscal year the Council accepted new 
applicants. Typically during budget deliberations, the City Council will also appoint two Council 
Members to review the process and the applications and make funding recommendations to the 
City Council. 

Staff is recommending consolidating these two actions for a more strr lmlined process. The 
opportunity to determine the actual amount of funding will be during budget deliberations. This 
year the application process will begin on February 7,2014, and close on March 7,2014. 

FISCAL IMPACT: Unknown 

ATTACHMENT: None 

Report Prepared By: Lisa G. Murphy 
Administrative Services Director 

R:\CITY COUNCIL\Agenda Staff Reports\20 14 Agenda Reports\Ol 23 14\1O.D. COIDJrl tity Grants New App 
Determination Jeport.docx 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-230-



CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF JANUARY 23,2014 

FROM: DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 

SUBJECT: CONSIDER AUTHORIZING AN AMENDED ENGINEERING CONTRACT WITH 
HARRIS & ASSOCIATES FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2013/2014 CLARES STREET 
TRAFFIC CALMING PROJECT 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Award a contract to Harris & Associates to complete the planning and 
design of the Clares Street Traffic Calming Project in the amount of $78,000. 

BACKGROUND: In February 2011, the City Council approved a contract to Harris & Associates for 
planning and design services for the Clares Street Traffic Calming Project. After approximately 40% 
of the work being completed the contract was canceled due to the shutdown of the Capitola 
Redevelopment Agency which was providing construction funding. The scope of the project 
approved in 2011 did not include repaving the street and both City Council and staff have 
recommended this work be added to the project. Harris & Associates is prepared to resume work 
under their existing contract for the original scope with an additional $7,600 to prepare additional 
plans for the repaving and some sidewalk repair work. 

DISCUSSION: Although the design work is well underway, the construction of this project will need 
to be delayed due to a scheduled Santa Cruz County Sanitation Project on the eastern half of 
Clares Street. The Santa Cruz County Sanitation District (District) will be replacing the transmission 
line that comes from their pump station in the Nob Hill parking lot, crosses under Soquel Creek, 
and terminates approximately 200 feet west of 46th Avenue. While the work under the creek will be 
done by drilling, the work on Clares Street will entail open trenching. The District's current schedule 
begins construction in January 2015, and the project will take three months to complete. 

The City's Clares Street Project was actually initiated in 2004 as part of the Rispin Hotel project. 
Preliminary engineering was reviewed by the Redevelopment Agency in 2004, and a concept plan 
design that included the chicanes and median islands arid pedestrian crosswalks at 42nd Avenue 
and 46th was approved. A copy of the approved concept plan is included as Attachment 2. The 
current design work is consistent with this plan. 

FISCAL IMPACT: The original contract, including an amendment for traffic engineering, was in the 
amount of $111,40'0, of which $41,052 has been spent, leaving a balance of $70,348. The 
additional paving and sidewalk work at a cost of $7,600 brings the total of the new contract to 
$78,000. Funding will be from the Capital Improvement Program budget for this project. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Proposal from Harris & Associates dated September 9, 2013 
2. Approved design concept plan 
3. Agenda report from February 24, 2011 

Report Prepared By: Steven Jesberg 
Public Works Director Reviewed and Fo 

By City Manager: \_~+-, 

R:\CITY COUNCIL\Agenda Staff Reports\2014 Agenda Reports\01 23 14\10.E. Clares Street Traffic Calming Design Contract_Report 
Rev SU.docx -231-

Item #: 10.E. Staff Report.pdf

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF JANUARY 23,2014 

FROM: DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 

SUBJECT: CONSIDER AUTHORIZING AN AMENDED ENGINEERING CONTRACT WITH 
HARRIS & ASSOCIATES FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2013/2014 CLARES STREET 
TRAFFIC CALMING PROJECT 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Award a contract to Harris & Associates to complete the planning and 
design of the Clares Street Traffic Calming Project in the amount of $78,000. 

BACKGROUND: In February 2011, the City Council approved a contract to Harris & Associates for 
planning and design services for the Clares Street Traffic Calming Project. After approximately 40% 
of the work being completed the contract was canceled due to the shutdown of the Capitola 
Redevelopment Agency which was providing construction funding. The scope of the project 
approved in 2011 did not include repaving the street and both City Council and staff have 
recommended this work be added to the project. Harris & Associates is prepared to resume work 
under their existing contract for the original scope with an additional $7,600 to prepare additional 
plans for the repaving and some sidewalk repair work. 

DISCUSSION: Although the design work is well underway, the construction of this project will need 
to be delayed due to a scheduled Santa Cruz County Sanitation Project on the eastern half of 
Clares Street. The Santa Cruz County Sanitation District (District) will be replacing the transmission 
line that comes from their pump station in the Nob Hill parking lot, crosses under Soquel Creek, 
and terminates approximately 200 feet west of 46th Avenue. While the work under the creek will be 
done by drilling, the work on Clares Street will entail open trenching. The District's current schedule 
begins construction in January 2015, and the project will take three months to complete. 

The City's Clares Street Project was actually initiated in 2004 as part of the Rispin Hotel project. 
Preliminary engineering was reviewed by the Redevelopment Agency in 2004, and a concept plan 
design that included the chicanes and median islands arid pedestrian crosswalks at 42nd Avenue 
and 46th was approved. A copy of the approved concept plan is included as Attachment 2. The 
current design work is consistent with this plan. 

FISCAL IMPACT: The original contract, including an amendment for traffic engineering, was in the 
amount of $111,40'0, of which $41,052 has been spent, leaving a balance of $70,348. The 
additional paving and sidewalk work at a cost of $7,600 brings the total of the new contract to 
$78,000. Funding will be from the Capital Improvement Program budget for this project. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Proposal from Harris & Associates dated September 9, 2013 
2. Approved design concept plan 
3. Agenda report from February 24, 2011 

Report Prepared By: Steven Jesberg 
Public Works Director Reviewed and Fo 

By City Manager: \_~+-, 

R:\CITY COUNCIL\Agenda Staff Reports\2014 Agenda Reports\01 23 14\10.E. Clares Street Traffic Calming Design Contract_Report 
Rev SU.docx 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-232-



September 9, 2013 

Mr. Steve Jesberg 
Public Works Director 
City of Capitola 
420 Capitola Ave 
Capitola, CA 95010 

Harris & AssociatessM 
Shaping the Future, One Project at a Time"" 

Re: Proposal for Amendment No.2 to the Clares Street Traffic Calming Project 

Hi Steve: 

As we discussed at our meeting on July 22, this letter serves as a project status as we look to re-start the 
project and also as a proposal for Harris& Associates to provide additional engineering services on the CIa res 
Street Traffic Calming which was placed on hold by the City in January 2012. 

When we ceased working on the project last year, we had completed approximately 50% of our design work 
and had billed 37% of the overall budget, or $41,051.80 out of a total budget of $111,400. We had already 
secured a Purchase Order/Amendment from you for traffic engineering services by Hatch Mott MacDonald, to 
review lane configurations and traffic signal impacts. The added work of Amendment No.2 is to include the 
resurfacing of elares Street and repair of southside sidewalk into the scope of the project. 

seOPE OF WORK 
We will perform field reconnaissance and prepare layout, details, quantities, cost estimate and technical 
specifications for the street resurfacing and sidewalk repairs. Details will be included in the 60% and Final 

Submittals to the City. 

SCHEDULE 
Review lane configurations and traffic Signal impacts- within 2 weeks of receipt of Notice to Proceed 
60% Design Submittal- 4 weeks after Notice to Proceed 
Public Workshop- in November, date to be determined by City 
100%/Final Submittal- 4 weeks after Public Workshop 
Bidding and Construction- tbd by City, early 2014 was discussed at our scoping meeting 

FEE 
We estimate a fee of $7,600 to quantify, layout, detail, and prepare specifications for the street resurfacing 
and sidewalk repair on Clares Street within the limits of the Project. 

Please let me know if you have any questions. I can be contacted on my mobile phone at (510)289-8243, in the 
office at (925) 827-4900 x1153 or bye-mail rmoore@harris-assoc.com. 

1401 Willow Pass Road Suite 500 Concord, CA 94520-7964 925.827.4900 f.925.827.4982 harris-assoc.com 

-233-

Item #: 10.E. Attach 1.pdf

September 9, 2013 

Mr. Steve Jesberg 
Public Works Director 
City of Capitola 
420 Capitola Ave 
Capitola, CA 95010 

Harris & AssociatessM 
Shaping the Future, One Project at a Time"" 

Re: Proposal for Amendment No.2 to the Clares Street Traffic Calming Project 

Hi Steve: 

As we discussed at our meeting on July 22, this letter serves as a project status as we look to re-start the 
project and also as a proposal for Harris& Associates to provide additional engineering services on the CIa res 
Street Traffic Calming which was placed on hold by the City in January 2012. 

When we ceased working on the project last year, we had completed approximately 50% of our design work 
and had billed 37% of the overall budget, or $41,051.80 out of a total budget of $111,400. We had already 
secured a Purchase Order/Amendment from you for traffic engineering services by Hatch Mott MacDonald, to 
review lane configurations and traffic signal impacts. The added work of Amendment No.2 is to include the 
resurfacing of elares Street and repair of southside sidewalk into the scope of the project. 

seOPE OF WORK 
We will perform field reconnaissance and prepare layout, details, quantities, cost estimate and technical 
specifications for the street resurfacing and sidewalk repairs. Details will be included in the 60% and Final 

Submittals to the City. 

SCHEDULE 
Review lane configurations and traffic Signal impacts- within 2 weeks of receipt of Notice to Proceed 
60% Design Submittal- 4 weeks after Notice to Proceed 
Public Workshop- in November, date to be determined by City 
100%/Final Submittal- 4 weeks after Public Workshop 
Bidding and Construction- tbd by City, early 2014 was discussed at our scoping meeting 

FEE 
We estimate a fee of $7,600 to quantify, layout, detail, and prepare specifications for the street resurfacing 
and sidewalk repair on Clares Street within the limits of the Project. 

Please let me know if you have any questions. I can be contacted on my mobile phone at (510)289-8243, in the 
office at (925) 827-4900 x1153 or bye-mail rmoore@harris-assoc.com. 

1401 Willow Pass Road Suite 500 Concord, CA 94520-7964 925.827.4900 f.925.827.4982 harris-assoc.com 



Hussell A. Moore, PE, ENV SP, LEW AP 
Vice President 
Project Manager 

cc: Patrick Dobbins~ Harris & Associates 

I Harris & Assodates .. 

-234-

Item #: 10.E. Attach 1.pdf

Hussell A. Moore, PE, ENV SP, LEW AP 
Vice President 
Project Manager 

cc: Patrick Dobbins~ Harris & Associates 

I Harris & Assodates .. 



I 

I --
\. - j 

+-" 
I 
I 

RECOMMENPW ALTERNAJNE 4 • ClAKES mEET 
L PROPOSEp PARKINC STAllS - ~1~ ~:::: ~~ l 

I 
II +-.1 I 

E )h I 
E 

I cit 
I "u I~, 

~:- :11 
--• 

cC g 
=: u 
II. 
0 

a 
I-
u 

mi 
l=!i! 

~ 
:~ 
lI!u 
Su 
ulE 

cC 

l= 

--, , 
I 

, 

•• 

-235-

Item
 #: 10.E

. A
ttach

 2.p
d

f

--
\. - j 

RECOMMENPW ALTERNAJNE 4 • ClAKES mEET 
L PROPOSEp PARKINC STAllS - ~1~ ~:::: ~~ l 

--, . , 

•• 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-236-



CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF FEBRUARY 24, 2011 

FROM: DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 

DATE: FEBRUARY 15, 2011 

SUBJECT: CLARES STREET TRAFFIC CALMING PROJECT 
AWARD OF CONTRACT FOR PLANNING AND DESIGN SEPVICES 

Recommended Action: By motion and roll call vote award a contract to Harris and Associates for 
Planning and Design Services for the Clares Street Traffic Calming Project in the amount of 
$103,000. 

BACKGROUND 

Included in the 2010/11 Capital Improvement Program is funding for a traffic calming project on 
Clares Street between 41 st Avenue and Wharf Road. This project was originally conceived as part 
of the Rispin Hotel project and includes several mitigation measures identified in that projects 
permit conditions. Funding for planning and design services, and a portion of the construction 
funding was originally to come from the hotel developer. Due to failure of the hotel project to 
proceed, Public Works staff sought and received grant funding for the project through the Santa 
Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission and the Redevelopment Agency has increase 
its funding in the project. 

Preliminary engineering for traffic calming on Clares Street was initially review by the 
Redevelopment Agency in 2004. At that time the RDA Board approved a design that included the 
chicanes and median islands and included raised and lighted pedestria'l crosswalks at 42nd 

Avenue and 46th Avenue. Minutes and the agenda material from the December 9, 2004 meeting 
are included as Attachment 2. 

DISCUSSION 

Staff has purposely waited for the final and redesigned elements of the Capitola Road Traffic 
Calming Project to be constructed before beginning the design of the Clares Street improvements. 
Obviously much has been learned from the Capitola Road project that will be carried forward. 
Besides the standard data gathering, surveying, and design work, Harris's scope of work includes 
holding a community work shop at the 30% design phase. This meeting will be advertised and 
held at a convenient time and location for seeking public input and by in on the project. 

The total cost of the contract is $103,000 and includes design services, bidding services, and 
construction services consisting of submittal reviews and responding to information requests from 
the contractor. Local firms Bowman and Williams Engineer's and Joni Janecki & Associates are 
SUb-consultants who will complete the survey work and landscape design respectively. 

-237-

Item #: 10.E. Attach 3.pdf

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF FEBRUARY 24, 2011 

FROM: DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 

DATE: FEBRUARY 15, 2011 

SUBJECT: CLARES STREET TRAFFIC CALMING PROJECT 
AWARD OF CONTRACT FOR PLANNING AND DESIGN SEPVICES 

Recommended Action: By motion and roll call vote award a contract to Harris and Associates for 
Planning and Design Services for the Clares Street Traffic Calming Project in the amount of 
$103,000. 

BACKGROUND 

Included in the 2010/11 Capital Improvement Program is funding for a traffic calming project on 
Clares Street between 41 st Avenue and Wharf Road. This project was originally conceived as part 
of the Rispin Hotel project and includes several mitigation measures identified in that projects 
permit conditions. Funding for planning and design services, and a portion of the construction 
funding was originally to come from the hotel developer. Due to failure of the hotel project to 
proceed, Public Works staff sought and received grant funding for the project through the Santa 
Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission and the Redevelopment Agency has increase 
its funding in the project. 

Preliminary engineering for traffic calming on Clares Street was initially review by the 
Redevelopment Agency in 2004. At that time the RDA Board approved a design that included the 
chicanes and median islands and included raised and lighted pedestria'l crosswalks at 42nd 

Avenue and 46th Avenue. Minutes and the agenda material from the December 9, 2004 meeting 
are included as Attachment 2. 

DISCUSSION 

Staff has purposely waited for the final and redesigned elements of the Capitola Road Traffic 
Calming Project to be constructed before beginning the design of the Clares Street improvements. 
Obviously much has been learned from the Capitola Road project that will be carried forward. 
Besides the standard data gathering, surveying, and design work, Harris's scope of work includes 
holding a community work shop at the 30% design phase. This meeting will be advertised and 
held at a convenient time and location for seeking public input and by in on the project. 

The total cost of the contract is $103,000 and includes design services, bidding services, and 
construction services consisting of submittal reviews and responding to information requests from 
the contractor. Local firms Bowman and Williams Engineer's and Joni Janecki & Associates are 
SUb-consultants who will complete the survey work and landscape design respectively. 



AGENDA STAFF REPORT 
February 24, 2011 
CLARES STREET TRAFFIC CALMING PROJECT 
AWARD OF CONTRACT FOR PLANNING AND DESIGN SERVICES 

Page 2 

FISCAL IMPACT 

Funding 
RSTPX funds 
RDA funds 
TDA funds 
Total 

Expenses 
Design contract 
Construction 
Contingency 
Total 

ATTACHMENTS 

$100,000 
$300,000 
$ 75,000 (pending) 
$475,000 

$103,000 
$350,000 
$ 22,000 
$475,000 

1. Proposal from Harris and Associates dated September 13, 2010 
2. Minutes and Agenda material from December 9, 2004 

Report Prepared By: Steven Jesberg 
Public Works Director 

P:\CC Reports\CC Reports 2011\Clares Street Traffic Calming Design Contract.docx 

Reviewed and Forwarded 
By City Manager: 

-238-

Item #: 10.E. Attach 3.pdf

AGENDA STAFF REPORT 
February 24, 2011 
CLARES STREET TRAFFIC CALMING PROJECT 
AWARD OF CONTRACT FOR PLANNING AND DESIGN SERVICES 

Page 2 

FISCAL IMPACT 

Funding 
RSTPX funds 
RDA funds 
TDA funds 
Total 

Expenses 
Design contract 
Construction 
Contingency 
Total 

ATTACHMENTS 

$100,000 
$300,000 
$ 75,000 (pending) 
$475,000 

$103,000 
$350,000 
$ 22,000 
$475,000 

1. Proposal from Harris and Associates dated September 13, 2010 
2. Minutes and Agenda material from December 9, 2004 

Report Prepared By: Steven Jesberg 
Public Works Director 

P:\CC Reports\CC Reports 2011\Clares Street Traffic Calming Design Contract.docx 

Reviewed and Forwarded 
By City Manager: 


	AGENDA
	REGULAR MEETING OF THE CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL – 7:00 PM
	1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCECouncil Members Stephanie Harlan, Dennis Norton, Ed Bottorff, Michael Termini and Mayor Sam Storey
	2. PRESENTATIONS
	A. Introduction of MariaElena De La Garza, the new Community Action Board of Santa Cruz County Executive Director.
	B. Capitola Local Government Academy Graduation.

	3. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION
	4. ADDITIONAL MATERIALS
	A. 9.E.
	[9.E.pdf]

	B. 10.B.
	[10.B.pdf]

	C. 10.D.
	[10.D.pdf]


	5. ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS TO AGENDA
	6. PUBLIC COMMENTS
	7. CITY COUNCIL / CITY TREASURER / STAFF COMMENTS
	8. BOARDS, COMMISSIONS AND COMMITTEES APPOINTMENTS
	A. City Council appointments to the Oversight Board for the Capitola Successor Agency.


	[Staff Report.pdf]
	[Attach 1.pdf]


	9. CONSENT CALENDAR
	A. Consider approving the City Council Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting held on January 9, 2014.
	[Staff Report.pdf]
	[Attach 1.pdf]

	B. Receive Planning Commission Action Minutes for the Regular Meeting of January 16, 2014.
	[Minutes.pdf]

	C. Consider Ordinances amending Chapters 2.08 and 2.16 of the Capitola Municipal Code regarding the City Manager and the Planning Department [2nd Reading].
	[Staff Report.pdf]
	[Attach 1.pdf]
	[Attach 2.pdf]

	D. Receive the California Public Employees Retirement System Annual Actuarial Valuation Reports as of June 30, 2012.
	[Staff Report.pdf]

	E. Receive the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013.
	[Staff Report.pdf]
	[Attach 1.pdf]
	[Attach 2.pdf]
	[Attach 3.pdf]
	[Attach 4.pdf]
	[Attach 5.pdf]


	10. GENERAL GOVERNMENT / PUBLIC HEARINGS
	A. Consider a closure date and a contract with Open Streets of Santa Cruz County for the Esplande closure to vehicle traffic.
	[Staff Report.pdf]
	[Attach 1.pdf]

	B. Review of the single use plastic and carryout bag fee.
	[Staff Report.pdf]
	[Attach 1.pdf]
	[Attach 2.pdf]

	C. Consider amendments to Chapter 10.36.055 of the Capitola Municipal Code amending parking meter Zone B [1st Reading].
	[Staff Report.pdf]
	[Attach 1.pdf]
	[Attach 2.pdf]

	D. Consider new applications for the Community Based Health and Human Services Program for Fiscal Year 2014/2015.
	[Staff Report.pdf]

	E. Consider authorizing an amended engineering contract with Harris & Associates in the amount not to exceed $78,000 for the Fiscal Year 2013/2014 Clares Street Traffic Calming Project.
	[Staff Report.pdf]
	[Attach 1.pdf]
	[Attach 2.pdf]
	[Attach 3.pdf]


	11. ADJOURNMENT


